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IN DEDICATION

I dedicate this book to my parents, Adin(3) and Geraldine Reynolds. Adin(37)
accomplished more for the maple syrup industry of North America than any other man in history.
Geraldine, strode side by side with Adin(37) through life. They together created a story that must
be told. As my parents, I proudly salute their successes and failures that constitute the contents

of this book. Ithank them for my heritage. I am honored to write their story along with their
forefathers.

: ADIN IS REMEMBERED RS THE FOUNCER OF REVAOLDS

SUGAR BUSH, THE LARGEST MAPLE SYRUP PROCUCER 1N
THE WORLD.

HE BUILT THE "REMEMBFR MHEN" MUSCUM AT AR i0
RECOGNIZE THE HISTORICAL SIGRIFICANCE GF THE
REYNOLDS FRMILY AND LMCY OF PEOPLE (N MARATHGN,
SHAWAND AND LARGLADL LOUNTICS.

LOGGER, DAIRY FRARMER, :Tiﬂf'.t[h'.l-'wf §, N
g&s%%s%tn, HISTORIAN, PO T, DIPLOMAT AND (00D
CHRISTIAN, HIS CHURCH BIING THL CENILR OF HIS LIFE.

WIS DTy DONE, , L HE RESTS 11 PRACE.

(P T LA~

Figure 2: The inscription on the gravestone of Adin(3") and Geraldine (Wheeler) Reynolds. They are buried in the
Aniwa Cemetery, Aniwa, Wis in (S Reynolds Family Archives).
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“Pleasing it is, when the sea is stirred by the raging winds,
To stand upon the shore and watch a wave-tossed wretch;
Not that we take delight in seeing another’s pangs,

But that we ourselves are free of the suffering we behold.
It is pleasing, too, when we gaze from afar,

Upon two mighty armies clashing upon a plain.

But there’s no joy likce this, to stand upon the heights,
Which only those who seek true wisdom can attain,

And from there to look down upon the mass of men,
Wandering here and there in the labyrinth of Earth,
Seelking all in vain the broad highway of life.”

By Lucretius, Roman Poet in about 76 B.C.



IN MEMORY

David E. Warner M.D.

Figure 4: Dr. David Warner. Renowned heart surgeon of the Appleton Heart Institute, Appleton, Wisconsin. He
did everything by ‘saving lives’. ‘He gave his life approximately four years after saving mine.” He died in an
automobile crash, April 3, 1993, I will always remember and be saddened. (Source: Reynolds Family Archives)

Lijnn Reynolds

You honor, Vacerra, the ancients alone,

And never praise poets unless dead and gone;
A thousand pardons, friend, if rude I seem,
But it’s not worth dying to gain your esteem!
With all your heart embrace your lot;

Wish not for death, and fear it not.

By Martial (Marcus Valerious Martialis), Roman Poet About 114 B. C.

The bird that was her joy and pride,
And never, never, left her side

By Gaius Valerious Catullus, Roman Poet About 64 B. C.

You see that Mount Soracte gleams,
Buried deep in dazzling snow;

While all the ice-choked streams are still,
And all the burdened trees bow low.
Then, piling logs upon the fire,

We make the roaring flames leap high,
And, drinking deep of Sabine Wine,

We watch the hours flit swiftly by.

By Horace (Quintus Horatius Flaccus), Roman Poet about 75 B. C.

ix



70 WRITE A BOOKX

+/F one were to write a book,
what subject would it be;

/t would be about history,
and magbe a family tree.

Of course this would require,
a great amount of research;

(e would have to cover,
family, town and chureh.

Genealogy has never been,
an aren of perfect seience;

YNore like a jigsaw puxzzle,
complex as if in defiance.

7o make the pieces fit,

every detail has to be in place;
7hen tey to insert them in,

to give the pictare grace.

A obligation of the researcher,
to be skeptical at every turn;
Vou must challenge the information,

sometimes dend ends make you burn.

W/ hen every investigation,
has stood the inquisitive eye;
7hen you can aceept the data,
and make the slice fit the pie.

JY Lyon Leynolds

cAs the serating of all the parts,
making every detail stand the test;
7he information that results,
will evente a whole of the best.

And on the other side,
if after challenge it is wrong;
One must be veady to discard,
musie that doesn’t make a song.

So on and on it goes,
day in, week out, and the years;
Absolutely so interesting,
consuming one to tears.

JR3ut maintaining the critical ege,
and to make the veader take a look;
(One must exhaust every resource,
that's what it takes to write n book.

J want gou to read and read,
my goal is for you to enjoy;
YYaybe some of my past,

to your memories may employ.

Vake in all that is of our history.
let your mind wander to a tear;

JFill gourselves with nostalgia,
never let doubts of pride interfere.

mﬂrth 16, 1991
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7 ime [ Jut:

Twas The (Night Jefore Tapping

—By Koren /. Yakes, 1987 Vyfisconsin ¥aple Queen—

Twas the (Night JBefore Fapping’, and all through

the cabin

Not a producer was stirring, not even one;

7he work clothes were hung by the cookstove
with eare,

«Jn hopes they ld be to fight the
morning’s cold air.

7he huekets were nestled all snug in their stacks,
Ya/hile the spickets were waiting on the overhead
vacks;
7he tanks under theic 7 the evap
with many pans all three;
W ere just waiting for someone to tap the first

YDaple tree.

TWhen from near the bedsides there came such a
clatter;

7 he producers rose from slumber to get a hot
breakfast plattee;

Away from the table with a from-the heart eall,
7They theew open the barn doors and fired up the
old _farmall.

7he light of early dawn reflecting off the moon-
blue snow.

JUuminated the icy paths and showsed the prod
which way to go.

Suddenly, before the » there stood

7he beckoning syrup b and a shack piled full
of wood.

7he producers approached, pair after pair,
Thile a sense of excitement hung in the air.
Laster and faster they hurcied into the morning
ceisp and cool:

Lach producer searching for his own special tool.

7he drill with a kit, a spicket or two, a hammer
to tap:

And a bucket to eatch the drippiog sap:

Loaded with equij from tip to toe;

They hurried to catch the Spring’s first sweet
flow.

Xiv

With snow piled nearly theee feot high,
7 he producers donned snowshoes; there
wns not time to be shy;
7hen, out of the shack the workers did run;
ZJust in time to see the morning’s Spring sun.

SAnd then, in @ moment, new sound filled

the woods from within;

7he drilling and tapping created quite a din.

7he producers scueried from tap to tap;

JBarely stopping for a glimmer of the first
shimmering sap.

Drip. deip, drip, fell the sap from the tree;

7he sweet, clear liquid from its prison was free.
Ench drip fell to the bucket with an encouraging
plop:

—Foining with the others, drop by drop.

A day or two passed: each YDaple had a tap;

7he producers now waited for the buckets
full of sap.

Soon it was time to collect the sweet water;

¥apling had begun and there was no time

to faltee!

7he teactor and tank! Lach producer a paill
7he buckets were emptied! NVo YDaple
Would faill Y4fith producers running from tree
to tree;

7he sap was collected as quick as could be!

7he Lvaporator was standing with empty pans;
Zeady to cook down the sap and fill the
five-gallon cans;

7he sap was pumped and the firebox filled;
Soon steam began to roll just as

producers willed!

7he hydrometer registered sixey-six brix.

7he syrup would be ready quicker than quick!
AAll producers smiled at the delicious sight;
The ‘s first syrup was sweet and light!

JBut yet, the work was not close to being done;

7he Naple Syrup season had only just begun!
“he ¥Paple prod all sh d as the sap they
did bring.

“Bappy Vapling 7o All, To All A sweet
Springt”




ABOUT THE AUTHOR

Figure 5: Photograph of Lynn H. Reynolds in
1997 (Source: Reynolds Family Archives).
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FORWARD

I started to gather information, possibly to include information about my great grandfather,
Adin (2n) Reynolds and his wife, Electa Porter. To display my ignorance, I doubted if I could find
information further back than their lifetimes. Iintended to include all the branch lines of family
genealogy in one package. One of my first conclusions was that I would have to limit the search
to one family name. Obviously, I chose “Reynolds” to research. As I delved into the family “stuff”,
I realized there were bits and pieces that would apply further back than just to my great
grandfather. At the beginning, I knew that the family had made maple syrup for at least back to
Adin’s (27) time and I suspected that it had gone on before that. Little did I realize that the
panorama of family activity would include anything like what is contained in these pages. It
became a passion with me, and it became an obsession to reveal all the material from the
information that was building. I could not stop. It had consumed me. Even today, I am not
satisfied. I shall continue to research until I have every detail possible. All in all, considering I
Just started out to pass on a little information to the grandkids, and that this story unfolded into
an intercontinental epic, I feel a great sense of accomplishment. And then, there are the
Wheelers, the Sharkeys, the MacGregors, the Greens, and several more family names I wish to
research. I am certain their stories will be just as exciting and revealing. But first things first.

The Reynolds story..........

The format of this book is chronological. To grasp perspective, I am including separate text
Jor “Reynolds Family”, “Maple Items”, and “General or History Materials”. Also included will be
“Authors Notes”, which shall be used for interesting side notes, explanatory statements, or
miscellaneous information that this author feels will be of interest to the reader. Along with
“Authors Notes”, I shall include short stories, anecdotes, sayings, poems, and other interesting
notes about myself and the Reynolds family, which shall be preceded by the title “Time Outs”.
These “Time Outs” shall be offered as ‘refreshing space fillers’ and shall not be presented in
chronological order. The type for “7ime (Juts shall be presented in YDatura VN7 Sevipt”. The
Reynolds materials shall be in “italics”. Maple facts and data shall be displayed as “bold”.
General information and historical shall be written as “regular type”. Author Notes will be
‘underlined”. This should not only make for more interesting reading and organization, but will
assist the book owner to use this document for future reference information. If any mixing of
these are required, they shall be in the order Reynolds - Maple - Historical - Author. The type for
each segment shall be maintained as one, but intermingled in the order described, at the
discretion and in the opinion of the author. The format of this book is “a little different”. My best
Jfriends also sometimes describe me as “a little different”. I believe you will like this format and
enjoy “a little difference” as refreshing.

This is not a book of solid facts. However, the contents are based on fact. This is not pure
fiction because all of the stories are based on historical facts. This is not a history book although
the entire contents are accounts from history and are related to the historical record. This is not
an autobiography, although much is about me and I have used myself as the reference to
distinguish times and relationships. This is a form of a novel — - “a chronological historical novel”,
if you will. Itis the story of a family and an industry. Most of the story is going to be accounts
Jrom diaries, notes, books, letters, lists, Bible records, translated Bible records, wrifings,
obituaries, news articles, deeds, mortgages, land contracts, marriage records, church records,
historian reviews, historian accounts, land records, The Internet, libraries, court house records,
historical society libraries, research sources, lore, mythical, biblical, heraldry, memorabilia, and
stories repeated. Many of the stories were told directly to me by my father, mother, and other
Sfamily members. Iwill not attempt to embellish the lore, but rather tell it as I read or heard it
being told, or as someone else has documented, or as it logically could have happened in my
opinion. If any portion this book is fiction, it would be the story part, which I have been able to
weave from the thousands of threads of information I have been able to accumulate. I have to tell
this story from some time perspective. Since I am the author, I shall use Anne and myself in the
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present form, as that focal point in time. Everything shall be in respect to before or after this
current time element in the book.

Much of this book shall refer to and be about my father, Adin (as most knew him)
Reynolds. In fact, his first name was actually Clarence, his middle name was Adin, but he and
everyone else always called him Adin. To add to the confusion, his grandfather and great
grandfather were also named Adin (although the great grandfather spelled it Aden). To eliminate
confusion and to clarify the characters, we will number them. We will call my father Adin(3m), his
grandfather Adin(2n4), his great grandfather Aden(1s). I shall use the same system when
referring to the John Reynolds that are involved in this story, or other names that are continuously
repeated.

To properly tell this story, I will be including many press articles, such as newspapers,
magazines, and photographs. These sources of information are a better record than me trying to
say the same things. Iwill clarify, or provide additional information, or give personal
interpretations with subscripts, footnotes, endnotes, or author notes. And at the end, I shall give
as complete of a bibliography and credit list source as I can. I take no credit for these articles or
news clippings. I only offer them as part of the historical record.

A major problem in writing this book was the resolution of materials between legend,
Greek mythology, and Roman mythology; and, general legends, Biblical revelation, and religious
mythology. I finally decided to simply present all perspectives, and leave the resolution of any
differences up to the reader.

A couple of questions probably will come to the reader’s mind. First, “Why are these items
in the text about Nostradamus, sports items, or other such trivia?” And second, “Why is there so
much about wars, violence, killing, and waste?” My answer is simple, I am fascinated with the
life and abilities of Nostradamus, I love sports, and trivia is of extreme interest to me. To place
these items into this book serves my interests and provides time-lines as effectively as any other
for the reader. And, as for the wars, we all know where we are going, it is refreshing to know
where we have been. In our history, especially early history, war was commonplace to the times.
The most documented time tables are those defining wars and their dates. The early world was
obsessed with revenge, war, hate, plunder, rape, conquering, domination, and dictatorships with
servitude. This created a fertile environment for dissatisfaction, revolt and overthrow. Violence
and killing were a result of these obsessions. It was part of our past and I want to tell it as
accurately as I can.

And finally, unfortunately, genealogy is not a perfect science. It is a science by taking as
many facts, figures, bits and pieces, as possible to make the puzzle whole. At each step, I
challenged every result as completely as I could with the ability as instilled by my scientific
background. But, there comes a time when you must accept as well as challenge. This makes
genealogy “a science”. Certainly it is not perfect, but is as accurate as humanly possible.
Everyone, including myself, must keep an open mind as changes or differences are proposed. I
shall do that and will accept criticism. However, I can tell you, at time of this writing , I sincerely
believe I am portraying to you, an accurate, truthful, and thoroughly researched representation of
the Reynolds family and their story. I am confident I am representing the facts and demonstrating
the phenomenal relationship that developed between a family and an industry. After all, this will
be my personal legacy as well. As part of this “Reynolds Family”, it is also my story...........

Now, these are stories that were told to me. Even though I had to fill in a lot of gaps, it
was done with extreme care to accurately relate the episodes or facts. Therefore, I take no
responsibility for any inaccuracies beyond my control. If you find names, dates, companies,
spelling, or any other discrepancy, etc., I sincerely apologize. But I want you to know, my efforts
were honorable and sincere.

Summing it all up, I wish to quote two American media giants. As Paul Harvey
andl?b&ur(}ukﬂmmunddsay,ﬁhuinourﬂueﬂumqfthesuny%‘ﬂﬁmfbtheunq;ﬂ1s%
and “You are there”. That says it all.
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Figure 6: Lynn Reynolds at home with
maple (Source: The Wisconsin Farmer,
June 9, 1995 - Reynolds Family Archives).
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(Source: The Antigo Daily Journal - Reynolds Family Archives).
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The Prelude

“THEY DESCENDED FROM KINGS”

“THEY RULED THEIR DOMAINS?”

“THEY FOLLOWED THE TREES”

“THEY HARNESSED THE RIVERS”

“THEY TAPPED THE MAPLE TREES”

“THEY LOVED THEIR FAMILIES”

“THEY MADE THEIR MARK”

“THEY BLAZED THEIR LEGACY”

“AND THEY NEVER LOOKED BACK”



MAKING MAPLE SYRUP

If you are a maple syrup producer, or if you are familiar with malking maple
syrup, you should probably sicip these two pages. These few paragraphs may well bore
you. It is not my attempt to maie this book a lesson on “How to make maple syrup”,
nor is it a document to expound on all the different technigues or equipment utilized in
malking maple syrup. However, to those readers that do not know anything about the
industry or are not knowledgeable about the process of producing maple syrup, this
section will enlighten you to the very basics of conventional maple syrup malcing.

There are five species of maple trees that will make pure maple syrup. They are
“Sugar (or hard) maple”,” Black maple”, “Red maple”, “Silver maple”, and “Box Elder (a
specie of maple)”. These five species will only grow in midwestern Canada,
southeastern Canada, midwestern United States, and northeastern United States.
Obviously, these are the only areas of the world that can produce pure maple syrup.

Tapping a maple tree is essentially a term for injuring the tree. Usually this
injury is simply a 7/16” hole drilled into the tree about 3 inches deep. I will not hurt
the tree. Then there is some instrument, usually what we call a spout (spile), is driven
into the hole. These spouts in the past were made of wood, but today because of
sanitation, they are generally metal or plastic. The spouts are usually round (tubular)
and tapered, so that they stay in the hole. They are ‘tapped (driven)’ snugly into the
hole. The injury into the tree allows the tree to deliver sap out and to drip into some
type of container. The containers are generally buckets or plastic bags which are hung
on the spout. In the past bucikets were made of wood, then tin, later galvanized, and
more recently aluminum or stainless steel. Buckets are then covered by some form of
cover, which keeps debris and rain or snow out of the containers. Bags are either
permanent which have to be washed each year, or disposable which are thrown away
at the end of each season. The plastics bags contain their own covers. These buckets
or bags must be physically emptied into a gathering pail, carried to a tank on a sleigh
or wagon. These wagons with tanks, pulled by oxen, horses, or tractors, are then
hauled to a sugarhouse. The sap is emptied and filtered into a central storage tank.
A more recent development for collecting maple sap from the tree is a plastic tubing
system. The tubing is suspended between each tree, and is connected to the spouts, so
that the flow of sap is through the tubing into a collecting container, usually a metal
or plastic tank. The tubing is supported by wires or cables so that it does not sag. By
connecting several of these tubes together, several trees can be collected by the same
series of tubing into one container. By directing these tubes into larger lines, a whole
section of trees can be collected into a common container. These containers can be
emptied by pump into a hauling tank and the sap is transferred to the sugarhouse sap
storage tanks. In some cases the sap is pumped long distances through pipes or tubing
to the central sap storage. And even more recently, vacuum has been added to the
tubing systems so that maximum flow can be attained, and so that sap does not remain
in dips or low points of the tubing.

Sap that flows from the tree is clear (looks like water) in appearance and
contains about 2% sugar (tastes slightly sweet). Maple sap at 2% sugar will require 43
gallons of sap to maice one gallon of pure maple syrup. The sugar is natural, but
chemically it is sucrose. The sap will only flow from the tree if there is a freezing
night (about 20 degrees F.) and it gets warm enough during the day (about 40 degrees
F.). Sap will not flow if it does not freeze. Sap will not run unless it gets warm enough
to thaw out. If it gets too warm (above 50 degrees) sap will slow or stop flowing. If
warmer weather continues, buds will form and the sap season will end. The running of
sap is the result of a physical phenomonen, freezing and thawing causing expansion
and contraction of cells, forcing the sap to flow out of the wound in the tree. The sap
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run will usually last about a six week period. During this six weel period, if one
receives enough sap to malke one quart of maple syrup per tree (taphole), that is an
average season. Early in the season, with the weather generally colder, sap Ieeps
better and usually makes a lighter grade of maple syrup. As the weather gets warmer,
microbes grow more readily in the sap, the syrup is usually darker and stronger.
Darker and stronger does not necessarily mean lower quality, as it is a consumer
preference as to the type of pure maple syrup they prefer.

Maple syrup that will weigh 11 pounds per gallon, reguires that it contain 66%
sugar. At 66% sugar, it will not spoil. Below 66% sugar, the syrup will ferment. Above
the 66% sugar, it will sugar or crystallize. Sugar content can be measured with a
hydrometer (which floats), or by thermometer (which measures temperature). So, to
malce maple syrup, we have to concentrate the maple sap from 2% to 66%. Generally,
this simply means boiling out 42 gallons water, to leave one gallon maple syrup. To
boil the water out, wood, fuel oil, or gas is used as fuel. The boiling can be
accomplished in a vessel, a kettle, a pan, or an evaporator. Most maple syrup is
produced today in an evaporator. Evaporators are a series of large pans with
maximum heating surfaces, which provide for maximum heating efficiency. A more
recent development is the use of mechanized units called reverse osmosis. Reverse
osmosis is simply placing pressure on the sap with a high pressure pump against a
membrane. The membranes, made for maple sap, have holes that will allow the water
molecules to pass through, but restricts the flow of the sugar molecules. Thus, the
water can be separated from the sugar by mechanical energy, rather than heating
energy, which is far less expensive. Reverse osmosis can remove about 75% of the
water, then the rest of the water is removed by boiling the concentrate. The syrup is
then filtered either by gravity or pressure filters. The process is complete. You have
pure maple syrup, the finest product in the world. I is pure, it is natural, it is healthy,
and it is delicious.

Maple syrup is marketed in many ways. I can be graded. The United States of
Department of Agriculture grading laws provide for two grades. One is commercial
grade, which is too dark and strong to be used for table use. Commercial maple syrup
is used in cooking, blending, flavorings, baking, preparations, and prepared foods.
The other grade is United States grade A. Grade A has three categories, Light Amber,
Medium Amber, and Dark Amber. One category is not better than any other and is left
to the choice of the consumer by flavor preference. A variety of attractive containers
are available to promote the product to the consumer. Attractively packaged, one sells
the product.

The International Maple Syrup Institute is the international trade association
JSor the maple syrup industry. It provides a logo for the container which guarantees to
the consumer, that the syrup in that container is pure and of excellent quality. The
North American Maple Syrup Council is an international organization which provides
support to the producers, and provides education and research for the production of
pure maple syrup. The Council has just 16 members, the State and Provincial Maple
Syrup Associations. The Institute also has the 16 Associations, but in addition,
international associations, agricultural unions, syrup packers, equipment
manufacturers, larger producers, university extension personnel, government officials,
and other interested industry members. The industry is cohesive, vibrant, organized,
and progressive. There you have it......”How to Make Pure Maple Syrup”. Now that was
not so bad, was it?
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CHAPTER 1

IN THE BEGINNING

Author’s Note: I do not want to get into deep discussions concerning religion. However,
let us begin by just saying, I do not see any serious dispute between a religious approach
or a scientific approach to the “beginning”. God has never defined how long one day or
seven days were. Maybe a day was a million years in those times. God has never defined
what a “big bang” is. Maybe a “big b was a loud rumble for a billion years. On the
other side, all of the scientific data accumulated can not be ignored as fantasy. Therefore
let us accept evolution as both religious and scientific. Let us just say it is God’s plan.
Thus, we will be able to accept that the “beginning” was probably a long scientific and
religious evolution of life planned and guided by God. In the opinion of this author, the
conflicts, differences, and wars between the different religions, and peoples of the world,
could be reduced or eliminated simply by accepting, “by faith”, our differences may only be
various interpretations of the definitions. And, maybe we should accept that we are all
subject to the same God’s plan regardless of definition.

6 Billion Years BC: Geophysical Era. The earth and solar system are
formed.

3 Billion Years BC: The earth’s surface is molten rock. Volcanic activity
caused mountains and valleys. The valleys filled with water. The earth
cooled.

600,000,000 Years BC: First Life Age. Pre-Cambrian life began such as
algae and multicelled organisms, which created oxygen.

400,000,000 Years BC: Age of sea invertebrates. The spread of mollusks,
vertebrate fish, first amphibians, first air breathers, and first land plants.

350,000,000 Years BC: Age of Forests. Early forests spread.

300,000,000 Years BC: The Carboniferous Era. Breakup of
sedimentation into continental plates of ancient rockbed.

230,000,000 Years BC: Appearance of sharks, reptiles, insects, forests of
coal-forming plants. The Appalachians formed.

180,000,000 Years BC: First dinosaurs, first primitive mammals appear.
Conifers and cycads spread.

65,000,000 Years BC: Probably the continent formations are quite similar
to what we see today. First birds, along with the peak and extinction of
dinosaurs.




20,000,000 Years BC: Age of Mammals. Grass and large mammals appear.
Probably early man spreads.

1,000,000 Years BC: Age of Man. Prehistoric man developed.
Man stands up.

About 30,000 Years BC: The Prehistoric Mongoloid people crossed the
Bering Straits to become the Native American Indians of North America.

About 10,000 Years BC: Age of Domestication. Prehistoric man
domesticated plants and animals.

About 3,000 Years BC: Troy (Asia Minor), on the northwestern corner of
present day Turkey, was founded by “Tros” (pronounced Troy). The early
settlement was surrounded by a wall built out of small stones and clay. It
had crude, but significant prehistoric fortress capabilities, with strong
ramparts. The city had a palace and several houses. Tros was the first High
King of Troy.

Figure 8: Map location of
Ancient City of Troy (Source:
Microsaft’s Encarta).

Figure 9: Center of World
Population in about 2500 B. C. -
The Persian Empire (Source:

Microsoft’s Encarta).




CHAPTER 2

AFTER THE BEGINNING

(The Biblical and Legendary Approach)

-SEE APPENDIX IV-

Author’s Notes: The reader that would like to examine a possible genealogical line of
descendency to modern generations should turn to Chapter 2. contained herein as
Appendix IV. The legendary approaches are highly speculative. The Biblical approach
is offered in an equally cautionary manner.

- vil - d's Y4/ovd”
Figure 10:
“God’s Word” oLast Eve J passed beside a blacksmith’s door,
(Source: By o s .
ot iy cAnd heard the anvil ring the vesper chime;
Author). “hen, looking in, J saw upon the floor

QU hammers, worn with beating years of time.

“How many anvils have gou had,”, said J
“7o wear and batter all these hammers so?”
“Hust one,” said he, and then, with twinkling eye,
““he anvil wears the hammers out, you know.”

And so, thought J, the anvil of God's 14/ord,
For ages skeptie blows have beat upon;

Vet, though the noise of falling blows was heavd,
“7he anvil is unharmed — hammers gone.

Signed Zfnknown
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CHAPTER 3

YEARS ABOUT 3,000 BC - 2,400 BC
(The Legendary And Mythical Approach)

Tros (King and Founder of Troy)- Lynn’s 91+ Great Grandfather?

Ilus (High King of Troy)- 907

Laomedon (High King of Troy)- 897

Priam (High King of Troy)- 887

Troan (Queen of Troy - Daughter of Priam) - 87*" Lynn’s Great
Grandmother?
Munon (King of Troy - Husband of Troan)- 87*"?

Thori - 86* ?

Loridi - 857

Einridi - 84*» P

Vingethor - 83 ?

Moda - 82 ?

Magi - 81 ?
Seskef (Husband of Scyllia) - 80 P
Scyllia (Granddaughter Of Noah) - Lynn’s 80th
Great Grandmother?

Bedwig (Great Grandson Of Noah) - Lynn’s 79t
Great Grandfather?



Author’s Note: A word of caution. The source for the genealogical links for the next
several hundreds of years is primarily lore, legend, Greek mythology, Roman mythology,
and Biblical interpretation. However, lore and legend has been increasingly proven to have
basis by archaeological findings. The Greeks and Romans were known to be meticulous
record keepers. And, the Bible certainly has an incredible reputation as a worthy reference
source. Therefore, caution, but there is certainly rational basis for this herein presented
data.

About 3,000 Years BC: The first mythological, genealogical link to the
Reynolds family. Tros, founder and first King of Troy, by legend and lore, is
possibly Lynn’s 91st great grandfather? Incredible as it may seem, this is
where our story begins!!!!!

About 2,975 Years BC: Troy II, a better built and more secure fortress in
scope was completed by Illus, Lynn’s 90t mythological great grandfather?
High King of Troy, and son of Tros. This rebuild of the prehistoric city
improved the ramparts, basically provided for improved defenses. He was
killed at a young age.

About 2,955 Years BC: Laomedon, Lynn’s 89 mythological great
grandfather, and son of lllus, ascended to be King of Troy. He was slain by
the hero Hercules, when Hercules captured the city of Troy. The following is a
bit of Greek Mythology, compliments of Microsoft’s Encarta:

“Laomedon, in Greek mythology, King of Troy and father of Priam, later King of Troy. At the
command of the god Zeus, Poseidon, god of the sea, and Apollo, God of the sun, built for
Laomedon the walls of Troy. When the walls were finished, however, Laomedon refused to
pay them the wages agreed on, and Poseidon sent a sea serpent to ravage the country. To
appease the monster, the desperate Laomedon agreed to sacrifice his daughter Hesione. As
the maiden sat on the shore waiting to be devoured, she was rescued by the hero Hercules.
In return for saving Hesione, Laomedon had promised Hercules the immortal horses that Zeus
had given to his grandfather (Tros). But when Hercules had slain the monster, Laomedon
refused to keep his promise. Hercules then sacked the city and killed the King.”

About 2,900 Years BC: Priam, Lynn’s 88th great grandfather, upon
Laomedon’s death, became King of Troy? He ruled Troy during the most
turbulent times. He was ruler of Troy during the famous Trojan War. During
the period ruled by Tros, lllus, Laomedon, and Priam, Troy was rebuilt at least
eight times. All rebuilds were required because of destruction, wastes, or
damage from war. Another bit of Greek Mythology from Encarta:

“Priam, in Greek mythology, became King of Troy. He was the father of 50 sons, notably the
great warrior Hector, and 50 daughters, including the prophet Cassandra. As a young man
Priam fought with the Phrygians against the Amazons, but by the time of the Trojan War he
was too old to fight. The conflict had begun when the Greeks set out to recapture Helen of
Troy, who had been abducted by Priams’s son Paris. During the ten years of fighting, Priam
anxiously watched the course of battle from the walls of Troy with his wife, Queen Hecuba.
After his son Hector was slain by the Greek hero Achilles, Priam went to the Greek camp to
beg for his body. Achilles spared Priam’s life and gave him Hector’s body for burial, but
during the sack of Troy, Priam was killed by Achilles’ son Neoptolemus.”



Figure 11: The ruins of Troy partially
excavated. In the center of the picture
appear the walls of a building that
Heinrich Schliemann (1870) believed to

be the palace of Priam, King of Troy at

the time of the Trojan War about 2900 B.C.
(Source: Taken from “Groliers Book of
Enowledge”, May, 1956).

About 2,820 Years BC: Troan, Lynn’s 87t great grandmother, became Queen
of Troy? She married Munon, Lynn’s 88t mythological great grandfather (by
marriage), who by marrying Troan, gained the title, King of Troy?

About 2,775 Years BC: Thori, Lynn’s 86t mythological great grandfather, and
son of Munon and Troan, became King of Troy? Thori married Sibil, Lynn’s 86
mythological great grandmother?

About 2,725 Years BC: Loridi, Lynn’s 85t mythological great grand-
Jfather, son of Thori, became King of Troy?

About 2,690 Years BC: Einridi, Lynn’s mythological 84t great grandfather
was born (Listed in Royal Genealogy records and “Prose Edda”, but no further
information is available)?

Author’s Note: Many of the persons in this line of descendants, have no information
recorded. Rather than repeating (Not Listed in Royal Genealogy records and “Prose

Edda” and/or “The Anglo Saxon Chronicles” and/or “The Viking Chronicles”), I will
simply use an abbreviation. Therefore when there is no information available, I shall

simply use the designation (NIA).

About 2,650 Years BC: Vingethor, Lynn’s 83 mythological great
grandfather? (NIA).

About 2,610 Years BC: Vingener, Lynn’s 8274 mythological great
grandfather? (NIA)

About 2,550 Years BC: Moda, Lynn’s 81st mythological great grandfather?
(NIA).

About 2,500 Years BC: Magi, Lynn’s 80th mythological great grandfather,
was slain in an attack on an Aryan tribe of Persia?

About 2,450 Years BC: Seskef, Lynn’s 79t mythological great grandfather,
married Scyllia, granddaughter of Noah, and Lynn’s 79th mythological great
grandmother. Noah, by legend built the Ark that saved all species from
extinction. Their son Bedwig, also corresponds to the same person in the
Biblical genealogy line of descendants and logically merge. The Legendary
Reynolds genealogical line moves forward from this point.




Stonehenge

About 2,500 Years BC: The birth of man’s investigation of the geophysical world.
Stonehenge, the prehistoric ritual monument, was constructed on Salisbury Plain,
north of Salisbury, England. The monument, according to American Astronomer
Gerald S. Hawkins, was constructed to predict the summer and winter solstices,
the vernal and autumnal equinoxes, and eclipses of both the sun and the moon. In
conclusion, Stonehenge functioned as a means of predicting the positions of the
sun and moon relative to the earth. The remarkable feat of this construction,
shows the scientific and technological advancement of man even at this early time
period. The Romans desecrated the shrine about the year 55 BC.

Arabs of the Kingdom of Magan (then known as the Sultanate of Oman) controlled
the sea-trading routes between the Middle East, the East Indies, China, the coast of
Africa to Zanzibar, and the Straits of Hormuz. From these strategic areas, the
people of Magan regulated trading routes to Egypt and the Sinai Peninsula, and
ultimately to the Mediterranean Sea and Europe.

Parts of Western Europe see the first use of metals, wheeled vehicles, managed
woodlands, simple irrigation systems, and a wider use of the plow. These
technological advancements lead to increased regional trade and the rise of
kingdoms. Ship building becomes an industry as waterways create the roads of
commerce, especially by the traders of Magan. Shipbuilders of Magan dominate
the ship building industry.




About 2,400 Years BC: Bedwig (great grandson of Noah), Lynn’s 78t mythological
great grandfather started a migration northward which would continue in this family
for the next 1,500 years. He married and became a King in the land of Franks.

We are at a common ancestry link at this point with the Mythical and Biblical paths.
From this point on, the descendants are common to the herein offered beliefs and

legends.
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CHAPTER 4

MIGRATION INTO SCANDINAVIA

Hwala - Lynn’s 78 Great Grandfather?

Hathra - 77t ?
Intermon - 76* ?
Heremod - 75 ?
Scedwa (Skjold) - 74?
Beaw (Bjah) - 73 ?
Taetwa - 7272 ?
Geata (Jat) - 71= ?
Godwuld (Gudolfr) - 70 ?
Finn - 69t P
Frithuwulf - 68?
Frealaf (Friallaf) -67* ?
Frithuwald 66*» ?
Odin (Wodin) - 65th ?
Frigg (Frigida) - Lynn’s 65 Great
Grandmother?
Children Of Odin And Frigg:

Njord, Lynn’s 65*% Great Granduncle
Thor - 65

Wecta - 65

Casere - 65
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About 2,400 Years BC: The Early Bronze Age begins.

About 2,350 Years BC: Hwala, Lynn’s 78t legendary great grandfather,
and a King in Denmark? He was the son of Bedwig. (NIA).

About 2,300 Years BC: Hathra, Lynn’s 77t legendary great grandfather, and
was the son of Hwala? (NIA).

About 2,300 Years BC: “Assyria, a small state, submitted to Sumer and Akkad.
Assyria was often ruled by other peoples. During the centuries that followed, however,
the Assyrians became the most skilled warriors the world had ever seen.”

About 2,250 Years BC: Itermon, Lynn’s 76t legendary great grandfather, and
was the son of Hathra? (NIA).

About 2,200 Years BC: King Heremod, Lynn’s 75t legendary great
grandfather, and son of ltermon? He was probably the most infamous ruler of
all times. He was one of the most brutal, cruel and avaricious Danish Kings of
all times. The following account from the legend of “Beowulf”, probably
describes this vicious King more adequately than any words from me could:

“Hrothgar is a wise and noble king. He is much older than Beowulf and sees much of his
former self in the young warrior, Having lived and learned many lessons from thousands of
experiences that Beowulf has yet to face, with great affection for Hygelac’s thane. Hrothgar
tries to use his wisdom to help Beowulf on the difficult road ahead. To illustrate his point,
Hrothgar recounts the story of Heremod, a miserably notorious King, who strayed from the
codes and procedures of that warrior caste. The evil one’s main failure was a lack of respect
Jor his people. As Hrothgar explains, ‘He grew great, not for their joy, but for their slaughter.’
Not only did Heremod fail to share a portion of the wealth and power that God has given him
with his loyal retainers. He performed the most heinous of crimes, the killing of his own
clansman. In the end, this King, having failed to live a just life, had few friends and died
unhappy. Then his people, without longing for their departed King, advanced someone else to
the office.”—“Sceldwa (Skjold), his son, ascended to Heremod’s throne and was a just and
kind leader.”

About 2,150 Years BC: Sceldwa (Skjold), Lynn’s 74t legendary great
grandfather, ascended to King of “Heremod’s Clan”? His creed was fairness.
He spent his lifetime attempting to make amends for his father’s ruthlessness.
He was deeply loved by all of his subjects and was rightfully grieved upon his
death by his people. His legacy was to avoid death for his subjects, and to
provide comfort for them at the best of his ability. He purposely avoided war
with other clans, not because he had any fear of war, but he felt his people
had suffered enough under his own father. Therefore, during his lifetime
reign, the killing had stopped. He hated war and killing. Much is written
about this Danish King. He truly was a great man.

2,112 Years BC: “Sumerian ruler Ur-Nammu builds ziggurat of Ur.”
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About 2,100 Years BC: Beaw (Bjah), Lynn’s 734 legendary great grandfather,
followed in his father’s footsteps. He ascended to be King and was also of a
kind nature. His luck at avoiding war was not as good as his father’s, and his
life was filled with one war upon his clan after another. He lived a long life,
but was finally killed in one of these tribe against tribe conflicts.

About 2,050 Years BC: Taetwa, Lynn’s 727 legendary great grandfather,
followed his father’s footsteps, and was King of his followers. (NIA).

2,006 Years BC: “Elamites capture Ur.”

About 2,000 Years BC: “Abraham lived in Ur on the Tigris River. Three
world religions — Judaism, Islam, and Christianity — trace their origins back
to this Hebrew patriarch.”

About 2,000 Years BC: Geata (Jat), Lynn’s 71st legendary great grandfather
becomes King of Sealand (probably located at or near the present day site of
Copenhagen). His expertise became ship building. He led his people to
become involved in commerce by building ships. He was probably the first in
the Reynolds line that started using wood for building or creating a product
for commerce from the forests.

About 1,950 Years BC: Godwulf (Gudolfr), Lynn’s 70t legendary great
grandfather, continued in his father’s footsteps, ascending to King of Sealand.
The family influence was being felt in all of Scandinavia(known as Scandia,
which was part of the “Uplands”), especially in the ship building business.

About 1,900 Years BC: Finn, Lynn’s 69th legendary great grandfather,

was the King of Finna (probably a settlement in Finland as we now know it)?
As the trade of ships and wood products spread, so did the Reynolds line. It
is believed that Finn is a name placed on him as he ascended to King of Finna,
rather than his birth given name. Regardless, he ruled his clan with authority
and dignity. They prospered, as the Reynolds clan spread over Scandia.

About 1,900 Years BC: Middle Bronze Age exists.

About 1,850 Years BC: Frithuwulf, Lynn’s 68t legendary great grandfather,
succeeded his father as King of Finna? (NIA).

About 1,800 Years BC: Frealaf (Friallaf), Lynn’s 67th legendary great
grandfather, was a King in Sweden? (NIA).

1,755 Years BC: “Law Code of Hammurabi carved into ‘stele’.”

About 1,750 BC: Frithuwald, Lynn’s 66th legendary great grandfather, was a
King in Norway. He was a well known ruler. His clan prospered. His control
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of timber lands was renown. But his real fame was that he fathered the more
than famous Odin.

1,700 Years BC: “Horses are introduced into warfare.”

About 1,700 BC: Odin, Lynn’s 65t legendary great grandfather, was the King
of all Norseland (The Uplands)? He is without a doubt, the most famous of all
the great grandfathers in this line. It is very difficult to separate the
accomplishments of this great man, and the unbelievable legends (myths)
about him. He was a man of wisdom and high learning. His intellect was
superior to any of those times. He was a writer, a poet, and scholar. He was
an accomplished teacher. But, as in all cases of greatness, he will probably
be remembered more for his aura of myth and his fathering the also more
famous Thor. Thursday was named after Thor. The Sfollowing account
provides some insight into the mythology surrounding Odin (account taken
Jfrom Encarta):

“Odin, in Norse Mythology, King of the Gods, with his two black ravens, Huginn
(“Thought”) and Muninn (“Memory®), flew forth daily to gather tidings of events all over the
world. As god of war, Odin held court in Valhalla, where all the brave warriors went after
death in battle. His greatest treasures were his eight-footed steed, Sleipner, his spear,
Gungnir, and his ring, Draupner. Odin was also the god of wisdom, poetry, and magic, and
he sacrificed an eye for the privilege of drinking from Mimir, the Sountain of wisdom. Odin’s
three wives were earth goddesses, and his eldest son was Thor, the God of Thunder.”

“Odin’s Law. Odin established the same law in his land that had been in force in
Asaland. Thus he established by law that all dead men should be burned, and their
belongings laid with them upon the pile, and the ashes he cast into the sea or buried in the
earth. Thus, said he every one will come to Valhalla with the riches he had with him upon the
pile; and he would also enjoy whatever he himself had buried in the earth. For men of
consequence a mound had been distinguished for manhood a standing stone; which custom
remained long after Odin’s time. On a winter day there should be blood-sacrifice for a good
year, and in the middle of winter for a good crop; and the third sacrifice should be on a
summer day, for victory in battle. Over all, the Swithiod people paid Odin a scatt or tax — so
much on each head; but he had to defend the country from enemy or disturbance, and pay
the expense of a sacrifice feast for a good year.”

*Odin died in his bed in Swithiod; and when he was near his death he made himself
be marked with the point of a spear, and said he was going to Godheim, and would give a
welcome there to all his friends, and all brave warriors should be dedicated to him; and the
Swedes believed that he was gone to the ancient Asgaard, and would live there eternally.
Then began the belief in Odin, and the calling upon him. The Swedes believed that he often
showed to them before any great battle. To some he gave victory; others he invited to himself;
and they reckoned both of these to be fortunate. Odin was burnt, and at his pile there was
great splendor. It was their faith that the higher the smoke arose in the air, the higher he
would be raised whose pile it was; and the richer he would be, the more property that was
consumed with him.”

Frigg (Frigida), Lynn’s 65t great grandmother, wife of Odin, was the mother of
all 9 children, that Odin fathered.

The children of Odin and Frigg were probably the nucleus of most all of the
Royalty and Nobility found in Europe. It is believed all of the English Kings,
Queens, and Nobility descended from this couple. For example, line of
descendants to the throne of England, was through the “House of Wessex (The



Anglo-Saxon Line)”. The first in that line was “Egbert I, King of Kent (664 AD),
believed to be Lynn’s 10th cousin, 57 times removed. Egbert descended from
Odin and Frigg, through their son Wecta, Lynn’s 65th great granduncle. Alfred
The Great, King Of The Saxons (871-899 AD), Lynn’s 227 cousin - 45 times
removed, descended from Odin and Frigg, via their son Baeldaeg, Lynn’s 65th
great granduncle. Similar descendencies can be shown for a multitude of
noble positions in Europe, especially for the Scandinavian countries, and
Kings of the United Kingdom of today.

Author’s Note: Aside from the legends and mythology, the sacrifices and the violence.
Odin was truly a man of super intelligence and academic achievement. I am proud to be
considered a possible descendant of such a famous and accomplished individual. There
would be no limit the amount of things I could write about this man. There are books
written just about him. I will just conclude my discussion of Odin by saving. “I am
humbled to be a possible direct relative of his, and I have to believe that he created the

writing, poetry, and academic passions into the Reynolds line.” 1 might also note the
spelling similarity between “Odin” and “Adin”.

Figure 14: Depiction of Odin '

(Source: Microsoft’s Encarta). . Zz;'_-‘

About 1630 Years BC: Thor, Lynn’s 65th legendary great granduncle, and son
of the legend, Odin was born. Thor is probably even more famous than his
father. Again, much of his fame is mythical, but he too was a most
accomplished individual. His military feats were well documented. And, so
much is written about his intellect. Thor also was a story teller, a poet, and a
documentarian. Thursday is named after Thor. But his real appeal is the lore
that surrounds his memory (from Encarta):

“Thor was usually portrayed as a large, powerful man with a red beard and eyes of lightning.
Despite his ferocious appearance, he was very popular as the protector of both gods and
humans against the forces of evil. He even surpassed his father Odin in popularity because,
in contrary to Odin, he did not require human sacrifices. One of his temples was in Uppsala
where he stood with Odin at his right side. This temple was replaced by a Christian church in
1080.”

The Norse believed that during a thunderstorm, Thor was riding through the heavens on his
chariot pulled by the goats Tanngrisni (‘gap-tooth’) and Tanngnost (tooth grinder’). Lightning
flashed whenever he threw his hammer, Mjollnir. Thor wears the belt, Megingjard which
doubles his already considerable strength. His hall is Bilskirnir, which is located in the
region, Thrudheim (‘place of might’). His greatest enemy is Jormungand, the Midgard Serpent.
At the day of Ragnarok, Thor will kill this serpent, but will die from its poison. His sons will
inherit his hammer after his death.

Donar is his Teutonic equivalent, while the Romans see in him their God Jupiter. Thursday is
named after Thor.”
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Figure 15: Depiction of Thor
(Source: Microsoft’s Encarta).

According to mythology and legend, Njord,
settled the ‘Upsal Domain’ in Sweden in about
1450 B.C.. The mythological genealogical line of
the Reynolds family remained at this location
Jor the next approximate 1500 years or until
about 50 Years AD, when Olaf resettled in
another location of Sweden.
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CHAPTER S

THEY SPREAD OVER SCANDINAVIA

Njord - Lynn’s 64t Great Grandfather?
Skadi - Lynn’s 64t Great Grandmother?

Frey - 63 ?
Gerd - Lynn’s 634 Great Grandmother?

Fjolne - 62nd  ?

Swegde - 615t ?
Vana - Lynn’s 61t Great Grandmother?

Vanlande - 60t ?
Driva - Lynn’s 60t Great Grandmother?

Visbur - 59t ?
Gerela - Lynn’s 59t Great Grandmother ?

Domald - 58th P
Domar - 57th ?

Dygve - 56t - “KING” ?
Drott - Lynn’s 56t Great Grandmother - “QUEEN" ?

Dag “The Wise” - 55t ?

Agne “The Warrior” - 54th ?
Alveria - Lynn’s 54t Great Grandmother?

Alric - 53¢ ?
Dageid - Lynn’s 53® Great Grandmother?

Yngne Alricsson - 52nd ?

Jorund “The Woodworker” - 51st ?
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Author’s Note: It is obvious by this time that the Reynolds line has spread throughout
the area known as Scandi (Scandinavia). But the concentration was in Denmark, Norway,
and Sweden. Kingdoms had become more than clans, with “empires” (Countries) forming.
Thus the rulers (Kings) are now faced with more complex responsibilities. “Scat” was a
land-tax, paid to the King in money, malt, meal, or flesh-meat, from all lands, and was
adjudged by the Gods to each King upon his accession, and bei roposed and

accepted as King. Before writing was in general use, the symbolic way of performing
all important legal acts appears to have entered into the “jurisprudence” of all savage
nations; and according to Gibbon, Chapter 44, “The Jurisprudence of the first Romans

exhibited the scenes of a pantomime; the words were adopted to the gestures, and the
slightest error or neglect in the forms of the proceeding was sufficient to annul the

substance of the fairest claims”.

1,570 Years BC: Middle Bronze Age ends and late Bronze Age
begins.

About 1550 Years BC: Njord, Lynn’s 64t great grandfather, son of Odin, and
brother to Thor, ruled with the same care, intelligence, and authority as did his
father. He was well traveled ruling over a large territory of Norseland. His
kingdom was probably some form of division by Odin to accommodate all nine
of his sons. Itis known that Njord was an accomplished sailor. He loved the
sea and traveled from area to area within his kingdom (probably current day
Sweden). As were all of Odin’s sons, the legends surrounding, Njord were
extensive. The following mythology provides some insight into Njord’s powers:

“Njord was the God of winds, sea, and fire. He brings good fortune at the sea and in
the hunt. He was married to giantess Skadi. His children were Frey, their son, and Freya,
their daughter. Njord and his son, Frey were assigned the task of being priests of the
sacrifices, and they became Diar of the Asaland people. Njord’s daughter Freya was
priestess of the sacrifices, and first taught the Asaland people the art of magic, as it was in
use fashion among the Vanaland people.”

“Njord of Noatun was then the sole sovereign of the Swedes; and he continued the
sacrifices, and was called the drot or sovereign by the Swedes, and he received scatt and
gifts from them. In his days were peace and plenty, and such good years, in all respects, that
the Swedes believed Njord ruled over the growth of seasons and the prosperity of the people.
In his time all the diar or Gods died, and blood-sacrifices were made for them. Njord died on
a bed of sickness, and before he died made himself be marked for Odin with the spear-point.
The Swedes burned him, and all wept over his grave-mound.”

Skadi, Lynn’s 64t great grandmother, was wife of Njord and mother of Frey
and Freya. It is believed that after Njord died, and after Frigg (Odin’s first
wife) died, and Jord (Odin’s second wife) died, that she married her father-in-
law, Odin. This would indicate that Njord died before Odin.

1,500 Years BC: “The Iranian plateau was settled. This would become
Persia.”

About 1,475 Years BC: Frey, Lynn’s 63 great grandfather, son of Njord,
and grandson of Odin, assumed control of his father’s kingdom and ruled as
a competent King. He married Gerd, Lynn’s 63 great grandmother. They
had a daughter, Gymis and a son named Fjolne.
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“Prey took the kingdom after Njord, and was called drot by the Swedes, and they paid taxes
to him. He was, like his father, fortunate in friends and in good seasons. Frey built a great
temple at Upsal, made it his chief seat, and gave it all his taxes, his land, and goods. Then
began the Upsal domains, which have remained ever since. Then began in his days the
Frode-peace; and then there were good seasons, in all the land, which the Swedes ascribed to
Frey, so that he was more worshipped than the other Gods, as the people became much richer
in his days by reason of the peace and good seasons. His wife was called Gerd, daughter
called Gymis, and their son was called Fjolne. Frey was called by another name, Yngve; and
this name Yngve was considered long after in his race as a name of honor, so that his
descendants have since been called Ynglinger. Frey fell into a sickness; and as his illness
took the upper hand, his men took the plan of letting few approach him. In the meantime they
raised a great mound, in which they placed a door with three holes in it. Now when Frey died
they bore him secretly into the mound, but told the Swedes he was alive; and they kept watch
over him for three years. They brought all the taxes into the mound, and through the one hole
they put in the gold, through the other the silver, and through the third the copper money that
was paid. Peace and good seasons continue.”

1,400 Years BC: “The Hebrews were in Egypt, serving as slaves.”

About 1,400 Years BC: Fjolne, Lynn’s 62nd great grandfather, inherited the
Kingdom of Upsal, and ruled over the Swedes. He managed to reign over a
peaceful domain.

“Fjolne, Yngve Frey’s son, ruled thereafter over the Swedes and the Upsal domains.
He was powerful, and lucky in seasons and in holding the peace. Fredfrode ruled then in
Leidre, and between them there was great friendship and visiting. Once when Fjolne went to
Frode in Sealand, a great feast was prepared for him, and invitations to it were sent all over
the country. Frode had a large house, in which there was a great vessel many ells high, and
put together of great pieces of timber; and this vessel stood in a lower room. Above it was a
loft, in the floor of which was an opening through which liquor was poured into this vessel.
The vessel was full of mead, which was excessively strong. In the evening Fjolne, with his
attendants, was taken into the adjoining loft to sleep. In the night he went out to the gallery to
seek a certain place, and he was very sleepy and exceeding drunk. As he came back to his
room he went along the gallery to the door of another left, went into it, and his foot slipping, he
Jfell into the vessel of mead and was drowned. So says Thjodolf of Kvine:

“In Frode’s hall the fearful word,

The death-foreboding sound was heard:
The cry of fey denouncing doom,

was heard at night in Frode’s home.
And when brave Frode came, he found
Swithiod’s dark chief, Fjolne, drowned.
In Frode’s mansion drowned was he,
Drowned in a waveless, windless sea.”

About 1,325 Years BC: Swegde, Lynn’s 61st great grandfather, a wanderer
who sought inner peace by finding and saving his soul through Godheim and
Odin. Swegde, ruled his Kingdom with dignity. Swedge married Vana,
Lynn’s 61st great grandmother, and they had a son named Vanlande.

“Swegde took the kingdom after his father, and he made a solemn vow to seek
Godheim and Odin. He went with twelve men through the world, and came to Turkland, and
the Great Swithiod, where he found many of his connections. He was five years on this
Jjourney; and when he returned home to Sweden he remained there for some time. He had got
a wife in Vanheim, who was called Vana, and their son was Vanlande. Swegde went out
afterwards to seek again for Godheim, And COME t0 G........ccuuvuecvereeeessessssresseesesseesesssesssssns
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mansion on the east side of Swithiod called Stein, where there was a stone as big as a large house. In
the evening after sunset, as Swegde was going from the drinking-table to his sleeping-room, he cast his
eye upon the stone, and saw that a dwarf was sitting under it. Swegde and his man were very drunk,
and they ran towards the stone. The dwarf stood in the door, and called to Swegde, and told him to
come in, and he should see Odin. Swgde ran into the stone, which instantly closed behind him, and
Swegde never came back. Thiodolf of Kvine tells of this:—“

“By Diurnir’s elfin race,

Who haunt the cliffs and shun day’s face,
The Valiant Swegde was deceived,

The elf’s false words the King believed.

The dauntless hero rushing on,

Passed through the yawning mount of stone:
It yawned — it shut — the hero fell,

In Saekmime’s hall, where giants dwell”

About 1,250 Years BC: Vanlande, Lynn’s 60t great grandfather, received the Upsal
domain from his father, and ruled as King. He married Driva, daughter of “Snae the
Old” of Finland, Lynn’s 60th great grandmother, and they had a son named Visbur.
The following mythology describes Vanlande’s troubled life:

“Vanlande, Swegde’s son, succeeded his father, and ruled over the Upsal domain. He was a great
warrior, and went far around in different lands. Once he took up his winter abode in Finland with
Snae the Old, and got his daughter Driva in marriage; but in spring he set out leaving Driva behind,
and although he had promised to return within three years he did not come back for ten. Then Driva
sent a message to the Witch Huld; and sent Visbur, her son by Vanlande, to Sweden. Driva bribed the
witchwife Huld, either that she should bewitch Vanlande to return to Finland, or kill him. When this
witch-work was going on Vanlande was at Upsal, and a great desire came over him to go to Finland;
but his friends and counselors advised him against it, and said the witchcraft of the Finn people
showed itself in this desire of his to go there. He then became very drowsy, and laid himself down to
sleep; but when he had slept but a little while he cried out, saying that Mara was treading upon him.
His men hastened to him to help him; but when they took hold of his head she trod on his legs, and
when they laid hold of his legs she pressed upon his head; and it was his death. The Swedes took his
body and burnt it at a river called Skytaa, where a standing stone was raised over him. Thus says

Thjodolf: —-“

“And Vanlande, in a fatal hour,

Was dragg’d by Grimhild’s daughter’s power,
The witch-wife’s, to the dwelling-place

Where men meet Odin face to face.

Trampled to death, to Skytaa’s shore

The corpse his faithful followers bore;

And there they burnt, with heavy hearts,

The good chief killed by witchcraft’s arts.”

About 1,200 Years BC: “The Dark Ages supposedly descended on every civilization
in this region. Areas from Greece through central Turkey to Nubia are supposed to
have undergone massive depopulation, while skills such as literacy, metallurgy,
ivory working and the art of painting, and pottery are thought to have lapsed or
disappeared entirely for anything up to 300 years.”

About 1,190 Years BC: “Moses led the Hebrews out of Egypt into the Sinai Desert,
by the parting of the waters of the Red Sea.”
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About 1,175 Years BC: Visbur, Lynn’s 59t great grandfather, married twice.
His second wife, Gerela was Lynn’s 59t great grandmother, with whom
Visbur had a son Domald. He was killed by his sons of his first wife
according to the following mythology:

“Visbur succeeded his father Vanlande. He married Erela, daughter of Aude the Rich, and
gave her as her bride-gift three large farms, and a gold ornament. They had two sons, Gisle
and Ond; but Visbur left her and took another wife, whereupon she went home to her father
with her two sons. Visbur had a son with Gelera, who was called Domald, and his
stepmother used witchcraft to give him ill-luck. Now, when Visbur’s sons were the one twelve
and the other thirteen years of age, they went to their father’s place, and desired to have their
mother’s dower; but he would not deliver it to them. Then they said that the gold ornament
should be the death of the best man in all his race, and they returned home. Then they began
again with enchantments and witcheraft, to try to see if they could destroy their father. The
sorceress Huld said that by witchcraft she could bring it about by this means, that a murderer
of his own kin should never be wanting in the Yngling race; and they agreed to have it so.
Thereafler they collected men, came unexpectedly in the night on Visbur, and burned him in
his house. So sings Thjodolf: —

“Have the fire-dogs’ fierce tongues yelling

Lapt Visbur’s blood on his own hearth?

Have the flames consumed the dwelling

Of the here’s soul on earth?

Madly ye acted, who set free

The forest foe, red fire, night thief,

Fell brother of the raging sea,

against your father and your chief.”
Domald, son of Vanlande and Gerela, avenged the murder of his father, by
slaying both Gisle and Ond after they became of age. He also banned
Visbur’s first wife Erela, from all of Sweden. She died before she could be put

on the ship to sail to a foreign land.

About 1,150 Years BC: Moses climbed Mount Ararat to receive the “Ten
Commandments” from God.

Figure 16 :Meoses declaring God’s
Ten Commandments as man’s law
(Source: Microsoft's Encarta).

1,148 Years BC: “Elamites, under Shutruk-Nahtunte attack Babylon,
acquire the ‘stele’ containing the Law Code of Hammurabi, and return it to
their capital, Susa.”
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1,125 Years BC: “Under Joshua, the Hebrews conquered Palestine.”

About 1,100 Years BC: Domald, Lynn’s 58t great grandfather, ruled in a time
of great turmoil, famine, and natural disasters. Crops were not good and the
general state of the kingdom was in distress. He was blamed for these
failures and was put to death as covered in the following mythology:

“Domald took the heritage after his father Visbur, and ruled over the land. As in his time
there was great famine and distress, the Swedes made great offerings of sacrifice at Upsal.
The first autumn they sacrificed oxen, but the succeeding season was not improved thereby.
The following autumn they sacrificed men, but the succeeding year was rather worse. The
third autumn, when the offer of sacrifices should begin, a great multitude of Swedes came to
Upsal; and now the chiefs held consultations with each other, and all agreed that the times of
scarcity were on account of their King Domald, and they resolved to offer him for good
seasons, and to assault and kill him, and sprinkle the stalle of the Gods with his blood. And
they did so. Thjodolf tells of this: —*

“It has happened oft ere now,

That foeman’s weapon has laid low,

The crowned hear, where battle plain,
Was miry red with the blood-rain.

But Domald dies by bloody arms,
Raised not by foes in war’s alarms —
Raised by his Swedish liegemen’s hand,
To bring good seasons to the land.”

1,100 Years BC: “Babylonians defeat the Elamites.”

About 1,025 Years BC: Domar, Lynn’s 57t great grandfather, was a good
ruler. He ruled in times that were good. Not much information is available,
but here is what was found:

“Domald’s son, called Domar, next ruled over the land. He reigned long, and in his days were
good seasons and peace. Nothing is told of him but that he died in his bed in Upsal, and was
transported to the Fyrisvold, where his body was burned on the river bank, and where his
standing stone still remains. So says Thjodolf: —*

“T have asked wise men to tell

Where Domar rests, and they knew well.
Domar, on Fyrie’s wide-spread ground,
Was burned, and laid on Yngve’s mound.”

961 Years BC: “The kingdom of Israel reached the height of its existence
and included the most territory under the reign of King David (1000-961
BC). Its borders stretched far beyond present-day Israeli borders and
included parts of what is now Lebanon, Syria, Jordan, and Egypt.”
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Figure 17: Kingdom Of Israel In 961
BC (Source: Microsoft’s Encarta).
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About 950 years BC: The Bronze Age ends.

About 950 Years BC: Dygve, Lynn’s 56t great grandfather, was also King of the
Swedes, as outlined below:

“Dygve was the name of his son (Domar), who succeeded him in ruling the land; and about him
nothing is said but that he died in his bed. Thjodolf tells of it thus: -

“Dygve the Brave, the mighty King,

It is no hidden secret thing,

Has gone to meet a royal mate,

Riding upon the horse of fate.

Of Yngve’s race would have a spouse;
Therefore the fell-one snatched away
For Loke’s daughter in her house
Brave Dygve from the light of day.”

Drott, Lynn’s 56th great grandmother, married Dygve, King of the Upsal Domain, was
the daughter of the King of Denmark. The following account describes her role in the
land of Scandinavia and her part in the creation of nobility and royalty in the
Reynolds line of descendency:

“Dygve’s mother was Drott, a daughter of King Damp, the son of Rig, who was first called “KING” in
the Danish tongue. His descendants always afterwards considered the title of “KING” the title of
highest dignity. Dygve was the first of his family to be called King, for his predecessors had been
called “Drottnar” and their wives “Drottningar”, and their court “Drott”. Each of their race was called
Yngve, or Yngune, and the whole race together Ynglinger. The Queen Drott was a sister of King Dan
Mikallati, from whom Demark took its name.”
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Author’s Note: The marriage of Dygye and Drott was probably the most significant
occurrence in history of the Reynolds family line of descendency. By virtue of this
marriage, “true nobility” was introduced into the blood-line. The real impact of nobility is
the record keeping that went with the title. In other words, I could never have traced this
family so completely had not this marriage taken place. and the bloodline as a result
carrying the “Royalty” title was reasonably well documented, at least in bits and pieces.
Prior to this marriage, the titles “King” and “Queen” were recognized leaders of clans, cities,
or territories. The titles to this point were more the result of myths, legends, or witchcraft.
This is not to detract from any of the enormous accomplishments of the Reynolds ancestry
before this point. I would use “Odin”, “Thor”, “Tros”, “Noah”, “Adam” and “Eve” as
examples.

930 Years BC: “Jewish King Solomon dies, and Jews split into Israel and
Judah.”

925 Years BC: “Egyptian Pharaoh Shishak conquers city of Megiddo.”

About 900 Years BC: “The Dark Ages end. All of the old skills and arts
seemed to have been revived.”

About 850 Years BC: Dag “The Wise”, Lynn’s 55t great grandfather, was
considered to be one of the most wise Kings to have ever lived. He was well

known, and the legends were numerous as described in this mythical account
of his death:

“King Dygve’s son, called Dag, succeeded to him, and was so wise a man that he understood
the language of birds. He had a sparrow which told him much of the news, and flew to
different countries. Once the sparrow flew to Reidgotaland, to a farm called Varva, where he
flew into the peasant’s corn-field and took his grain. The peasant came up, took a stone, and
killed the sparrow. King Dag was ill-pleased that the sparrow did not come home; and as he,
in a sacrifice of expiation, inquired after the sparrow, he got the answer that it was killed at
Varva. Thereupon he ordered a great army, and went to Gotland; and when he came to Varva
he landed with his men and plundered, and the people fled away before him. King Dag
returned in the evening to his ships, after having killed many people and taken many
prisoners. As they were going, a labouring Thrall came running to the river-side, and threw a
hay-fork into their troop. It struck the King on the head, so that he fell instantly from his horse
and died. In those times the chief who ravaged a country was called Gram, and the men-at-
arms under him Gramer. Thjodolf sings of it thus: —“

“What news is this that the King’s men,

flying eastward through the glen,

Report? That Dag the Brave, whose name

Is sounded far and wide by Fame —

That Dag, who knew so well to wield

The battle-axe in bloody field,

Where brave men meet, no more will head

The brave — that might Dag is dead!”

“Varva was wasted with sword,

And vengeance taken for the bird —

The little bird that used to bring

News to the ear of the great King.

Varva was ravaged, and the strife

Was ended, when the monarch’s life

Was ended too — the great Dag fell

By the hay-fork of a base Thrall!”
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About 775 Years BC: Ange “The Warrior”, Lynn’s 54th great grandfather, was
married twice. The first wife Alveria, Lynn’s 54t great grandmother, was the
mother of Alric and Eric. His second wife, Skjalv, was taken as a result of a
raid, and actually killed Ange. She then returned to Finland, along with her
brother and a daughter of Ange. It is certain, their daughter would not have
ascended to the Swedish throne. Here is a mythical account of the situation:

“Agne was the name of Dag’s son, who was King after him — a powerful and
celebrated man, expert, and exercised in all feats. It happened one summer that King Agne
went with his army to Finland, and landed and marauded. The Finland people gathered a
large army, and proceeded to the strife under a chief called Froste. There was a great battle,
in which King Agne gained the victory, and Froste fell there with a great many of his people.
King Agne proceeded with armed hand through Finland, subdued i, and made enormous
booty. He took Froste’s daughter Skjalv, and her brother Loge, and carried them along with
him. When he sailed from the east he come to land at Stoksund, and put up his tent on the
flat side of the river, where then there was a wood. King Agne had at the time the gold
ornament which had belonged to Visbur. He now married Skjalv, and she begged him to
make burial feast in honour of her father. He invited a great many guests, and made a great
feast. He had become very celebrated by his expedition, and there was a great drinking
match. Now when King Agne had got drunk, Skjalv bad him take care of his gold ornament
which he had about his neck; therefore he took hold of the ornament, and bound it fast about
his neck before he went to sleep. The land-tent stood at the wood side, and a high tree over
the tent protected it against the heat of the sun. Now when King Agne was asleep, Skjalv took
a noose, and fastened it under the ornament. Thereupon her men threw down the tent-poles,
cast upon it, so that the King was hanged close under the branches and died; and Skjalv with
her men ran down to their ships, and rowed away. King Agne was buried upon the spot,
which was afterwards called Agnefet; and it lies on the east side of the Tauren, and west of
Stoksund. Thjodolf speaks of it thus: —*

“How do ye like the high-souled maid,

Who, with the grim Fate-goddess’ aid,

Avenged her sire? — made Swithiod’s King

Through air in golden halter swing?

How do ye like her, Agne’s men?

Think ye that any chief again

Will court the fate your chief befell,

To ride on wooden horse to hell?”

753 Years BC: “Rome was founded. Romulus was the first King of Rome.”

729 Years BC: “Tiglath-Pileser III captures Babylon; becomes Babylonian
King.”

717 Years BC: “Assyrian King Sargon II (son of Tiglath-Pileser III) captures
city of Carchemish.”

709 Years BC: “Sargon Il captures Babylon.”

701 Years BC: “Hezekiah, King of Judah, withstands attack on Jerusalem
by Assyrians under Sennacherib.”

About 700 Years BC: Alric, Lynn’s 534 great grandfather, along with his
brother, Eric, assumed control as rulers of the kingdom. Alric was married to
Dageid, Lynn’s53r4 great grandmother. There was constant competition and a
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high degree of jealousy between them. This competitive spirit actually caused
their demise and death as indicated by the lore discussed here:

“The sons of Agne were called Alric and Eric, and were Kings together after him.
They were powerful men, great warriors, and expert at all feats of arms. It was their custom
to ride and break in horses both to walk and to gallop, which nobody understood so well as
they; and they vied with each other who could ride best, and keep the best horses. It
happened one day that both the brothers rode out together alone, and at a distance from their
Jollowers, with their best horses, and rode on to a field; but never came back. The people at
last went out to look after them, and they were both found dead with their heads crushed. As
they had no weapons, except it might be their horses’ bridles, people believed that they had
killed each other with these. So says Thjodolf:—*

“Alric fell, by Eric slain,

Eric’s life-blood dyed the plain,

Brother fell by brother’s hand;

And they tell it in the land,

That they worked the wicked deed

With the sharp bits that guide the steed.

Shall it be said of Frey’s brave sons,

The kingly race, the noble ones,

That they have fought in deadly battle

With the head-gear of their cattle?”

689 Years BC: “Assyrians under Sennacherib sack Babylon.”

667 Years BC: “Assyrians under Assurbanipal defeat Elamites, sack
Memphis and Thebes, bring end to Nubian Dynasty of Egypt.”

649 Years BC: “Assyrians under Assurbanipal capture and burn Babylon.”

About 625 Years BC: Yngve Alricsson, Lynn’s 52nd great grandfather, along
with his brother Alf ascended to the throne in Sweden. Bitterness arose
between the two King brothers over the love of Queen Bera, Lynn’s great
grandmother, first wife of Alf and then Yngve. Jealousy between the two

brothers caused battle that killed both brothers as the legend is told this way:

“Alric’s sons, Yngve and Alf, then succeeded to the kingly power in Sweden. Yngve
was a great warrior, always victorious; handsome, expert in all exercises, strong and very
sharp in battle, generous and full of mirth; so that he was both renowned and beloved. Alf
was a silent, harsh, unfriendly man, and sat at home in the land, and never went out on war
expeditions. His mother was called Dageid, a daughter of King Dag the Great, from whom the
Dagling family is descended. King Alf had a wife named Bera, who was the most agreeable
of women, very brisk and gay. One autumn Yngve, Alric’s son, had arrived at Upsal from a
Viking cruise by which he was become very celebrated. He often sat long in the evening at
the drinking-table; but Alf went willingly to bed very early. Queen Bera sat often till late in the
evening and she and Yngve conversed together for their amusement; but Alf soon told her that
she should not sit up so late in the evening, but should go first to bed, so as not to waken him.
She replied, that happy would be the woman who had Yngve instead of Alf for her husband;
and as she often repeated the same, he became very angry. One evening Alf went into the
hall, where Yngve and Bera sat on the high seat speaking to each other. Yngve had a short
sword upon his knees, and the guests were so drunk that they did not observe the King
coming in. King Alf went straight to the high seat, drew a sword from under his cloak, and
pierced his brother Yngve through and through. Yngve leaped up, drew his short sword, and
gave Alf his death-wound; so that both fell dead on the floor. Alf and Yngve were buried
under mounds of Fyrisvold. Thus tells Thjodolf of it: —*
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“I tell you of a horrid thing,

A deed of dreadful note I sing -

How by false Bera, wicked queen,

The murderous brother-hands were seen
Each raised against a brother’s life;

How wretched Alf with bloody knife

Alf on the bloody threshold laid.

Can men resist Fates’s iron laws?

They slew each other without cause.”

615 Years BC: “Medes, under Cyaxares (Uvakhshatra) capture the Assyrian border
city of Arraphkha.”

614 Years BC: “Cyaxares besieges Nineveh, but fails to capture it. The Medes
capture the Assyrian city of Assur.”

612 Years BC: “After Medes and Babylonians enter alliance through marriage of
Cyaxares’ granddaughter to Nebuchadnezzar II, son of Babylonian ruler
Nabopolassar, Ninevah falls to Medes and Babylonians. Some segments of the
Assyrian army move capital to Harran.”

610 Years BC: “Harran falls to the Babylonians. Assyrians set up headquarters at
Carchemish.”

60S Years BC: “Babylonians under Nebuchadnezzar II defeat the Assyrians and
their leader Ashur-uballitt II, at Carchemish. Pharoh Necho of Egypt arrives too
late to help, having been delayed by Jewish forces under King Josiah who was slain
at Megiddo and being further delayed at Riblah. Upon arrival at Carchemish,
Necho’s army is defeated, chased to Hamath, and the Egyptian soldiers killed.”

597 Years BC: “Babylonians under Nebuchadnezzar II capture Jerusalem, and
impress King Jehoiachin Zedekiah appointed as Jerusalem’s ruler.”

587 Years BC: “Nebuchadnezzar II besieges Jerusalem for 18 months, takes the
city, and relocates Jews to Babylon.”

586 Years BC: “Nebuchadnezzar II captures Tye.”

585 Years BC: “Peace established between Media and Lydia (in Greece), with the
Halys (Kizil) River as the boundary between the two kingdoms. This establishes a
balance of power between the Medes, Lydians and Babylonians, with the Egyptians
farther to the south.”

551 Years BC: “Zoroaster (Zarathustra) dies.”
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550 Years BC: “Cyrus the Great (Cyrus II) defeats his Median overlords, and
begins expansion through Middle East, establishing the Persian Empire.
The Persian Empire is credited to be the first world empire.”

About 550 Years BC: Jorund, Lynn’s 51st great grandfather, received the
Kingdom of Upsal upon his father’s death. He was known as an invader, and
died in battle as this story reveals:

“Jorund and Eric, the sons of Yngve Alricsson, lay all this time in the warships, and
were great warriors. One summer they marauded in Denmark, where they met a King Gudlog
from Halogaland, and had a battle with him, which ended in their clearing Gudlog’s ship and
taking him prisoner. They carried him to the land at Stromones, and hanged him there, and
afterwards his men raised a mound over him. So says Eyvind Skaldaspiller: -

“By the fierce East-Kings’ cruel pride,

Gudlog must on the wild horse ride —

The wildest horse you e’er did see:

‘Tis Sigur’s steed — the gallows tree.

At Stromones the tree did grow,

Where Gudlog’s corpse waves on the bough.

A high stone stands on Stromo’s heath,

To tell the gallant hero’s death.”

“The brothers Jorund and Eric became more celebrated by this deed and appeared to me
much greater men than before. When they heard that King Hake in Sweden had sent from his
champions, they steered towards Sweden, and gathered together a strong force, As soon as
the Swedes heard that the Yngling brothers were come to them, they flocked to them in
multitudes. The brothers proceeded up the Maelare Lake, and advanced towards Upsal
against King Hake, who came out against them on the Fyrisvold with far fewer people. There
was a great battle, in which King Hake went forward so bravely that he killed all who were
nearest to him, and at last killed King Eric, and cut down the banner of the two brothers. King
Jorund with all his men fled to their ships. King Hake had been so grievously wounded that
he saw his days could not be long; so he ordered a warship which he had to be loaded with
his dead men and their weapons, and to be taken out to the sea; the tiller to be shipped, and
the sails hoisted. Then he set fire to some tar-wood, and ordered a pile to be made over it in
the ship. Hake was almost if not quite dead, when he was laid upon this pile of his. The
wind was blowing off the land — the ship flew, burning in clear flame, out between the islets,
and into the ocean. Great was the fame of this deed in after times.”

“Jorund, King Yngve’s son, remained King at Upsal. He ruled the country; but was often in
summer out on war expeditions. One summer he went with his forces to Denmark; and having
plundered all around in Jutland, he went into Lymfjord in autumn, and marauded there also.
While he was thus lying in Oddesund with people, King Gylog of Halogaland, a son of King
Gudlog, of whom mention is made before, came up with a great force, and gave battle to
Jorund. When the country people saw this they swarmed battle to Jorund. The country
people saw swarmed from all parts towards the battle, in great ships and small; and Jorund
was overpowered by the multitude, and his ships cleared of their men. He sprang overboard,
but was made prisoner and carried to the land. Gylog ordered a gallows to be erected, led
Jorund to it, and had him hanged there. So ended his life. Thjodolf talks of this event thus: —

“Jorund has traveled far and wide,
But the same horse he must bestride
On which he made brave Gudlog ride.
He too must for a necklace wear
Hagbert’s fell noose in middle air.

The army leader thus must ride

On Horva’s horse, at Lymfjord’s side.
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CHAPTER 6

THEY RULED THEIR KINGDOMS

On - Lynn’s 50t Great Grandfather - King Of Sweden?
Egil - 49t - King Of Sweden?
Ottar - 48t - King Of Sweden?

Adil - 47 - King Of Sweden?
Yrsa - Lynn’s 47t Great Grandmother - Queen Of Sweden?

Eystein - 46* - King Of Sweden?
Yngvar - 45* - King Of Sweden?
Onund -44%* - King Of Sweden?

Ingiald - 43 - King of Sweden?
Aasa - Lynn’s 43 Great Grandmother - Queen Of Sweden?

Olaf - 424 - King of Sweden?
Solveig - Lynn’s 4274 Great Grandmother, Queen Of Sweden?

Halfdan Hritbein - 41t - King Of Raumarike?
Aasa - Lynn’s 4 1%t Great Grandmother?

Eystein - 40t - King Of Sweden?
Hild - Lynn’s 40* Great Grandmother?

Halfdan - 39* - King of Raumnarike and Westfold?
Liv - Lynn’s 39t Great Grandmother?

Gudrod - 38t - King Of Alfheim and Westfold?
Olaf 37* - King Of Westfold?
Rognvald - 36 - King of Westfold?

Chocilaicus - 35* - King of Denmark?
Skalgi - Lynn’s 35*% Great Grandmother?

Ragnaibard - 34* - King of Denmark?
Berthelia - Lynn’s 34* Great Grandmother?
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549 Years BC: “Cyrus II defeats Astyages, the last King of the Medes. Cyrus II, then
turning against the Lydians captures Cilicia, cutting off supply routes to the Lydians
in Greece, under Croesus.”

546 Years BC: “Cyrus II beseiges Croesus at his capitol Sardis, and captures him.
One-by-one the Greek city-states along the coast of Asia Minor succumb to Persian
armies. Lydia becomes province of Persia.”

540 Years BC: “Cyrus II attacks Babylonian empire.”

539 Years BC: “Cyrus II captures Babylon “without a battle” from Nabonidus, and
permits the Jews to return to Jerusalem.”

529 Years BC: “Cyrus II dies fighting near the Oxus and Jaxartes rivers.”
525 Years BC: “Cambyses, son of Cyrus, conquers Egypt.”

522 Years BC: “Cambyses is killed, and His spearbearer Darious becomes Persian
ruler.”

518 Years BC: “Darious I found the city of Persepolis.”

490 Years BC: “10,000 Athenians under Miltiades defeat Darious’ Persian forces at
Marathon, Greece.”

About 490 Years BC: On, Lynn’s 50* great grandfather, served as a cruel self-serving
King of Sweden. He was known as a King that utilized sacrifices to any degree, including
his own sons, as the following mythology reveals:

“On or Ane was the name of Jorund’s son, who became King of the Swedes after his
Jather. He was a wise man, who made great sacrifices to the Gods; but being no warrior,
he lived quietly at home. In the time when the kings we have been speaking of were in
Upsal, Denmark had been ruled over by Dan Mikellati, who lived to very great age; then
by his son, Frode Mikellati, or the Peace-loving, who was succeeded by his sons Halfdan
and Fridleif, who were great warriors. Halfdan was older than his brother, and above
him in all things. He went with his army against King On to Sweden, and was always
victorious. At last King On fled to Wester Gotland when he had been King in Upsal about
twenty-five years, and was in Gotland twenty-five years, while Halfdan remained King Of
Upsal. King Halfdan died in his bed at Upsal when he was sixty years of age. He made
a great sacrifice, and in it offered up his son to Odin. On got an answer from Odin, that
he should live sixty years longer; and he was afterwards King in Upsal for twenty-five
years. Now came Ole the Bold, a son of King Fridleif, with his army to Sweden, against
King On, and they had several battles with each other, but Ole was always the victor.
Then On fled a second time to Gotland; and for twenty-five years Ole reigned in Upsdl,
until he was killed by Starkad the Old. After Ole’s fall, On returned to Upsal, and ruled
the kingdom for twenty-five years. Then he made a great sacrifice again for long life, in
which he sacrificed his second son, and received the answer from Odin, that he should
live as long as he gave him one of his sons every tenth year, and also that he should
name one of the districts of his country after the number of sons he should offer to Odin.
When he had sacrificed the seventh of his sons he continued to live, but so that he could
not walk, but was carried on a chair. Then he sacrificed his eighth son, and lived
thereafter ten years, lying in his bed. Now he sacrificed his ninth son, and lived ten
years more; but so that he drank out of a horn like a weaned infant. He had now only
one son remaining, whom he also wanted to sacrifice, and to give Odin Upsal and the
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domains thereunto belonging, under the name of ten lands, but the Swedes would not
allow it; so there was no sacrifice, and King On died, and was buried in a mound at
Upsal. Since that time it is called On’s sickness when a man dies, without pain, of
extreme old age. Thjodolf tells of this : -

“In Upsal’s town the cruel King
Slaughtered his sons at Odin’s shrine —
Slaughtered his sons with cruel knife,

To get from Odin length of life.

He lived until he had to turn

His toothless mouth to the deer’s horn;
And he who shed his children’s blood
Sucked through the ox’s horn his food.
At length fell Death has traced him down,
Slowly, but sure, in Upsal’s town.”

486 Years BC: “Darious II dies, and is succeeded by his son, Xerxes 1.”
483 Years BC: “Death of Siddhartha Gautama (The Buddha).”

480 Years BC: “Gelon, tyrant of Syracuse, defeats Carthaginian general Hamilcar, at
Himera.”

“Leonidas I and the Spartan army defeated by Xerxes I and the Persian army at
Thermopylae.”

479 Years BC: “Athens under Themistocles destroys the Persian navy at Salamis and
Platea. Persian army leaves Greece.”

471 Years BC: “Themistocles is banished from Athens and goes to live with the
Persian King Artaxerxes.”

465 Years BC: “Persian ruler Xerxes I murdered; succeeded by Artaxerxes.”

About 430 Years BC: Egil, Lynn’s 49 great grandfather, after the death of On, became
the King of Sweden. He lost the crown several times, but with the help of King of
Denmark, he was able to regain the Kingdom of Sweden, as the following mythology tells
us:

“Egil was the name of On the Old’s son, who succeeded as King in Sweden after his
father’s death. He was no warrior, but sat quietly at home. Tunne was the name of a
slave who had been the counselor and treasurer of On the Old; and when On died Tunne
took much treasure and buried it in the earth. Now when Egil became King he put Tunne
among the other slaves, which he took very ill and ran away with others of the slaves.
They dug up the treasures which Tunne had concealed, and he gave them to his men,
and was made their chief. Afterwards many malefactors flocked to him; and they lay out
in the woods. But sometimes fell upon the domains, pillaging and killing the people.
When King Egil heard this he went out with his forces to pursue them; but one night when
he had taken up his night quarters, Tunne came there with his men, fell on the King’s
men unexpectedly, and killed many of them. As soon as King Egil perceived the tumult,
he prepared for defense, and set up his banner; but many people deserted him, because
Tunne and his men attacked them so boldly, and King Egil saw that nothing was left but
to flee. Tunne pursued the fugitives into the forest, and then returned to the inhabited
land, ravaging and plundering without resistance. All the goods that fell into Tunne’s
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hands he gave to his people, and thus became popular and strong in men. King Egil
assembled an army again, and hastened to give battle to Tunne. But Tunne was again
victorious, and King Egil fled with the loss of many people. Egil and Tunne had eight
battles with each other, and Tunne always gained the victory. Then King Egil fled out of
the country, and went to Sealand in Denmark, to Frode the Bold, and promised him a
scatt from the Swedes to obtain help. Frode gave him an army, and also his champions,
with which force King Egil repaired to Sweden. When Tunne hear this he came out to
meet him; and there was a great battle, in which Tunne fell, and King Egil recovered his
kingdom, and the Danes returned home. King Egil sent King Frode great and good
presents every year, but he paid no scatt to the Danes; but notwithstanding, the
Jriendship between Egil and Frode continued without interruption. After Tunne’s fall, Egil
ruled the kingdom for three years. It happened in Sweden that an old bull, which was
destined for sacrifice, was fed so high that he became dangerous to people; and when
they were going to lay hold of him he escaped into the woods, became furious, and was
long in the forest committing great damage to the country. King Egil was a great hunter,
and often rode into the forest to chase wild animals. Once he rode out with his men to
hunt in the forest. The King had traced an animal a long while, and followed it in the
Jforest, separated from all his men. He observed at last that it was the bull, and rode up
to it to kill it. The bull turned around suddenly, and the King struck him with his spear;
but it tore itself out of the wound. The bull now struck his horn in the side of the horse, so
that he instantly fell flat on the earth with the King. The King sprang up, and was
drawing his sword, when the bull struck his horns right into the King’s breast. The King’s
men then came up and killed the bull. The King lived but a short time, and was buried in
a mound at Upsal. Thjodolf sings of it thus: — “

“The fair-haired son of Odin’s race,

Who fled before fierce Tunne’s face,

Has perished by the demon-beast

Who roams the forests of the East.

The hero’s breast met the full brunt

Of the wild bull’s shaggy front;

The hero’s heart’s asunder torn

By the fell Jotun’s spear-line horn.”

415 Years BC: “Start of Siege of Syracuse.”

410 Years BC: “Naval battle of Cyzicus.”

404 Years BC: “Spartan alliance defeats Athens, ending the Peloponnesian Wars.”

401 Years BC: “Persian King Artaxerxes II defeats and kills his brother Cyrus at
Cunaxa, near the Median wall northwest of Babylon. 10,000 Greek mercenaries in the
employ of Cyrus head home, under the direction of Xenophon.”

400 Years BC: “End of the Bronze Age, beginning of the Iron Age in Britain.”

371 Years BC: “Greek city of Sparta defeated at Levetra.”

About 370 Years BC: Ottar, Lynn’s 48" great grandfather, succeeded to the King of

Sweden and domains of his father. The following is an account of the war and waste that
was improvised on neighboring countries within Scandinavia:

“Ottar was the name of King Egil’s son who succeeded to the domains and Kingdom after
him. He did not continue friendly with King Frode, and therefore King Frode sent
messengers to King Ottar to demand the scatt which Egil had promised him. . Ottar
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replied, that the Swedes had never paid scatt to the Danes, neither would he; and the
messengers had to depart with this answer. Frode was a great warrior, and he came one
summer with his army to Sweden, and landed and ravaged the country. He killed many
people, took some prisoners, burned all around in the inhabited parts, made a great
booty, and made great devastation. The next summer King Frode made an expedition to
the eastward; and when King Ottar heard that Frode was not at home in his own country,
he went on board his own ships, sailed over to Denmark, and ravaged there without
opposition. As he heard that a great many people were collected at Sealand, proceeds
westward to the Sound, and sails north about to Jutland, lands at Lymfjord; plunders the
Vend district; burns, and lays waste, and makes desolate the country he goes over with
his army. Vatt and Faste were the names of the earls whom Frode had appointed to
defend the country in Denmark while he was abroad. When the earls heard that the
Swedish King was laying Denmark waste, they collected an army, hastened on board
their ships, and sailed by the south side to Lymfjord. They came unexpectedly upon
Ottar, and the battle began immediately. The Swedes gave them a good reception, and
many people fell on both sides; but as soon as men fell in the Danish army other men
hastened from the country to fill their places, and also all the vessels in the neighborhood
Jjoined them. The battle ended with the fall of Ottar and the greater part of his people.
The Danes took his body, carried it to the land, laid it upon a mound of earth, and let the
wild beasts and ravens tear it to pieces. Thereafter they made a figure of a crow out of
wood, sent it to Sweden, and sent word with it that their King, Ottar, was no better than
it; and from this he was called Ottar Vendelcrow. Thjodolf tells so of it: -*

“By Danish arms the hero bold,

Ottar the Brave, lies stiff and cold.

To Vendel’s plain the corpse was borne;
By eagles’ claws the corpse is torn,
Spattered by ravens’ bloody feet,

The wild bird’s prey, the wild wolf’s meat.
The Swedes have vowed revenge to take
On Frode’s earls, for Ottar’s sake;

Like dogs to kill them in their land,

In their own homes, by Swedish hand.”

356 Years BC: “Alexander the Great’, King of Macedonia, conqueror of the Persian
Empire, and one of the greatest military geniuses of all times is born, yet only lived to
be 34 years old.”

336 Years BC: “Philip II of Macedon assassinated. His son, Alexander III, ascends the
throne. Darius III Codomanus ascends to Persian throne.”

334 Years BC: “Alexander the Great defeats Persians at Granicus River, near the
Hellespont (Dardanelles).”

333 Years BC: “Alexander the Great invades northern Syria and defeats Darious III at
Issus, but does not give chase.”

332 Years BC: “Alexander captures Phoenecian city of Tyre after a siege, then Gaza,
then enters Egypt unopposed.”

331 Years BC: “Alexander the Great wins at Gaugamela, in northern Iraq. Alexander
then takes Susa and Persepolis, which he loots.”
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330 Years BC: “Alexander the Great chases Darius III to Ecbatana (former capital of
the Medes) then Bactria, then Sogdia, where Alexander meets and marries Princess
Roxanne. Darius is killed by a cousin Bessus, who assumes the Persian throne.
Alexander captures and executes Bessus, ending the Achaemenid dynasty.”

326 Years BC: “Alexander the Great defeats Indian army under Porus at Hydaspes
(Jhelum River).”

324 Years BC: “Alexander the Great invades the Punjab, but at the Beas River his
soldiers refuse to go further, so Alexander turns back.”

323 Years BC: “Alexander the Great dies at Babylon, of a fever.”

“The rise of Macedonia and the conquests of Alexander the Great heralded the
‘Hellenistic Period’, when royal patrons favored the Panhellenic sanctuaries, founded
new cities in Syria and Egypt, and embellished such cities as Ephesus and Pergamon
in Anotolia. Old building types became more complex: altars, gate buildings, council
houses, stoas with two or three levels, and theaters with large attached stage
buildings. '

Many new building types were introduced, including the nymphaeum (a
sculptured facade with fountains), monumental tomb, columned hall, choragic
monument (a circular tower celebrating the winners of a choral dance competition),
clock tower, and lighthouse. Many of these structures were decorated with dramatic
marble sculpture. Hellenistic architects made imaginative variations on the standard
temple forms, introducing APSES, high polia (stepped or square platforms), and subtle
combinations of Doric and Ionic features. Several temples had exterior Corinthian
columns, such as the colossal temple of Zeus in Olympus in Athens, begun in 174
BC.”

About 320 Years BC: Adil, Lynn’s 47" great grandfather, was married to Yrsa, Lynn’s
47t great grandmother, who he kidnapped and held her hostage, and then married her.
She became the Queen of Sweden, a most respected and loved

Queen. A legendary account of her abduction is told:

“Adil was the name of King Ottar’s son and successor. He was a long time king, became
very rich, and went also for several summers on Viking expeditions. On one of these he
came to Saxland with his troops. There a King was reigning called Geirthjof, and his wife
was called Alof the Great; but nothing is told of their children. The King was not at home,
and Adil and his men ran up to king’s house and plundered it, while others drove a herd
of cattle down to the strand. The herd was attended by slave-people, churls, and girls,
and they all of them together. Among them was a remarkably beautiful girl called Yrsa.
Adil returned home with this plunder. Yrsa was not one of the slave girls, and it was
soon observed that she was intelligent, spoke well, and in all respects was well behaved.
All people thought well of her, and particularly the king; and at last it came to this that the
king celebrated his wedding with her, and Yrsa became Queen of Sweden, and was
considered an excellent woman.”

“King Halfdan’s son Helge ruled at that time over Leidre. He came to Sweden with so
great an army, that King Adil saw no other way than to fly at once. King Helge landed
with his army, plundered and made a great booty. He took Queen Yrsa prisoner, carried
her with him to Leidre, took her to wife, and had a son by her called Rolf Krake. When
Rolf was three years old, Queen Alof came to Denmark, and told Queen Yrsa that her
husband, King Helge, was her own father, and she, Alof, was her mother. Thereupon
Yrsa went back to Sweden to King Adil, and was queen there as long as she lived. King
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Helge fell in a war expedition; and Rof Krake, who was then eight years old, was taken to
be King in Leidre. King Adil had many disputes with a king called Ole of the Uplands;
and these kings had a battle on the ice of the Venner lake, in which King Ole fell, and
King Adil won the battle. There is a long account of this battle in the “Skjoldunga Saga”,
and also about Rolf Krake’s coming to Adils, and sowing gold upon the Fyrisvold. King
Adil was a great lover of good horses, and had the best horses of these times. One of his
horses was called Slongve, and another Raven. This horse he had taken from Ole on his
death, and bred from him a horse, also called Raven, which the king sent in a present to
King Godgest in Halogaland. When Godgest mounted the horse he was not able to
manage him, and fell off and was killed. This accident happened at Omd in Halogaland.
King Adil was at a Disa sacrifice; and as he rode around the Disa hall his horse’ Raven
stumbled and fell, and the king was thrown forward upon his head, and his skull was
split, and his brains dashed out against a stone. Adil died at Upsal, and was buried
there in a mound. The Swedes called him a great King. Thjodolf speaks thus of him: —*

“Witch-demons, I have heard men say,
Have taken Adil’s life away.

The son of Kings of Frey’s great race,
First in the fray, the fight, the chase,
Fell from his steed — his clotted brains
Lie mixed with mire on Upsal’s plains.
Such death (grim Fate has willed it so)
Has struck down Ole’s deadly foe.”

Authors Note: Notice the similar spelling of “Adil” compared to “Adin”.

312 Years BC: “Seleucid King Seleucus I Nicator conquers Babylon.”

282 Years BC: “Messina falls to Mamertine mercenaries.”

264 Years BC: “Start of the First Punic War (Carthage vs. Rome).”

260 Years BC: “Roman ships defeat Carthaginian ships at Mylae.”

256 Years BC: “Roman ships defeat Carthaginian ships at Cape Ecnomus.”

About 250 BC: Eystein, Lynn’s 46 great grandfather, ruled as King of Sweden. The
Sfollowing is a legendary account of his time:

“Eystein, King Adil’s son, ruled next over Sweden, and in his lifetime Rolf Krake of Leidre
fell. In those days many kings, both Danes and Northmen, ravaged the Swedish
dominions; for there were many sea-kings who ruled over many people, but had no
lands, and he might well be called a sea-king who never slept beneath sooty roof
timbers.”

“There was a sea-king called Solve, son of Hogne of Njardo, who at that time plundered
in the Baltic, but had his dominion in Jutland. He came with his forces to Sweden, just as
King Eystein was at a feast in a district called Lofond. Solve came unexpectedly in the
night on Eystein, surrounded the house in which the king was, and burned him and all
his court. Then Solve went to Sigtun, and desired that the Swedes should receive him,
and give him the title of king; but they collected an army, and tried to defend the country
against him, on which there was a great battle, that lasted, according to report, eleven
days. There King Solve was victorious, and was afterwards king of the Swedish
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dominions for a long time, until at last the Swedes betrayed him , and he was killed.
Thjodolf tells of it thus: —°

For a long time none could tell

How Eystein died — but now I know

That at Lofond the hero fell;

The branch of Odin was laid low,

Was burnt by Solve’s Jutland men.

The raging tree-devourer fire

Rushed on the monarch in its ire;

First fell the castle timbers, then

The roof-beams — Eystein’s funeral pyre.”

241 Years BC: “Roman ships defeat Carthaginian ships off the Aegadian Isles.”

219 Years BC: “Hannibal captures Saguntum in Spain.”

218 Years BC: “Declaration of Second Punic War (Carthage vs. Rome).”

217 Years BC: “Hannibal crosses Alps from Gaul into Italy. Prince Cheng, founder of
the Ch’in Dynasty (from which the name “China” is taken), unifies China and takes the
title of Shih Hwang-ti (First emperor). Shih Hwang-ti builds much of the Great Wall of
China, and a network of roads and canals that converge on his capitol, near modern
Sian, Shensi province.”

216 Years BC: “Hannibal defeats the Roman army at Cannae.”

214 Years BC: “Roman General Marcus Claudius Marcellus besieges Syracuse, which
is allied with Carthage. The siege fails and the blockade begins.”

212 Years BC: Marcellus attacks Syracuse and gains the city. A Roman soldier runs
Archimedes through with a sword.

210 Years BC: “China’s first emperor, Shih Hwang-ti dies.”

About 175 Years BC: Yngvar, Lynn’s 45 great grandfather, King of Sweden, has a story
going like this:

“Yngvar, who was King Eystein’s son, then became King of Sweden. He was a great
warrior, and often lay out with his warships; for the Swedish dominions were much
ravaged then by Danes and East-country men. King Yngvar made peace with the Danes;
but betook himself to ravaging the East country in return. One summer he went with his
forces to Estland, and plundered at a place called Stein. The men of Estland came down
from the interior with a great army, and there was a battle; but the army of the country
was so brave that the Swedes could not withstand them, and King Yngvar fell, and his
people fled. He was buried close to the seashore under a mound in Estland; and after
this defeat the Swedes returned home. Thjodolf sings of it thus: —*

“Certain it is the Estland foe

The fair haired Swedish King laid low.

On Estland’s strand, o’er Swedish graves,
The East Sea sings her song of waves;
King Yngvar’s dirge is ocean’s roar
Resounding on the rock-ribbed shore.”
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174 Years BC: “Construction of colossal temple of Zeus Olympius was begun in
Athens, Greece.”

170 Years BC: “The world’s first paved streets were built in Rome. During the
centuries that followed, roads of stone would link together much of the Roman Empire.
By the peak of the empire, Romans had built about 50,000 miles of roads.”

169 Years BC: “Selucid King Antiochus IV Epipanes captures Jerusalem.”

167 Years BC: “Beginning of Maccabean War of Liberation.”

148 Years BC: “Macedonia became a Roman Province.”

146 Years BC: “Roman general Scipio Africanus Minor captures and razes Carthage,
enslaves inhabitants. The city ceases to exist.”

About 100 Years BC: Onund “The Land Clearer”, Lynn’s 44 great grandfather, was a
builder. He cut the trees, he cleared the land, built roads and improved Sweden as this
legendary account describes:

“Onund was the name of Yngvar’s son who succeeded him. In his days there was peace
in Sweden, and he became rich in valuable goods. King Onund went with his army to
Estland to avenge his father, and landed and ravaged the country round far and wide,
and returned with a great booty in autumn to Sweden. In his time there were fruitful
seasons in Sweden, so that he was one of the most popular of kings. Sweden is a great
forest land, and there are such great uninhabited forests in it that it is a journey of many
days to cross them. Onund bestowed great diligence and expense on opening the woods
and cultivating the cleared land. He made roads through the deserted forests; and thus
cleared land is found all through the forest country, and great districts are settled. In this
way extensive tracts of land were brought into cultivation, for there were country people
enough to cultivate the land. Onund had roads made through all Sweden, both through
forests and morasses, and also over mountains; and he was therefore called Onund
Roadmaker. He had a house built for himself in every district of Sweden, and went over
the whole country in guest-quarters.”

“King Onund one autumn, traveling between his mansion-houses, came over a road
called Himmenheath, where there are some narrow mountain valleys, with high
mountains on both sides. There was heavy rain at the time, and before there had been
snow on the mountains. A landslip of clay and stones came down upon King Onund and
his people, and there he met his death, and many with him. So says Thjodolf, namely: -

“We all have heard how Jonkur’s sons,
Whom weapons could not touch, with stones
Were stoned to death in open day,

King Onund died in the same way.

Or else perhaps the wood-grown land,
Which long had felt his conquering hand,
Uprose at length in deadly strife,

And pressed out Onund’s hated life.”

86 Years BC: “The Helenistic Period ends.”

63 Years BC: “Romans under Pompey (Gnaeus Pompeius Magnus) capture
Jerusalem.”
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SS Years BC: “Gaius Julius Caesar invades Britain with eighty transports and two
legions, landing at Albion, between Deal and Walmer. High tides destroy many of the
Roman’s ships, so Caesar returns to Gaul.”

54 Years BC: “Caesar again invades Britain, with five legions and some cavalry, in 500
ships. A storm destroys many ships, but Caesar invades inland, is opposed by Britons
under Cassivellaunus, who avoids pitched battle but continually harasses the
Romans. Eventually local tribes make peace with Caesar, surrender hostages, and
promise tribute. Caesar declares a victory, leaves Britain, and takes his hostages back
to Rome. Britain remains free from another invasion for almost 100 years.”

S3 Years BC: “Parthians defeat Romans at Carrhae (Harran), northern Syria.”

52 Years BC: “Romans under Julius Caesar defeat Gauls under Vercengetorix, at
Alesia, France.”

January 1, 49 BC: “Caesar and his army cross the Rubicon River and march on Rome.
The Senate flees.”

48 Years BC: “Pompey attacks Caesar’s smaller army at Pharsalus, Greece. Pompey is
defeated, and flees to Egypt where he is killed.”

47 Years BC: “Caesar takes his army to Egypt, then Syria and Pontus, where he
defeats Pharnaces I1.”

April 15, 44 BC: “Julius Caesar assassinated. Marcus Antonius provokes Roman
crowd to turn on Caesar’s assassins, who flee from Rome.”

43 Years BC: “ Roman Senate officially recognizes the founding of Lugdunum (present
day Lyon, France).”

October 42 BC: “Army of Roman Emperor Octavian defeats army of Marcus Junius
Brutus and Baius Cassius Longinus (two of Julius Caesar’s assassins).”

September 40 BC: “Antonius and Octavius sign the Treaty of Brundisium, dividing up
the Roman Empire.”

37 Years BC: “Antonius settles in Alexandria with Cleopatra, and neglects his
governmental responsibilities.”

32 Years BC: “Roman Senate strips Antonius of his powers, leading to civil war.”

31 Years BC: “Antonius’ fleet vanquished at Actium, by Roman fleet under Marcus
Vipsanius Agrippa. When Octavian (Julius Caesar’s adopted son, later Caesar
Augustus) arrives at Alexandria, Antonius commits suicide, and Cleopatra joins him
shortly thereafter.”

About 30 Years BC: Ingjald, Lynn’s 43 great grandfather, became King of Sweden. His
story is told thus:

Then Ingjald, King Onund’s son, came to the Kingdom. The Upsal Kings were the highest
in Sweden among the many district-kings who had been since the time that Odin was
chief. The kings who resided at Upsal had been the supreme chiefs over the whole
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Swedish dominions until the death of Agne, when, as before related, the kingdom came to
be divided between brothers. After that time the dominions and kingly powers were
spread among the branches of the family as these increased; but some kings cleared
great tracts of forest lands, and settled them, and thereby increased their domains.
Now when Ingjald took the dominions and the kingdom of his father, there were, as
before said, many district-kings. King Ingjald ordered a great feast to be prepared in
Upsal, and intended at that feast to enter on his heritage after King Onund his father. He
had a large hall made ready for the occasion — one not less, nor less sumptuous, than
that of Upsal; and this hall was called the Seven Kings Hall, and in it were seven high
seats for Kings. Then King Ingjald sent men all through Sweden, and invited to his feast
kings, earls, and other men of consequence. To this heirship-feast came King Algaut, his
father-in-law; Yngvar King of Fjadryndaland, with his two sons, Alf and Agnar; King
Sporsnjall of Nerike; King Sighvat of Aattundaland: but Granmar King of Sodermanland
did not come. Six Kings were placed in the seats in the new hall; but one of the high
seats which Ingjald had prepared was empty. All the persons who had come got places
in the new hall; but to his own court, and the rest of his people, he had appointed places
at Upsal. It was the custom at that time that he who gave an heirship-feast after kings or
earls, and entered upon the heritage, should sit upon the footstool in front of the high
seat, until the full bowl, which was called the Brage-beaker, make solemn vows to be
afterwards fulfilled, and thereupon empty the beaker. Then he should ascend the high
seat which his father had occupied; and thus he came to the full heritage after his father.
Now it was done so on this occasion. When the full Brage-beaker came in, King Ingjald
stood up, grasped a large bull’s horn, and made a solemn vow to enlarge his dominions
by one half, towards all the four corners of the world, or die; and thereupon pointed with
the horn to the four quarters. Now when the guests had become drunk towards evening
King Ingjald told Svipday’s sons, Gautvid and Hylvid, to arm themselves and their men,
as had before been settled; and accordingly they went out, and came up to the new hall,
and set fire to it. The hall was soon in a blaze, and the six kings, with all their people,
were burned in it. Those who tried to come out were killed. Then King Ingjald laid all the
dominions these kings had possessed under himself, and took scatt from them.

“King Ingjald was at a feast in Raening, when he heard that King Ivar’s army was in the
neighborhood. Ingjald thought he had not strength to go into battle against Ivar, and he
saw well that if he betook himself to flight his enemies would swarm around him from all
corners. He and Aasa took resolution which has become celebrated. They drank until all
their people were dead drunk, and then put fire to the hall; and it was consumed, with all
who were in it, including themselves, King Ingjald, and Aasa. Thus says Thjodolf: —“

“With fiery feet devouring flame
Has hunted down a royal game

At Raening, where King Ingjald gave
To all his men one glowing grave.
On his own hearth the fire he raised,
A deed his foemen even praised;

By his own hand he perished so,
And life for freedom did forego.”

Author’s Note: This ended the reign of Kings in Upsal Domain for the ancestry of the
Reynolds family. King Ingjald, L ’s 434 great ndfather and Aasa, L ’s 43 great

grandmeother were the last known royal rulers of the Upsal Domain after approximately
1,000 years of leadership in this geographical area. Family Royalty will continue, but in
different locations. The accounts that have been provided herein are stories and legends
translated and provided by Berkley Digital Online Medieval & Classical Library. The era
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described is called the “Ynglinga Saga”. Our story continues with help from this source,
but will not be called the “Ynglinga race” from this point forward.

27 Years BC: “Augustus becomes Imperial Ruler of the Roman Empire.”

O Years: Jesus Christ is born. Christianity
begins. Time begins.

1 Year AD: “Octavianus reigned fifty-six winters; and in the forty-second year of his
reign Christ was born. Then three astrologers from the east came to worship Christ;
and the children in Bethlehem were slain by Herod in persecution of Christ.”

Author’s Note: This is where we will begin to include bits and pieces about the Maple

Syrup Industry. Certainly the next 1,000 years in historical maple development

will be estimates at best. However, | have concluded a detailed study of the early
Native North Americans, concerning their lore, legends, myths, food gathering

techniques, culture, and technological advancement. The Indians of North America
were probably the most proficient food gatherers of any people of the world. Their
cultivation techniques were not all that different or inferior to that which was practiced
in Europe at that time. Therefore, I conclude that certainly, the Indians, in the spring
time of the year, broke a branch, snapped a twig, scraped a root, observed lightning

damage. wind damage, or any other natural disaster to the maple tree, and discovered
that maple sap flowed from the wound in the tree and was sweet. [ really believe

that they knew this at a much earlier time, probably hundreds of vears prior to this
time. But we must start somewhere, until such time as we can document the events.
My stance is further supported by a studv conducted by J. R. Roney, Bureau of Land
Management, and co-author of a study on Native North Americans, published in 1998.
This study is in connection with Robert J. Hard, University of Texas, and in
concurrence with Bruce B. Huckell, University of New Mexico. The study established
that sophisticated villages existed in America as early as 3,000 B.C.. They further
concluded by carbon dating, that domesticated agriculture (corn and squash) were
extensively grown by 1,500 B. C. rather than the 500 A.D. originally believed. In fact,
they believe that domesticated subsistence may have been self supported as early as
1.000 B.C.. These findings substantiate the Native North Americans as very self
sufficient and capable of developing a maple syrup industry that essentially flowed

From 1 AD forward, we are assisted by the “Anglo Saxon Chronicles” (courtesy of
Britannia Internet Magazine), “The Anglo-Saxon Living History Online” (courtesy of
“Angelcynn”) followed by the “Viking Chronicles” (courtesy of several online sources
which will be listed in the Bibliography) , along with the continuing “Annotated
Chronology of Military Events” (as provided by Richard R. Orsinger Online). and
continued “Sagas” (provided by Berkeley Digital Library SunSITE Online).

About 1 Year AD: The native North American Indians discover that maple sap
flows from the maple tree and that the liquid is sweet.

3 Years AD: “This year Herod died, stabbed by his own hand; and Archelaus his son
succeeded him. The child Christ was also this year brought back again from Egypt.”

11 Years AD: “Herod, the son of Antipater undertook the government in Judea.”
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12 Years AD: “Philip and Herod divided Judea into four kingdoms.”
16 Years AD: “ Tiberius succeeded to the empire.”
26 Years AD: “Pilate began to reign over the Jews.”

30 Years AD: Christ baptized; and Peter and Andrew were converted, together with
James, John, and Philip, and all the twelve apostles.

33 Years AD: “Jesus Christ was crucified.”

34 Years AD: “St. Paul converted, and St. Stephen stoned.”

37 Years AD: “Pilate slew himself with his own hand.”

39 Years AD: “Caius undertook the Roman Empire.”

About 40 Years AD: Olaf “The Treefeller”, Lynn’s 42 great grandfather, led his people
Jrom the Upsal Domain into the Klar River Valley, called Vermeland. And even though

King Ivar was occupying their original domain, Olaf retained the title, King of Sweden (“In
Exile”). This is the legend of Olaf “The Treefeller”:

“When Olaf, King Ingjald’s son, heard of his father’s end, he went with the men
who chose to follow him to Nereike; for all the Swedish community rose with one accord to
drive out Ingjald’s family and all his friends. Now, when the Swedes got intelligence of
him he could not remain there, but went on westwards, through the forest, to a river
which comes from the north and falls in the Venner Lake, and is called Klar River. There
they sat themselves down, turned to and cleared the woods, burnt, and then settled
there. Soon there were great districts; which altogether were called Vermeland; and a
good living was to be made there. Now when it was told of Olaf, in Sweden, that he was
clearing the forests, they laughed at his proceedings, and called him the ‘Treefeller’. Olaf
got a wife called Solva, or Solveigh, a daughter of Halfdan Guldtand, westward in
Soleyar. Halfdan was a son of Solve Solvarson, who was a son of Solve the Old, who
first settled on these islands. Olaf Treefeller wife’s mother was called Gauthild, and her
mother was Alov, daughter of Olaf the Sharp-sighted, King in Nereike. Olaf and Solva
had two sons: Ingjald and Halfdan. Halfdan was brought up in Soleyar, in the house of
his mother’s brother Solve, and was called Halfdan Huvitbein.”

“There were a great many people who fled the country from Sweden, on account
of King Ivar; and when they heard that King Olaf had got good lands in Vermeland, so
great a number came there to him that the land could not support them. Then there came
dear times and famine, which they ascribed to their king; as the Swedes used always to
reckon good or bad crops for or against their kings. The Swedes took it amiss that Olaf
was sparing in his sacrifices, Swedes therefore gathered together troops, made an
expedition against King Olaf, surrounded his house and burnt him in i, giving him to
Odin as a sacrifice for good crops. This happened at the Venner Lake. Thus tells
Thjodolf of it: -~

“The temple wolf, by the lake shores,

The corpse of Olaf now devours.

The clearer of the forest died

At Odin’s shrine by the lake side.

The glowing flames stripped to the skin

The royal robes from the Swedes’ king.

Thus Olaf, famed in days of yore,

Vanished from earth at Venner’s shore.”
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41 Years AD: “Emperor Caligula is murdered. Cladius becomes Roman Emperor.”

43 Years AD: “Roman army of 20,000 invades Britain. Once their position is secure,
Emperor Claudius crosses from Gaul with reinforcements, including elephants, and
stages and wins another battle. Claudius returns to Rome a conqueror, is awarded the
title Britannicus. The Romans establish a troubled domination of Britain.”

44 Years AD: “James, brother of John, was slain by Herod.”
45 Years AD: “Herod died, one year after he slew James.”

46 Years AD: “Claudius, the second of the Roman Emperor who invaded Britain, took
the greater part of the island into his power, and added the Orkneys to rite dominion
of the Romans. This was in the fourth year of his reign. And, the great famine in Syria
happens. Claudius Nero succeeded to the Empire, almost lost the Island of Britain.”

47 Years AD: “Mark the evangelist, in Egypt started to write the gospel. Claudius,
King of the Romans, conquered the island, and subjected all the Picts and Welsh to
the rule of the Romans.”

61 Years AD: “Excessive Roman depredations drive Britons to revolt under female
leader Boudiceca, who captures Camulodunum (Colchester) and slaughters all Romans
and their collaborators, then fights and vanquishes the infantry of the 9t Legion.
When Boudicca marches on Londinium (London), the Roman commander Suetonius
abandons the city, whereupon Boudicca takes the city and kills all its inhabitants.
Boudicca then marches upon and destroys Verulamium (St. Albans). In the three
cities, some 70,000 inhabitants lose their lives. Suetonius, with 10,000 soldiers meets
the Britons in battle, and the Romans triumph, killing the British soldiers, their
women and children. Boudicca drinks poison and dies.”

66 Years AD: “Great Revolt of Jews against the Romans begins.”

70 Years AD: “Romans under Titus besiege and capture Jerusalem, ending the Great
Revolt. Tens of thousands of Jews were killed while the revolt was being subdued.”
“Located in southern Israel, the historic mountain known as Masada served as a
Jewish fortress. After the Romans captured and razed Jerusalem during a Jewish
uprising, about 1,000 zealots withdrew to Masada. The zealots defended the fortress
for two years during a siege by the Roman legion. When the Romans eventually
captured the fortress in 73 AD, all but seven of the zealots committed suicide.”

Zime CJut: “J Shall (Not fass This Ylay Again”
“7heough this toilsome world, alast
Onee and only once J pass;
JF a kindness \J may show,
JFf a good deed \J may do
7© a suffering fellow man,
<Let me do it while \J can
Vo delay, for it is plain
«J shall not pass this way again. ©  Signed Zfoknown
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Figure 18: Masada,
Jewish Fortress

In About 70 AD
(Source: Microsoft’s
Encarta).

81 Years AD: “Titus became Roman Emperor.”
83 Years AD: “Domitian, brother of Titus became Roman Emperor.”

84 Years AD: “Romans win Battle of Mons Graupius, ending British resistance to
Roman occupation.

John, the evangelist, in the island of Patmos, wrote the book called The Apocalypse’.”
90 Years AD: “Simon, the apostle, was crucified.”

About 99 Years AD: “Roman historian Tacitus wrote “De Origine et Situ
Germanorum”, describing the German culture of the times.”

About 100 Years AD: The North American Indians start using maple sap as a

flavoring in cooking. Since the sap would not keep, it was used as a very seasonal
treat.

About 110 Years AD: Halfdan Hritbein, Lynn’s 41 great grandfather, King of Raumarike
and Westfold, married Aasa, Lynn’s 41st great grandmother, daughter of Eystein “The
Severe”, who was King of the Uplands, and Hedemark. The following account describes
the life of Halfdan Hritbein:

“Those of the Swedes who had more understanding found that the dear times proceeded
Jfrom there being a greater number of people on the land than it could support, and that
the king could not be blamed for this. They took the resolution, therefore, to cross the
Eida forest with all their men, and came quite unexpectedly into Soleyar, where they put
to death King Solve, and took Halfdan Hvitbein prisoner, and made him their chief, and
gave him the title of king. Thereupon he subdued Doleyar, and proceeding with his army
into Raumarike, plundered there, and laid that district also in subjection by force of
arms.”

“Halfdan Hvitbein became a great king. He was married to Aasa, a daughter of Eystein
‘The Severe’, who was King of the Upland people, and ruled over Hedemark. Halfdan
and Aasa had two sons, Eystein and Gudrod. Halfdan subdued a great part of
Hedemark, Toten, Hadeland, and much of Westfold. He lived to be an old man, and died
in his bed at Toten, from whence his body was transported to Westfold, and was buried
under a mound at a place called Skaereid, at Skiringsale. So says Thjodolf: —*
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“Halfdan, esteemed by friends and foes,
Receives at last life’s deep repose:

The aged man at last, though late,

Yielded in Toten to stern fate.

At Skiringsale hangs o’er his grave

A rock, that seems to mourn the brave Halfdan,
to chiefs and people dear,

Received from all a silent tear.”

“Ingjald, Halfdan Hvitbeins’s brother, was King of Vermeland, but after his death King
Halfdan took possession of Vermeland, raised scatt from it, and placed earls over it as
long as he lived.”

116 Years AD: “Hadrian the Caesar became Roman Emperor.”

“Romans capture Parthian capitol of Ctesiphon.”

122 Years AD: “Romans begin construction of Hadrian’s Wall, in Britain. The wall
stretches over 73 miles from coast to coast in Northumberland, England, and is
designed to separate barbarians to the north from Roman-controlled Britain.”

ime at:

“One day as J sat musing, sad and lonely and without a friend, a voice came to me
from out of the gloom, ‘Cheer up, things could be worse.” So J cheeved up and sare enocugh, things
got worse.”

cAuthor Zfoknown

“J cannot be bought, but make me an offer.”

Author Zfoknown

Figure 19:
Hadrian’s Wall
About 125 AD
(Source: Microsoft’s
Encarta).
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135 Years AD: “Roman Emperor Hadrian destroys Jerusalem, and rebuilds as new
city, called “Aelia Capitolina”, and prohibits Jews from living there.”

145 Years AD: “Marcus Antoninus and Aurelius, his brother, became Roman
Emperors.”

167 Years AD: “Eleutherius became Pope. Lucius, King of the Britons, begged for
baptism for himself. It was refused, but he continued to keep the faith.”

About 180 AD: Eystein, Lynn’s 40 great grandfather, King in Raumarike and Westfold,
was married to Hild, Lynn’s 40 great grandmother, who was daughter of Eric Agnasson,
also a King in Westfold. Here is a legendary account of Eystein’s life and death:

“Eystein, Halfdan Huvitbein’s son, became king after in Raumarike and Westfold. He was
married to Hild, a daughter of Eric Agnarsson, who was king in Westfold. Agnar, Eric’s
father, was a son of Sigtryg, king of the Vend district. King Eric had no son, and died
while King Halfdan Hvitbein was still in life. The father and son, Halfdan and Eystein,
then took possession of the whole of Westfold, which Eystein ruled over as long as he
lived. At that time there lived at Varna a King called Skjold, who was a great warlock.
King Eystein went with some ships for war to Vamna, plundered there, and carried away
all he could find of clothes or other valuables, and of peasants’ stock, and killed cattle on
the strand for provision, and then went off. King Skjold came to the strand with his army,
Just as Eystein was at such a distance over the fjord that King Skjold could only see his
sails. Then he took his cloak, waved it, and blew into it. King Eystein was sitting at the
helm as they sailed in past Jarls, and another ship was sailing at the side of his, when
there came a stroke of a wave, by which the boom of the other ship struck the king and
threw him overboard, which proved his death. His men fished up his body, and it was
carried into Borre, where a mound was thrown up over it, out towards the sea at Raden,
near Vodle. So says Thjodolf: —°

“King Eystein sat upon the poop

Of his good ship: with sudden swoop
The swinging boom dashed him to hell,
And fathoms deep the hero fell

Beneath the brine. The fury whirl

Of Loke, Tempest’s brother’s girl,

Grim Hel, clutched his soul away;

And now where Vodle’s ocean bay
Receives the ice-cold stream, the grave
Of Eystein stands — the good, the brave!”

189 Years AD: “Severus became Roman Emperor; went with his army into Britain, and
subdued in battle a great part of the island. He completed Hadrian’s Wall. He died at
York.”

“Lucius, King of the Britons, was baptized as Christian.”

About 200 Years AD: “The windmill powered gristmill is invented in Persia.”

220 Years AD: “Invasions into China by the barbarian Hsiung-he (Huns) begins.”

225 Years AD: “Ardashir I, first Sasanian Emperor, defeats Artabanus V, last Parthian
ruler.”
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About 250 Years AD: Halfdan “The Mild”, Lynn’s 39 great grandfather, King of
Westfold, was married to Liv, Lynn’s 39" great grandmother. Not much is known about
him, but there is a short account of his life:

“Halfdan was the name of King Eysteins’s son who succeeded him. He was called
Halfdan the Mild, but the Bad Entertainer; that is to say, he was reported to be generous,
and to give his men as much gold as other kings gave of silver, but he starved them in
their diet. He was a great warrior, who had been long on cruises, and had collected great
property. He was married to Liv, a daughter of King Dag of Westmare. Holtar, in
Westfold, was his chief house; and he died there on the bed of sickness, and was buried
at Borre under a mound. So says Thjodolf: —*

“By Hel’s summons, a great king
was called away to Odin’s Thing:
King Halfdan, he who dwelt of late
At Holtar, must obey grim Fate.

At Borre, in the royal mound,

They laid the hero in the ground.”

260 Years AD: “Persian King Shapoor I defeats Romans and captures Roman Emperor
Valerian.”

269 Years AD: “Roman Emperor Claudius II defeats the Goths as Naissus (Nis,
Yugoslavia).”

306 Years AD: “Constantine proclaimed Emperor at York, England.”

312 Years AD: “Constantine I defeats Maxentius at the Mulvian Bridge over the River
Tiber, becoming unchallenged ruler of the Western Roman Empire. Here according to
Eusebius of Caesarea, Constantine saw a flaming cross in the sky, inscribed “In hoc
signo vinces” (In this sign you shall conquer).”

313 Years AD: “Constantine I issues the “Edict Of Milan”, legalizing Christianity. He
becomes first Roman ruler to be converted to Christianity. He was known as
‘Constantine The Great’.”

About 320 Years AD: Gudrod “The Hunter”, Lynn’s 38 great grandfather, King of
Westfold, married Alfhild, Lynn’s 38" great grandmother, and daughter of King Alfarin of
Alfheim. Gudrod was also known as “The Magnificent” as this story tells:

“Gudrod, Halfdan’s son, succeeded. He was called Gudrod the Magnificent, and also
Gudrod the Hunter. He was married to Alfhild, daughter of King Alfarin of Alfheim, and
got with her half the district of Vingulmark. Their son Olaf was afterwards called
Geirstad-Alf. Alfheim, at that time, was the name of the land between the Glommen and
Gotha rivers. Now when Alfhild died, King Gudrod sent his men west to Agder to the king
who ruled there, and who was called Harold Redbeard. They were to make proposals to
his daughter Aasa upon the kings’ account; but Harald declined the match, and the
ambassadors returned to the king, and told him the result of their errand. Soon after
King Gudrod hove down his ships into the water, and proceeded with a great force in
them to Agder. He immediately landed, and came altogether unexpectedly at night to
King Harald’s house. When Harald was aware that an army was at hand, he went out
with the men he had about him, and there was a great battle, although he wanted men so
much. King Harald and his son Gyrd fell, and King Gudrod took a great booty. He
carried away with him Aasa, King Harald’s daughter, and had a wedding with her. They
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had a son by their marriage called Halfdan; and the autumn that Halfdan was a year old
Gudrod went upon a round of feasts. He lay with his ship in Stiflesund, where they had
been drinking hard, so that the King was very tipsy. In the evening, about dark, the King
left the ship; and when he had got to the end of gangway from the ship to the shore, a
man ran against him, thrust a spear through him, and killed him. The man was instantly
put to death, and in the morning when it was light the man was discovered to be Aasa’s
page-boy: nor did she conceal that it was done by her orders. Thus tells Thjodolf of it: -

“Gudrod is gone to his long rest,
Despite of all his haughty pride —
A traitor’s spear has pierced his side:
For Aasa cherished in her breast
Revenge; and as, by wine opprest,
The hero staggered from his ship,
The cruel queen her thrall let slip
To do the deed of which I sing:
And now the far-descended king,
At Stiflesund, in the old bed

Of the old Gudrod race, lies dead.”
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Figure 20: Roman Empire 330 A.D. (Source: Unknown - Internet).

330 Years AD: “Constantine I moves capital of Roman Empire to Byzantium, which he
rebuilds as Constantinople.”

340 Years AD: “Romans cease building new roads in Britain.”

350 Years AD: “Romans cease building new roads in Gaul. The British general
Magnentius revolts, and becomes acknowledged Emperor throughout most of the
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western Roman Empire. Emperor Constantius invites Germanic tribes to cross the
Rhine River to attack Gaul and the Roman Rhineland.”

353 Years AD: “Emperor Constantius defeats Magnentius, but the result of inviting
Germanic intervention is that armed bands of Germanic tribesmen maraud through
the Western Empire. Since Britain supported Magnentius, Constantius decimates the
British ruling class.”

367 Years AD: “A barbarian alliance brings Britain to her knees. Roman troops, ally
with the barbarians.”

372 Years AD: “Huns sweep across Asia, invade the lower Volga valley.”

375 Years AD: “The Huns cross the Volga River, attack the Germanic Visigoths living
in Ukraine.

378 Years AD: Huns defeat Roman army under Emperor Valens at Adrianople, in the
far northwestern part of Turkey.”

379 Years AD: “Gratian succeeded to the Roman Emperor.”
381 Years AD: “Maximus the Caesar became Roman Emperor.”

383 Years AD: “Diocese in Britain declares Magnus Maximum as Roman Emperor.”

388 Years AD: “Roman Emperor Theodosius defeats Magnus Maximum, using large
contingents of Germanic soldiers, whose loyalty did not lie with Rome.”

About 390 Years AD: Olaf, Lynn’s 37 great grandfather, was king of the Westfold
Kingdom. What is known is told below:

“Olaf came to the kingdom after his father. He was a great warrior, and an able man;
and was besides remarkably handsome, very strong and large of growth. He had
Westfold; for King Alfgeir took all Vingulmark to himself, and placed his son Gandalf over
it. Both father and son made war on Raumarike, and subdues the greater part of that
land and district. Hogne was the name of a son of the Upland King, Eystein the Great,
who subdued for himself the whole of Hedemark, Toten, and Hadeland. Then
Vermedland fell off from Gudrod’s sons, and turned itself, with its payment of scatt, to
the Swedish King. Olaf was about twenty years old when Gudrod died; and as his
brother Halfdan now had the kingdom with him, they divided it between them; so that
Olaf got the eastern and Halfdan the southern part. King Olaf had his main resident at
Geirstad. There he died of a disease in his foot, and was laid under a mound at
Geirstad. So sings Thjodolf: -

“Long while this branch of Odin’s stem
Was the stout prop of Norway’s realm;
Long while King Olaf with just pride
Ruled over Westfold far and wide.

At length by cruel gout oppressed,

The good King Olaf sank to rest:

His body now lies under ground,
Buried at Geirstad, in the mound.”
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392 Years AD: “Germanic leader of Rome’s Rhineland forces revolts, the rebellion is
suppressed by Theodosius.”

395 Years AD: “Theodosius dies, the last emperor of the entire Roman Empire.”

“Macedonia area was made part of Byzantine Empire when the Roman Empire was
divided.”

400 Years AD: The Indians of North America are heating (boiling) maple sap to
make it sweeter, probably still a seasonal treat.

400 Years AD: “Visigoths attack western half of Roman Empire.”

402 Years AD: “Romans, under Flavius Stilicho (a Vandal), repel Visigoth invasion of
Italy.”

403 Years AD: “Stilicho strips the western Roman frontier of forces, in attempt to
contain Visigoth invasion of Italy, saving Italy but causing the Rhine frontier to
collapse.”

405 Years AD: “Stilicho repels barbarian invasion of Italy under Radagaisus in a battle
near Fiesole.”

410 Years AD: “Alaric I and Visigoths sack Rome. The Visigoths leave with massive
amounts of plunder, taking the Emperor’s sister as hostage. Britain asks aid from
Honorius, which he cannot give. Roman control of Britain

collapses.”

418 Years AD: “The Romans collected all the hoards of gold that were in Britain and
removed the treasures.”

423 Years AD: “Theodosius, the younger, succeeded to the Roman Emperor.”
425 Years AD: “Defense of Britain delegated to an Overking, Vortigern.”
429 Years AD: “The Vandals control most of Roman Africa.”

430 Years AD: “Patricius was sent from Pope Celestinus to preach baptism to the
Scots.”

434 Years AD: “Attila the Hun enters treaty with Roman Emperor Theodosius II.”

435 Years AD: “Roman reign ends in Britain. They ruled Britain for 470 years.”

Author’s Note: The most significant happening in Britain’s history is the settlement
(invasion) of the Anglo-Saxons in the yvears 440 AD to 500 AD. This influenced the

entire ethnic, political, and cultural makeup of England forever. The invasion of

o-Saxons set the stage for the invasion of Vikings which carried the Reynolds
family into the scene. Therefore, I am going to include some text from the o-Saxon
Chronicles from SunSITE and from el to provide an understanding of 5th
century Britain.

445 Years AD: “Archeological evidence of massive settlement of Anglo-Saxons in
Britain.”
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446 Years AD: “Roman-British inhabitants of Britain, attacked by Anglo-Saxons.
British are pushed across the English Channel into the land of the Armoricans in
northern Gaul, forcing them out of homeland, and leading to the establishment of
what is today called the Brittany province of France.”

449 Years AD: The “Anglo-Saxon Chronicles” tell it this way: “This year Marcian and
Valentinian assumed the empire, and reigned seven winters. In their days Hengest
and Horsa; invited by Wurtgern, King of the Britons to his assistance, landed in Britain
in a place that is called Ipwinesfleet; first of all to support the Britons, but they
afterwards fought against them. The King directed them to fight against the Picts; and
they did so; and obtained the Victory wheresoever they came. They then sent to the
Angles, and desired them to send more assistance. They described the worthlessness
of the Britons, and the richness of the land. They then sent them greater support.
Then came the men from three powers of Germany; the Old Saxons, the Angles, and
the Jutes. From the Jutes are descended the men of Kent, the Wightwarians (that is,
the tribe that now dwelleth in the Isle of Wight), and that kindred in Wessex that men
yet call the kindred of the Jutes. From the Old Saxons came the people of Essex and
Sussex and Wessex. From Anglia, which has ever since remained waste between the
Jutes and the Saxons, came the East Angles, the Middle Angles, the Mercians, and all
of those north of the Humber. Their leaders were two brothers, Hengest and Horsea,
who were the sons of Wihtgils; Wihtgils was the son of Witta; Witta of Wecta, Wecta of
Woden (Odin). From this Odin arose all our royal kindred, and that of the
Southumbrians also.......And in their days Vortigern invited the Angles thither, and
they came to Britain in three ceols, at the place called Wippidsfleet.”

“Angelcynn’, clarifies it this way: This account of the migrations from Germany,
following the collapse of the Roman Empire, is taken from the Anglo-Saxon Chronicles,
and is how the later Anglo-Saxons saw the first arrival of their people. Since then,
until quite recently, it has remained the accepted view of what happened. However,
recent researches have shown it to be wrong in almost every detail. It is even
uncertain whether Hengest and Horsa existed, or whether they were actually the same
person. Although Hengest may have been the first Germanic chieftain of Kent, he was
probably no more than a warlord. The first Germanic king was probably his son Oisc,
giving the Kentish royal house the name of ‘Oiscingas’. Whilst it may be true that a
British king (who may or may not have been called Vortigern) employed Germanic
mercenaries to aid him in his battles against the Picts (or perhaps just another British
king), it would certainly not be the first instance of Germanic settlers in this country.
It is known that Germanic troops had been stationed in this country by the Romans
since at least the third century - it is also known that some of these troops settled in
this county - and Germanic pirates were raiding Britain from at least this date too, so
the ‘excellence of the land’ would have already been well known on the continent.
Archaeology has shown that by the late fourth century Germanic mercenaries were to
be found settled all along the east coast of Britain, and along the banks of the Thames
at least as far as Oxforshire. The British ‘tyrants’ also feared a Roman invasion from
Gaul to remove them, so some of the Saxons stationed in southern England may have
been a guard against Roman military intervention - a far cry from the old view of the
Britons missing the presence of the legions!. It is also known that the peoples who
made up the ‘Anglo-Saxons’ were far more varied than just the three groups
mentioned. For ease of reference I will use the name ‘Anglo-Saxon’ to refer to those
Germanic people who settled in Britain, even though this is not what they would have
thought of themselves as at this stage. Certainly there were Jutes (probably not
exclusively from Jutland as many people think, but also from Frankish Rhineland),
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Saxons (from northern Germany) and Angles (from southern Denmark), and these may
have formed the bulk of the migrating peoples, but there were also Frisians from the
Low Countries - the Frisian language shared in all the more important sound changes
which distinguish English from German on one hand and the Scandinavian languages
on the other), Geats (from Gotland and south-east Sweden), Franks (from northern
France and central Germany, Wends (from the southern Baltic lands), Swedes,
Norwegians, and many others. Even the totally violent nature of their arrival is now
thought to be rather exaggerated. Whilst it is certainly true that the newcomers did
fight against the Britons (or as the invaders called them the wealas - an Old English
word meaning save or foreigner!!) in many areas much of the settlement was peaceful
with farmers and craftsmen integrating themselves into existing communities. The
numbers of the invaders was certainly large, and they certainly did affect the nature of
British society, even to the extent of replacing the primary language, but they did not
wipe out the native population. One current school of thought is that the graves found
in Anglo-Saxon cemeteries with no grave goods may in fact belong to Britons living
alongside ‘Anglo-Saxons’, and the lack of grave goods represents the different burial
customs of the Britons. If this is so, then the number of Germanic peoples may not
have been as great as many people imagine, perhaps only replacing the middle and
upper echelons of society. It is also thought that some of ‘Anglo-Saxons’ burials may
actually be native Britons who adopted the ways of the ‘Anglo-Saxons’, just as they
had done several centuries earlier with the Romans. It is most likely that in fact a
mixture of all these situations happened - in some places the native Britons were
almost entirely replaced by the newcomers, in some places the two peoples lived side
by side, and in other places the population remained almost exclusively British,
although these British people gradually adopted the ways and language of the
invaders.

Whatever the nature of the influx of Germanic peoples, we know that it did not
happen overnight and that it was not entirely peaceful. Fifty years after the traditional
arrival of Hengest and Horsa there was still fighting going on for control of the land.
Some of this was between the Britons and the invaders - this was the time of
Ambrosius Aurelianus (probably the King Arthur of legend), a Romano-British
chieftain - and some of the fighting was between different Germanic tribes each
struggling for supremacy. Around the year 500 A.D. the Britons (probably under the
leadership of Ambrosius Aurelianus) won a great victory at Mons Badonicus (Mount
Badon) which halted the tide of Germanic invaders to such an extent that several
continental sources show the Germanic expansion switched to northern Frankia
(including Germanic peoples leaving England). It also seems to be at this time that
many Britons left Britain for northern Gaul and turned the peninsula of Armorica into
Brittany. For about half a century there was relative peace with British rule over the
western half of the country and Germanic rule in the east, and it seems probable that
the Britons may even have won back some parts of central England from the invaders
(a fact the Anglo-Saxon Chronicles seem to gloss over!). By the middle of the fifth
century the Germans started a second wave of colonization that ended with most of
lowland Britain under the control of many Germanic kings’ (most of the later
kingdoms were founded at this time) and the British culture relegated to the western
fringes of the county in Dumnonia (Devon and Cornwall) and Wales (the name of which
is derived from the word wealas mentioned above); in the north there was the British
Kingdom of Strathclyde and the independent British kingdom of Elmet which stretched
westwards for many miles from the marshes at the head of the Humber, and separated
the Angles of northern midlands from those of the plain of York. This division led to
the fact that the occasional king who managed to gain supremacy over the other tribes
(Old English Bretwalda) became know as King of all England South of the Humber’.
The first of these was Aelle, king of Sussex from 477 AD, the second was Ceawlin, king
of Wessex from 560 AD. It is also why the Germanic peoples living north of the
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Humber are recorded as the Nordanhymbroron gens, or Northumbrians, whilst the
Germanic peoples living between the Humber and the Channel are referred to as
Sutangli, or southern English (the earliest case of the North/South divide?). The
Northumbrian Angles were divided into two main tribes - the Dere (Deirans) and
Bernice (Bernicians). The southern English comprised the Lindisfaran (Kingdom of
Lindsey - which may have been founded as a combined British/Germanic kingdom
several decades before the traditional Germanic invasion), the Mierce (Mercians), the
Eastengle (East Angles), the Eastseaxe (Essex), the West Seaxe (Wessex), the Suthseaxe
(Sussex), the Middelseaxan (Middlesex), the Cantware (Men of Kent), Wihtland (people
of the Isle of Wight), Hwicce (Gloucesterhire, Worcestershire and western
Warwickshire), and a loose confederation of small tribes known as the Middle Angles
in central England.

The Germanic peoples who, in the days of the Roman Empire, had occupied
territory stretching from Scandinavia to the Danube, from Gaul to beyond the Vistula,
shared a common heritage. Although similar in many ways to the Celtic peoples, their
culture was distinctly different. For example they spoke various dialects of a
Germanic language (not the Gallic language of the Celts) and they worshipped the
Northern, not the Roman or Celtic, gods. The war-oriented, Teutonic lifestyle had
become traditional amongst the tribes. They shared, according to Tacitus, a veneration
for the prophetic powers of women and a predilection for feasting and drinking. These
traditional features of Teutonic culture were transmitted to their descendants by the
Germans who settled in Britain. They were celebrated by Anglo-Saxons to such an
extent that we can find the ancient themes in literary works composed as late as the
tenth century A.D., long after the disappearance of a tribal society.

Various German peoples demonstrably retained features in common although
they were settled over a wide geographical area and long period of time, and nourished
their ‘barbarian’ culture despite the proximity of the Roman Empire. This lack of
change is useful to us when studying the early Germanic Immigrants, since their
illiteracy for a century and a half after settlement inevitably leaves a gap in the British
historical record, a gap that can be filled, at least partially, by written accounts from
outside observers (Tacitus’ Germania gives us many details of life amongst the
Germanic tribes, as do other classical texts)”. Clarification By: Ben Levic, February,
1996.

Figure 21: Ships Of This Type Used By Anglo-Saxon Invaders (Source: Angelcynn).

Another account from Angelcynn: “The Finnesburh Fragment”.

“This fragment is part of a long Anglo-Saxon poem, now lost. It recounts events
that took place in the early fifth century, when the Danish (Jutish) prince Hnaef'is on
a visit to his sister Hildeburh, who is married to Finn, ruler of the Frisians. He is
accompanied by sixty warriors, one of them Hengest. They are all attacked at night by
Finn’s men, and Hnaef and Hildeburh’s sons are killed......
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By great good fortune more of this story is preserved with a digression in
Beowulf, and from this we learn how Hengest took over the leadership of the Danes
(Jutes) after Hnaef's death, and served Finn (his leader’s slayer) throughout the bitter
winter, and in the spring took revenge.

The hero Hengest is almost certainly the same Hengest who became the first
Germanic king of Kent, so this poem is likely to have had a particular interest for an
Anglo-Saxon audience. Now we can only guess at the remainder of this poem.”
(Translated by Kevin Crossley-Holland):

....'the gables are not burning.’

Then the king, a novice in battle, said:

This is not dawn from the east, no dragon

flies here, the gables of the hall are not burning,
but men are making an attack. Birds of battle screech,
the grey wolf howls, spears rattle,

shield answers shaft. The wandering moon gleams
under the clouds; evil deeds will now

be done, bring grief to this people.

But rouse yourself now, my warriors!

Grasp your shields, steel yourself,

fight at the front and be brave!’

Then many a thegn, laden in gold, buckled his sword-belt.
Then the stout warriors, Sigeferth and Eaha,

went to one door and unsheathed their swords;
Ordlaf and Guthlaf went to guard the other,

and Hengest himself followed in their footsteps.
When he saw this Guthere said to Garulf

that he would be unwise to go to the hall doors

in the first rush, risking his precious life,

for fearless Sigeferth was set upon his death.

But that daring man drowned the other voices

and demanded openly who held the door.

1 am Sigeferth, prince of the Secgan

and a well-known warrior; I've braved many trials,
tough combats. Even now it is decreed

for you what you can expect of me here.’

Then the din of battle broke out in the hall;

the hollow shield called for men’s hands,

helmets burst; the hall floor boomed.

Then Garulf, son of Guthlaf, gave his life

in the fight, first of all the warriors

living in that land, and many heroes fell around him,
the corpses of brave men. The raven wheeled,
dusky, dark brown. The gleaming swords so shone
it seemed as if all Finnesburh were in flames.

I have never heard of sixty warriors

who bore themselves more bravely in the fight

and never did retainers better repay

glowing mead than those repaid Hnaef.

They fought for five days and not one of the followers
fell, but they held the doors firmly.

Then Guthere withdrew, a wounded man;

he said that his armour was almost useless,

his corselet broken, his helmet burst open.
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The guardian of those people asked him at once
how well the warriors had survived their wounds
or which of the young men”......... (From Angelcynn By:

Ben Levick). _ : ; =
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Figure 22: Map Of
Anglo-Saxon England
(Source: Internet -
www. Georgetown.edu).
Author’s Note: Lynn’s 69t legen: eat grandfather’s name was Finn. Since m
69th legend eat grandfather lived hundreds of years before the Finn represented

in the poem it is doubtful if it is the same legendary character, but again timelines in
mythology have a tendency to blend from time period to time period, The Finn in this
account could have been the same as the one in Reynolds’ line.

450 Years AD: “Rome refuses to pay further tribute to the Huns, so the Huns invade
Italy and Gaul.”

About 450 years AD: Dark Ages and Feudalism in Europe begins (450-1000 AD).

“The period after the fall of Rome in western Europe was know as the Dark
Ages. Rome had brought the region efficient channels of communication, stable
government, a uniform currency, schools, libraries, and a common language. The
nomadic invaders, who often could neither read nor write, pillaged the libraries.
Disputes among petty chiefs made trade difficult, and barter replaced a money
economy. Towns and cities fell into decline, and the roads between them were rutted
and overgrown. Even the fields were neglected. The arts of the ancient Greeks and
Romans were all but forgotten.

In the absence of strong states, feudalism prevailed in medieval Europe.
Feudalism emerged as a response to common problems, such as danger from foreign
invaders and greed, neighbors, the lack of money or trade, and the need to cultivate
the land. Feudal states were small, ruled by a lord who joined with a group of knights
and small farmers for mutual advantage. The lord and knights offered protection, and
the farmers produced food and clothing. Each unit was self-sufficient, trading little
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with the outside world. Many of the common folk lived their entire lives without
venturing more than a few miles beyond their homes. Most were serfs, who were
bound to their land. They were not slaves, but they owed the land of the manor a
certain amount of work each year and a proportion of their own crops. The feudal
knights were preeminently fighting men. Each was equipped with armor, helmet,
sword, and shield; the horses also wore armor.

The ‘darkness’ of the early middle ages, however, is only part of the story of that
era. Throughout Europe remnants of Roman architecture survived — here a stone
aqueduct, there an ampitheater. Amid such remnants of ancient splendor, some of
Rome’s conquerors felt uneasy, measuring themselves against the civilization that had
preceded them. In various ways the new peoples were influenced by the very society
they had destroyed. The languages of western Europe were shaped by Latin and, to a
lesser degree, Greek. In some regions Roman law was still used, often alongside tribal
laws. Christian missionaries converted the immigrants to their faith, and Christian
monasteries preserved remnants of Greek and Roman literature. In time the more
ambitious medieval lords would assemble followers, wage war, and carve out larger
kingdoms. Often these kingdoms fell apart with the death of their founder. But in the
long run, this ebb and flow would move in the direction of consolidation. With the
bigger states would come a renewal of trade and the rebirth of culture.” (Courtesy of
Microsoft’s “Encarta”)

453 Years AD: “Attila, the Hun, dies.”

455 Years AD: “Hengest and Horsa fought with Wurtgern the King at Aylesford. Horsa
was killed. Hengest becomes ruler of the kingdom.”

457 Years AD: “Hengest and his son Esc fought with the Britons at Crayford. Four
thousand men died. The Britons fled from Kent to London.”

458 Years AD: “British leader Aurelianus Ambrosius forces partial Saxon retreat.”

About 460 Years AD: Rognvald “The Mountain High Man”, Lynn’s 36" great grandfather.
“Rognvald” is the first of the names which represent an accepted spelling form of the
name “Reynolds”. He was the King of Westfold. His integrity was about all of his subjects
and better than the other kings that preceded him, thus his nickname, “The Mountain
High Man”. He had a son named Chocilaicus, who some claim was the first King of
Denmark. The story found about Rognvald is as follows:

“Rognvald was the name of Olaf's son who was King of Westfold after his father. He
was called ‘Mountain-High’, and Thjodolf of Hvina composed for the ‘Ynglinga-tal’, in
which he says: --“

“Under the heaven’s blue dome, a name
I never knew more true to fame

Than Rognvald bore; whose skillful hand
Could tame the scorners of the land, --
Rognvald, who knew so well to guide

The wild sea-horses through the tide:
The ‘Mountain-high’ was the proud name
By which the king was known to fame.”

465 Years AD: “Hengest and Esc fought against the Welsh at Wippedfleet, where 12
Welsh leaders were killed.”
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473 Years AD: “Hengest and Esc fought against the Welsh and took immense booty.”

477 Years AD: “Ella came to Briton with his three sons, Cymen, Wlenking, and Cissa,
in three ships; landing at Cymenshore. They fought against the Welsh, driving them
into the forest called Andred’sley.”

480 Years AD: “Burgundy area of France invaded by the Burgundii, a tribe from
Savoy.”

488 Years AD: “Esc succeeded to the King of Kent, after his father Hengest, a title he
held for the next 24 years.”

495 Years AD: “According to the Anglo-Saxon Chronicles, two princes, Cerdic and
Cynric his son, came to Britain with five ships, arriving at the place which is called
Cerdicesora, and the same day they fought against the Welsh. Legend suggests
exploits by British King Arthur, who fought Anglo-Saxons in Britain. Arthur is known
at the time by the name Artorius. Arthur appears to have defeated the Anglo-Saxons
at the Battle of Badon, or Mount Badon. This battle halted Anglo-Saxon advance in
Britain for about 100 years. (Account By: Richard R.Orsinger).”

The Anglo-Saxon Chronicles Account: “This year came two leaders into Britain, Cerdic
and Cynric his son, with five ships, at a place that is called Cerdic’s-ore. And they
fought with the Welsh the same day. Then he died, and his son Cynric succeeded to
the government , and held it six and twenty winters. Then he died; and Ceawlin, his
son, succeeded, who reigned seventeen years. Then he died; and Ceol succeeded to
the government, and reigned five years. When he died, Ceolwulf, his brother,
succeeded, and reigned seventeen years. Their kin goeth to Cerdic. Then succeeded
Cynebils, Ceolwulf’s brother’s son, to the kingdom; and reigned one and thirty winters.
And, he first of West-Saxon kings, received baptism. Then succeeded Cenwall, who
was the son of Cynegils, and reigned one and thirty winters. Then held Sexbura, his
Queen, the government one year after him. Then he succeeded Escwine to the
kingdom, whose kin goeth to Cerdic, and held it two years. Then succeeded Centwine,
the son of Cynegils, to the kingdom of the West-Saxons, and reigned nine years. Then
succeeded Ceadwall to the government, whose kin goeth to Cerdic, and held it three
years. Then succeeded Ina to the kingdom of the West-Saxons, whose kin goeth to
Cerdic, and reigned thirty-seven winters. Then succeeded Ethelheard, whose kin
goeth to Cerdic, and reigned sixteen years. Then succeeded Cuthred, whose kin goeth
to Cerdic, and reigned sixteen winters. Then succeeded Sigebriht, whose kin goeth to
Cerdic, and reigned one year. Then succeeded Cynwulf, whose kin goeth to Cerdic,
and reigned one and thirty winters. Then succeeded Brihtric, whose kin goeth to
Cerdic, and reigned sixteen years. Then succeeded Egbert to the kingdom, and held it
seven and thirty winters, and seven months. Then succeeded Ethelwulf, his son, and
reigned eighteen years and a half. Ethelwuld was the son of Egbert, Egbert of
Ealmund, Ealmund of Eafa, Eafa of Eoppa, Eoppa of Ingild, Ingild of Cenred (Ina of
Cenred, Cuthburga of Cenred, and Cwenburga of Cenred), Cenred of Ceolwald,
Ceolwald of Cuthwulf, Cuthwulf of Cuthwine, Cuthwine of Celm, Celm of Cynric,
Cynric of Creoda, Creoda of Cerdic. Then succeeded Ethelbald, the son of Ethelwulf,
to the kingdom, and held it five years. Then succeeded Ethelbert, his brother, and
reigned five years. Then succeeded Ethelred, his brother, to the kingdom, and held it
five years. Then succeeded Alfred, their brother, to the government. And then had
elapsed of his age three and twenty winters, and three hundred and ninety-six winters
from the time when his kindred first gained the land of Wessex from the Welsh. And
he held the kingdom a year and a half less than thirty winters. Then succeeded
Edward, the son of Alfred, and reigned twenty-four winters. When he died, then
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succeeded Athelstan, his son, and reigned fourteen years and seven weeks and three
days. Then succeeded Edmund, his brother, and reigned six years and a half, wanting
two nights. Then succeeded Edred, his brother, and reigned nine years and six weeks.
Then succeeded Edwy, the son of Edmund, and reigned three years and thirty-six
weeks, wanting two days. When he died, then succeeded Edgar, his brother, and
reigned sixteen years and eight weeks and two nights. When he died, then succeeded
Edward, the son of Edgar, and reigned — “

Author’s Note: Most of the characters mentioned in these accounts from the Anglo-
Saxon Chronicles are relatives of the same blood line, all of them descending from

Odin, via his son Wecta, Lynn’s 65t great uncle.

About 500 Years AD: The Indians of North American have developed techniques
to concentrate maple sap. Certainly, by this date the Native Americans have
learned that concentrated maple sap increases the sweetness, and thicker syrup
does not ferment and spoil as rapidly. Probably boiling was accomplished by
placing red hot rocks from the fire into a log vessel containing maple sap at some
degree of concentration. Maple syrup is discovered.

501 Years AD: “Porta, and his two sons, Beda and Mela, came to Britain at
Portsmouth.”

511 Years AD: “Clovis I, King of the Franks, died. He began his reign with only a
small domain under his control. At his death, the Franks controlled much of modern
France. A key event in the life of Clovis occurred in 496 when he was losing a battle
against a rival Germanic tribe. On the verge of defeat, he called on the Christian God
for assistance, even though he was then a pagan. The Franks won the battle, and
Clovis and his army were baptized. The conversion had political as well as religious
repercussions because it marked the beginning of a close relationship between the
Frankish monarchy and papal Rome.”

519 Years AD: “Cerdic and Cynric assumed the Government of the West-Saxons.
Children of West-Saxon Kings have reigned from this date.”

530 Years AD: “Cerdic and Cynric conquered the Isle of Wight.”

About 530 Years AD: Chocilaicus, Lynn’s 35% great grandfather, acceded to the King of
Westfold, after his father, Rognvald died. Chocilaicus was an incredible warrior, going on
many raids on neighboring territories. He was still a young man when he plundered
Sealand in Denmark. His attack on Sealand (probably present day Copenhagen) was
such a stunning success, Chocilaicus kept the invasion going until he had conquered all of
that day Denmark (Called Jutland). Denmark had known kings for several hundreds of
years and it was probably the fact that Chocilaicus invaded and conquered and became
king, that he was considered by many to be the first King of Denmark, but was not the
first Danish King in this family line. He certainly was the first King of Denmark of
Swedish descent, in the Reynolds family line, and the first since the days of the infamous
Heremod, Lynn’s 75" great grandfather. Chocilaicus was a great King. He established
much in the way of laws on how his people would be treated.

Since Chocilaicus was now in Denmark, he turned over the kingdom of Westfold
to his younger brother, Inael. Inael also was a good king and passed the kingdom of
Westfold on to his son, Roag. Chocilaicus married Skalgi, Lynn’s 35 great grandmother.
They had a son, Ragnalbard, who ascended to be King of Denmark, upon his father’s
death. The most significant note concerning the life of Chocilaicus was his ability to have
the lands cleared so that farming could proceed at a very rapid rate. His people benefited
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greatly from.this, and they prospered as farmers and timber people as a result of the
cutting. Chocilaicus had a good life and died from old age. Many future Kings of
Denmark descended from Chocilaicus. In fact some of the most notorious Vikings of the
Jfuture would be descendants of Chocilaicus. The “Beowulf” poem mentions “Chocilaicus
as one who was a valiant warrior and plundered in a great many lands”.

530 Years Ad: “Cerdic and Cynric took the Isle of Wight.”

532 Years AD: “Cerdic, the first King of the West Saxons, accedes to the throne of
Wessex.”

533 Years AD: “The Vandal culture ends due to defeat of the Vandals by Bryzantine’s
Belisarius.”

534 Years AD: “Cerdic, the first King of the West-Saxons died. Cynric, his son
succeeded to the government, and reigned 26 years.”

534 Years AD: “The Franks conquered Burgundy.”

536 Years AD: “Bryzantine’s Belisarius recaptures Naples and Rome from the
Ostrogoths.”

538 Years AD: “There was an eclipse of the sun.”

543 Years Ad: “Ostrogoths capture Naples.”

546 Years AD: “Ostrogoths capture Rome.”

547 Years AD: “Bryzantines recapture Rome from the Ostrogoths.”

Ida began his reign as King of the Northumbrians. Ina was a distant cousin of Lynn, as
he descended from Odin, via Baeldaeg, Lynn’s 65" grand uncle.

550 Years AD: “Rome again falls to the Ostrogoths.”

552 Years AD: “Roman Emperor Justinian I defeats the Ostrogoths, kills their leaders.
The Ostrogoths culture ceased to exist.”

Ethelbert, son of Ermenric, was born, and was the first of all Kings of Britain to be
baptized. Ethelbert, descended from Odin, via Wecta, Lynn’s 65" grand uncle.

560 Years AD: Ceawlin acceded to King of the West-Saxons, and Ella, on the death of
Ida, acceded to King of Northumberland. Both descended from Odin, via Baeldaeg,
Lynn’s 65t grand uncle.

568 Years AD: “Ceawlin and Cutha, brother of Ceawlin, battle and drive Ethelbert into
Kent.”

571 Years AD: “Cuthulf conquered and took cities Gloucester, Cirencester, and Bath
from the Britons.”

583 Years AD: “Mauricius succeeded to Roman Emperor.”

584 Years AD: “Ceawlin and Cutha battle the Britons. Cutha is killed.”
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588 Years AD: “King of Northumberland, Ella died.”

591 Years AD: “Ceawlin is driven from his kingdom, replaced by Ceolric.”
592 Years AD: “Gregory succeeded to Pope in Rome.”

593 Years AD: “Ceawlin died.”

Ethelfrith, son of Ethelric, son of Ida, became King of Northumberland (all distant
cousins of Lynn).

596 Years AD: “Pope Gregory sent Augustine, along with many monks, to preach the
word of God to the English people.”

597 Years AD: “Ceolwulf became King of the West-Saxons.” Ceolwulf was a distant
cousin of Lynn. He descended from Odin, via Baeldaeg, Lynn’s 65t grand uncle.

About 600 Years AD: “Ragnalbard, Lynn’s 34th great grandfather acceded to the throne
of Denmark (Jutland), as a result of the death of his father Chocilaicus. Ragnalbard
married Berthelia, Lynn’s 34th great grandmother, daughter of Ener, a king of a kingdom
in Northern Franks. Ragnalbard and Berthelia supposedly had 12 sons by legend.
Ragnalbard was said to have had the power to talk directly to Odin. The legend goes that
Odin told Ragnaibard to build 11 ships for his sons except his eldest, Ongendus who
shall remain in Denmark, to rule that country after Ragnalbard’s death. The other eleven
sons were to each sail in a ship to become king of the ‘Eleven Kingdoms Of The World’.
We know they had two sons, Ongendus, who did accede to the king of Denmark, and
Radbard, Lynn’s 334 great grandfather, became king of a kingdom (Ladoga), in Russia.
Ragnalbard was the father of Ongendus, who was father of Sigifrid I, who was father of
Harald I, all kings of Denmark. The kings of Denmark were descendants of Ragnalbard
for several generations to come. Ragnalbard was a good king, but was known for his
plundering visits to his neighboring kingdoms. He was not much of a sailor, thus
conguering excursions were mostly by land. He gained considerable wealth as a result of
his father’s clearing so much of land, thus farming was a prosperous venture in that day
in Denmark. Ragnalbard, will probably be remembered in the Reynolds line as the last
king for several generations that did not depend on sailing for his existence. The real
irony of this is because his descendants were to becomne some of the most ruthless,
notorious, and brutal VIKINGS, known to mankind. And they would depend on the sea
as a way of life.

As the legend tells, Ragnalbard was told by Odin that he should watch over his
eleven sons as they sailed out over the world. Odin knew that Ragnalbard dreaded the
sea. So Odin told Ragnalbard that when he was of old age and would die, that his people
should carry his body down to the boat ramp, lay it on the ramp, and cover it with wood
to burn. He was told that his people should withdraw and that Odin would light the fire
himself. Then when Ragnalbard’s ashes blew out over the waters, Odin would sail by his
side to watch over his sons. On the day this happened, all was done according to
instructions. Then a bolt of lightning struck, the fire burned, the wind came up and
Ragnalbard’s ashes blew out over the sea to be accompanied by Odin.
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i ut: Voung Trees

A young tree standing
Slim and still

s a tall green flower
O a quiet hill

A young tree bending
Along a lane

JJs a green flame blowing
Jn wind and eain.

A young tree growing
Jn any weather

J3Y a silver barn

e an emerald feather

YNy heart grows breathless
When J pass by

A young tree roaching
Toward a golden sky.

Or strotehing upward,
Jerave and proud,

70 toss its branches
Agninst a eloud.

JBy Frances _Frost
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Zime Caut: “Tapping Trees” By Joe Grape
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CHAPTER 7

THE DAWN OF THE VIKING DAY
(THEY SPREAD OUT)

Radbard - Lynn’s 33 Great Grandfather - King of Ladoga, Russia
Radbardsson - 32 - King of Ladoga, Russia

Randver Radbardsson - 31+t - King of Ladoga, Russia/Iceland
Sylcessia - Lynn’s 31+t Great Grandmother - Queen Of Iceland

Sigurd Ring - 30t - Eing of Iceland
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Author’s Note: The day of the Vikings started about 700 AD. Certainly the times
were full of attack, and they plundered, raped, practiced theft, conquered, and ruled
but up to this time these attacks were rather local in the “Scandinavian Kingdoms”.
The battles were over territory, women, and ego. But for the next few hundred years,

the Viking profession became a business. The attacks were to find new lands, provide
riches upron which to make their lives better, and to infiltrate those lands for the

purpose of conquering, and ruling. The Reynolds family was heavily involved in this
business. Eut before we can condemn the practices of these Scandinavian people, we
must understand what they were like. The definitions, background, and
understanding, is best described by “Regia Anglorum Publications” Online. The

following are some of their descriptions:

“Who Were the Vikings?: Whilst the term’ Vikings’ is used throughout these pages, it
is a generic term used to mean anyone of Scandinavian descent. The word Viking has

several meanings. The most usual being a ‘pirate’, and as such it could be equally well
applied to any seagoing raider, even a Saxon, Frankish or Frisian one! The other
common translation is ‘a man of the bays or inlets’ and in this sense it is generally
applied to the Scandinavians.

The term Viking covers the Norse (Norwegians), Danes, Svear (Swedes), Rus
(Russian Vikings), Anglo-Danes, Anglo-Norse, Hiberno-Norse, Icelanders, and
Greenlanders.

As there are such a wide variety of Vikings, many of the following articles only
deal with them in very general terms. To confuse matters further, most Vikings would
adopt many of the local customs, fashions and social structures of the areas they
settled in so, for example, an Anglo-Dane would not look the same as, or act
identically to a native Dane.

Vikings! The word conjures up images of wild, barbaric, seafaring men, intent
on setting their mark on their less warlike neighbours with fire and sword. From the
land of ice and giants, they swept across Europe like a forest fire raping, pillaging and
destroying all in their path. Sound familiar? It should do, it’s the image that the
writers of the time recorded.

It is inescapable that in a bloodthirsty age they were more bloodthirsty than
most, but the mask of enduring ferocity slips a little when you consider that the people
that did the writing were those that stood between the Vikings and their silver - the
clerical staff of churches and abbeys.

Let us look briefly at the roots and achievements of the Viking Age:

Ships: When the ancestors of the Vikings reached the end of their long
migration from - probably - the Indus valley, they ran into a real problem. The sea.
They were a nomadic people from an area with few areas of open water and certainly
with no seaboard. Yet, within a few generations, they seem to have invented more or
less from scratch a design of hull that became common throughout Europe for several
centuries. It is possible to follow a line of development through previous boat designs
found on the European west coast, but around the beginning of the seventh century
after Christ, some northern genius invented the long narrow hull that became known
as the Longship.

Construction: Long, lean and above all flexible, the hulls were usually of oak
planks that had been split from felled trucks. With axe and daze, the planks were
trimmed to shape then riveted together with iron nails. At the junction of the planks,
a thin rope of twisted hair soaked in pitch (boiled pine tree sap) was trapped. This
acted as a flexible waterproofing membrane. The hulls were built first, the distortion of
the planks leading to the upwards curvature of the bow and stern. It was soon found
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that this type of hull was very seaworthy and this aspect of the design was exaggerated
to create the soaring curve that became such a characteristic of the shape of Northern
vessels. When the hull was finished, the ribs were tied in with the thin fibrous roots of
the Larch tree. At sea, the hulls were watertight and because of their flexible nature,
would often twist and bend where a more solid structure might break.

Uses: At first, they were only used as rowing boats, but within a hundred
years, ships were being built that were obviously intended as sailing ships. With their
square sail and single mast, they could largely only sail downwind, but there is good
evidence from ship replicas that they could sail across the wind to some extent.

Oars were mostly used for times when the wind did not suit the purposes of the
ship master and for maneuvering in port. However, it was quite possible with a big
crew to maintain a steady pace and to cross the North Sea under oars alone was not
particularly unusual for raiding ships.

It is important to understand that there were many different types of ships.
There were small rowing boats that might be handled by a couple of men each pulling
two oars each. There were trading vessels which 1 had a fixed mast and only four oar
ports in their fifty foot length. There were the great Drakkars, the warships that were
over a hundred feet long and had crews of more than a hundred men. There were
Karvs, a sort of multi-purpose ship that could trade and/or raid and it is one of these
ships that was found at the end of the last century at Gokstad in Norway. The find
gave birth to many replicas, based upon this well-preserved hull. In the closing years
of the nineteenth century, the first of these was sailed across the Atlantic to the
World’s Fair in Chicago. I understand that the hull is still to be seen by the shore of
Lake Michigan and is itself one of the oldest ships on the North American continent!

During this century, several other ship finds have been made, adding to our
knowledge of this fascinating type of vessel. The importance of the ship to the
Scandinavians of a thousand years ago cannot be overstated. Truly, without them,
there would have been no Viking age and Europe would be a very different place today.

Abroad. Trading: The mobility of their shallow draft vessels allowed the
Vikings to travel far up the rivers which flow into the seas surrounding the European
continent. The Swedes seem to have specialized in trading down the river systems
from the Baltic into central Europe and so to Constantinople. They called the place
‘Miklagard’ literally The Great City’. From this trade route, luxury goods like silk and
spices were brought north and sold in specialist trading communities like Birka and
Hedeby.

Norwegian and Danish Vikings tended to look more to the west. They traded
and raided around the western seaboard of Europe and its islands. It was these
people who explored and settled Iceland, Greenland and finally, North America. There
is now no doubt that there was a Viking settlement in Labrador. However, this
represented the limit of reach of their settlements and it is unlikely that they stayed
there long, possibly only a few years. It is my opinion that when Leif Erikson went to
North America, he did so knowing that it was there. It was likely that the expedition
went there for wood more than from the pure spirit of exploration. There are records
of other visits to America, some of whom never returned. Sailing the North Atlantic in
an open boat - however seaworthy - is a dangerous business and it is more than likely
that those who never returned were simply lost at sea. It is fun to speculate, though,
on the report that Cortez brought back. He said he was initially welcomed by the
inhabitants of South America as a representative of those pale-skinned seafarers who
had visited that part of the world centuries before........

Raiding: It must have seemed like a continuing nightmare to the largely
peaceful settlements around the coasts of Europe and its islands. Suddenly, in the
closing years of the eighth century, the Viking raids began. They often came in on the
morning sea mists, their shallow-draft vessels creeping quietly through the reeds of
the river mouths or sliding silently up on sandy beaches. Quickly, the raiding party
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would assemble and work its way inland. Their early targets were the churches and
monasteries, looking for silver, gold and slaves. Soon, these were depleted and the
riders attention turned to the more mundane victims of farm and village. As the years
slipped by, so the sea raiders came more and more often. Sometimes, they would stay
over-winter and gradually the raids turned into settlements. At one time, most of
England was under the Viking heel and they called this part of the country the
Danelaw.

The turning point came when Alfred the Great beat Guthrum in a straight fight,
and forced him and his important men to become Christians. After that, every year
saw first Alfred and then his kin pushing the Danish invaders further and further
north. They did this steadily, setting up Burhs or fortified towns. (One example of this
. as place name evidence is Middlesborough.) Eventually, in the reign of Aethelstan, the
whole of Britain came under his kingship.

Around the turn of the millennium there followed a period of state-organized
invasion. Hundreds of ships would turn up regularly each year with thousands of
men. They were intent upon making Britain politically part of Scandinavia and they
could only be bought off with ever increasing sums of Danegeld, as it became known.
20,000 pounds of weight of silver was a not unusual sum and it proved a crippling
load on the economy of the English state.

Eventually, in 1016, the English Witan turned to Cnut, King of Denmark and
asked him to become King of Ingland. He proved to be a good king and spent much of
his early reign settling the affairs of ravaged parts of the kingdom and re-settling them.
For instance, there is some evidence that he spent a whole year in the Isle of Wight,
setting things to rights there.

Substantially, the reign of Cnut (or Canute) represented the end of Viking
military incursions into England, although there were sporadic raids around the coast
for some time. The last great fete of Scandinavian arms in this country was in 1066,
when King Harold Godwinsson, last Saxon king of the English, brought King Harald
Hardrada of Norway to open battle at Stamford Bridge near York. In a decisive victory,
King Harold broke the power of the Scandinavian kings to wage overseas war on a
large scale. It was the final major Viking raid.

At Home. The Law: For a people who were so careless of the rights of the folk
they fought against, the Vikings were surprisingly organized and careful of their rights
at home. There was a strict system of law, enforced by the people that lived under it.
Regular meetings, - called Things or Althings - were held at which the Law was read
aloud. (This custom survives to this day in the Manx Tynwald). At these meetings,
cases were judged and punishments imposed by a council of important men who were
changed from time to time. Every free man or woman had the right to speak at an
Althing, and women were generally held to be the equal of men under the law. Women
retained their rights to manage their own money and property after marriage and could
obtain a divorce with the same ease - or difficulty - as a man. Women only became
second-class citizens after the imposition of Norman Law!

Eating and Drinking: The Vikings ate a wide range of foodstuffs, but there are
no real surprises. Beef, mutton, pért and venison were common meats, and
communities close to the coast could expect to widen their diets with fish and
shellfish. A heavy bread made from barley flour was common, but there is evidence
that at least some people had wheaten bread available to them. It was often the
custom to eat gruel - a porridge augmented by scraps of meat as a morning meal.
Boiled meat was much more common than roasted, something which was normally
only eaten during ceremonies. Boiled sausages (they called them ‘cauldron snakes)
were a special delicacy. Other sought after foodstuffs were sun-dried cod, ling and
pork that had been preserved in whey, then boiled to rags in its juice. Yuk!/

It is reasonable to assume that rich folk ate better than poor, but their range of
foodstuffs would not have been very different.
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Housing: Their houses were constructed of wood and/or stone. They were
long lived structures and - barring accidents - might last at least 150 years with
normal maintenance. The traditional Longhouse would have been a dark, smoky place
in which to live and work, but there is emerging evidence that the Vikings often used
two story buildings with balconies on the upper floor, much as might be seen in rural
Scandinavia to this day. The roofs were thatched, turved or covered in slates or
shingles, depending on available local resources.

To Sum Up: The Vikings were a proud, honorable, law-abiding people who
valued warfare and personal reputation (they called it ‘word fame’) above almost
anything else. In the latter years of the Viking Age, they became involved in their own
myth, starting such organizations as the Jhomsvikings.

They brought the seafaring ship to Europe and, by their constant depredations,
spread its use far and wide. In only 250 years, they set their mark on the law and
language of many countries and made many European communities see themselves in
the light of a nation state for the first time. In terms of human history, if you blinked,
you would have missed them! But the image the Vikings promoted of the brave, hardy
individualist, unafraid of the world in all its forms, remains with us all as an example
of how a man should conduct himself in adversity — - “

“Wealth dies, kinsmen die. Cattle die and the wheat, too. But
this thing never dies: word-fame! Never dies for he that achieves it well”

“Viking Social Organization: Viking social structure conformed to the Indo-European
pattern by dividing people into classes; the rulers, the free and the unfree. This
situation prevailed through the Vendel and Viking periods and was only significantly
altered in the 11t century with the advent of unified kingdoms in the Scandinavian
homelands.

Lowest in the social order the thralls (male-thrall; female-ambatf) or slaves.
Whilst the main recruiting grounds for slaves were war, piracy and trade, their
numbers also included those born into slavery and various criminals. A man who
failed to discharge his debts could become the slave of his creditor until he redeemed
his debt. Thralls had few rights and could hold no land, so instead of being fined for
lawbreaking they were beaten, maimed or killed. However, a thrall did have some
advantages over the freeman as the following laws show:

‘Now a freeman and a slave who commit theft together, it is the freeman who is
a thief and the slave shall not lose by it, for the man who steals with another man’s
slave steals by himself.’

‘A slave has greater rights than a freeman in one matter. A slave has the right
to kill on account of his wife even though she is a bondmaid, but a freeman has not
the right to kill on account of a bondmaid, even though she is his woman.’

Despite these advantages, the slave was still only considered chattel, as shown
by other laws:

If a man’s slave is killed, then no levelling oath need be sworn for any more
than for any other cattle belonging to a man, should that be killed.’

If a master kills his own slave, he is not liable before the law unless he kills
him during legally ordained festivals or in Lent, then the penalty is banishment.’

‘Although thralls legally commanded no weregild it was normal in England to
pay the owner the price of eight cows if you killed his thrall; in Iceland the equivalent
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was eight ounces of silver; in Scandinavia the killer must make Testitution according
to the value set on him (the slave) naked.’

Although unable to hold land a thrail could have possessions, money, and time
to do work for himself. Slaves were permitted to do business at public markets and to
make private transactions if the value involved was less than one ortug (1/3 ounce of
silver, 20 pence). In favorable circumstances he might hope to purchase, earn or be
rewarded with his freedom. Marriage was permitted but the children would also be
slaves. Ill treatment of thralls was regarded as an undesirable quality and most
masters appear to have treated their slaves quite well. A slave was not allowed to bear
arms except in the case of fighting off invaders; and the slave who killed such an
enemy was to be rewarded with his freedom.

As the Viking Age wore on, and the influence of Christianity grew stronger,
slavery became less common, especially with slaves of the same nationality or religion.
Once released the freedman (leysingi) was still not entirely free; he was still dependent
on his former owner and family for a number of generations and could not institute
legal proceeding against him. He needed a patron to protect his new found freedom
land, and often looked to his former master to champion him. He could however gain
full freedom by buying it with a larger payment than would otherwise be required.
Alfred’s treaty with Guthrum at Wedmore (886 AD) set the wergeld of a Danish
freedman equal to that of a Saxon gebur at two hundred shillings.

Above the freedman were the bondi and karls, the truly free land holding
farmers. This class was a very broad one ranging from impoverished peasants to men
of wealth and local authority. Whilst they could be sailors, hunters, traders or raiders
they were still fundamentally farmers, even if absence and large holdings meant they
required the labor of other men, both free and thrall. Their wergeld at Wedmore was
set as the same as English nobility, eight half-marks of pure gold.

Although in theory a bondi had a farm of his own, in practice most young men
had to live with their parents, or farm the lands of a large landholder. Such men still
retained their status.

‘These were the men who tilled land and raised stock, bore witness and
produced verdicts, said aye or no on matters of public concern at the Thing (including
matters as important as the election of a king or a change of religion), attended
religious and lay ceremonies, made and bore weapons, manned ships, served in levies,
were ‘conscious of their dues and worth, and so impressed these upon others that as a
free peasantry they stood in a class of their own in Europe.’

One stage above the bondi were those landowners with hereditary rights to
their land. In Orkney, Shetland and the Western Isles these were known as
odalsbondi, in Norway as hauldr, and in England as holdas. Odal rights were fiercely
maintained as they distinguished a family claim, and could not be usurped by jarls or
even the crown (in Scotland odal rights survived into the eighteenth century!). The
wergeld for a Holdas was established in English courts as half that for an eolderman.

The upper levels of Viking society were comprised of the various forms of
aristocracy and the kings. The lowest rank of rulers were the landsmenn (roughly
equivalent to the later medieval baron’), known as styraesmen in Denmark. Originally
the individual ship commanders, the later qualification for this rank was the ability to
field and maintain forty armed men in the levy. The position was not hereditary and
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was gained through an oath of loyalty to the King, on whose behalf they held their
authority. In Norway their ‘manbote’ (wergeld) was fixed at six full marks of silver.

More frequently encountered is the title of jarl, a semi or fully independent
lordship. As with the bondi some held lands by odal right of inheritance, others
ruthlessly fought their way to power. In the early period there is little clear difference
between powerful jarls, and the many kings who flourished in Denmark and Norway.
Later, in the eleventh century, under kings such as Harald Hardrada, the power-
broking jarls were crushed. The Viking captain with his fleet and hiro was a thing of
the past. The new chieftains were landed men who wished for stability and peace,
members of a bondi aristocracy who supported centralized kingship. In the century
after Harald Fairhair, no Norwegian king died peacefully in his bed or was succeeded
by his son. Magnus become King in 1035 at the invitation of the people and came to
peace with his uncle Hardrada. Hardrada’s death in 1066 was not the fault of his
subjects, and his sons, grandson and great-grandsons all succeeded him in due order.
The power and organizational abilities of the Christian Church also aided the king, to
their mutual benefit.

This influence increased throughout the eleventh century. As power
centralized the royal estates were left in charge of stewards, bryti, who formed a layer
of local authority balancing that of the local landsmenn.

The Danelaw: Although under Scandinavian influence the Danelaw was an
integral part of the English kingdom. Like the rest of England it was divided into
shires, some massive like Yorkshire and Lincolnshire, others far smaller. The larger
shires were divided in ‘trithings’ (a Scandinavian word for thirds) which gives us our
modern ‘ridings’ in Yorkshire. The Midland shires and the shires of the south-east
Danelaw conformed to the usual English patterns, as did the East-Anglian divisions of
Norfolk and Suffolk.

Much of the Danelaw, like the rest of England, was further subdivided into
hundreds, and the basic fiscal and disciplinary business of the community passed
through the hundred courts. However, where Scandinavian influence was strongest,
such as Yorkshire and the Five Boroughs, the equivalent sub-division was the
wapentake. Despite the differences in nomenclature of the sub-divisions, the legal
system was much the same. Even in Scandinavia the legal system was not vastly
different to that in England. The only major differences were in religion and, as the
Danes were converted, even this difference grew less. This does not mean that the
laws were identical, however, as one of Edgar’s codes permitted the Danes to exercise
their rights ‘according to the good laws they can best decide on.’

The wapentakes were further subdivided into the Danish carucates, the land
that could be ploughed by one plough team in a year, and bovates, the amount of land
apportioned to a farmer contributing one ox to the eight-ox plough team. In
Nottinghamshire, Lincolnshire and Norfolk, traces of a further Scandinavian sub-
division are to be found - the manslot (allotment to one free settler). Hundreds were
still divided into hides.

It is not clear exactly how warriors were recruited for the Here (Army). Itis
likely that they may have been drawn on the ‘one man from several basic land units’ as
was done in Saxon areas.”

About 600 Years AD: The Native North American Indians improve on the tapping
techniques, by injuring limbs of maple trees to direct the flow of dripping sap into
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containers without interference from roots or other natural soil slope from the
tree trunk.

611 Years AD: “Cynegils, son of Ceol, succeeded to the government of Wessex.”
616 Years AD: “Ethelbert, King of Kent, died.”

634 Years AD: “Oswald, successor to King Edwin, King of Northumberland, destroys
British forces, in the last battle between the Britons and Saxons.”

642 Years AD: “Oswald is killed by Penda, King of Southumberland. Oswy, Oswald’s
brother succeeded to the government of Northumberland.”

643 Years AD: “Kenwal, son of Cynegils, succeeded to the Kingdom of the West
Saxons.”

About 650 Years AD: Radbard, Lynn’s 33™ great grandfather was born, son of
Ragnalbard and Berthelia.

670 Years AD: “Oswy, King of Northumberland, died.”

673 Years AD: “Egbert, King of Kent, died.”

About 675 Years AD: ‘Radbard, Lynn’s 33 great grandfather, set sail to the East from
Denmark. He sailed into the Gulf of Finland and up the river Neva to the huge Lake
Ladoga, and on to the mouth of the river Volkhov. Some miles up the Volkhov River, he
started a settlement called Aldeigjuborg, today known as Staraia (Old) Ladoga. He
declared himself King of Ladoga and King of Russia. He ruled his domain with valor and
integrity, serving his people well. He set forth the example as had been that of his father
in Denmark; to plunder, trade, settle, rule, and expand his kingdom. He and his son,
ruled over this domain for about the next 100 years.’

694 Years AD: “Wihtred, son of Egbert, succeeded to the King of Kent.”

About 700 Years AD: Radbardsson, Lynn’s 32 great grandfather, was born in Ladoga,
Russia.

About 700 Years AD: The Native North American Indians had created vessels for
collection of maple sap. These containers were called Mokuics, and were made out
of birch bark.

702 Years AD: “Kenred assumed the government of Southumbria.”

705 Years AD: “Ealdferth died, his son Osred acceeded to the King of Northumbria.”

716 Years AD: “Osred was slain. Cenred acceeded to the government of
Northumbria.”

718 Years AD: “Osric replaced Cenred as King of Northumbria.”

729 Years AD: “Osric died, Ceolwulf acceeded to King of Northumbria.”
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About 730 Years AD: ‘Radbard died, Radbardsson, Lynn’s 32" great grandfather,
acceeded to the King of Russia. As his father had done, Radbardsson, led his people in
expanding the Kingdom of Lodoga. His ability as a land clearer was extremely valuable,
as the need for trees for building ships, homes, and other necessities was increasing.
The population of Russia was growing, thus the need for agriculture was becoming more
important. As the trees disappeared, the need for raids and growing of food became a
Jfact of life for survival. Radbardsson showed great leadership in balancing plunder with
self sufficiency in food production. It was almost a time that you grew as much as you
could, and conducted raids for that which you could not produce. Radbardsson lived to
an old age of about 80 years old, and was a respected king, but handed his Kingdom
down to his son, Randver Radbardsson, because the mounting pressures required a
younger man.’

738 Years AD: “Eadbery succeeded to King of Northumberland.”

About 750 Years AD: Randver Radbardsson, Lynn’s 31 great grandfather, was born in
Ladoga, Russia.

765 Years AD: “Alred succeeded to the Kingdom of Northumberland.”

774 Years AD: “Alred is banished from Northumberland, Ethelred is chosen as King.”

778 Years AD: “Charlemagne, Lynn’s 33 great grandfather, invades Spain.”

About 780 AD: Radbardsson, Lynn’s 32 great grandfather died in Staraja, Ladoga,
Russia,

Image: Boevy Ross, after Sene Villam Hislsen
Figure 23: Depiction of a Viking ship (Source - Internet, created by Barry Ross).

About 780 Years AD: Randver Radbardsson, Lynn’s 31t great grandfather acceeded to
the King of Russia. Radbardsson, his father, passed the responsibility to a younger man
due to increasing pressures that took its toll. The crops had not been good. The
plundering of other domains was not producing enough to maintain their lives. And, as
settlements around Ladoga increased, more and more raids were made upon his own
people. Randver Radbardsson tried to increase his Viking raids. While he was on one of
these adventures, two brothers, who had settled and ruled Novgorad, raided and
plundered his empire. Many of the people of Ladoga were killed in defense of their
lands, and were eventually defeated. When Randver Radbardsson returned, he was
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repelled by the conquerors, and was forced to withdraw from Russia. After a short
refuge in Denmark with his cousins that ruled there, he set sail to Iceland. There he
settled a village on the southern shores and established a domain. Many of his people
escaped from Russia and joined him in Iceland. By increasing his raids onto the East
Coast of Britain, he was able to re-establish his dominance over his people and
eventually, they again returned him to his title of King, this time of Iceland. He was an
early settler on Iceland, where the access to lucrative Viking plundering against England
was available.

Randver Radbardsson married Sylcessia, Lynn’s 31st great grandmother. They
had two sons. One son, Sigurd Ring, Lynn’s 30t great grandfather succeeded as King of
Iceland from his father. The other son, was Ivar, Earl of the Uplands. Ivar’s descendants
moved into Normandy, France, and became the first Dukes of Normandy. The very first
Duke of Normandy was Ragnvold I, “The Wise”. Other Dukes included Rolf “The
Granger” Ragnvaldsson, Rollo Ragnvaldsson, William I Longsword, Richard I, Richard II,
Robert II, and eventually, William I “The Conguerer”, who invaded and became King of
England in 1066. The paths of William “The Conquerer” and his distant cousins,
Rainalds (Reynolds) would cross again during and after the ‘invasion’.

789 Years AD: “Anglo-Saxon sheriff killed by Vikings who land in Wessex. Viking
attacks are increasing in all areas of Britain.”

About 790 Years AD: Sigurd Ring, Lynn’s 30" great grandfather is born in Iceland.

793 Years AD: “Vikings attack monastic settlement of Lindisfarne. They stole gold,
jewels, sacred emblems, and captured many monks to force into slavery.”

794 Years AD: “Vikings sack the monastery of Jarrow.”
795 Years AD: “Vikings sack Iona.”

About 800 Years AD: Native North Americans improve on vessels for collection of
maple sap. A technique for holding the Mokuk off the ground, it was bound to an
injured limb, by a flexible willow to resist the wind from blowing the dripping sap
away from the container, during the drop’s long fall to the ground. This

was flexible enough to allow the container to be emptied. See sketch below:

ZTime (Jue: Always Finish

JJF a task is once begun
JVever leave it till it's done
JBe the labor great or small
Do it well or not at all.
Zhnkoown Author
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Figure 24: Depiction of willow stick securing mokuk (or other container)
to maple tree branch (Reynolds Sketch).

December 25, 800: Charlemagne was crowned Emperor of the Holy Roman Empire.
He was Lynn’s 33 great grandfather, by virtue of Rainald I of Gueldres’s, Lynn’s 16th
great grandfather, marriage to Plantagenet, Eleanor of Woodstock, Lynn’s 16t great
grandmother, in May of 1332. Eleanor, was the daughter of King Edward II, King of
England, Lynn’s 17t great grandfather and Isabella of France, Lynn’s 17t great
grandmother. Charlemagne was crowned Holy Roman Emperor by Pope Leo III. An
account by Microsoft’s Encarta is as follows:

“Charlemagne, King of the Franks, was crowned emperor of the Romans by Pope Leo
III on Christmas Day in 800. Although the Holy Roman Empire did not grow under
Charlemagne’s rule, many later kings used his life as a model. As a Germanic warrior,
Roman emperor and Christian, Charlemagne blended the three cultures into a mixture
which later became the basis for European civilization.”

811 Years AD: Randver Radbardsson died. His son Sigurd Ring, became King of
Iceland.

814 Years AD: Ragnar Lodbrock “The Great”, Lynn’s 29* great grandfather was born in
Iceland.

Zime Jus: Sugaring OIFf

7he wood smoke fills the hillside, Steapped fall to running trees.

and frageant breezes blow. J've come to know the pleasures,
7he sweetness from the sugarhouse, 7hat worldly people seoff.

hid deop in glistening snow. J long now for my homestend,
And silvery hanging branches, Then its’ time to sugar off.

all evackling in the breeze.
<Look down on wooden buckets, J3g Flatricin Dowling JRachard
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A Reynolds Migration Map.

According to mythology and legend, the mythological
genealogical line of the Reynolds family migrated from the
Upsal Domain to the Domain of Westfold; then on to Jutland
(Denmark); to Ladoga, Russia; to Iceland; then to Dublin,
Ireland; and then into Northumberland (a portion of today’s
northern England). In about 850, although continually
intertwined with mythology and legend, the names of Ragnar
Lodbrock, Ivar “The Boneless” Ragnarsson, Sitric (Sigtryggr)
Halfdansson, Guthfrith (Godfrid), King Godfrid Reynolds (King
of Northumberland in 940-944), and King Reynolds’
descendants, become part of the documented historical record.
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CHAPTER 8

THE REYNOLDS VIKING

(Famous Or Infamous King?)

Ragnar Lodbrock “The Great” - Lynn’s 29* Great Grandfather -
(Born 814 - Died 856) King Of The Uplands

Aslaug Sigursdottir - Lynn’s 29%* Great Grandmother - Queen Of The
Uplands

Children of Ragnar and Aslaug:

Ivarr “The Boneless” Ragnarsson - King of Dublin
Halfdan “White Shirt” Ragnarsson

Sigurd “Snake In The Eye” Ragnarsson

Bjorn “Ironside” Ragnarsson

Ragnhildir Ragnardottir

N b W N
Sl Sl A L
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Author’s Note: Ragnar Lodbrok, “The Great”, was significant because he was probably
the most well known Viking in the Reynolds family line. And even though he used
Iceland as his home base, he was well traveled over the entire Viking trading routes,
including Denmark, Norway, and Sweden. He was well liked, respected, and followed
by an enormous fleet of ships on his raids. By virtue of the widespread bases that he

held all over Scandinavia, and Iceland, later in England, he became known as “King Of
All The Uplands”. He planned and led some of the most bold and major invasions of
any Viking ever known. He was a warrior, and one feared by the masses.
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Figure 25: Viking Trading Routes About 800-1005 AD (Source: Internet - “Vikings Home Page”}

834 Years AD: Ragnar Lodbrock, “The Great”, Lynn’s 29 great grandfather married
Aslaug Sigurdsdottir, Lynn’s 29 great grandmeother, in Iceland. They had a family of
seven children. The real significance of their family was that Ivarr, their son, and Lynn’s
28% great grandfather, became the King of Dublin. The great granddaughter of Sigurd
Ragnarsson, their son, married Gluma, Jarl of Uplanders, from whom William I “The
Congueror”, King of England in 1066 (Lynn’s 23 great grandfather)descended. Ragnor
and Aslaug’s son, Ingiald Ragnarsson, became a king in Norway. Ingiald’s son was
Olaf “The Red” Ingialdsson, whose son was Eric “The Red”, who had a son Leif
Ericsson (Lynn’s 34 cousin, 27 times removed). Of course Leif Ericsson, of historical and
legend fame, founded a colony in Newfoundland in approximately 1000 AD. The
chronicles from Leif’s pilgrimage years on the North American coast has significance for
establishing certain facts about Native North American maple syrup production. This
will be covered later.

835 Years AD: Ivarr “The Boneless” Ragnarsson, Lynn’s 28t great grandfather, was
born in Iceland.
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835 Years AD: Vikings attack the Isle of Sheppey in Eastern England, led by Sigurd
Ring, Lynn’s 30t great grandfather. He was killed in the attack. Ragnar Lodbrack,
succeeds to the King of Iceland.

835 Years AD: Ragnar Lodbrock, led a revenge attack of the Isle of Sheppey, killing
thousands, taking many valuables, and captured hundreds of slaves. Ragnar took the
valuables and shared them with dll of those Sfamilies who had warriors killed while
attacking with his father. This became the trademark of Ragnar Lodbrock, and thus the
rewarding title of “The Great”.

840 Years AD: Ragnar Lodbrock led an invasion into Ireland. He conguered, established
rule, and invited settlement of Ireland.

841 Years AD: The Vikings establish Dublin. They declare Ragnar Lodbrock, King of
Dublin.,

844 Years AD: Ragnar Lodbrock, invades Seville, Spain. He was repelled, but captured
considerable valuables and slaves before withdrawing.

845 Years AD: Viking King, Ragnar Lodbrock, takes a fleet up the Seine River and lays
siege on Paris, France. The siege was most effective, receiving ransom in jewels, gold,
and slaves, for condition of withdrawing.

848 Years AD: Ragnar Lodbrock leads a series of raids directly into Kent and
Northumberland.

850 Years AD: The Vikings, under the rule of Ragnar Lodbrock, establish several
kingdoms. The Vikings began the transition Jrom sea raiding to colonization and
permanent settlements.

854 Years AD: Sitric (Sigtryggr) Halfdansson, Lynn’s 27t great grandfather is born.

856 Years AD: Ragnar Lodbrock died. He was succeeded by Ivar “The Boneless”
Ragnarsson, Lynn’s 28* great grandfather, as the King of Dublin. Olaf “The Red”
Ingialdsson succeeds to the King of Iceland.
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Figure 25.A: A sketch of a modified version of the willow stick method of maple sap delivery into a
container (mokuk). This modification used two willow sticks, one on each side of the injured branch,
raising the container off the ground. This method of sap collection is estimated to have been used
between 800-1200 AD by the North American Indians.
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ime (Yat: “ONaple Sap”

Oh, the sweetest sound YDaple Syrup

/o the weods around JSubbly, bubbly, simmering hot,

Js the tinkle tinkle tap 7he sap is boiling in the pot.

Of the maple sap. 7he thickening syrup we will make
J/nto a maple sugar eake.

O a happy YDavreh morning

Drip, drip, drip, Author Zfnknown

D, deip, deip

ASear the fresh sap fall.

“Jring me kettles

J3ring me pails!”

Sear the farmer’s call.

JBubble, bubble, boil, boil
Hear the kettles sing,

Soon we'll have a dainty dish
7o set before the Ying.

ime Jut: “ Sugar JTush”

On afternoons when school is out
7 be grandest place to be

Js in a maple sugar bush

WWhen sap is running free.

WWhen frost and thaw of early spring
AAre battling for a while

7he thin sweet sap comes trickling down
7he furrow of the spile.

7here’s fun avound the sugar house
For goungsters country-wise,
WWhe plag about the boiling pans
Where steam clouds thickly rise.

7he syrup babbling in the pans

Vs sampled by the boys.

(7o taste that maple sweetness now
Js one of the springtime’s joys.)

Ves, afternoons when school is out

7 he grandest place to be

/s in a maple sugar bush

When sap is vanning free. JBBY SHoan J. Ylelsh



CHAPTER 9

THE REYNOLDS VIKINGS
(THEY BECAME GOOD RULERS AGAIN)

varr “The Boneless” Ragnarsson - Lynn’s 28* Great Grandfather -
(Born 835 - Died 873) King Of Dublin

Children Of Ivarr:
1. Sitric (Sigtrggr) Halfdansson
2. Sichfrith Halfdansson
Sitric (Sigtryggr) Halfdansson - 27* - King Of Dublin
(Born 854 - Died 890)

Children Of Sitric:

1. Guthfrith (Godfrid)
2. Ragnall
3. Sitric “Coach” (Sigtrggr Gale)

Guthfrith (Godfrid) - 26t - King Of York
(Born 888 - Died 934)

Children Of Guthfrith:

1. Godfrid Reynolds

2. Olaf Godfridsson
3. Blacair Godfridsson
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856 Years AD: Ivarr “The Boneless”, Lynn’s 28t great grandfather, established “The
Clan Ivarr” in Dublin, Ireland. This Kingdom became one of the most powerful and
lasting areas for Viking settlement in Europe. The following is an excerpt from Anglo-
Saxon Encyclopedia (Regia Anglorum Publications):

“Anyone reading upon northern Britain in the ninth and tenth century will
usually find all the histories dominated by the Kings of Wessex. Various Scots and
Vikings are wheeled in, stomped on, and wheeled off. Usually, we only hear of what
they did to the southern English, and rarely of what they did to each other.

Looking at the histories from the opposite point of view produces the story of a
powerful Norse-Irish dynasty from Dublin. A clan that was just as ambitious as the
ruling family of Wessex, and just as determined to gain itself a kingdom in the north of
England - The Clan Ivarr.

The history of northern Britain is beset with problems, especially where dates
and names are concerned. The various annals and chronicles which remain from that
period are often open to several interpretations. In writing this brief history of Clan
Ivarr, I have frequently had to make up my own mind about which way to go, But I
hope I have made the right decisions.

Ivarr The Boneless’ According to tradition, Ivarr the Boneless was the
founder of the Clan. The son of Ragnar Lothbrok (Lodbrock), brother of Halfdan ‘of the
Wide Embrace’ and Ubbe, Ivarr had already been active in Ireland before he arrived in
England in 865. After spending the winter in East Anglia, Ivarr and his brothers
marched north towards York. That was, at the time, the capital of Anglian Kingdom of
Northumbria (Northumberland), the people of which were engaged in a bitter civil war
between King Osbert and his rival Aelle. The Scandinavians actually found the city
undefended, and entered it on November 1, 866.

With no one to oppose them, the Scandinavians began to build up the defenses
of York, to make it theirs. On 21 March, 867 AD, the warring Northumbrians put aside
their differences and attacked the city. The attack failed, and both Osbert and Aelle
were killed. Northumbria, once one of the greatest Kingdoms of England, was now a
Viking possession.

The victorious Scandinavians did not stop there, however. In 865, the East
Anglians had meekly given in to them, handing over food, horses, and winter quarters.
In 870, the Scandinavians returned, to kill King Eadmund and take the kingdom for
themselves.

Northumbria? East Anglia? Where next?: For Ivarr, the answer was Ireland. In
871, he and Olaf the White were in the fortified harbour town of Dublin. These two
men seem to have formed quite a team: Olaf, who arrived in Dublin in 853, had
already spent quite a few years in southern Pictland, taking hostages and demanding
tribute, while his son, Thorstein the Red, was busy doing the same thing in northern
Pictland. Using Dublin as a base, they launched a remarkable attack against
Dumbarton Rock, the traditional and ancient capital of Strathclyde. After a four-
month siege, one of the few the Vikings ever carried out, Dumbarton fell, giving them
access to the heartland of Scotland. Olaf and Ivarr captured a large number of
English, Celts, and Picts-so many, in fact, that they were supposed to have needed 200
ships to get them all back to Dublin! - all of whom were due for the slave markets in
the Islamic countries of the Mediterranean.

When Ivarr died in 873, he was called King of the Northmen of all Ireland and
Britain’. Olaf is not heard of after that date and may have also died or retired. We do
not know who took over the kingship of Dublin - perhaps Ivarr’s unknown
PO cw cowcuswrsass 2

Author’s Note: This group of Reynolds lineage is the last in “Viking” rulers. There will
be one more king in this family line, but he really never deserved the title “Viking”, as
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he was a kind and compassionate man, even though his violent ancestors certainly
earned and deserved the title “Viking”.

865 Years AD: Ivarr “The Boneless”, with a huge army, invades East Anglia, with the
intent of establishing a permanent domain.

867 Years AD: Ivarr “The Boneless” besieges and captures York. The Northumbrians
were destroyed. This forever ended Northern England’s dominance in British affairs.
Viking’s, Kingdom of York, is founded.

869 Years AD: Ivarr “The Boneless” captured East Anglian King Edmund, and had him
ritually sacrificed.

872 Years AD: Ivarr “The Boneless” died of natural causes.

873 Years AD: Halfdan “White Shirt” Ragnarsson, second son of Ragnar Lodbrock,
invades Mercia, occupying London.

874 Years AD: Halfdan “White Shirt” Ragnarsson, occupies all of Mercia, and the Saxon
King flees to Rome for protection.

876 Years AD: Halfdan “White Shirt” Ragnarsson, settles the
Eastern half of Mercia, Northumbria, and York with populations of Viking descent.

878 Years AD: “Vikings defeat AElfred and the West Saxon army. AElfred, develops
guerrilla warfare while rebuilding his army. He regroups and defeats the Vikings,
reclaiming London and vanquishes them, but instead of killing their King Guthrum,
AElfred baptizes him and signs a peace treaty, laying the foundation for a united
England.”

885 Years AD: Sitric (Sigtrggr) Halfdansson, leads a siege on Paris, France (a repeat of
his grandfather Ragnar’s invasion in 845). The siege lasted more than a year, but ends
with withdrawal, as Ragnar’s earlier attempt also did. This withdrawal agreement was
also accompanied by considerable ransom.

888 Years AD: Guthfrith (Godfrid), Lynn’s 26t great grandfather is born.
899 Years AD: Sitric (Sigtrggr) Halfdansson dies.

About 900 Years AD: The Native North American Indians have refined the art of
collecting maple sap from limbs of maple trees. A Mokuk is fastened to a willow
to hold the container and another willow is fastened into the wound and runs
down into the birch vessel. The sap runs down the willow into the bucket
without any wind loss at all. The two willows are flexible enough to allow for the
vessels to be emptied (See Figure 26 A).
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Figure 26: Sketch of troughs to deliver sap into a mokuk (or other containers). These troughs were
quite long to reach outside the roots and to a level location. The troughs were the beginning of sap
spouts. This development is in the same time line as improved axes and the tomahawk. Stones were
placed in the mokuks to prevent tipping. (A Reynolds Sketch)

900 Years AD: Led by Ragnald, Sitric’s second son, Lynn’s 27t great granduncle, led a
series of raids involving hundreds of ships against various ports in the Mediterranean
Sea.

911 Years AD: Viking King Rolf “The Granger” Ragnvaldsson, Lynn’s 29" great
grandfather, is granted concession in lieu of invasion, a huge domain known as
Normandy by King Charles “The Simple”, of Franks (France), Lynn’s 24" cousin, 40
times removed. Rolf hereby became the Ist Duke Of Normandy.

912 Years AD: “The Normans (Normandy) convert to Christianity.”
914 Years AD: Godfrid Reynolds, Lynn’s 25" great grandfather is born.

914 Years AD: Ragnald fought a major naval battle off the Isle of Man. He so weakened
the Saxon Navy, that he was able to lead an assault directly on East Anglia.

917 Years AD: Vikings are defeated by the Saxons, who take back control of East
Anglia, led by Edward “The Elder”, King of England (became King in 899 and Father of
Harmony, Princess of England and Queen of York, Lynn’s 25t great grandmother).

918 Years AD: Ragnald and his uncle Guthfrith, Lynn’s 26th great grandfather, invaded
Jfrom the north. The Scots put up an enormous resistance. The battle lasted for several
months back and forth. York asked for help from Athelflaed, Ist Lady of Mercia, and
Lynn’s 23 cousin, 41 times removed. She died in the fight. Ragnald marched into York
unopposed.

919 Years AD: Ragnald retakes all of York.

920 Years AD: Harmony (Hominy) “Princess Of England”, Lynn’s 25t great grandmother
is born.

80



920 Years AD: Ragnald, in an attempt to create a stable kingdom, minted coins, and
began diplomatic talks with the kings of North Wales, Scotland, North and South Cumbria,
and Strathclyde, as well as Mercia and England.

921 Years AD: Ragnald dies. He is succeeded to the throne by his brother Sitric “Coach”
(Sigtryggr Gale), Lynn’s 27 great granduncle.

July 17, 924 AD: “King Edward “The Elder”, King of England (899-924), dies.”

July 30, 925 AD: Sitric “Coach”, Lynn’s 27 great granduncle, marries Edith (St.),
daughter of Edward “The Elder”, King of England, Lynn’s 26t great grandfather. They
were married in Tamworth, Staffordshire, England. Their marriage produced among
others, a son Harold Ranald, King of Limerack, which tied the Reynolds line into the Irish
and Scottish descent and the Isle of Man. And their son, Olaf Cuaran Sitricsson, married
Gormflaeth Ingen Murchada MacFin, First Daughter of Scotland, giving many noble
Scottish descendants the Reynolds name.

Author’s Note: We can now see that from Ragnar Lodbrock, the Reynolds name

went into Normandy (Rognavold). Through Ivarr “The Boneless”, the Reynolds name

was carried into Ireland (Runnels). Thro Sitric (Si Halfdansson, the
Reynolds name was introduced into the Scottish descent (Ranald). The marriage of
Sitric “Coach” (Sigtryggr Gale) marrying Edith (Saint), and by the upcoming marriage of
her sister to King Godfrid Reynolds, the Reynolds name was intertwined into English
royalty and nobility, to the ultimate. Therefore, if there are any controversial
statements to made in this book, I will start by making one here: “I believe that all

the Reynolds ancestry (genealogical line) came through Ragnar Lodbrock, and his sons
Ivarr, Sitric, and Guthfrith.” Certainly there are many spellings of the name Reynolds.

In fact for the next approximately 500 years, my family line went by the name Rainald
and Raynaud, then reverting back to Reynolds. I consider this significant, because
other Reynolds (regardless of spelling), may want to investigate if their family trees can
fit into this structure. I am just providing the basic outline. Others must decide for
themselves if this pattern fits their family. Since there are so many spellings of
Reynolds, Appendix I: “Reynolds” Spellings, should help in determining if other family

trees fit into this structure.

Another significant advent of the marriages into the Scottish dependency of this
period, is that Sitric “Coach”, provided sons who married into Scottish nobility and
royalty, which tied into an established set of Symbolism and Heraldry. The Scottish
Reynolds provided the Ranald, Runnel, Rainald, Raynaud, and Reynaud (and a
multitude of other spellings). the Heraldry of the “Three Foxes” (meaning roughly in
Scottish, “Foxes Running Slyly Beside Swiftly Moving Waters”). This Heraldry has
been so important to me, as I have been able to trace the family from this point
forward, by name, nobility, deed, title, and “The Three Foxes”. King Godfrid Reynolds
drew on this “symbolism” in his reign from his Scottish cousins (Ranald). He used it in
York, Northumberland, during his kingship (940-944), and carried it with him into
Normandy, and through his descendants, back into England in 1066, when they

invaded England with William “The Congqueror”, King of E d. The bolism

carried forth from about 900 right on through the generations into America in 1629.

And it still exists today. I proudly display the Reynolds “Coat Of Arms”
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927 Years AD: “Aethelstan succeeds Edward “The Elder” as King of England. All
Anglo-Saxon government comes under Wessex control.”

937 Years AD: “Wessex King Aethelstan defeats Olaf Godfridsson, King of Dublin,
Lynn’s 26t great granduncle, and son of Guthfrith (Godfrid), at Braunanburgh. This
establishes what has since been known as the Kingdom of England.”

938 Years AD: Olaf Godfridsson, re-invades and secures all of Northumberland and
York.

939 Years AD: “Edmund I “The Elder” acceeded to the King of England.”

June 18, 939 AD: King Edmund I “The Elder”, King of England, Lynn’s 25t great
grandfather, gives Godfrid Reynolds, Lynn’s 25" great grandfather, permission to marry
his sister, Harmony (Hominy) “Princess of England”, Lynn’s 25t great grandmother, on
the condition that he convert to Christianity and be baptized. The conversion, marriage,
and ordained Nobility all took place in the Episcopal Church Of York, Northumberland.
The events took place under a peace agreement between Godfrid Reynolds and his new
royal brother in law.

Author’s Note: This baptism makes the first documented conversion to Christianity in
the Reynolds family line. It also is the first recognized appointment to “Nobility” as
ordained by the Bishop of the United Presbyterian Church of York.
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b, the maple grove’s an exciting place
TWhen the sap is running free

AAnd the sturdy sleigh stops heve and there
JFor sweets from every tree.

7he Sugarhouse is a bristling hive
Jo the roaving fivelight glow

AAs the big square pans keep bubbling
Over the heat below.

Ard as the sap boils slowly down
AAn aroma fills the aiv

Ab the fragrance of maple syrap
/8 quite begond compare.

7here ave visions of dripping pancakes
And squaves of maple eream

Wihite maple wax spread out on snow
«Js many a farm child's dream.

7he wind may bluster and dags grow dreary

J3ut winter is fun for me....

Jn the maple grove where the five burns bright

And the sap is running free. JBy  Lleanor Llkins

Zime Cut: “0YNe”
As long as ] live
o/ shall always be
YNy Self—and no other,
just me.
oLike a tree—
WWillow, elder,
AAspen, thom,
r cypress forlown.
oLike a flower,
For its hour
JIrimrose, or pink,
Or a violet—
Sunned by the sun,
And with dewdrops wet.

Alwags just me. J3y§ Walter de la YT)are
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Figure 27 A: Map of Anglo Saxon England in about

“Anglo-Saxon England”).
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CHAPTER 10

THE LAST REYNOLDS KING

Godfrid Reynolds - Lynn’s 25t Great Grandfather - King Of Eastern
(Born 914 - Died 1001) Northumberland And York

Harmony “Princess Of England” - Lynn’s 25th Great Grandmother - Queen Of
(Born 920 - Died 1002) Eastern Northumberland And York
Children Of Godfrid And Harmony:

1. Godfrid Fitzreynold
2. Guthfrith Fitzreynaud
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940 Years AD: Godfrid Reynolds and Harmony “Princess Of England”, become King and
Queen of Eastern Northumberland and York.

The next four years would bring closure to almost 4,000 years of ruling and dictatorships
by the Reynolds family. King Reynolds (the very first with this spelling in any of the
thousands of historical documents that I was able to research), was no warrior. He and
Harmony hated war. They decided in an arena of conflict, brutality, and hate, they would
rule a kingdom filled with love, dignity and compassion. Their subjects were
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overwhelmingly Scandinavian, but there were enough Anglo-Saxons, to make the project
of assimilation possible. King and Queen Reynolds, realized that if their project was to
work they would have to introduce revolutionary ideas, blending the techniques of both
nationalities. To make a homogeneous society, there would have to be a firm
government, but one that provided security and equality for the inhabitants. They vowed
they would make it work.

They approached the social structure by considering what was best for the people.
All the people of their kingdom recognized that King and Queen were part of the English
Royal Family, so this aspect was a given fact. The King established a King’s ‘Viceroy’,
called an ‘eolderman’ by the Anglo-Saxons. These persons were selected from a few
outstanding families and were to be responsible for administration and justice. King
Reynolds eliminated the ruling class of ‘eorls’, saying that the land belonged to all of the
people. He did not raise an army, because he had so much faith in his brother Olaf who
was King of Western Northumberland, and in King Edmund “The Elder”, King of
England, his brother-in-law, to maintain a stable military environment surrounding his
Kingdom. This was not a bad assumption, and considering he lasted as king under these
circumstances for over four years (longer than most), and since he was not a military or
war oriented individudl, it worked. His kingdom was a rural economy consisting of
farmers, carpenters, woodworkers, mill operators, iron workers, craftsmen, shopkeepers,
and tradesmen. There were slaves, that King Reynolds did not address, even though he
and Harmony never held slaves themselves, and were adamantly opposed to the
practice. There was a tax which supported the government. And, even though the King
and Queen lived a life of nobility, they did not display it publicly. They were very visible
helping establish homes, businesses and helping the less fortunate. He allowed the
citizens to earn money, and to keep a major portion of their incomes. Each family was
declared to have a ‘hide’ of land which translates to approximately 40 acres which was
considered to be the proper amount of land to support one family in that day. This was a
far cry from the norm practices during this era.

The first steps were to “socialize” the natural resources. The primary concern was
the lack of timber available, for building houses and decent living conditions. The
timber lands had been slaughtered and decimated for generations. A drastic need was
recognized for some form of conservation. The king took all timber lands in Eastern
Northumberland and York under his control, but in return offered his subjects that
everyone in his kingdom would be provided enough wood to build a house, and a supply
to burn for fuel. He helped establish water power mills and put them under government
control so that the lumber produced and the grain ground from these mills were made
available to the people and were not squandered in graft or waste. He took a page out of
the Anglo-Saxon book for building houses, declaring that every family would have at least
a “good” house. Pictured below is a sketch of a small water powered mill and the typical
house that was built in the kingdom. The mills were meager and operated with minimal
stream flow. The houses were strong, basic, small, and inexpensive. But they were a
great improvement over anything the people had been living in up to this time. The
houses were about 10’ X 12’ in size.
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Figure 30: An illustration of the basic house of 940 AD York (Source: Internet-
“Anglo-Saxon Houses”)

King Reynolds took control of selecting timber, with utilizing natural shapes of
trees for selected uses. He managed the forest lands himself as he viewed them as the
most recognizable asset.
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Figure 31: Timbers were selected From The natural Shape of the tree (Source: Internet - “Anglo-Saxon
and Viking houses”).

Farming was encouraged for every family. To insure that each family would have the
basic necessities, Godfrid declared that every citizen would be assisted to have two oxen,
one cow, six sheep, ten chickens and at least seven sown acres. If enough pasture land
was not available on his property, government lands would be made available for
pasture.

Another natural resource taken into the social realm was iron ore. During the
days of Roman Empire occupation, they taught the art of iron making. King Reynolds
used these talents for the benefit of the masses rather than the individual. And since
there was no need to create weapons, since he had no army, all created products of iron
could be put to use for tools, farm implements, necessary household items such as pots
and pans and wheeled carts for transportation of product.

Figure 32: Farm

implement of the
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Figure 33: Ilustration of wheeled carts of Anglo-Saxon England in 940 AD. (Source: Internet -The
Fauna of Anglo-Saxon England, “Regia Anglorum Publications”).

Since Wood was in short supply, and since fuel was needed for heating homes,
and was needed to smelt iron, King Reynolds used another talent taught by the Romans,

i.e., the production of Charcoal.
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Figure 34: Charcoal production. (Source: Internet - The Fauna of Anglo-Saxon England, “Regia
Anglorum Publications).

Harmony worked with the women in the art of collecting wild nuts, fruits, berries,
wild herbs, and mushrooms. Talented farmers taught the growing of wheat, oats, barley,
and rye. Domestic animal husbandry was taught and encouraged. Hunting wild game
was considered a necessity.

King Godfrid had a considerable interest in woodworking. He seemed to take
over the forests and wood products management personally. He developed and made
available to the people, tools for woodworking. These were talents coming from his Viking
ancestors in woodworking and ship building. He seemed to have a knack in this area.

Figure 35: A sketch of a pole lathe for woodworking
Source: Internet - Anglo-Saxon and Viking Crafts, “Regia
Anglorum Publications”).
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Figure 36: A Sketch

of the old time ‘Pit

Saw’, which was
commonly used. The
water powered saws,

were a crude variation

of the pit saw (Source
Reynolds Family Archives).

Crafis and necessary tools, such as knives, needles, combs, and punches, were created out of bone and
antlers. Every feasible by-product of butchering or rendering was encouraged to be saved and utilized.
Conservation of every product and way of life was taught as requiring frugality. Bronze making, metal
Jabrication, and blacksmithing became other trades.

All of these practices did not come easy. At first there was much doubt about these very
revolutionary ideas. But as the programs took place, life became very good for all the people. The King
and Queen got the credit. King Reynolds and Queen Harmony became two of the most loved and
respected rulers in Viking era history. They became so well known that even the most skeptical began to
believe,

The first two years of King Reynolds’s reign were so very successful, it was hard to believe that
his success would cause unrest in the Royal family. But in the end, the wish to rid all of England of rulers
of Viking descent and the very basic jealousy, contributed to his downfall.

943 Years AD: King Edmund “The Elder” ordered Olaf Godfridsson, King of Western Northumberland,
to leave all of England. Under overwhelming odds, and to not cause any further conflict among family
(King Reynolds’s Brother-in-Law), he withdrew to Dublin, and became King of Dublin.

944 Years AD: Aelfgifu (St)), King Edmund’s “The Elder” wife, and Queen of England, convinced her
husband, that due to King Reynolds’ popularity, the people could elevate him to the King of England. In
Jact she felt that King Reynolds could be chosen over her own sons to accede to the throne of England.
King Edmund heeded her warnings and gave King Reynolds the ultimatum, leave the Kingdom of
Eastern Northumberland and York, or he would be forced to invade. King Edmund also
had the opinion that since Godfrid and Harmony had no children that he could convince
Harmony to have the wedding annulled and that she would remain in England with the
Royal family. He miscalculated his sister. Harmony remained fiercely loyal to her
husband and offered to take any consequences that he should suffer. And since,

King Reynolds had no Army and no defenses, he was at the mercy of King Edmund “The
Elder”. King Edmund in a show of compassion, allowed safe passage for King Reynolds
and Harmony, to Normandy, France. They were allowed to keep their valuables and
possessions on condition that they never return to the shores of England. So ended the
era of Reynolds Kings and Kingdoms in this direct JSfamily line, in October of 944. King
Reynolds was given full title by Richard I “The Fearless”, the Duke of Normandy, and was
allowed to Rule In Exile, but they never returned to England or York while they were
alive. The Duke of Normandy also granted the King and Queen a generous kingdom in
which to live out their lives. This made sense because King Reynolds was not a violent or
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vindictive man, thus was not about to attack or attempt an invasion of England. And to
repeat, he was not a warrior. Both Godfrid and Harmony died in Normandy, France near
Pays de Caus. After their death, their bodies were returned to England, and were buried
in the Courtyard of the Episcopal Church of York. Full royalty and nobility was
maintained for them during their lives and for their descendants, in title and deed, by the
Normans. Iromcaﬂy, King Edmund “The Elder” and his wife Queen Aefgifu (St.) are most
noted in history, “as the King and Queen who expelled the kind and gentle Viking King
from York in 944, and whose wife was of their own royal bloo/d

945 Years AD: “Queen Aelfgifu (St.) died.” -
May 26, 946 AD: “King Edmund “The Elder”, King of England (939-946) died in
Pucklechurch, Dorset, England. His body is interred in Glastonbury Abbey, Somerset,
England.”

948 Years AD: “Erik Bloodaxe invades and conquers York for the Vikings. Violence,
brutality, dictatorship, and plunder returned to York.”

951 Years AD: Guthfrith Fitzreynolds, Lynn’s 24th great grandfather, is born, son of King
Godjfrid and Queen Harmony Reynolds. He was born in Normandy.

954 Years AD: “Northumbrians rebel against Erik Bloodaxe and kill him.”

A Rsyuolds Migrmtion Map

King Godfrid Reynolds was banned to Normandy
in 944, near Pays de Caux. Within a few years
the family migrated to Daventria which was
eventually expanded to the Domain of Gueldres,
as a result of William “The Conquerer” becoming
King of England. In about 1450, the Reynolds
family returned to England, near London at
Brantonshire.
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CHAPTER 11

THE BEGINNING OF A NEW ERA

Guthfrith Fitzreynolds le Normand - Lynn’s 24t Great Grandfather
Glace Corbette (Corbeau) Of Pays de Caux - Lynn’s 24th Great Grandmother

Godfrid Rainald, Duke I du Daventria (Deventer) - 23rd
Regia de Balliol - Lynn’s 2374 Great Grandmother

William Rainald, Duke II du Daventria (Deventer) - 22nd
Resilence de Burgundy - Lynn’s 227d Great Grandmother

Adrian Rainald, Duke III du Daventria (Deventer) - 21st
Rainald du Deventria, Duke IV Of Deventer and Gueldres - 20th
Rainald du Deventria, Duke V Of Deventer and Gueldres - 19th
Adren Rainald, 6t Duke of Gueldres - 18th

Adan Fitzrainald - 17t - 7th Duke Of Gueldres
Glaci de Brabant - Lynn’s 17t Great Grandmother

Rainald I Of Gueldres - 16t - 8th Duke Of Gueldres
Margaret de Flanders - Lynn’s 16t Great Grandmother

Rainald II Of Gueldres - 15t - 9th Duke of Gueldres
Eleanor Of Woodstock Plantagenet - Lynn’s 15t Great
Grandmother

Rainald III Of Gueldres - 14t - 10thDuke Of Gueldres
Marie de Brabant - Lynn’s 14t Great Grandmother

Rainald IV Of Gueldres - 13t -11%Duke Of Gueldres
Corley Acton (Of Acton Reynold)- Lynn’s 13t Great
Grandmother

Robert Reynolds - 12t - Earl of Brantonshire
Dame Margaret Constable - Lynn’s 12th Great
Grandmother
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Author’s Note: Godfrid and Harmony Reynolds (King and Queen in exile), were
provided an extensive kingdom on the northern Normandy Coast on land that today is
the Netherlands. They raised two sons Guthfrith Fitzreynold le Normand, Lynn’s 24th
great grandfather, and Godfrid Fitzreynaud. The “Fitz” meaning “son or descendant of”.
In the kingdom (Country) of Normandy, they were now a permanent part of the
Norman environment land social structure. Most of the hierarchy of the Norman Clan
were relatives of the Reynolds. I want to provide just a basic overview of the Normans
as provided by Regia Anglorum Publications:

“History of the Normans: By about 900 AD the Vikings had ravaged northern
France to such an extent that there was little plunder to be found along the rivers
which had formed their major avenue of attack. Ironically it was a Danish Army
(under a leader called Hrolf), which arrived in 911 to pillage the lower Seine Valley that
created the Vikings’ only lasting impact on Western Europe.

Hrolf (Godfrid’s 4t great grandfather and Lynn’s 29th) attempted to besiege
Chartes without success, but his army was such a threat to the Seine valley, that
Charles, King of Franks, negotiated a treaty at St. Clair-sur-Epte, Under this treaty all
the land bounded by the rivers Brestle, Epte, Avre and Dives was granted to the
Danes; effectively the land they already controlled. By 924 the Franks were forced to
grant the Danes the districts of Bayeux, Exmes and Sees, and 933 the Cotenin and
Avranchin.

Hrolf was baptized in 912 and became know as Rollo. Within two generations
he and his followers had adopted the Franks’ language, religion, laws, customs,
political organization and methods of warfare. They had become Franks in all but
name, for they were now known as Normans, men of Normandy - the land of the
Nordmanni or Northmen.

The Normans’ love of the sea and their dynamism led to commercial prosperity.
By the middle of the 11t century, Normandy was one of the most powerful states in
Christendom. Desire for conquest, in conjunction with limited available land led many
Normans to pursue military goals abroad: to Spain to fight the Moors; to Byzantium to
fight the Turks; to Sicily in 1061 to fight the Saracens; and of course, to England in
1066.

In Normandy William The Conqueror’ succeeded to the dukedom at the age of
seven or eight. For the next twelve years of his minority the dukedom was in a
constant state of anarchy. The rebellion of the barons came to a head in 1047, when
the whole of lower Normandy rose against him. With the help of his feudal overlord
Henry I of France, William aged twenty, crushed the revolt on the field of Val es Dunes,
near Caen. The castles of the rebellious barons were razed and the nobles never
challenged the duke’s power again.

Norman relations with Anglo-Saxon England were uncomplicated. As the
Normans became Christian and adopted the French language, so their dukes found a
common interest in the rulers of southern Britain in closing the English Channel to
Viking fleets. This alliance broke up when the Normans supported Edward and the
House Wessex against Cnut of Denmark in their struggle for the English throne.
When Edward (“The Confessor”) returned from exile in Normandy to take the English
crown in 1042 he was understandably pro-Norman. It was probably because of these
pro-Norman sympathies that William’s claim to the throne had any credibility.

The Norman dukes’ fear of Scandinavian intervention contributed to William’s
alliance with Flanders in 1066. Other victims of Viking raids had been the Channel
Islands or Iles Normandes. These islands were not part of the duchy of Normandy in
1066; instead they were a personal dependency of Duke William, as were the Counties
of Brittany and Maine. All these areas contributed men and ships to the ‘great
expedition’ of 1066.
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Many Norman warriors, administrators and churchmen had served in England
under Edward the Confessor. Some were responsible for reorganizing English
defenses along the Welsh borders around 1055, although their attempts to introduce
Norman-French cavalry tactics to the English ultimately failed.”

The Reynolds family became true and loyal Normans.

959 Years AD: “Edgar “The Peaceful”, Lynn’s 25t great granduncle becomes the first
King of a United England.”

972 Years AD: Guthfrith Fitzreynold le Normand marries Glace Corbette (Corbeau) Of
Pays de Caux, Lynn’s 24th great grandmother.

975 Years AD: Guthfrith Fitzreynold le Normand (or as he was called, “le Normand’, i.e.
“The Norman”), with the help of his father constructs a ship building facility, creating
ships under the “Three Foxes” flag. The business is an enormous success as the
Normans (men of the sea), needed ships for almost every endeavor. He became very well
known, and acquired great wealth. Guthfrith and Glace had two children, Godfrid
Rainald, Duke of Deventria (Deventer, Lynn’s 237 great grandfather, and Hugh le Corbet
(Corbeau) Of Pays de Caux. The Corbet’s line from this marriage became a significant
name in land grants from William “The Conqueror” when the invasion of England took
place some 80 years in the future.

About 977 Years AD: “Leif Eriksson, Son of Eric “The Red”, is born in Ireland.”

980 Years AD: “Eric “The Red” is expelled from Ireland for unusual brutality. He is
denied refuge in Iceland.”

981 Years AD: “Eric “The Red” discovers Greenland.”
985 Years AD: “Eric “The Red and the Vikings settle Greenland.”

About 990 Years AD: Godfrid Rainald, Duke I du Deventria, Lynn’s 23 great
grandfather was born near Pays de Caux, on the Normandy coast.

994 Years AD: “King Olav Tyggvason I conquers Norway and declares it a Christian
Kingdom.”

About 1000 Years AD: The Indians of North America have developed pottery,
copper, and bronze making. This advent means new and better containers for sap
collection, and provide vessels for boiling of the maple sap. Pottery is developed
in Quebec and New England. Copper and the bronze was created by the Chippewa
and Ojibwa of the Keweenaw Peninsula, upper Michigan.

1000 Years AD: Leif Eriksson, Lynn’s 3 cousin, 27 times removed, discovers and
explores the coast of North America (Vinland).

1002 Years AD: “Brian Boruma wins militarily, and becomes High King Of Ireland.”

Author’s Note: Leif Eriksson established the domain of Vinland by the settlement of
L’Anse aux Meadows in Newfoundland. From archeological finds, we know that there
were about sixty people in the village. There were very few women, probably only five

or six. Vinland encompassed the entire mouth area of the St. Lawrence River. They
probably stayed for about four years, with the year 1004 the average yvear from carbon
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dating. There are indications that extensive trading took place with the native
populations, both Eskimo and American Indian. The “Viking Chronicles” stated that at
first they took to slaying the Indians, but due to overwhelming odds and the need for
each other, peaceful coexistence was established. One of the statements from these
chronicles concerns this book. We will examine it here.

1004 Years AD: The legendary statement (Not a quote): “The savage inhabitants
are so vicious that God makes them cook and drink sweet wine that drips from
branches of trees, to sweeten their dispositions.”

Many deductions can be made from this statement. First we know the Vikings
were there in the spring, having seen sap drip from trees. They must have
observed that the sap was boiled. And, they must have tasted it, knowing that it
was sweet. We can assume that sap was still being collected from branches or
limbs. The term “wine” could mean simply partially cooked syrup, or possibly the
sap had fermented slightly, prior to boiling, which would give it a “winey” smell.
And, it is reasonable to assume that the Vikings bartered with the Indians for
more of this product, because the observed effects from the product left a positive
impression on the Vikings. There is not any evidence that the Vikings made the
product, since they really did not have a clear understanding of what the product
actually was. This is clearly the first exposure of pure maple syrup to the
European white man.

November 15, 1004: “On St. Brice’s Day, King Aethelraed, massacred the Danes over
all of Britain”,

1013 Years AD: “Knut den store/The Great defeats King Aethelraed who seeks
protection in Normandy.”

April 23, 1014: “Brian Boruma captures Dublin and drives out all of the Vikings.”

1016 Years AD: “Knut defeats Edmund II Ironside and becomes King of England.”

1027 Years AD: “William the Conqueror is born.”

1028 Years AD: “Knut conquers Norway.”

Authors Note: For the approximately next 500 years the Reynolds family would call the
area of “Daventria” or “Gueldres” their home. It is necessary that you understand the
history of this area which would eventually become the Netherlands. Trends toward
compassionate ruling, shipbuilding, wood working, timber management, water dams
construction, harnessing the rivers, industrialism, and the development of ‘Cooper’

arrel making) talents were some of the positive topics developed by the Reynolds famil
while occupying the area in Southern Netherlands (France).

The following account of history is provided by Microsoft’s Encarta:

“History: Historical accounts of the Netherlands date from the 1st century BC, when
Roman forces led by Julius Caesar conquered most of the present area of the country.
At the time the region was inhabited by Frisians, a Germanic tribe that lived in the
north, and by other Germanic and minor Celtic tribes.

The Roman Era: Before the conquest, the Romans had annexed lands to the southeast
extending beyond the Rhine River. They penetrated the Netherlands region mainly to
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control the several mouths of the Rhine, which were then farther to the north than
they are now. Under Roman rule, general peace and prosperity prevailed for more
than 250 years. Roman traders entered the area freely, selling products from Italy and
Gaul. The Romans built temples, established a number of large farms, and introduced
their civilization to the region.

About AD 300 the hold by the Romans began to weaken, and nonindigenous German
tribes pushed into the area from the east. The Frisians, in the north, held their
ground, but Saxons occupied the eastern part of the region, and the Franks moved
into the west and south.

During the 3rd century AD the Germanic tribes started to overrun the Roman
outposts. As Roman control weakened, the Franks occupied the southern region of
the Low Countries (the Netherlands). In the 5th century it became part of Burgundy.
The French emperor, Charlemagne, ruled this region until his death in 814, when
French rule was effectively ended by the Viking invasion and a series of devastating
floods. The area was divided among Charlemagne’s heirs, which led to the creation of
local principalities such as Limburg, Holland, Zeeland, ‘Daventria’, ‘Gueldres’, and
Friesland.

The Middle Ages: The Franks were the most powerful of the invaders. Their lands
extended southward into what is now northern France and eastward across the Rhine.
Eventually, the Frankish kings subjugated the Frisians and the Saxons and converted
them to Christianity. By 800 the entire territory of the Netherlands was part of the
realm of Charlemagne. After Charlemagne died, his empire disintegrated, and in 843
the Treaty of Verdun divided the empire into three parts. The Netherlands became
part of Latharingia (Lorraine) and still later, in 925, part of the Holy Roman Empire. At
that time a Dutch nation did not exist, and the immediate loyalties of the inhabitants
were to local lords. Gradually over the next centuries the whole region came to be
called the Low Countries, or Netherlands, including present-day Belgium.

During the 9th and 10th centuries Scandinavian raiders, called Vikings, frequently
invaded the coastal areas, sailing far up the rivers in search of loot. The need for a
stronger system of defenses against such marauders gradually led to an increase in
the power of the local rulers and their vassals, the nobles, who were largely a warrior
class. Concurrently, the towns began to grow in importance, as artisans and
merchants settled in them and improved their defenses. The gradual development of
powerful towns was a notable feature of Dutch history during the 12th, 13th, and 14th
centuries, and the area became an important trading center. Under the leadership of
wealthy merchants the towns began to challenge the power of the nobles who ruled
the countryside. The merchants often supported the regional ruler in his campaigns
against unruly vassals, at the same time exacting from him privileges designed to
promote commerce and to strengthen the town and the position of the merchant class.

In the early Middle Ages such political entities as the counties of Flanders and
Holland, the bishopric of Utrecht, and the duchies of Brabant and Gelderland were
established. In the far north, however, the Frisians did not submit to a regional ruler
but continued to obey their local headmen. The association of the Netherlands with
the Holy Roman Empire remained largely nominal throughout the Middle Ages. Some
trade was conducted with German coastal cities to the east, such as Bremen and
Hamburg, but the major cultural influence came from France.

During the middle ages the growth of trade and greater mobility of the people led to
major changes in the Netherlands. A new middle class came into being, and cities
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started to grow around the dams built in the Netherlands during the 12th and 13th
centuries. Towards the middle of the 14th century, Holland and Friesland started
building ships for trade and travel (‘slowly replacing the shipbuilding center near
Deventer established by the Reynolds family’). This laid the foundation for the future
naval strength of the Netherlands.

The Renaissance: Through marriage, war, and political maneuvering, most of the
region comprising the present-day Netherlands--Holland, Utrecht, Noord-Brabant, and
Gelderland—came into the hands of the dukes of Burgundy during the 15th and early
16th centuries. By 1519 this area was under the benevolent control of Holy Roman
emperor Charles V, of the Spanish branch of the house of Hapsburg, who was also
king of Spain. In 1555, however, Charles resigned both Spain and the Netherlands to
his son Philip II, who was Spanish by birth and education and had little liking for his
northern European territories. His oppressive rule led to the epochal war of
independence waged from 1568 to 1648 by the Dutch against Spain, then the most
powerful nation in Europe.”

About 1030 Years AD: Godfrid Rainald moved the Reynolds family ship building
business to a location near Deventer, in present day state of Gelderland, in the
Netherlands.

Author’s Notes: The move of the Rainald (Reynolds) ship building business (The Three
Foxes Ship Company) was more of an Tegional’ decision than a business decision. The
coastal forest reserves were essentially decimated from ruthless cutting over the eons
of time. To build ships required timber resources. The only regional supply of timber
remaining was located in the northern foothills of the Pyrenees Mountains. The
location most accessible, but with convenient access to both the Rhine River, the
ocean, and Normandy, was a site near the intersection of the Rhine and the Iissel
rivers, near present day Deventer. The reality of the situation was that Normandy
essentially controlled this area. It was mostly inhabited by Vikings (Danes), and
various integrated populations of Germanic, Norman, French, and Danish peoples. All
of these peoples, especially the Normans and the Vikings which were blood relatives to

the Reynolds, needed ships. The domain named “Daventria” essentially ‘carved’ out of
the domains of Burgundy. Normandy, Lorraine, Balliol, and Flanders. There was not

any resistance to this created domain. since the end result was that the ‘Rainald
Family’ was given complete ownership and control for the purpose of building ships.
The location was ideally located to the foothills of the Pyrenees which would provide
the lumber for the specific purpose of ship building. The other unique aspect of this
arrangement was that the Rainalds did not have to provide for any defenses, as the
protection of this domain was for the welfare and benefit of all surrounding countries.
Therefore, this period of the Reynolds family development was profoundly peaceful,
even though their ships were designed and built for the expressed purpose of plunder
for the Vikings, warfare, and military protection for Normandy and other countries.
The pretext used for justification for this land control transfer was that the Normans
recognized King Reynolds of York as Nobility. And further, the Reynolds were direct
descendants of Charlemagne. and by some ‘quirk of justification’, they were awarded

this land as an heir of Charlemagne.

Consequently, the Reynolds Family took control of ‘Daventria’, in an international
arrangement to build ships. This was the ideal situation for this family. First, they
could develop a leadership (rulers) which was designed and tested by their
‘grandfather—King Reynolds of York’. They ruled with compassion and concern for
their subjects. They were under no threats and thus could devote all their resources
towards development and improvement rather than military expenditures for defense.
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The family was very concerned with their timber resources as they had experienced
the slaughter and the result of cutting when located on the coastal areas of Normandy.
They vowed this would not be repeated in the areas they controlled. A mandatory
timber conservation program was installed to protect the growing and cutting of trees
on their domain. They developed ship building techniques second to none in all of
Europe. They built dams, harnessed the rivers, and utilized water power to its
maximum capacity. Sawmills were built to saw the timber they needed for ship
building. They became industrialists, they were considered nobility, and they inter-
married with the highest ruling families of France, Burgundy, Lorraine, Balliol,

N cnr:ma.m:l}:= and England. But they remained “Normans”. They were respected by the
Vi S, enco ed by the eastern countries, supported by the Normans and French.
Their roots were English. The oke French. Their culture was French. They were
truly a family of significance in the development of western Europe. It is doubtful that
they would have ever left this area had it not been that the International agreement
eventually disintegrated. Spain was oppressive, the Dukes of Burgundy infringed
upon the agreed territory, the Netherlands was moving towards independence, and the
political structure of Europe was changing. All of these factors led to the disassembly
of the ‘Daventria--Gueldres’ domain structure. However, it lasted almost 500 vears

(until about 1450 AD). certainly a tribute to a family which was somewhat at the mercy
of surrounding powerful countries.

T
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F‘:gm 38 A Map of 1 620 ‘Devem'er (Som& Im‘emd “deventer. ggf at od'ur ld.mg nI"’ I
‘Daventria’ - University of Texas).

About 1030 Years AD: William Rainald, Duke II of Deventer, Lynn’s 22nd Great
Grandfather, was born in Daventria (Normandy).

1035 Years AD: “Knute, King of England died. His son Harold became King of
England.”

99



1039 Years AD: “Harold, King of England died. His brother, Hardecanute became
King of England.”

1041 Years AD: “Hardecanute died. Edward became King of England.”

1047 Years AD: “William of Normandy, age 20, with the assistance of French King
Henry, defeats nobles attempting to usurp William’s claim to Normandy, in the cavalry
battle of Val-es-Dunes.” This was the last time any serious challenge was made to
William as Duke of Normandy, or to his right to lead this dominant country.”

About 1058 Years AD: Adrain Rainald, Duke Il du Daventria (Deventer), Lynn’s 21st
great grandfather was born.

Author’s Notes: These were turbulent times. William was increasingly aggressive

towards his ‘right’ to the title of King of England. Almost every moment was utilized
towards how to achieve his dream as King of England. One of the preparations was

for ships necessary for any invasion that would take place. William the Conqueror,
was very close to his Ist cousin, William Rainald, Duke of Daventria. In fact both were

named William by design. William the Conqueror, poured enormous resources into
the Three Foxes Ship Company, with which William of Daventria could build ships.

Much of these resources were disguised as being provided by The Rainalds’, The
Reynauds’, and the Corbets’(Corbeau), and the Montgomerys’, were all family members
and relatives. Altogether, I estimate that at least 200 of the approximately 600 ships
used for the invasion were built by the Reynolds family. For construction of this many

ships, certainly a significant lead time must have been necessary. I believe that
construction of these (estimated 200 ships) must have been under construction for at

least three to five years prior to the invasion. Roger de Montgomery II, better known as
Earl Roger, was known to have contributed 60 ships, The Corbet (FitzCorbet) family
contributed 38 ships, The Reynaud (FitzReynaud) family contributed 32 ships, and
Rainald Family of Daventria contributed 28 ships. [Five of the ships donated by the

Rainalds (FitzRainald), were appropriately named, “The Odin”, “The Ragnar”, “The
Ivaar”, “The Godfrid”, and the “Adrain”]. All 28 ships flew under the of the “Three

Foxes”. The Reynolds broke with tradition by naming their ships with masculine
names instead of normal feminine titles. According to some lists compiled, there were
at least 16 Reynaud, FitzRainold, FitzRaynald, FitzRenold, Rainald, and FitzRainald
family members directly involved in the invasion, most of them commanding ships of
the Three Foxes. At least 7 of these family members lost their lives in the invasion,
including William Rainald, Duke II of Daventria, Lynn’s 22nd great grandfather. For
these involvements in ship building, sailing their ships, sacrificing their lives, and
their undivided loyalty to Normandy, and to William the Conqueror, the Rainald family
was richly rewarded monetarily, and with land grants of great magnitude. Additional

land grants were awarded the family in “Domesday of 1086” (account will be covered

later).

The following account of the invasion is described by Microsoft’s Encarta: “William I
(of England) , called the Conqueror (1027-87), first Norman king of England (1066-
1087), who has been called one of the first modern kings and is generally regarded as
one of the outstanding figures in Western European history.

Born in Falaise, France, William was the illegitimate son of Robert I, duke of

Normandy, and Arietta, a tanner’s daughter, and is therefore sometimes called William
the Bastard. Upon the death of his father, the Norman nobles, honoring their promise
to Robert, accepted William as his successor. Rebellion against the young duke broke
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out almost immediately, however, and his position did not become secure until 1047
when, with the aid of Henry I, King of France, he won a decisive victory over a rebel
force near Caen.

During a visit in 1051 to his childless cousin, Edward the Confessor, King of England,
William is said to have obtained Edward’s agreement that he should succeed to the
English throne. In 1053, defying a papal ban, William married Matilda of Flanders,
daughter of Baldwin V, Count of Flanders and a descendant of King Alfred the Great.
Thereby strengthening his claim to the crown of England, Henry I, fearing the strong
bond between Normandy and Flanders resulting from the marriage, attempted in 1054
and again in 1058 to crush the powerful duke, but on both occasions William defeated
the French king’s forces.

Conquest of England: About 1064, the powerful English noble, Harold Earl of Wessex,
was shipwrecked on the Norman coast and taken prisoner by William. He secured his
release by swearing to support William'’s claim to the English throne. When King
Edward died, however, the Witenagemot (royal council) elected Harold king.
Determined to make good his claim, William secured the sanction of Pope Alexander II
for a Norman invasion of England. The duke and his army landed at Pevensey on
September 28, 1066. On October 14t | the Normans defeated the English forces at the
celebrated Battle of Hastings, in which Harold was slain. William then proceeded to
London, crushing the resistance he encountered on the way. On Christmas Day he
was crowned King of England in Westminster Abbey.

The English did not accept foreign rule without a struggle. William met the opposition,
which was particularly violent in the north and west, with strong measures; he was
responsible for the devastation of great areas of the country, particularly in Yorkshire,
where Danish forces had arrived to aid the Saxon rebels. By 1070 the Norman
conquest of England was complete.

William invaded Scotland in 1072 and forced the Scottish king Malcolm IIT MacDuncan
to pay him homage. During the succeeding years the conqueror crushed insurrections
among his Norman followers, including the incited 1075 by Ralph de Guader, 1st Earl
of Norfolk, and Roger Fitzwilliam, Earl of Hereford, and a series of uprisings in
Normandy led by his eldest son Robert, who later became Robert II, Duke of
Normandy.

His Achievements: One feature of William’s reign as king was his reorganization of the
English feudal and administrative systems. He dissolved the great earldoms, which
had enjoyed virtual independence under his Anglo-Saxon predecessors, and
distributed the lands confiscated from the English to his trusted Norman followers. He
introduced the Continental system of feudalism; by the Oath of Salisbury of 1086 all
landlords swore allegiance to William, thus establishing the precedent that a vassal’s
loyalty to the king overrode his fealty to his immediate lord. The feudal lords were
compelled to acknowledge the jurisdiction of the local courts, which William retained
along with many other Anglo-Saxon institutions. The ecclesiastical and secular courts
were separated, and the power of the papacy in English affairs was greatly curtailed.
Another outstanding accomplishment was the economic survey undertaken and
incorporated in the ‘Domesday Book’ in 1086.

In 1087, during a campaign against King Philip I of France, William burned the town of
Mantes (now Mantes-la-Jolie). William’s horse fell in the vicinity of Mantes, fatally
injuring him. He died in Rouen on September 7 and was buried at Caen in Saint
Stephen’s, one of the abbeys he and Matilda had founded at the time of their marriage
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as penance for their defiance of the Pope. William was succeeded by his third-born
son, William II.”

Figure 39: Depiction of
William The Congueror
(Source: Microsoft’s
Encarta, “The Hulton-
Deutsch Collection™).

September 28, 1066: William The Congueror (William I, King of England), invaded and
conguered England. This victory ended Anglo-Saxon rule of England, and gave rise to
the first Norman King of England.

Author’s Notes: By virtue of the invasion and submission of English forces, William I,
Lynn’s 23rd great grandfather, became King of England. Because the Rainalds of
Daventria, remained loyal, and were of great assistance to William, the family was deeply
rewarded with lands in present day Netherlands (Normandy), and also extensive land
holdings in England. The Reynolds had returned to England, even though they would
also maintain their lands in Daventria for several hundred years in the future. Because
of the additional lands deeded to the Reynolds in Daventria, the name of the domain was

changed to Gueldres (approximately the same as present day Gelderland of the

Netherlands). The Rainalds would from this day, rule the domain known as
Daventn'gz Gueldres, which would eventually become simply, Gueldres. Adren Rainald,

born in about 1138, would become the sixth named Duke of Gueldres. Gueldres rulers
(the Rainalds) continued to be a situation of peaceful coexistence between the surrounding
domains (Countries) and the Reynolds family because they provided a service that was
critical to survival of all of their neighbors — ship building. The family ruled their domain.
They built roads, built dams, cut the timber, sawed the lumber, and provided a good
standard of living for their subjects. The Rainalds (The Three Foxes Ship Building

was still primarily involved in ship building. Although, about this time the
family developed deep and long lasting abilities in barrel construction — they became
coopers. This was a logical evolution in industrial growth since almost everything that
went aboard ships was placed in wooden barrels. Certainly all liquids, water, beer,

whiskey, wine, and other ‘drinkables’ were shipped and stored in barrels. In addition,
almost all dry foods, breads, crackers, flour, sugar, and other basics were also shipped in

barrels. Then consider that pickles and other condiments and spices were shipped and
stored in barrels. Even dry manufactured goods, like leather and harnesses, along with
wooden wares were shipped and stored in barrels to protect them from salt from the sea.
So the two industries — ships and barrels — went together like hand and glove. It became
a tradition for the Reynolds family to be involved in being coopers, even long after their
ship building days were over (several generations in the future). They were
internationally famous for ship building and barrel making. They would carry this art into
America some 600 years in the future.
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Figure 40: Map of Gueldres (Source: Internet - “guelre.gif at odur.let.rug.nl” - University of Texas ).

September 1066 AD: In the invasion of England, probably in the battle of Hastings,
William Rainald, Duke II of Daventria, Lynn’s 22nd great grandfather, died in battle. He
was returned and interred at the Abby of Deventer.

About 1080 Years AD: Rainald du Daventria, Duke IV of Daventria/Gueldres, Lynn’s
20 great grandfather was born.

1086 Years AD: The Great Domesday Book was published by King William. This book
was primarily a definition of various taxable land holdings by loyalists to the King.

Author’s Note: The ‘Domesday Book’ or survey as it is known in the U.S., was ordered
by King William. He was constantly being challenged conflicting claims to title of

lands by his Norman friends and loyalists. The King sent teams of ‘commissioners’
into most of the counties of England to ascertain and record taxable holdings. The
order was made in 1085 and the instructions were that it would be completed within
one year. This was accomplished. The Domesday Book recorded all valuable and
taxable assets, includi lou d, fishi ights, stock, mills, forests, salt pans
even ducks, geese and goats, anything of taxable value. Importantly, it also recorded
the tenants-in-chief, under-tenants, sometimes man-at-arms, freemen and slaves who
held these assets. It could be regarded as the first official census. It became known
as the Domesday Book because, whether implicitly stated or implied that the holders

of the assets, or their beneficiaries. successors or assigns, would be entitled to them
until the last Domesday Book was finally read.’
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Lancashire was almost wholly the domain of Count Roger of Poitou, third son of the
great Earl Roger de Montgomery II (better know as Earl Roger). Earl Roger received
almost all of Shropshire holdings. Robert d’Ouilli (Doyly) held 61 manors in Oxford.
And so it went as spelled out in the Domesday Book. However there were others richly
awarded for the loyalty and assistance in the invasion. The Corbet family was awarded
38 lordships (close relatives to the Rainalds of Gueldres). Rainald the Sheriff of
Shropshire married Amiera, Earl Roger’s niece and was also a relative of the Reynolds
in Gueldres.

The Rainalds of Gueldres were also awarded with lands and holdings in England. As
was previously stated, their holdings in Gueldres were gratuitously expanded. In
England, they were given a castle and land in ‘Acton Reynold’. The castle was called
‘Acton Reynold Hall’. Another castle called ‘Rossie’ was partitioned to the Rainalds.

Lands in Pangdean were secured to the Rainalds. The domain of Brantonshire was part
of their holdings and lands in Kent and Sussex were given to them. Altogether, the

Rainalds were relatives, were contributors to the cause, and were warmly rewarded with
enormous land, and holdings because of their participation in the Norman invasion. The
Domesday Book was extremely generous in specifying assets to the Reynolds family.

1096 Years AD: The First Crusade begins with the siege of Antioch.

About 1100 Years AD: The North American Native Indians had developed better
techniques for injuring the maple tree. Better hatchets, tomahawks, and tools
allowed larger gashes to be introduced. Even though this was more damaging to
the trees, it made it easier to devise methods to transfer the maple sap from the
gash to the container. Several instruments were used, like sticks, roots, vines,
willows, and eventually, carved troughs, allowed the flow from the injury to the
container which could be placed on level ground some distance from the tree.
This was probably about the time when the injury was to the trunk area of the
tree rather than limbs or branches as in the past.

zim. ‘ !ﬂ!f
“Little House is sugar,
OF with snow is piled,
Vi its ting window,
Js a maple sugav child.”

JBY JLangston Sughes
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Figure 41: Many legends exist about maple syrup and the Native Americans. This is one that appeared in 1959 (source: “Boy’s
Life for March, 1959” - Reynolds Family Archives).

About 1117 Years AD: Rainald du Daventria, Duke V of Daventria -Gueldres, Lynn’s 19
great grandfather, was born.

1137 Years AD: “Eleanor of Guienne (Eleanor of Aquitaine) marries French King Louis
VII, joining Aquitaine and France.”

About 1138 Years AD: Adren Rainald, 6" Duke of Gueldres, Lynn’s 18t great
grandfather, is born.

1146 Years AD: The Second Crusade begins.

1147 Years AD: “Moscow, Russia is founded.”

1152 Years AD: “Eleanor of Guienne divorces Louis VII of France. She marries Henry
II Plantagenet, who becomes King of England in 1154. This begins a long struggle
between France and England over Aquitaine.”

About 1178 Years AD: Adan Rainald, 7" Duke of Gueldres, Lynn’s 17t great
grandfather, is born.

Author’s Note: Notice is made that Adrian, Adren, and Adan, all are spellings or similar
usage for the name “Adin”,

1189 Years AD: The Third Crusade begins.

About 1200 Years AD: Adan Rainald married Glaci de Brabant, a noble family in
Brabant, Lynn’s 17 great grandmother.
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About 1200 Years AD: Further development of the troughs for transfer of maple
sap from the tree to container. By Indian lore, the first troughs were used for this
purpose in this general time frame, however, they are not documented until
about 1500 AD.

1203 Years AD: “Philip Augustus expels English from Normandy and conquers the
province.”

About 1216 Years AD: Rainald I of Gueldres, 8" Duke of Gueldres, Lynn’s 16t great
grandfather is born to Adan and Glaci Rainald, of Gueldres.

1216 Years AD: The Fourth Crusade begins.
1227 Years AD: “Genghis Khan dies.”

About 1240 Years AD: Rainald I of Gueldres, married Margaret de Flanders, Lynn’s 16%
great grandmother.

1263 Years AD: “Remaining Norsemen (Viking Ancestors) ejected from Scotland.”

1274 Years AD: Rainald II of Gueldres, 9" Duke of Gueldres, Lynn’s 15% great
grandfather is born in Deventer, Gueldres.

About 1300 Years AD: Certainly by this date, some degree of overheating
(scorching), has occurred, the result of course being carmelizing (sugaring).
Whether the sugar was burned or by some quirk of fate turned out to be usable
sugar, the net result was the discovery of maple sugar. This was so significant
because it allowed the natives to store the sugar for long periods of time. It gave
a year around supply of maple sugar and syrup, and a bartering tool.

June 18, 1318: Eleanor of Woodstock Plantagenet, Daughter of Edward II of Caernarvon,
King of England (by marriage, Lynn’s 16t great grandfather) Lynn’s 15% great
grandmother is born at Woodstock Palace, Oxford, England.

1324 Years AD: Rainald III of Gueldres, 10" Duke of Gueldres, Lynn’s 14th great
grandfather, was born in Deventer, Gueldres, son of Rainald IT and Eleanor of Gueldres.

May 1336 Years AD: Rainald II of Gueldres, married Eleanor of Woodstock Plantagenet,
daughter of Edward II of Caernarvon, King of England, Lynn’s 15% Great Grandmother,
at Nijmegen, Gueldres. By virtue of this marriage, Edward II, King of England, became
Lynn’s 16% great grandfather.

Author’s Note: The marriage of Rainald II of Gueldres to Eleanor of Woodstock, daughter
of the King of England, had considerable significance on the research for the contents of
this book. As already noted, any association with nobility, made information more readily

available as records were meticulously kept concerning royalty. By the various marriages
that transpired between the Reynolds family and English nobility, caused bits and pieces

to be saved, when placed together, made telling the story of this family possible. This is
especially true concerning this marriage. It allowed the story of the ‘Gueldres Era’ to be
preserved and told.

Both Rainald II (died 1343) and Eleanor (died April 22, 1355) are interred at the Deventer
Abbey, Gueldres.
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Deventer was known as an educational center from approximately 900 years AD. This
was advantageous to the Reynolds family as most all of them received higher education
by virtue of their status and standing in their domain. This was especially true of Rainald
I of Gueldres, as he was known as an accomplished writer and poet. His documentation
of some of the early history of the ‘Gueldres Era’ is now just coming to light. Hopefull

as more is uncovered or revealed I will be able to add to this very interesting and historic
period.

1337 Years AD: “The Hundred Years’ War begins between France and England.”

1348 Years AD: “Start of the black death plague in Europe.”

Author’s Note: The impact of the ‘black pl e’ had such an impact on the populations

of Europe during the next 50 years that I believe an explanation of this event deserves

discussion. Microsoft’s Encarta provides a complete description of the disease and its
devastation:

“The Black Death, a form of bubonic plague, first appeared in China during the 14t
century. The disease would kill tens of millions of people during the decades that
followed. The plague had been known in Chine as early as 224 BC. It is caused by the
bacterium Yersina pestis and is transmitted to human beings by infected fleas and
rats. In most cases the victim suffers from fever, chills, fatigue, and painfully swollen
lymph nodes. The 14t-century plague acquired its name from another symptom:
hemorrhages that turned black. In its most deadly form, the disease affected the
lungs, and it was easily transmitted by droplets from coughing or sneezing.

The Black Death began as an epidemic in the Gobi desert in the 1320s and spread
to China. By 1400 it had reduced the population of China by 30 percent, from 125
million to 90 million. The Black Death followed trade routes west to India, the Middle
East, and Europe. In Cairo, Egypt, a city of 500,000, roughly 7,000 people died each
day at the height of the epidemic. By 1349 the plague had killed one-third of the
population of the Muslim world. In 1347 the Kipchaks, nomads from the Euro-Asian
steppe, deliberately infected an European community with the disease. While laying
siege to a Genoese trading post in Crimea, they lobbed plague-infected corpses into
the town by catapult - possibly the source of the plague in Europe. From the Crimea
the Genoese inadvertently brought the disease to Sicily in a ship carrying infected
rats. It swept through Sicily in 1347; North Africa, Italy, France, and Spain in 1348;
Hungary, Austria, Switzerland, England, Germany, and the Low Countries in 1349;
and reached Scandinavia in 1350. Norsemen carried the disease to faraway Iceland,
and probably carried it on to their most remote outpost, Greenland, where the plague
may have hastened the end of the Viking settlements. Some 25 million Europeans
were killed by the initial onslaught of the Black Death; whole villages were wiped out.
The disease returned to Europe again in 1361-63, 1369-71, 1374-75, 1390, and 1400.
In its course, the Black Death carried away a greater proportion of the world’s people
than any other disease or war in history.

European society was transformed by the disease, which took roughly one-third of
the population between 1347 and 1351. New forms of religious behavior developed.
One of the more macabre response was the emergence of flagellants, men and women
who attributed the disease to God’s wrath. In an effort to appease their vengeful Lord,
they wandered from town to town bearing crucifixes and ritualistically whipping
themselves. Others blamed Jews for the plague and conducted organized massacres
of Jews, slaughtering 2,000 in Strassbourg and 600 in Brussels. Many clergymen
perished in an effort to comfort the afflicted, and some Dominican friaries were left
nearly empty. As aresult, the church lacked educated clerics in the wake of the
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disease. A succession of momentous events can be traced to the plague: labor
shortages, demands for higher wages, efforts to control the economy, and, in response,
strikes and peasant rebellions.

Bubonic plague endures to this day and spread rapidly in South America during
the early 1990’s. If the disease is detected early, the patient can usually be restored to
health. In Europe and Asia in the 14th century, however, no medical shield could
protect against the Black Death.”

Author’s Note: It is not known if the Plague claimed Reynolds family members,
however considering that one third of the total population of Europe died, it is probable
that it also took its share of this family. However, from the standpoint of labor shortages
and labor pressures on the family, it will become clear that the family felt the impact from
the Black Plague. It probably converted this family from feudalistic (Domesday Grants)
holdings to more conventional business holdings. This probably was a factor in reducing
the noble titles on the family and provided the transition in which the Reynolds became
builders rather than rulers.

About 1350 Years AD: Rainald III of Gueldres, married Marie of Brabant, daughter of
John III (The Triumphant), Duke of Brabant.

Author’s Note: The marriage of Rainald III of Gueldres, and Marie of Brabant was
another marriage of nobility. This was becoming important because the “Coexistent
Treaty” of surrounding Provinces was slowly ‘crumbling’. This marriage stalled the
inevitable infringements that would occur from the neighbors of Gueldres. The power of
the ‘Dukes of Burgundy’ was growing, and they were especially ambitious in acguiring
lands of their neighbors. Since Normandy was no longer a factor in protecting or using its
influence, Gueldres (The Reynolds Family), was at the mercy of other provinces. This
marriage had significance and it helped to delay such a take over on a massive scale.

1356 Years AD: “English Edward, the Black Prince, captures John II of France and his
son, Philip the Bold of Burgundy, at Poitiers.”

About 1382 Years AD: Rainald IV, 11" Duke of Gueldres, Lynn’s 13" great grandfather,
was born in Deventer to Rainald IIl and Marie of Gueldres.

Author’s Note: As evidence created by the conflict between France and England, and the
close family relationship of the Dukes of Burqundy to the King of France, greed ultimately
led to further pressure on the surrounding provinces. Burgundy was especially interested
in the ship building industry of Gueldres. were showing interest because o
France’s conflict with England. Because of the marriage of Reynolds II to the daughter of
the King of England, France was convinced that their loyalties were shifting to England. I
believe that pressure was steadily applied to the Reynolds of Gueldres not to sell ships to
England, and may have influenced the final decision to take over Gueldres by Burgundy.
However, before Burgundy could act, the Holy Roman Empire, a friendly factor to
Gueldres, assisted for the transfer of wealth and the Reynolds family members to
England where they had considerable holdings due to allocation of assets by William in
1086. The Reynolds left the Province of Gueldres, sacrificed their holdings, but left
peacefully after approximately 450 years of compassionate rule which benefited all their
subjects and their neighbors. However, the Dukes of Burgundy eventually took over the
province by force. Burganians were later removed as Gueldres (Gelderland) assumed
alliance with the “Low Countries” (Holland) and moved towards independence with the
Netherlands.
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Thus ended the ‘Gueldres Era’ for the Reynolds family. After the move to
England, the spelling of ‘Rainald’ reverted again to ‘Reynolds’. It is believed that the
Reynolds moved to Brantonshire, England, in about 1400 AD. They kept their ‘royal’
capacities, as a ruling class. This move also ended their several hundred years
involvement in ‘ship building’, but did not end their participation in wood working
industry. The family continued to be “Coopers”. They established a barrel making
industry in England. They also became involved in “shoe last” production and eventually
were significant in the manufacture of shoes. They were ‘tradesmen’ — ‘manufacturers’,
but had ‘noble’ connections which assured them of business success.

About 1400 Years AD: There is evidence that the Sokoki Native American
Indian tribe had developed some form of “Sugar House” by about this period.
The Sokoki (an Eastern band of Algonkian family known as “Abenakis”) tribe
was located in extreme western Massachusetts and extended north to Lake
Champlain and into Vermont and New Hampshire. There is confirmation of this
by a personal visit that John{1+t) Reynolds made to the tribe to be introduced to
maple sugar malking, in the fall of 1629. At that time, the story goes that the
Sokokci tribe had already been using indoor cooking facilities (“Sugar Houses”)
Jor over 200 years, thus about 1400 might be close to this maple development.

About 1405 Years AD: Rainald IV, 11%* Duke of Gueldres, married Corley Acton, Lynn’s
13* great grandmother, in Acton Reynold, England.

1412 Years AD: “Jeannette d’Arc (Joan of Arc) was born in Domremy, France.”

About 1431 Years AD: Robert(1%) Reynolds, Earl of Brantonshire, Lynn’s 12h great
grandfather, was born to Rainald IV of Gueldres and Corley (Acton) of Acton Reynold,
England.

1435 Years AD: Christopher Columbus was born near Genoa, Spain.

About 1450 Years AD: Robert(1st) Reynolds, Earl of Brantonshire, married Dame
Margaret Constable, Lynn’s 12t great grandmother.

October 19,1453: “English surrender last outpost in Aquitaine to French, ending the
Hundred Years’ War.”

About 1465 Years AD: Robert(2d) Reynolds, Earl of Bergholt, Suffolk England, Lynn’s
11* great grandfather, was born to Robert Reynolds, and Dame Margaret Constable of
Brantonshire.

1485 Years AD: Henry Tudor defeats King Richard III, King of England and assumed
the throne. The Tudor claiming the crown ended the Plantagenet line of Kings.
English nobles so weakened by lack of labor from the Black Plague and declining
business climate, that the Tudor reign essentially ended feudalism in England.

October 12, 1492 Years AD: “Columbus discovers North America.”

Author’s Note: Columbus is generally credited with discovery of America, but as
already noted, Leif Erikson had visited the North American coast some 500 years
earlier. Let me just say, Leif Erikson discovered the northern coast of American and
Columbus, the southern coast of America.
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Author’s Note: “In 1493, one year after Columbus discovered Ameri rica, Spain declared
the lands now known as North America, as sovereign to that nation. Even tho

these lands were thought to be the eastern edge of Asia, the lands were named

‘America’, after a Florentine merchant, Amerigo Vespucius. This was considered a
sham by Columbus, who considered this naming as an attempt to discredit him and to
destroy his honor. The claim by the Spanish was highly objected to by Portugal,
because at the time Amerigo Vespucius was under the service of the Portugese King.

The ultimate resolution awarded Brazil to Portugal.”

\ AN

F:gm 42: Depiction af Jean Nicolet’s impressive landmg af Grezn Bay, W‘ucomm in 1634 {Sam From a painting in the
Wisconsin State Capitol - Reynolds Family Archives)
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CHAPTER 12

THE ENGLISH YEARS

Robert{24) Reynolds, Earl of Bergholt, Lynn’s 11* Great Grandfather
Mary of Cardington, Lynn’s 11t Great Grandmother
1. Robert(3rd)

Robert{34) Reynolds, Lynn’s 10* Great Grandfather
Marie of Cause Castle, Lynn’s 10t Great Grandmother

1. Christopher
2. Nathaniel

Christopher Reynolds, Lynn’s 9t Great Grandfather
Allyson of Arundel, Lynn’s 9* Great Grandmother
. Geo

rge
Christopher
Mary
John Thomas
Cornelius
Robert
William
Richard
Thomas

George Reynolds, Lynn’s 8th Great Grandfather
Thomasyn Church, Lynn’s 8% Great Grandmother

1. John{1%)

2. William

3. Anna

4. Robert

5. Thomas

6. Christopher
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Author’s Note: In about 1400 when the Reynolds family moved back to England,
things were not so good. The major conflict was between France and England (‘The
Hundred Years’ War). France was still under English rule, but war existed during the
next 200 years over portions of French territory. The move to England by the Reynolds
was politically motivated and business oriented. Because of the marriage of Rainald II,
Duke of Gueldres, to Eleanor, daughter of the King of England, the political favor became
obvious from England. And in contrast, because of this favorable light from England,
France (Normandy was now essentially part of France) had suspect that the family’s
loyalty had shifted from France to England. And, conversely, England knowing that the
Reynolds had prior loyalties to France, they had suspect for total loyalty to England.
Thus, the Reynolds family was somewhat “a family without a country”. It was considered
to be safer for all involved for the family to move to England, because of land holdings

received from William the Conguerer were somewhat more secure than those in the battle
fields of France. But, the Reynolds family also had considerable holdings in France
through relationships to the Reynauds and the Corbets. Due to these political
considerations, the Reynolds family changed the spelling (Rainald back to Reynolds),
which was more typically an English spelling. The situation eased as time went along,
but the Reynolds were somewhat diminished in power because of this loyalty doubt. In
all honesty, I cannot judge which loyalty was stronger at this point in history for the

olds lish or French). However, there was a great sense of satisfaction by the
family to return to England carrying a title of nobility, in light of the way King Godfrid
Reynolds of York had been banished from England by the King of England in 944. This
was a victory of sort for the Reynolds to be able to return to England in a noble and ruling
class. And, in those Gueldres years, they had established themselves as superior.
industrialists through their ship building and barrel making facilifies. They were well
known, and highly respected in the business community internationally. England was
pleased to have their talents and contributions towards the industrialization of England.
This was in spite of the failure of the Reynolds family to return to ship building. However,
as mentioned before, they remained in the barrel making business and became of
significance in the shoe industry. It was a lateral move, in that there seemed to be a
continuity in their business affairs, which were not diminished by their move to England.
Politically, I doubt if the Reynolds family ever regained total loyalty to either France or
England. Their ancestors had strong roots in both countries and certainly they remain
there today. There seems to be a much stronger ancestral bond to royalty of Engl
thus the security existed due to family ties to the Royal Family of England. But in all
reality, the Reynolds were looking for their own country. So, for the next approximatel
200 years, I believe they were searching for a place to settle and England was a
transition location. Ultimately, the family chose to come to America and this is where they

established their roots without ever looking baclke.

During their years in England, approximately 1400 to 1629 years AD, the country was
recovering from the ravages of the Black Death (Black Plague), which had reduced the
population by approximately one third. This had caused a drastic labor shortage. It
was a time of social and economic change. Bartering exchange was being replaced
with cash payments, and serfdom was on its way out. The country was weakened by

years of war which dragged on and was inflamed by bitterness of the generations. The
weakness of the royal government allowed a breakdown in law and order. Feudal

barons (some called Earls) remaining, became ve owerful in defending feudalism as
an answer to the economic pressures on the rest of the population, which were living
on their estates. Wool export, which had been the countries leading export, declined
drastically. The need was there for a powerful leader which could balance the
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presence of industrialists which were controlled by the feudal barons, and needs of the
population to earn a living. That leader was to be Henry VII in 1485.

Encarta describes it this way: “Henry VII possessed only his ability and the ancient
name and audacity of his Welsh ancestors. His grandfather had married the widow of
Henry V, and his father had married Margaret Beaufort, who was descended
illegitimately from Edward III. Henry’s only claim to the throne was his victory at
Bosworth and his subsequent success. The Pragmatic Tudors gave England the
government it wanted; with the exception of Mary I, they seldom tried to lead where
their subjects were not ready to follow.

Henry got rid of his Yorkist rivals, including some impostors. He married Elizabeth,
Edward IV’s daughter, and soon had a nursery full of babies, the only Tudor so
blessed. He gained recognition abroad, from Spain in 1489 by the Treaty of Medina del
Campo, and then from France, the Netherlands, and Scotland. He restored strong,
efficient government, such as England had once enjoyed but lacked for many years.

He promoted English trade, which he could tax, avoided foreign wars, and saved
money. He became rich and powerful, commanding England’s respect if not its love.”

This strong leadership affected the mentality of the English industrialists in a positive
way. They loosened their grip on their tenants (subjects in a way). They developed
factories that paid wages. Cities and villages were established. Strong government also
improved exports such as barrels and shoes which affected the Reynolds family. Shires,
domains, and estates slowly were carved into civilized ‘socialism’. The business climate
improved and the Reynolds prospered. They evolved into true businessmen and. the titles
such ‘Earl’ or ‘Baron’, were dropped a a couple of generations. became ordina

citizens with a noble past.

June 24, 1497: “John Cabot explores coast of North America for England.”
August 1, 1498: “Columbus discovers South America.”

About 1500 Years: The Chippewa Indians of Wisconsin developed a very large
trough for transporting maple sap from the tree to the container placed on the
ground. Prototypes of these “troughs” have been carved by Native Americans and
are on display in Wisconsin Historical Society museums. It is estimated that
these very large carved “troughs” were driven into the bottom of a large gash
made to the trunk of the tree. These were the original transfer vessels used by
John(1st) Reynolds to tap trees near Waltham (Waterton), Massachusetts in the
spring of 1630. The “troughs” must have been used by that date by the Sokoki
tribe too, because it was at their sugar bushes, where John(1st) was educated on
how to tap trees and make maple syrup.

December 14, 1503: Nostradamus, medical physician, scholar, astrologer, and source
of the most phenomenal prophecies and predictions in the history of mankind, was
born in St. Remy, France. He died in 1566.

Author’s Notes: Nostradamus accurately predicted his own death (date and cause), the

existence of Napoleon, Hitler (by name), and Saddam Hussien. He predicted World
Wars I, II, and the Gulf War. He envisioned flying in machines. He predicted space

travel and the conquest of modern medicine and technology. He predicted the Cuban
missile crisis and the violent death of President Kennedy. He told of computers and
the viruses they would contain. He predicted the fall of Russia and the German ‘wall’
surrounding it, resulting in the end of the ‘cold war’. His predictions are so extensive
and accurate, it is frightening. He is credited with controlling the Black Plague in
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France, by introducing immediate burning of infected bodies upon death. He was
considered a devil by the Catholic Church, but remained a faithful member until his

death. Several of his prophecies are still recorded and may affect our lives in the very
near future. I would like to cite a few of his predictions for the future: “Itis

prophesied that in the seventh month (July) of 1999, or perhaps in early August, just
after the end of that seventh month, the King of Terror’ will descend upon the
Earth......... Who - or what - is the King of Terror? Almost certainly an individual who
will unleash nuclear war upon the planet.......and after the descent of the King of

Terror the world will be ravaged by conflict of a previously unknown ferocity.......... At
the time of Olympic Games of 2008 a world leader who will be the head of a sinister

necromantlc cult and ma we]l b the of Terror’ will ¢ out an action of major

iel sweet wines and honey being more expensive than beeswax”.

A fascinating man of the past, and one that lives with us today in prophecy. I am
infatuated with his predictions and the accuracy of them.

1505 Years AD: Robert(3d) Reynolds, Lynn’s 10* great grandfather, was born to
Robert(27d)and Mary Reynolds at East Bergholt, Suffolk, England.

1506 Years AD: “Columbus dies.”

February 22, 1512: “Americus Vespucius, after whom America was named, died in
Seville, Spain.”

April 2, 1513: “Ponce de Leon reaches Florida and discovers St. Augustine.”

1513 Years AD: “Vasco de Balboa crosses the Isthmus of Panama and reaches the
Pacific Ocean.”

1520 Years AD: “Hernando Cortes conquers Montezuma and the Aztecs in Mexico.”

About 1525 Years AD: Robert(3d) Reynolds, married Marie of Cause Castle (A distant
descendent of the Corbeau family), Lynn’s 10* great grandmother.

Author’s Notes: In this approximate period, the Reynolds family moved to Kent County,
England. They built a shoe factory and other wood products, including wooden barrels,

produced by water power, on the Medway River. This factory was of substantial
conseguence. The reason that Kent County was chosen was for its remaining forest
reserves. Up to this time, timber was cut on the various estates that belonged to the
Reynolds families. But as reserves dwindled, they moved to where the resource was

readily available. The following description of later day Kent County is transcribed from
Bartholemew’s Gazetteer of the British Isles 1887.

“Kent, an important maritime county in SE. of England, bounded N by the Thames and
the North Sea, E. and SE. by the Strait of Dover, S. by the English Channel, SW. by
Sussex, and W. by Surrey; greatest length, W. to E., 65 miles, greatest breadth, N. to
S., 35 miles; 995,392 acres, population 977,706 (in 1887). The surface of the county is
hilly, being traversed E. and W. by the North Downs, a chalk range from 3 to 6 miles in

breadth. On the N., along the shores of the Thames and Medway, there is a belt of
marsh land, which extends over a mile inland. The greater portion of the seaboard is
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washed by tidal water. Besides the Thames and Medway, the chief rivers are the Stour
and the Darent. The soil is varied and highly cultivated, more especially in the valley
of the Medway. All classes of cereals and root produce are abundant, as is also fruit of
choice quality, and more hops are grown in Kent than in all the rest of England. The
woods are extensive. The chief manufacture of the county is paper, most of the mills
being on the banks of the Medway, Cray, and Darent. The Government works and
dockyards at Woolwich, Chatham, Sheerness & Co., employ an immense number of
the inhabitants. Fishing is extensively prosecuted along the coast and in the estuaries
of the rivers Thames and Medway, of which the oyster beds are especially famous.
Historically Kent has greater associations than any other county in England............. ¥

1530 Years AD: Christopher Reynolds, Lynn’s 9h great grandfather was born in Kent
County, England, to Robert(3™) and Marie Reynolds.

1535 Years AD: “Jacques Cartier lands at Quebec.”

1538 Years AD: “Jacques Cartier reports that the Native Americans were
producing a wine from a sap that flows from maple trees. He described the flavor
as ‘delicious’.” Again it is not clear why he called it a ‘wine’. It could be the same
as Leif Erickson’s description describing partly boiled sap or possibly a slightly
fermented sap, or simply pure maple syrup. This report is unclear.

Authors Note: I would be abrogating my responsibility to avoid recognizing a
group of scholars represented by Carol I. Mason, Anthropology Professor at
University of Wisconsin, Fox Valley, who claim that the French settlers taught
the Native Americans how to make maple syrup and maple sugar. I simply refer
to such a theory as ‘technically incorrect’. First of all, it does not even make
sense. For ers, there are reports that ta wounds hes) are visible
for over four hundred and fifty years in some maple trees of New England. This
would preceed any white man’s travels to North America. To repeat an earlier
general statement in this book, it would be impossible for me to believe that
wind, lightning, or other natural phenomenon did not reveal to the natives that
this liquid was sweet, and that the production of maple sap and syrup evolved
from there, over several hundred years prior to the European white man ever
stepping on North American soil! And in fact, I am confident that the natives
taught my own family to produce maple syrup in the fall of 1629. By legend, in
1629, the native Americans had been producing maple syrup for several
‘thousand moons’ (hundreds of years) prior to that time. That time period would
transcend any white man being in North America. Recent archeological finds,
establish that Native North Americans domesticated corn and squash seeds at an
estimated 1500 B. C. in comparison to 500 A. D. as earlier suspected. These finds
further substantiate the potential for Native Americans making maple syrup well

before even the birth of Christ.

May 30, 1539: “Fernando de Soto lands in Florida.”

1540 Years AD: “Garcia Lopez de Cardenas discovers the Grand Canyon.”

1541 Years AD: “The de Soto expedition reaches the Mississippi River.”

1542 Years AD: “de Soto died of fever on the Mississippi River near Arkansas.”

1554 Years AD: Christopher Reynolds married Allyson of Arundel, Lynn’s 9 great
grandmother, in Kent County, England.
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1555 Years AD: George Reynolds, Lynn’s 8" great grandfather, was born to Christopher
and Allyson Reynolds, in Kent County, England.

1558 Years AD: “Elizabeth I becomes Queen of England.”

February 18, 1562: Huguenots (French Colonists) set sail for the new world.”

April 23, 1564: “William Shakespeare was born.”

September 8, 1565: “Spanish settlers found permanent colony in St. Augustine,
Florida.”

January 20, 1584: George Reynolds married Thomasyn Church,
Lynn’s 8" great grandmother, in Thomasuville Church, England.

March 25, 1584: “England gives charter to Sir Walter Raleigh.”

1586 Years AD: Robert Reynolds, the eldest child, was born to George and Thomasyn
Reynolds in Kent County, England.

May 1587: “English make settlement at Roanoke Island.”

Summer 1598: “Troilus de Mesgonez, Marquis de la Roche establishes a small colony
on Sable Island off of Nova Scotia”.

March 26, 1602: “Bartholomew Gosnold lands at New Bedford, Massachusetts.”

1604 Years AD: “Sieur de Monts begins French colony in St. Croix, between New
Brunswick and Maine.”

Summer 1605: “Port Royal (Acadia), Nova Scotia is established.”

April 10, 1606: “First Charter of Virginia granted by King James I to the London
Company.”

April, 29,1606: “The London Company founds the first English settlement at
Jamestown, Virginia, with about 100 men.”

July 3, 1608: “Samuel de Champlain founds French settlement at Quebec.”
May 23, 1609: “Henry Hudson discovers the Hudson Valley.”

June 13. 1609: “Champlain was the first white man to visit Ticonderoga.”
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Figure 43: Depiction of
Samuel de Champlain in
1609. Champlain was
called the “Father of
Canada” (Source: Parker
Historical Print No. 9 -
By Tom Parker 1959).

January 3, 1612: John(1st) Reynolds, their youngest child, Lynn’s 7t great grandfather,
was born to George and Thomasyn Reynolds in Kent County, England.

October 11, 1614: “Captain John Smith discovers the New England coast.”

June 1, 1616: “The population of Canada is
3,215. This was from a census conducted by
the French.”

December 15, 1617: “Pilgrims transmit formal request for independence.”

November 13, 1618: “Great Charter of rights and liberties creates the Virginia
commonwealth.”

July 30, 1619: “House of Burgesses formed in Virginia.”
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August 13, 1619: “First Africans sold to planters in Virginia. Slavery is introduced to
America.”

Author’s Notes: The institution of slavery is not a subject upon which I wish to
dwell. However. it is part of our family history. I am ashamed to admit that members
of the Reynolds family practiced enslavement of other human beings, but they did.
Even though the practice by the Reynolds family preceded their moving to America,

nonetheless I cannot ignore our shared responsibility for such a practice. I wish to

review briefly the history of elements of this sinful and awful practice. Microsoft’s
Encarta describes slavery in the following manner:

“During the 1400’s Portuguese explorers pushed down the coast of West Africa,
seeking a sea route to Asia. In the process they discovered that Africa itself had
‘commodities’ they wanted—particularly gold and human beings.

So began the enslavement of Africans by Europeans. The institution of slavery
is repugnant to modern thought and inconsistent with the ideals of many of the
nations that practiced it, including England and the United States. For this reason,
slavery is a puzzling phenomenon among people who later came to emphasize human
rights.

The background of slavery lies in a combination of precedent, ethnocentrism,
and greed. During the 1500’s and 1600’s, slavery was a common institution. Slavery
was practiced in Europe, Asia, Africa, and America. John Smith, one of the founders of
Virginia, was at one time a slave in Turkey. Africans commonly enslaved other Africans
during the years when English, Portuguese, and Spanish ships began to arrive on their
coast. Contrary to the stereotype of European seamen raiding for slaves along the
African shores, cargoes were usually acquired from African merchants in their trading
posts. The slaves were acquired from a variety of indigenous sources in Africa,
including wars, criminal proceedings, and in some cases, the sale by impoverished
natives of family members to African traders.

The institution of slavery throughout the world was often accompanied by the
argument that the enslaved person was a member of an inferior race or tribe. Chinese
considered Mongolians inferior, the Iroquois despised the Hurons. Englishmen
denigrated Irishmen, and the Ashanti of the Gold Coast looked down on other African
peoples. The sense of racial superiority eased whatever pangs an individual might feel
about owning a slave—after all, he or she had been born to be a ‘hewer of wood and
drawer of water’.

Greed, another universal quality, also played a role in slavery, whether in
Europe, Africa, Asia, or America. It was more satisfying and more lucrative to own the
labor of another person than to rent it. Slavery was a profitable institution.

The Spanish used both Indian and African slaves in America, beginning in the
1500’s. In 1619 a Spanish ship carried a cargo of Africans to colonial Jamestown.
They were the first Africans to arrive in the region that became the United States.
Curiously, these involuntary immigrants were not at first enslaved. The more common
form of servile labor in English colonies was indentured servitude, by which a person
served a master for seven years and was then freed. The first Africans in Virginia were
treated as indentured servants and were freed after a term of service. Many became
farmers, and some even acquired their own African servants.

Within several decades, however, greed and precedent came into play. There
were worldwide precedents for slavery, and a planter who wanted a steady labor force
could see the advantages of slave labor. New laws adopted in Virginia by about 1650
established that blacks arriving in new cargoes would be servants for life, as would
their children and their children’s children.
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During the 18% century a few voices in the western world were raised against
the slavery. England abolished the institution in 1773. During the American
Revolution many Americans came to oppose slavery because it was inconsistent with
their democratic ideals. It was abolished in all of the northern states, and in the
south, laws were passed providing for the voluntary freeing of the slaves, a practice
known as manumission.

During the 19% century slavery as abolished throughout the Americas,
including Brazil, which finally ended it in 1888. The practice continued in Africa and
the Near East into the 20t century. Institutions resembling slavery still exist in the
Dominican Republic, Pakistan, India, and elsewhere in the modern world. Usually
they involve ‘debt bondage’, a practice which allows one person to hold another in a
condition of permanent servitude. As in the past, precedent, prejudice, and greed
provide the motive and justification for commodifying human beings”.

August 20, 1619: “Sir Walter Raleigh is hanged by King James I for high treason.”

September 16, 1619: “William Bradford leads group of Puritan Separatists to Cape
Cod.”

November 11, 1620: “The Mayflower Compact completed.”

December 21, 1620: “Pilgrims settle at Plymouth Rock, Massachusetts.”

December 31, 1620: “Estimated colonial
population is 2,499.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 3,830.”

March 22, 1622: “Indians kill 347 settlers near the Jamestown colony.”

June 16, 1623: “The Dutch build Fort Nassau in New Jersey.”

November 1623: “Governor Bradford organizes the first Thanksgiving feast.”

1624 Years AD: “A letter from an unknown citizen in Jamestown mentions that
one of the men in the employ of the London Company, was taught to make maple
syrup by the local Indians.” Certainly, by this time the Huguenots (French), the
English, and other French trappers and settlers had been taught by the Indians to
make maple syrup. But I cannot find any record that indicates that the
production was but extremely limited, and was not any more than for private and
individual use. And, at this point of time, maple syrup making was very isolated
by the white settlers, and remained an Indian produced product.

1624 Years AD: “Dutch settle New Amsterdam (New York City)”
“King James I revokes Virginia Company’s charter and makes Virginia a royal colony.”

“Virginia Blue Law of 1624 requires church attendance on Sunday.”
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March 27, 1625: “Charles I becomes King of England.”

About June 1625: “Jean Nicolet, through his expedition party, reported maple
syrup production in Southern Ontario by the Huron Indian Tribes.” Nicolet lived
several years with the Hurons while exploring the Great Lakes. The caricature
below is believed to have been from Nicolet’s expedition party.
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Figure 44: “Canadian Hurons making maple syrup, historic period
(Could have been in 1625). J. F. Lafitau, Moeurs des Sauvages
Ameriquains (Paris 1724) 1l: 125. (Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

September 1625: John(1') Reynolds received his apprenticeship from his father George,
Jor qualified skills as a ‘Cooper’ and general woodworking crafts, at the age of thirteen.

Author’s Notes: From the age of thirteen to seventeen when John{1%) left for America, his

duties in his father’s company were delivering barrels to Ipswich docks for use on the
ships. Of course John{1%!) loved the docks because he was able to hear stories of people
sailing around the world and especially to ‘America’. The enthusiasm in the young man
was aroused by the violence, the danger elements, the forests, the Indians, the
ruggedness, the wilderness, and the excitement for the future. It was not whether young
John was going to America, it was only when. During these barrel deliveries to the
docks, was when John{1st) heard about sap running from trees and the
wonderful product that the Indians made from the sap. I fit John’s interests.

It was from the forest, it was new, it was exciting, and it was maple syrup in
‘America’. It was from these stories that John(1!) was able to convince his father that

this was a good plan to go to America. Convincing two of his older brothers was much
easier. The real problem was to convince Robert (the oldest brother), because without his
guidance, John(1s!)’s father would never consent to the adventure. Robert was agreeable
because he was a businessman with a vision. Robert’s acceptance to overseeing the
move to ‘America’, was strictly a business decision. He would accept, he would lead, and

he would never look back. Robert made plans to sell his shoe factory in London, and
started planning a ‘Reynolds family move’ to the new world. Robert was meticulous in his
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preparations, because unlike his three single brothers that would accompany him, he had
a wife and at that time four children (five by the time of the move in 1629).

1626 Years AD: “Indians sell Manhattan Island for 60 guilders (roughly $24.00).”

March 4, 1629: “Charles I grants first charter of Massachusetts.”

May 16, 1629: John(1%*) Reynolds married Sara Chesterfield, Lynn’s 7 Great
Grandmother, in Kent County, England. John(Ist) was 17 years old and Sara was 15.
She would follow John(1%) to America, but not until April of 1634.

June 6, 1629: John(1st) Reynolds, along with his brothers, Robert, William, and
Christopher, sailed from Ipswich (Port of London), England for Boston, Massachusetts,
and the shores of America.
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A Reynolds Migration Map

John(1sY) Reynolds moved from England to
Watertown, Massachusetts in 1629; then to
Wethersfield, Connecticut; moving on to Stamford,
Connecticut; and finally in 1650, settled in
Greenwich, Connecticut.

R z
Figure 44A: Depiction of the colonist’s life in the 1620’s. Dangers existed from the
weather, the Indians, and wild animals. Guns were carried everywhere, even to
church. (Source: “Builders of Our Country” - Reynolds Family Archives).
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ime ut:

“Come, boys, get the auger and spouts,”
Sear theiv happy-go-lueky shouts;

«/nto the woods, away they go

Over the ice and melting snow.

Washed ave the buckets, free from grime;
“Hurry, boys, it is tappin’ time.

7he sun is high: tomight ‘twill freeze,
AHang those buckets on the trees.”

At sappin’ time it is such fun
Zp and down hillsides on the van
From tree to tree like squireels they leap

Carrging pails, some on the jeep.

Hear that tinkling drip, drip, drip,
A‘lr for a cool, melﬁng .iP.f

Crystal clear it vans from a tap,
7hat spring-time tonic, maple sap.

“7he pails ave full”, we hear them say
At the end of the busy day;

WWith gathering tank on the rack

7he teactor brings o full one back.

From tank to tank the clear sap flows
7o evaporators it goes;

Jt bubbles, boils, makes clouds of steam,
Fills the eabin from floor to beam.

A roaving fire, temperatave high,
Stacks of wood in the shed near by,
Catheved mang months before

70 have it handy at the door.

Seems strange that maple trees should know

</ust when it's time for sap to flow.
And when a storm is passing by
They feel the east wind in the sky.
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7hey know when it will rain or snow,
And when cold northeast winds blow:;
JVo sap flows then, for maple teees

SVeed balmy weather — warmer breeze.

7he vendor's cry is not ouv lot,
7he amber fluid's been canned hot
Jn clear glass jars where all can seo

How tempting maple syrup can be.

On ice eveam, waffles, pancakes, too,
JNVo other syrup quite will do

JFor breakfast, dinner, and at night
7© pep & waning appetite.

“Come, boys,” with busy weeks ahead,
o919, pleasant hours, few spent in bed.
With sunnyg dags, night's freezing clime,
e know it’s maple sappin’ time.

By Esther S. ander, Two
Rivers, Yy/isconsin - 1976



CHAPTER 13

1ST GENERATION AMERICANS

(The Maple Syrup Industry Is
Born)

John(1s) Reynolds, Lynn’s 7% Great Grandfather

Sara Chesterfield, Lynn’s 7% Great Grandmother

1. John(27) Reynolds - Judith Palmer
(1) Joshua Reynolds
(2) John{3d) Reynolds
(3) James (Captain) Reynolds
(4) Judith (Reynolds) Betts
(5) Mary Reynolds
(6) Jonathon Reynolds
(7) David Reynolds (Lieutenant)

2. Elizabeth Reynolds - Peter Ferris
(1) Ann (Ferris) Jagger
(2) Joseph Ferris
(3) Elizabeth Ferris
(4) Peter Ferris
(5) Mary Ferris
(6) Elizabeth Ferris IT

3. Jonathon Reynolds - Rebecca Husted
(1) Elizabeth (Reynolds) Enapp
(2) Rebecca (Reynolds) Hobby
(3) Jonathon Reynolds
(4) John Reynolds
(5) Sarah (Reynolds) Mead
(6) Joseph Reynolds
(7) Ebenezer Reynolds
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June 27, 1629: “John Winthrop leads Massachusetts Bay Colony into Salem Harbor.”

Author’s Notes: Data and statistics are very limited for the very early settlers in the
new world. But it is believed that about one half of the emigrants, of all the very early

sailing’s, died aboard the ships due to spoiled food, contaminated water, and general
lack of medical attention. Most of those that died were women and children. And then,
it is believed that only about one half of those that lived through the trip survived the

Ist winter on the new land. Again most of deaths were women and children. Most of
the deaths were poor, they lacked provisions, their shelters were essentially dugouts

in the ground, and disease was rampant.

Robert Reynolds was of the upper class in London. He was a businessman. He was
affluent. And he made it his business to know what the hardships would be both on
the ship and when they landed in a ‘wilderness’. He had a family and he prepared well
for their welfare and safety. And, he accepted responsibility for his three companion
brothers that sailed with him and his family. Robert booked passage on the ‘Aaron’, a
ship that was in those days first class’. He chose the finest available and a Captain
that would provide the best, and be a safe vessel for his family. He made sure that
adequate supplies were aboard the ship and protected by being smoked and with salt
brine against the summer heat. He had adequate medical provisions, along with a
physician who was also going to America. The water was protected, and provisions
were made for boiling, if nece to limit contamination. The family transported
animals for milk and eating with them, not relying on lack of reasonable food

provisions when they reached their destination.

In addition, the Reynolds family being a talented woodworking family. They knew how

to build things. They were especially adept at creating things of wood. They were
familiar with operations from cutting the trees, logging in general, saw milling, crafting
wood, and building everything from cabins (houses) to furniture and of course barrels.
And being able to afford the luxury, they were able to transport, an enormous amount
of woodworking tools with them. This established not only their ability to provide

shelter and safety, but provided a running start in the business ventures that Robert
had in mind.

July 29, 1629: The Reynolds family, John(1st), Lynn’s 7th Great Grandfather landed near
present day Boston, America. He was accompanied by brothers Robert, William, and
Christopher. In addition, there was Robert’s wife Mary, and their five children, Nathaniel,
Ruth, Tabitha, Sarah, and Mary. The Reynolds had landed in AMERICA.

Author’s Notes: Most settlers when reaching the shores of the new world were
weary, full of fear, consumed with concern for the unknown, and most showing severe
reservations about the decision they had made. This was just the opposite for the
Reynolds family. They had a reasonably comfortable crossing, they accepted the
challenge of the wilderness, they showed no reservations and had no desire to return
to England. To most newcomers, the vast forests were the curtain that covered all the
dangers and the unknowns. The vast forests to the Reynolds were beautiful. They
provided the natural resource that was so vastly devastated in the regions they had
just left. They looked at the trees as an opportunity for the future. They heeded the
dangers, but welcomed the excitement. They were not afraid. This was their land.
This was their future. This was their opportunity. This was their country. They were

no longer a family without a country. They were Americans. And they were proud
Americans.
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About August 1, 1629: The Reynolds family reached their homestead of 4 acres which
Robert had made purchase (Subscribed) arrangements before leaving England, in
Watertown, Massachusetts (near Waltham). The property had approximately 200
sugar maple trees. These homesteads were scattered, even beyond the limits of what
was known as Watertown, and without particular order and were known as “homestalls”.
Later, settlers were allowed to purchase additional lands for grazing, business, or timber
use. Both Robert and John(1st) both purchased additional lands in the area.

Author’s Notes: Even though Robert was not officially declared a freeman’ until
September 3, 1634, he nonetheless a land holder in 1629. The word ‘subscribed’ was

used for the description of the arrangement which was made in England in 1628. And,
Robert occupied the property in 1629, even though Watertown was not officially

founded until 1630, by Governor Winthrop. I can only conclude that the ‘subscribed

land’ was a purchase based on the prospect that Watertown would be founded in the
very near future.

September 1629: The Reynolds family completed their first home (an adequate and
substantial log cabin) in America, on the Watertown, Massachusetts property.

October 1629: John{1+) Reynolds, hired local Indian guides and translators, to
escort him to the approximate location of the Berkshire Mountains in western
Massachusetts, to visit the Sokoki Indian Tribe, for the express purpose of
learning how to make maple syrup. John{1st) had been made aware of maple
syrup malking back in England. To learn this art, was primary on John’s
priority list. He had Robert’s support in this investigation as a business
potential. Records are very vague, but it is estimated that John{1+) spent about
two weeks with the Indian Tribe, learning anything he could about how to tap
trees, what was needed in the way of equipment, and how to malke syrup. One
interesting note was the story that the Sokoki were using buildings (‘sugar
houses’) to make syrup already in 1629. John{l+), with his unigue wood
working ability, and his apprenticeship as a ‘cooper’, was able to grasp
considerable insight of improvements that could be made in the technigues,
which were being utilized by the Sokoki’s. John{l+t) was a great student. By the
time of his return to Watertown, John{1+t) was obsessed by what he had learned
and during the winter months of 1629 and 1630, John(1+) spent almost every
walking moment, with the skilled assistance of his brothers, assembling,
preparing, acquiring, and making equipment for the tapping of maple trees
during the upcoming maple syrup season in the Spring of 1630. Since one of
John(1+t)’s many hand scribbled wills (most of them partially destroyed),
included ’97 sweet water trothes, 189 sweet water spigots, and 267 coopered
bukits’, it is assumed that John(1st) carved some troughs, some type of spouts,
and made his wooden buckets. It is assumed that John{1-t) probably started out
with some form of trough that was driven into a gash in the tree (like those use
by the Sokoki Indians), and then later developed some type of spout that could
be driven into a hole that was drilled. With his woodworking ability and his
ingenuity, it was very likely he was “the father of the wooden maple sap spout”.
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Figures 44B and 44C:
Type of Hand Auger use
by early pioneers and
probably by John{lst) in
1630. And the type of
‘lean too’ sugar house
utinzed in that
day.(Seurce: Unknown -
Reynolds Family
Archives).

February and March, 1630: John{1+t) Reynolds, produced pure maple syrup
near Watertown, Massachusetts, for the purpose of selling the product. It is
estimated that he produced about 25 gallons of syrup. He was assisted by his
brothers and Robert’s family.

Author’s Notes: In a thorough review of all available records, I cannot find any
other Indian Tribe, or European white man that produced pure maple syrup
‘commercially’, prior to this time. [ fully recognize that the Native North
American Indians made syrup hundreds of years before John(1:t) Reynolds. I also
recognize that those Indian Tribes certainly bartered maple syrup and maple
sugar for various necessary items, but I could not find any indication that these

products were produced with the purpose of a business or actually being sold for
money, or financial gain. To John(1) this was a business. He would continue

that business for the rest of his life. Thus, I have to conclude that John(1%)
‘FATHER OF THE COMMERCML MAPLE SYRUP

IND US TR Y’ an industry which was born in 1630, Watertown,
Massachusetts.

April 30, 1630: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately %z Cent per pound or about 5
Y2 cents per gallon. Barter price: 2 rabbit
skins per gallon of syrup.

June 1, 1630: “Estimated colonial population is
8, 700.7

“Estimated population of Canada is 3,925.”
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About June 1630: In the year that John(1st) Reynolds established a commercial maple
syrup operation in Watertown, Massachusetts, it is now considered highly probable
that Jean Nicollet, set foot in Wisconsin (“Oui—Wisconsin”), from Lake Superior, on or
near the Apostle Islands. This is a recent discovery of documents and is not totally
accepted at this date of writing.

July 1630: “Governor John Winthrop, settled Boston.”

About July 1, 1630: William and Christopher Reynolds John{1!)’s brothers moved to
Providence, Rhode Island.

August 27, 1630: Reverend George Phillips conducted religious services at a gathering
in Watertown, Massachusetts. The gathering people were ‘puritans or Non-
Conformists’, not Pilgrims, or Separatists, or Brownists.”

Author’s Notes: The Reynolds family were certainly Christians, but were not the
fanatic loyalists that the puritans desired. Consequently, the Reynolds attended

church, but were not considered as involved as they were expected to be. This may

have led Robert to move to Boston where the religion restrictions were not as severe.

The Reynolds interests were business oriented, so whatever they were required to do

they did, but were not of the fanatic sect. This may have been the factor that caused
John(1sY) to move to a lessor demanding puritan sect in Wethersfield, Connecticut in

1636.

September 17, 1630: “John Winthrop founds Boston.”

October 19, 1630: “John Winthrop leads Puritan settlement at Massachusetts Bay.”

October 25, 1630: Robert Reynolds built a new house and a shoe manufacturing shop in
Boston. He moved his family to Boston. John(1!) assumed the house in Watertown.

Robert, with his connections in Boston, and as a major businessman because of
his shoe malking facility, had the perfect market for John(1s*)’s pure maple
syrup. Plans were underway for an expansion during the 1631 maple syrup
season.

The fall of 1630 and winter of 1631 was spent by John(1t) preparing for the
upcoming maple syrup season of 1631. This coming year, John(1t) would be
much better prepared for making syrup as he was now knowledgeable of what
to expect. He even constructed a roof (lean-to) structure under which he would
boil sap. The vessel for boiling was to be an iron kettle that Robert had
arranged for from his connections in Boston (probably imported from England).
John{1*t) made syrup at the Watertown location every year until his move to
Wethersfield, Connecticut. In fact, as far as it can be determined, John{1+t)
made syrup every year of his life, as did his descendants. It became a way of
life for the Reynolds family.
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Figure 45: The three kettle system
that was adopted by most syrup
makers in the early days of

the industry. Probably the

system utilized by John{1%)
Reynolds in the 1600’s

(Source: Unknown - Reynolds
Family Archives)

1633 Years AD: “Land around Hartford, Connecticut is purchased from the native
Indians.”

April 30, 1634: Sara Reynolds, John(1st) wife sailed from Ipswich, England aboard the
ship “Elizabeth”. She was accompanied by the families ‘Goodall’ and ‘Day’.

Summer 1634: “Trois-Rivieres is founded in Quebec.”

July 16, 1634: John Oldham led a small group of Watertown men to Wethersfield,
Connecticut, which they called “Pyquag”. They built a few log huts. Some of the men
stuck out the winter of 1634-35

About August 1, 1634: John(I) entered into some type of partnership with Isaac Mixer,
to establish a saw mill on Stoney Creek near the junction of Stoney Creek at the Charles
River, near Waltham, MA.

Figure 46: The type of water
powered sawmills of that day.
Certainly the type used by
John{1-t) and ancestors until
about 1800 when the direct
water powered saws came in.
The were called “Gang Saws”,
and extensively used. The
first ‘patent’ on this saw

was made by Joseph Jenks,
Lynn, Massachusetts in

1642 (Source: Reynolds
Family Archives).

e T LT

August 10, 1634: Robert Reynolds joined the Church of Boston. This meant that Robert
and his family were essentially ‘excommunicated’ from the more strict Puritan sect of
Watertown. But this did not last either as Robert still considered the Church of Boston too
strict. There he was one of the petitioners to create the Puritan church in Wethersfield,
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Connecticut. However, after a short stay in Wethersfield, Robert would return to Boston,
rejoin the Church of Boston, and remain in Boston for the rest of his life.

Author’s Notes: Robert’s leaving one church and joining the Church of Boston, and

then leaving that church for the wilderness of Connecticut, had significance as it was

impetus which caused John(1%) to follow suit; and was a factor, along with the
excitement of the wilderness, and the business opportunity, which initiated John(1st)

to move to Wethersfield.

September 3, 1634: Robert Reynolds was legally declared a ‘freeman’ of the
Massachusetts Bay Colony, by the General Court of Boston.

About September 1634: Jean Nicolet, lands at Green Bay, Wisconsin and officially
declares the territory a French possession.

Author’s Notes: The early 1600’s brought the French influence to America. In a book

by Moses Strong published in 1885, a clear and concise record of the French discovery

of Wisconsin is documented:

It is well authenticated that before 1640, Nicollet penetrated Wisconsin as far as the

Wisconsin river. In the Jesuit relation for 1640 is found this passage written from

Quebec to France, by Pere Le Jeuni:

‘M. Nicollet, who has penetrated farthest into these most distant regions, has assured

me that if he had pushed on three days longer. on a great river which issues from the
second lake of the Hurons (Lake Michigan), he would have the sea. Now I strongly

suspect this sea is on the north of Mexico, and that thereby we could have an entrance
in Japan and China.’

Parkman in his Jesuits in North America’ writes as follows:

As early as 1639, Nicollet ascended the Green Bay of Michigan, and crossed the
waters of the Mississippi.’

It is not probable that Nicollet saw the river that is now know as the ‘Mississippi’,

while it is certain that his visit to the Wisconsin River was in 1634, but no reasonable

doubt exists of his visiting the Wisconsin tribes in council during that vear, where, it is

recorded, there were assembled:

Four thousand warriors, who feasted on six score of beavers. He ( Nicollet) appeared

before them in a robe of state, adorned with figures of flowers and birds. Approaching

with a pistol in each hand, he fired both at once. The astonished natives hence styled
him Thunder Beaver’.”

I wish to describe, to the best of my ability, what he must have experienced as he

came down Green Bay, to the mouth of the Fox River. For several days on their voyage

down Green Bay they were curiously observed by the Winnebago Indians concealed

along the shoreline. By the time Nicolet reached the mouth of the Fox river (current
location of Green Bay, Wisconsin), word had spread that a stranger was entering their

world. As the canoces glided down the calm waters of Green Bay, he must have
experienced a thrill viewing the sloping tree lined shoreline, abruptly converting to

high rising cliffs. The entire shoreline was a wooded paradise. Maple was the
predominant tree, but with ample supply of white pine. Green was the predominant
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color. Lush was the state of the growth. Serene was the hush over the landscape. Not

even danger lurked as the Winnebagos’ were a friendly and curious tribe. In fact, by
the time he had landed, over four thousand excited tribe members greeted him. But to
show his strength, and to deter any troubles, Nicollet, fired two pistols simultaneously,

sent shock waves through the throng. The Indians immediately named him “Thunder
Beaver”. The name stuck. He was known by this name as word spread up the Fox

River which he was to soon embark. History describes Nicollet’s stay as “extensive”, it
probably lasted several days or weeks. Even though Nicolet was impressed by these
particular tribes, all in all he was disappointed because he thought he had discovered
China and the Orient. He advised his superiors in Montreal that the vastness of North

America was far more extensive than anyone imagined.

During this stay, Nicolet and his traveling companions were introduced to the
crafts, the talents, the ways, the customs, and the lifestyle of the Wisconsin

native Americans. Nicolet had previously spent considerable time and
visiting the Hurons along the St. Lawrence River. Thus he knew that the North

American Indian was actively involved in the production and bartering of pure
maple syrup and maple sugar. But, some archives indicate he was quite surprised
by how the maple syrup production in Wisconsin had progressed to a higher level
of technology than the Hurons. He and others were soon to discover that this

artful practice was widespread among the other tribes of Wisconsin, including the
Chippewa, the Stockbri the F the Winneb and others. Though the
calming effect of the Winnebago war, the Fox slaughter and the Blackhawk war,
eased some of the tensions between the “invading” whites, and the generally
friendly Indians, it took several generations before cooperative efforts were made
to share general beneficial crafts. Thus, maple syrup remained an Indian product
in Wisconsin until probably in the very late 1700’s when the white man finally
realized they could learn a great deal from the Native Americans. Maple syrup
and sugar making was one of those crafts. There isn’t any doubt where in the late
1700’s and the early 1800’s that nearly every settler, whether English, French,
Scandinavian, German, or other, made maple syrup for a sweetener. There isn’t
any doubt in my mind that this “art” was learned from the Indians as the process
had been practiced for hundreds of years prior to any white man setting foot in
the vast territory known as Wisconsin. Maple trees in Wisconsin were so
plentiful, that nearly everyone had the resource available to them. It was little
wonder that the Reynolds family immediately continued their commercial pursuit

of production of maple syrup when they reached this ample and lush resource
Enown as Wisconsin.

April 13, 1635: Elizabeth Reynolds, was born to John(1st) and Sara Reynolds, in
Watertown, Massachusetts.

May 1, 1635: The price of Maple Syrup:
approximately 0.7 cent per pound or about 8
cents per gallon. Barter Price: about 1 pint
(pound) of gun powder per gallon of syrup.

May 6, 1635: John(Ist) Reynolds was legally declared a ‘freeman’ of the Massachusetts
Bay Colony, by the General Court of Boston.
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May 14, 1635: Robert purchased an additional 27 acres in the ‘Waltham Meadows’ and

agreed to cut the trees to allow for grazing. Robert probably agreed because he needed
the lumber for shoe lasts, not grazing.

May 29, 1635: The group of freemen’, including Robert Reynolds, with his family, and
with approximately 60 other men, women, and children, along with horses, cattle,
swine, and other animals necessary for survival, migrated to Wethersfield, Connecticut
to form the new church. The weather conditions and danger from Indians was so
fierce that most of the original settlers moved back to Watertown, before the end of
1635.

December 2, 1635: Robert Reynolds, along with his family, moved back to Boston, to
more comforts it provided, and his business interests could be more conveniently tended
to. Itis interesting to note that Robert had moved and returned to Boston before the
General Court of Massachusetts have even ruled that they had the right to undertake the
project. Ironically, Robert rejoined the Church of Boston, at which he and Mary were
members the rest of their lives. But, it was the urging of Robert that led John(1%) to
pursue his interests by moving to Wethersfield in 1636.

b

. a

n 1632 (Source: “Robert and Mary Reynolds of
Boston” - Reynolds Family Archives). “Notice the ‘plllorystands’ in the foreground.”

January 1636: “The Indian population of Connecticut is estimated at approximately
7,000.”

January 1636: “Harvard College is founded in Cambridge, Massachusetts.”
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February 16, 1636: John(1s!) purchased 24 acres in ‘Waltham Meadows’, agreeing to cut
the trees for grazing. John(1s!) had no use for grazing, but the timber could be used in
the sawmill in which John(1st) was involved. The lumber (timber) probably went to his
brother in Boston and for building materials as the settlers were in need of these
supplies.

March 1636: John({1st) made maple syrup for the last time in Watertown,
Massachusetts. However, Ruth Reynolds, Robert’s daughter married John W.
Whitney, Jr., and they lived as a next door neighbor of John{1+t). After John{1+)
left Watertown for Wethersfield, he kept ownership of his Massachusetts lands.
It is believed that Ruth and her family made maple syrup on the original
Watertown property owned by her Uncle John{1st). She also would have had
access to the maple trees on lands owned by her father, Robert.
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April 26, 1636: The General Court of Massachusetts at its first session, declared the
following ruling:

“ratified and confirmed a dismissal of certain members of the Watertown Church which
had been granted on the 29t of March, 1635. The persons dismissed were Andrew
Ward, John Sherman, John Strickland, Robert Coe, Robert Reynolds, and Jonas
Weede, with intent to form a-newe in a church covenant in the River of Connecticut.”

About May, 1636: A sometimes disputed, but nevertheless, a documented
statement of Roger Williams to Governor Winthrop, in a letter of diplomatic
counsel: “Sir, if anything be sent to the Princes, I find that Canonicus would
gladly accept of a box of eight or ten pounds of sugar, and indeed he told me he
would thank Mr. Governor for a box full.....”

About June 1, 1636: John(1*t) moved with his family to Wethersfield,
Connecticut where he would continue to make maple syrup, as well as establish a
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sawmill, at which he sawed lumber that was transported to Boston, for use as
shoe lasts in Robert’s shoe factory.

Author’s Notes: It is believed that John(1*t) decision to move to Wethersfield was
influenced by Robert’s reports that there were a plentiful supply of maple trees in
Wethersfield area. In addition, resources of lumber for use in Robert’s factory was
dwindling in the Watertown area. Watertown was being steadily settled, lands
with timber were being cut extensively for grazing lands. Consequently
John(1*)’s move was probably a business decision, and not one of conciliation, or
a morality alliance with the church. John(l) was interested in maple trees and
oak trees to cut to supply his brother’s business. He also sawed lumber for other
settlers in the Wethersfield community. Wethersfield provided a setting in the
wilderness and access to expansive forests for John(1t). “He followed the trees.”

July 31, 1636: John(1%) purchases 4 %2 acres in village of Wethersfield and builds a
house.

Sappy times and bygone daygs are never lost.......
«Jn teath, they grow move wonderful
within the heart that keeps them By ey Andrew

Figure 49: Type of water
powered sawmill built by
John(1#) Reynolds in
1636. A medium sized
water wheel was
standard at that

time. Large volumes of
water were not necessary
to operate the vertical
gang saws. (Source:
“Rural America” -
Reynolds Family
Archives).

Figure 50: John{1+) Reynolds’

house (location) in Old Wethersfield,
CT today. I am told that the very
back lean-to shed may be part of
John’s original building (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).
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September 30, 1636: Jonathon Reynolds, was born to John(1) and Sara Reynolds, in
Wethersfield, Connecticut.

December 13, 1636: John(1st) purchases approximately 27 acres outside of Wethersfield.

FebruaryMarch 1637: John{l+t) tapped trees and made maple syrup for the
first time in Wethersfield, Connecticut. It is expected that during the years
1637 through the spring of 1641, he probably tapped around 250 trees, on his
4 Y acres right in the village of Wethersfield, however he could have made

syrup on his other property of about 27 acres he owned just out of the village of
Wethersfield.
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May 26, 1637: “Pequot war between colonists and Indians begins.”
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July 13, 1637: “Pequot war ends.”

March 1638: “Windsor, Hartford, and Wethersfield hold a general court in Hartford.”
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January 14, 1639: “General court of Windsor, Hartford and Wethersfield at Hartford
adopts the Fundamental Orders of Connecticut.”

John(1s) and Sara Reynolds in Wethersfield, August 16, 1639: John(2nd) Reynolds,
Lynn’s 6t Great Grandfather, was born to Connecticut.

September 4, 1639: “Massachusetts General court passes the Blue Law of 1639
prohibiting the drinking of toasts. Repealed in 1645.”

May 1, 1640: Price of maple syrup:
Approximately 0.8 cent per pound or about
9 cents per gallon. Barter price: About %2
yard of broadcloth per gallon of syrup.

June 1, 1640: “Estimated colonial population is
27,947.

“Estimated population of Canada is 4,150.”

July 16, 1640: “On the sixteenth day of July, 1640, or twenty-five years after the
discovery of Greenwich by Adrien Block, Captain Daniel Patrick, a distinguished
English pioneer, accompanied by Robert Feaks, landed upon Greenwich Point, by the
Indians called Monakewego, and finally concluded a bargain with Owenoke, one of the
sons of Ponus, for that part of Petuquapaen lying between the Asamuck and the
Patommuck rivers. The brooks Patommuck and Asamuck gave their names severally
to those portions of land lying next west of them; so that the land thus purchased
nature of the bargain will be most easily undertook from the deed itself, which we have
below transcribed from the early records in the Town Clerk’s office. It will be observed
that the deed prescribes no northern limit to the tract, and we have no means of
ascertaining that there was any.”

November 3, 1640: “Connecticut Blue Law requires church attendance and prohibits
unnecessary travel on Sunday.”

About June 1, 1641: John(1st) moves his family to Stamford, Connecticut. John(1s!) sold
his properties in Wethersfield to Lieutenant John Hollister.

Author’s Notes: The Puritan sect of Wethersfield was just too strict for John(1st)’s
business interests. So much time and energy was required to be directed towards
the church, that John(1*) just could not devote enough resources towards goals
of success. The “action” was in the south of Connecticut. Ships were landing,
settlers were arriving in droves, and John(1#t) could see the potential. Naturally,
times were boom espe along the southern coast of Connecticut.
John(1st) could understand that with this expansion, there was a market for
maple syrup and wood products (especially for homes).
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About August 1641: John(1st) bought 3 % acres, and built a house located on the east
side of High Street (between John Gibb on the North and Andrew Ward on the South),
Stamford, Connecticut.

Author’s Notes: John(1s!) was one of 29 first settlers of Stamford (Called Rippowam at

that time). The settlers were “Robert Bates, Francis Bell, Samuel Clark, Robert Coe,
Richard Crab, Jeremiah Jagger, John Jessup, Richard Law, Matthew Mitchell, Thomas

Morehouse, Samuel Sherman, Vincent Simkins, Henry Smith, Andrew Ward, Thomas
Weeks, Richard Denton. Jeffrey Ferris, Daniel Finch, Robert Fisher, Richard

Gildersleve, John Northen, Thurston Raynor, John Reynolds, John Seaman, John
Whitmore, Edmund Wood, Jeremiah Wood, Jonas Wood, and Jonas Wood.” The
settlers were all from Wethersfield. John(1s) and Richard Crab, were the two settlers
that moved on to Greenwich in 1650. Robert Hustad would follow to Greenwich the
following year. The Reynolds kept close contact with their friends in Stamford.

Author’s Notes: John(1*) remained at what he knew best. He made syrup, he
established a sawmill, and prospered. He also became involved in civic affairs. He
is remembered as a man involved in community development. The Stamford

years were successful for he and his family. In fact, even though he moved on,
both he and his wife Sara are buried in Stamford.

May 18, 1642: “Montreal is founded by Paul de Chomedy, sieur de Maisonneuve.”

About September, 1642: John(1st) Reynolds donated 17 timbers for the building of a dam
across the Rippowam River, in exchange for establishing a saw mill. The dam was
constructed by Mathew Mitchell and John Ogden for the right to construct the village grist
mill. The grist mill was constructed by Samuel Swayne, but Samuel never settled in
Stamford.

Author’s Notes: By 1642, Rippowam’ was changed to ‘Stampfort’ and shortly
thereafter hecame ‘Stamford’. The village was reasonably established with homes,
roads, a dam, trade businesses, a sawmill, a grist mill, a functioning government, and

pasture lands that were enclosed and shared as ‘social property’. The village was
referred to as a ‘plantation’.

October, 1642: The Dutch, having established New York city, convinced the early
settlers of Stamford and what was to become Greenwich, that in return for protection,
the Dutch would control Greenwich territory. The Dutch claim went as far east as the
Connecticut River, where they maintained a fort at Hartford.

March, 1643: “England passes law banning religion except for the church of England.”

May 19, 1643: “Articles of Confederation of the New England colonies introduced.”

March, 1644: The Dutch decided they must once and for all, end the Indian problem
in the Greenwich and Stamford areas.

Author’s Notes: An account of this end to the Indian problems is described by Jeanne
Majdalany in the “Early Settlers of Stamford, Connecticut”: “Early in 1644 Captain
Underhill saw his chance for conclusively subduing the Indians in the Greenwich area.
The Dutch offered him good terms to work for them and he accepted. An expedition of
three yachts and one hundred and thirty men set out from New Amsterdam under his
leadership, and passing along Long Island Sound, they landed at Greenwich Point in
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an evening snowstorm. The next day they marched all day in a northwesterly direction
to an Indian village. A fierce battle ensued with the Indian warriors. A Dutch officer

wrote in his journal as follows: In a brief space of time, one hundred and eighty were
counted dead outside the houses. Presently none durst come forth, keeping

themselves within the house, discharging arrows through the holes....'Van der Hil (or
John Underhill) resolved to end the struggle by setting fire to the huts. ‘What was
most wonderful is that among this vast collection of men, women and children, not one

was heard to cry or to scream.” Five hundred or more Indians perished. The English

and the Dutch proved themselves as savage as any uncivilized group in history, but
this massacre in their view was justified as it did definitively end the Indian power in
that area.”

May 1, 1645: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 0.9 cent per pound, about 10
cents per gallon. Barter price: About 1 yard
of ‘Gingerline’ per gallon of syrup.

January 17, 1647: Judith Palmer, Lynn’s 6 Great Grandmother was born to William
Palmer and Judith (Feake) Palmer.

October, 1648: “Massachusetts School Act passed, requiring every town with fifty
households to maintain a grammar school.”

January 30, 1649: “King Charles | is executed. Monarchy is abolished and the
commonwealth is proclaimed in England.”

May 1, 1650: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 0.9 cent per pound, or about
10 cents per gallon. Barter Price: About 5
pecks Indian corn or 1 beaver skin per gallon
of syrup.

June 1, 1650: “Estimated colonial population is
34,950.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 4,285.”

About September, 1650: John(1) moved on to Greenwich. His sons, Jonathon
and John{2"?) remained in Stamford and made maple syrup in the 1651 syrup
season, but followed their father on to Greenwich shortly thereafter. John(1st)
was one of very first permanent settlers in Greenwich. He would remain in

137



Greenwich the rest of his life. It is believed that they tapped approximately 200
trees while in the Stamford area.

May 18, 1652: “Providence and Warwick outlaw slavery.”

June 10, 1652: “John Hull becomes first mint master, defies English colonial law by
establishing mint (currency).”

About July, 1652: John{Is!)’s home on 1 % acres in Stamford was sold to Richard Ferris.

October 2, 1652: “Charter for Rhode Island granted.”

July 15, 1554: Elizabeth Reynolds, daughter of John(1st) and Sara, married Peter Ferris,
in Greenwich, Connecticut.

May 1, 1655: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 0.9 cent per pound, or about
10 cents per gallon. Barter Price: About two
pints (pounds) of gun powder per gallon of
syrup.

About June, 1656: Jonathon Reynolds, son of John(1st) and Sara, married Rebecca
Husted, Greenwich, Connecticut.

October, 1656: “Harvard College accepts Galileo’s conception of sun-centered
universe.”

August 21, 1657: Sara Reynolds, Lynn’s 7" Great Grandmother, died in Greenwich,
Connecticut. She was returned to Stamford after her death and is buried in thecourtyard
of the First Congregational Church of Stamford.

April 27, 1659: Robert Reynolds, brother of John(1st) died at his home in Boston,
Massachusetts. He is buried in the courtyard of the 1st Church of Boston.

May 1, 1660: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 1 cent per pound, or about 11
cents per gallon. Barter Price: About 1 pint
(pound) of gun ‘shot’ per gallon of syrup.

June 1, 1660: “Estimated colonial population is
86,500.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 8,225.”
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December 1, 1660: “Connecticut Blue Law of 1660 requires married men to live with
their wives.”

“King Charles II ascends the throne, restoring monarchy in England.”

April 23, 1662: “Connecticut is organized by royal charter granted by the King’s
“Halfway Covenant” introduced in Massachusetts Bay. Charles II to Governor John
Winthrop.”

January 8, 1663: Mary, wife of Robert Reynolds, died in Boston, Massachusetts. She is
buried next to her husband Robert, in the courtyard of the 1st Church of Boston.

July, 1663: “Roger Williams receives charter for Rhode Island which recognizes
“liberty in religious concernments.”

September, 1663: “Prohibition of imports into the colonies except English goods.”
May 1664: “The English capture New York from the Dutch.”
“Connecticut surrenders claims to Long Island.”

“Rhode Island establishes freedom of religion.”

August 31, 1664: John(1+t) Reynolds, The Father Of the
Maple Syrup Industry of North America, diedin

Greenwich, Connecticut. He was returned to Stamford for burial beside his wife
Sara, at the 1+t Congregational Church of Stamford.
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Figure 52: Map of m:rth Anurlcn, showlng the Grant Lakes as created in 1650.
(Source: Geographical information was supplied by Jesuits. From the Wisconsin State
Historical Society - Reynolds Family Archives).
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Wisconsin. (Source: Historic Northeast Wisconsin, “A Voyageur Guidebook” -
Reynolds Family Archives).
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Chapter 14

THEY HELPED TO BUILD
AMERICA

John{2~4) Reynolds, Lynn’s 6* Great Grandfather

Judith Palmer, Lynn’s 6* Great Grandmother

1. Joshua Reynolds - Abigail Pennoyer
1) Daniel Reynolds
2) John Reynolds
3) Caleb Reynolds
4) Mary Reynolds

2. Johnrs'ﬂ) “The Cooper” Reynolds - Lydia Ferris
Lydia (Reynolds) Mills
2) Peter Reynolds
3) Judith Mills
4) David Reynolds
5) Reuben Reynolds
6) Lydia(2") Reynolds
7) Ruth Reynolds

3. Captain James Reynolds - Sarah Holmes
1) Sarah Reynolds
2) James Reynolds
3) Nathaniel Reynolds
4) Mary Reynolds

4. Judith Reynolds - Samuel Betts
1) Mary (Betts) Olmsted
2) Samuel Betts
3) Stephen Betts
4) Nathan Betts
5) Hepzibah (Betts) Nobles
6) Judith Betts

5. Mary Reynolds - Peter Palmer

6. Jonathon Reynolds - Mary Mead
1) Hezekiah Reynolds

7. Lieutenant David Reynolds - Penelope Wright

1) Penelope (Reynolds) Pennoyer
2) David Reynolds Jr.
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Author’s Notes: John(2) and his bmther Jonathon continued the family

tradition o le and their small saw mill, in

Greenwich. It is believed that they tggged about 250 trees while in Greenwich,
and moved their small sawmill to Horseneck (Greenwich). Since John(2")
became so involved in civil and government affairs, it is believed that his
brother Jonathon probably did more to keep these small sideline businesses
going than did John(2"¢). But by keeping the activities going in maple and
lumber, they managed to pass on to thelr ancestors the ‘kenow how’, and the
interest. The maple syrup production was probably similar to that which was
depicted by the famous Currier & Ives print below. It was like a ‘gentleman’s

Figure 53: “An American Forest Scene” by Currier & Ives depicts the ‘gentlemen’ atmosphere of maple
syrup making (Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

May 1, 1665: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 1 cent per pound, or about 11
cents per gallon. Barter Price: About 10
pounds of pork per gallon of syrup.

About June, 1668: John(2r4) Reynolds, son of John(1s) and Sara, married
Judith Palmer, Lynn’s 6" great grandmother, in Greenwich, Connecticut.
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Author’s Notes: John{Ist) and Sarah and their sons John(2"4) and Jonathon, along
with their daughter Elizabeth and her husband, Peter Ferris, all settled in the
“Horseneck” area of Greenwich, Connecticut. Horseneck derived its name from a
peninsula of high ground now known as Field Point. west of Greenwich Harbor, which
was at that time a horse pasture. Sound Beach, was “Greenwich Old Towne”.
Horseneck was the next settlement, and that represented roughly what is now the
modern city of Greenwich, Connecticut. 1668, the number of proprietors in Horseneck
had increased to and among them were John(24), his nephew John(3r) and
Jonathon. These three Reynolds were of the thi eligible voters. Of all the 50
proprietors, John(2n) was by far the wealthiest man. Jo 2M) was one of government.
He was elected the first magistrate o Greenwich, Connecticut. He also was the first

representative to the Connecticut legislature from Greenuwich.

June 21, 1669: “Charles II charters the British Hudson Bay Company.”

April 20, 1670: “Claude Jean Allouez, Jesuit missionary, celebrated the
first mass at Oshkosh, Wisconsin.”

May 1, 1670: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 1 cent per pound or about 11
cents per gallon of syrup. Barter Price:
About 6 knives per gallon of syrup.

May 2, 1670: “The Hudson Bay Company was chartered to colonize the
far northern region and to establish trade, including the ‘Wisconsin
Territory’.”

June 1, 1670: “Estimated colonial population is
114,500.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 12,960.”

May 13, 1673: “Father Jacques Marquette expedition leaves.”

Author’s Notes: The following excerpt is taken from the “History of Wisconsin”, by
Moses Strong, published in 1885:

“In 1673, M ette, with the Sieur Joliet lored the Fox and Wisconsin
Rivers, and descended the Mississippi below the entrance of the Arkansas, and then
re i ascended the Illinois and ing a po e to the Chicago River, descended
it to Lake Michigan and returned by that Lake to Green Bay. They left Sault St. M
May 13. They arrived safely at Green Bay and thence went up three leagues from the
“po e” and were probably near the head of Buffalo lake. One June 10, they left this

Indian town and embarked upon the Wisconsin, then called Mascousin. In seven
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days, they reached the Mississippi by the route of the great highway of nature, which

the Fox and Wisconsin rivers furnished, and which Nicollet had partially explored
thirty-nine vears before. The voyagers, having descended the Mississippi River to the
Indian village of Akansea, near the latitude of 33 degrees, on the 17% of July,
commenced their return voyage. In passing up the Illinois, Marquette was entreated
by the tribe of that name to come and reside among them. One of their chiefs with

their young men, conducted the voyagers to the Chicago River and Lake Michigan, and

Many explorers such as La Salle, Tonti, Hennepin, Du Gay, Greysolon Du Lhut,
and Iberville, along with hundreds of other famous names, searched and explored the*
upper Mississippi River and its tributaries. Many excursions led them into the Fox
and Wisconsin River systems, clearly establishing the ‘portage’ between the two river

June 10, 1673: “Father Marquette expedition reaches the Wisconsin
River.”

June 17, 1673: “Marquette expedition reaches the Mississippi.”

October 1674: “New Netherland transferred back to the English, called
New York.”

“King Charles grants New York to the Duke of York.”

June 24, 1675: “King Phillip’s War begins.”

1675: “In 1675, Father Marquette breathed his last and was buried on
the banks of the small stream named the Marquette River. His remains
were later moved to the Chapel of St. Ignace, of Michilmancina, and
buried beneath the floor of the Chapel.”

August 12, 1676: “King Phillip’s War ends.”

July, 1679: “Royal Commission separates New Hampshire from
Massachusetts.”

May 1, 1680: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 1 cent per pound or about 11
cents per gallon. Barter price: About 10
pounds of bacon per gallon of syrup.

June 1, 1680: “Estimated colonial population is
155,600.”
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“Estimated population of Canada is 29,400.”

February 6, 1682: “French explorer La Salle reaches mouth of
Mississippi River.”

April 25, 1682: “Virginia repeals slavery law of 1670.”

August 2, 1684: “Iroquois sign peace treaty at Albany, New York.”

September 26, 1685: Joshua Reynolds, Lynn’s 5% great grandfather was
born to John(2"4) and Judith (Palmer) Reynolds.

October 13, 1686: Abigail Pennoyer, Lynn’s 5% great grandmother was
born to Thomas and Mary Pennoyer.

February 24, 1687: “At Town Meeting ye town taking into serious
consideration ye want of civill officer amongst them in Sundry respect, it
being put to vote in ye towne ye towne accordingly per vote make choise on
John Renolds (John(2m4) Reynolds) Senior to be presented to ye townes ord
to ye Generall Court of confirmation in ye office. Place and dignite of a
Justice of the Peace or Magistrate.......... When he became a Justice of the
Peace in 1687, he acquired the then dignified and priviledged title of ‘Mr.’,
and was so generally referred to in deeds, town meetings, and the like.
The title of “Mr.” was reserved exclusively for the position of Justice of the
Peace. And ‘Esquire’ was a title which was exclusively used for those of
highest government involvement (Legislature). John(2"4) Reynolds achieved
both of these titles.”

October 31, 1687: “Sir Isaac Newton publishes Principia Mathematica, on
the laws of motion and the theory of gravity.”

May 8, 1689: “Nicolas Perrot took possession of a vast area including
Green Bay, the Fox River, Wisconsin River, and Lake Winnebago for the
King of France. Perrot was stationed at Fort St. Antoine in what is
modern day Pepin County, in the extreme western Wisconsin.”

August 25, 1689: “Iroquois attack the isle of Montreal at La Chine.”

December 16, 1689: “English Bill of rights is enacted.”

January 1, 1690: John(2") Reynolds was elected by vote to serve as
King’s Commissioner, and to be the village of Greenwich’s representative to
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the Connecticut Legislature. John(2r4) held this most high honor until his
death in 1701.

January 8, 1690: “Niclolas Perrot, a French fur trader who had an
excellent working relationship with the Winnebago, Sauk, Fox and
Menominee Indian tribes of Wisconsin, became the first European to
discover the lead mines of southwest Wisconsin. It would be nearly 140
years before the Wisconsin lead was mined as an economic resource and
shipped back to the eastern United States.”

February 3, 1690: “General Court of Massachusetts prints first public
bills of credit (to be used in place of money) in any of the colonies.”

“New Hampshire unites with Massachusetts.”

May 1, 1690: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 1 cent per pound. Barter
price: About 10 gallons of milk per gallon of
syrup.

June 1, 1690: “Estimated colonial population is
213,500.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 33,800.”

June 1, 1691: “Massachusetts receives new royal charter. Settlement at
Plymouth and Maine is placed under its governorship.”

March, 1692: “Salem witchcraft trials begin.”

January, 1693: “Six women renounce their confessions in the Salem
witch trials.”

April, 1693: “William and Mary College founded in Williamsburg,
Virginia.”

January, 1695: “First Jewish synagogue founded in America in New
York.”

1700: “Yale University is founded.”
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May 1, 1700: Maple Syrup Price:
Approximately 1 cent per pound. Barter
Price: About 5 pounds of beef per gallon of
syrup.

June 1, 1700: “Estimated colonial population is
320,400.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 37,200.”

November 8, 1701: Mr. John(2"4) Reynolds
(Esquire) died in Greenwich (Horseneck),
Connecticut. His funeral was given and attended
as one of the highest honor. He will be
remembered as a ‘gentleman’s’ maple syrup
producer.

Zime Cut:  V¥Daple Sugar Time

7 antalizing aroma from the woodland lot, Sueh great fan in that maple plot

WWheve maple syrup bubbles in an iron pot. We worked and sang but laughed a lot

Jn spring of the year it was alwags so. Lach pail of sap was emptied with care,
WWhen sap in the trees began to flow Steained and poured in the kettle there.
Father would know when the time had come Slowly but sarely the sap bubbled down

7o tap the trees so the sap would ran. And tarned to a syrup, fragrant brown.

Pith was cleaned from a cob of corn <Fust a little more cooking, it would be ready
And behold, a fragrant tube was born. 70 pour in big pans that YN other held steady.
Jt was placed in a hole bored in the tree, JVow every spring when the sap runs free,
Soon sweet sap was running free, J wish again that \J could be

PPails wore hung beneath each spout On the old farm home, in the maple plat,

7o cateh the sap that trickled out. Sniffing the fragrance from the big ivon pot.

JBy =elma JZomar
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Figure 54: Reprinted from the “Delineator Magazine, March 1919 (Source: Delineator Magazine”,
The Butterick Publishing Company, New York - Raynolds Family Archives).

Historic Note: The price of this magazine subscription in 1919 was $2.00 per year U.S. and $2.50 per
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CHAPTER 15

THEY CONTINUED TO FOLLOW THE TREES

Joshua Reynolds, Lynn’s 5% Great Grandfather

Abigail Pennoyer, Lynn’s 5* Great Grandmother

1. Daniel Reynolds - Ann Mead
(1) Isaac Reynolds - Prudence Zarr
(2) Samuel Reynolds
(3) Captain Shubel Reynolds - Hannah
(4) Hannah Reynolds
(5) Ann (Reynolds) Sutliff
(6) Daniel Reynolds - Sarah Husted
(7) Margaret (Reynolds) Stillwell - Amos Stillwell

2. John{4*') Reynolds - Joanna Winans
(1) Elizabeth Reynolds
(2) Joshua (Reynolds) - Darling
(3) Sarah (Reynolds) Enapp - Peter Enapp
(4) Gerardus Reynolds
(5) John Reynolds
(6) Jeanna Reynolds
(7) Jacob Reynolds - Martha Winans
(8) Alpheus Reynolds

3. Caleb Reynolds - Mercy Knapp
(1) Caleb Reynolds - Hannah Brown
(2) Anne Reynolds
(3) Mercy (Reynolds) Carpenter
(4) Joseph Reynolds - Sarah Brush
(5) Eunice Reynolds
(6) David Reynolds
(7) Mary Reynolds

4. Mary Reynolds
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Author’s Notes: Starting with Joshua Reynolds, the maple syrup and
lumbering tradition in America for the Reynolds family really begins. Joshua,
with the political connections of his father, John(2), started accumulating
land through grants from the Crown. It is not totally clear, whether all lands
uired were or if in fact, Joshua purchased some or all of them. He
was of considerable wealth, but he assumed control of considerable acreage in
a short period of time. Joshua recognized that New York City was booming. An
enormous influx of population signified the need for building materials. The
citizens of New York needed buildings, houses, business structures, schools,
etc.. Joshua in the true Reynolds tradition grasped the opportunity. He built a
large sawmill to the north and west of Greenwich on the Byram River. He
received over 1,000 acres on which he started a logging operation. In addition,
he got serious about making maple syrup. His maple operation was increased
to an estimated 1,000 taps per year. Marketing was easy, with his connections
to the elite of Greenwich and his business contacts in New York, the syrup was
essentially sold before it was produced. Many other businessmen followed
Joshua into the lumber business. No less than eleven very large sawmills were
built during Joshua’s lifetime in the general close proximity to Greenwich.
These water powered sawmills were not ‘large sawmills’ by todays standards,
but still were reasonably e, and uately served the market for

rough sawed lumber. They were pouring hundreds of thousands of board feet
of lumber daily, into New York in an attempt to satisfy the insatiable thirst the

city had for building materials. The other cities in the general area of
Greenwich were also growing and expanding at record rates. The eventual

consequence was that they slaughtered the timber resources of southwestern
Connecticut and southeastern New York, in about 50 years. Within Joshua’s

lifetime, he saw an entire -resource essentially dis ear. He and his
Sfamily prospered. The trees were gone. But, ‘in their folly’, they knew there

were millions more just a few miles away. “So they followed
the trees”

Some will say that this story should begin here. It really was the beginning of a
Ie towards el the trees of America. In the ed
the trees for maple syrup as utilization of a resource, while they slaughtered
the rest. The Reynolds did exactly that. Certainly the Reynolds family did not
do this alone, nor were they any more guilty than hundreds of thousands of
other Americans. But they must share the responsibility, because they
gmm‘ed as much or more than any other family in American history. If I
excuse for such undisciplined behavior, I must fall back on the

history of civilization. My justification is to look at their pasts. The first
Jourteen chapters in this book have done exactly that. In my opinion, my
lengthy lead-in to this point in history, relates to some form of justification.
Almost all colonists had livestock and all needed grazing lands. The trees were
in the way. Thus, greed, and the need for open grazing land encouraged
eliminating trees. No one objected. It was good for all. No one expected they
would use ‘all of those trees’. It does not excuse this mass execution of trees,
but it does provide some understanding of the mentality, necessary towards

moving to these greedy acts. “My family really did tap the trees, they really did

January 17, 1706: “Benjamin Franklin born in Boston.”
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March 7, 1707: “Great Britain is formed by union of England and
Scotland.”

May 1, 1710: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 1 ¥s cents per pound or about
15 cents per gallon. Barter price: About 250
board feet of lumber per gallon of syrup.

June 1, 1710: “Estimated colonial population is
411,300.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 59,800.”

March 31, 1713: “By the Treaty of Utrecht, Great Britain acquires the
Hudson Bay region, Newfoundland and Nova Scotia.”

January 1, 1717: Joshua Reynolds is elected as the Greenwich
representative in the Colonial Legislature, and is bestowed with the title
‘Esquire’.

April 27, 1717: Caleb Reynolds, is born to Joshua and Abigail Reynolds.

May 1, 1718: “French settlers founded New Orleans.”

May 1, 1720: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 1 ¥« cents per pound or about
15 cents per gallon. Barter price: About 125
board feet of pine lumber (the value of pine
had about double the value of hardwoods
because it would float and it was cheaper to
transport logs to sawmills) per gallon of

syrup.

June 1, 1720: Estimated colonial population is
474,388.
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“Estimated population of Canada is 72,500.”

September 27, 1722: “Samuel Adams born in Boston, Massachusetts.”

Author’s Notes: I found a note that was represented as being from an

‘unnamed family Bible’, that was typewritten and supposedly transcribed in
1824 that read:

“The Reynoldses Of Greenwich: It seems impossible that all of those thousands

of sweet water barrels and Spigots could have been made for syrup. I was a
good thing the Reynolds clan were all talented ‘coopers’....especially John, and
....for the staves from Joshua’s milL”

‘John’ as referred to, is John{3), ‘The Cooper’ (as he was known), was Joshua’s
brother. The entire family inherited cooper and woodworking talents from

previous generations which were invaluable in making wood maple sap buckets
and wooden sap spouts.

It was thousands of bits and pieces like the above transcription that allowed
me to place all of this in perspective, and from which I am able to tell the story.

October 1, 1722: “Copper and fur added to the list of products which
could be sent only to England.”

July 13, 1724: Daniel Reynolds, Lynn’s 4 Great Grandfather, was born
to Joshua and Abigail Reynolds, in Greenwich, Connecticut.

About April 1729: Ann Mead, Lynn’s 4" Great Grandmother was born in
Greenwich, Connecticut.

May 1, 1730: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 1 ¥: cents per pound, or about

15 cents per gallon. Barter price: About one
‘coopered’ wooden barrel per gallon of syrup.

June 1, 1730: “Estimated colonial population.
654,950.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 114,200.”
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February 22, 1732: “George Washington born in Bridges Creek,
Virginia.”

November 13, 1734: “Daniel Boone born in Pennsylvania.”

October 30, 1735: “John Adams born in Braintree, Massachusetts.”

January 12, 1737: “John Hancock born in Quincy, Massachusetts.”

January 29, 1737: “Thomas Paine born in Thetford, England.”

About April, 1738: Caleb Reynolds married Mercy Knapp in Greenwich,
Connecticut.

May 1, 1740: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 1 Y= cents per pound or about
17 cents per gallon. Barter price: About 4
pounds of butter per gallon of syrup.

June 1, 1740: “Estimated colonial population is
889,000.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 263,400.”

January 14, 1741: “Benedict Arnold born in Norwich, Connecticut.”

February 2, 1741: “New Hampshire separates from Massachusetts,
receives own royal government.”

September 1741: “Russia discovers Alaska.”

April 13, 1743: “Thomas Jefferson is born in Shadwell, Virginia.”

March 1744: “France declares war on England.”

August 1744: “The Alamo was built as a mission building.”

December 12, 1745: “King George’s War begins.”

June, 1746: “Princeton (New Jersey) University is founded.”
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About July, 1747: Daniel Reynolds, married Ann Mead, Lynn’s
4t Great Grandmother, in Greenwich, Connecticut.

October 18, 1748: “Treat of Aix-la-Chapelle ends King George’s War.”

May 1, 1750: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 1.8 cents per pound or about
20 cents per gallon. Barter price: About 5
gallons of syrup per pair of men’s leather
boots.

June 1, 1750: “Estimated colonial population is
1,207,000.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 296,400.”

March 16, 1751: “James Madison born in Port Conway, Virginia.”

June, 1752: “Benjamin Franklin discovers electricity with the
kite/key/electricity experiment.”

June, 1753: “The ‘Liberty Bell’ was hung in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.”

May 28, 1754: “French and Indian War (Seven Years’ War) begins.”

June 19, 1754: “King’s College (later named Columbia University) is
founded.”

June 6, 1755: “Nathan Hale born in Coventry, Connecticut.”

June 16, 1755: “Sir William Johnson was charged with construction of
Fort William Henry on the southern end of Lake George, New York.”

July 3, 1755: “Academy and College of Philadelphia (later named the
University of Pennsylvania) is founded.”

October 15, 1755: “Work on Fort Ticonderoga began by a young French
engineer, De Lotbiniere, overlooking the southern entrance to Lake
Champlain.”
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February 6, 1756: “Aaron Burr born in Newark, New Jersey.”

May 16, 1756: “England and France declare war on each other.”

July 31, 1756: “Construction of the first sawmill in the upper Hudson
River valley was initiated, by the French,, on the lowest falls of the
Riviere la Chute which flowed out of the lower portion of Lake George.
Water powered sawmills were not popular with the French, so the
sawmill development in the Lake Champlain valley was extremely slow.”

January 11, 1757: “Alexander Hamilton born in Charles Town, on Island
of Nevis in West Indies.”

August 3, 1757: “Wisconsin Indians took part in the siege and massacre
of Fort William Henry on Lake George during the French and Indian
War.”

About February 1, 1758: Daniel Reynolds volunteered to serve in the
Fairfield County Connecticut Militia. He served for approximately 15
months.

April 28, 1758: “James Monroe born in Monroe’s Creek, Virginia.”

About June 3, 1759: Daniel Reynolds was released from his obligation of
volunteering to serve in the French Indian War. He served honorably.

May 1, 1760: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 1.8 cents per pound or about
20 cents per gallon. Barter price: About 3
gallons of syrup per pair of women’s high top
shoes.

June 1, 1760: “Estimated colonial population is
1,610,000.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 312,200.”
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About 1760: Lynn’s 4th great grandfather De Gollier was taught to read by
George Washington.

Zime (Yat: YHrs. Polly Cain Groen,  Lynn's 2 Great Grandmother on Adin(3")'s mother's
side of the family related the following stories and they were documented in her obituary. Grandma
Green was 95 years old when she died in 1903:

‘Grandma Greon, as she was known in Sebron, J4/isconsin, could boast of the honor of
having seen General _[a _Fayette, she being a small girl at the time of his last visit to the Zfnited
States. She also hsd the pride of knowing that George Y¢/ashington taught her grandfathor e
Gollior to rend. Se was a boy of ten or twelve years of age when he applied for the situation as
Washington's page or waiter, and was accepted. (Ine day V/ashington asked him if he could
vead and he replied no. "} ou mast learn to read’, Y4/ashington said. Y4 ashington bought him a
book and he took his daily lessons of the great man.”

Another story told by Grandma Green of times during the _french Jndian Y¢/ar:

“She often told to her childven the story how her great grandfather Falmetier and family
were taken by the YNohawk Jndians. YDr. Falmetier with a neighbor had been in the woods to
cut a boe tree. They had just brought the honey to the house when they saw a band of Jndians
coming towards them.

Ser great grandmother had just taken several loaves of bread from the oven. The Jndians
ate all the bread and honey they wanted, then destroyed what was left.

dDrs. Plalmetier had her feather beds out aiving. 77hey took their knives, cut the ticks
open and threw the feathers into the aiv, then laughed at their destructive pleasures. hey enteved
the house, and what they did not or could not take with them they destroyed.

One Jndian saw a little dress hanging on a nail. Se took it down, held it up, looked at it
gave a grunt, said pappoose, and then put it inside his leather suit.

After destroying every eatable thing in the house except a box of chestnuts, they did not
see, they mavched the whole family with the neighbor into the woods.

Ger grandmother, a small girl at the time, had a large boil on one of her hips that lamed her
so she could not walk fast enough to keep up with the company. An old Jndian seized her, slung
her across his hip and held her there with his arm pressing against the boil. Ser mother walking
behind, saw her shutting her teeth to keop from crying cut. . She cautiously shook her head at her to
encourage her to keep still, while the bloody pus trickled down and dropped from her foot.

After making them walk a long way into the woods, they seated them in a row on a log.
7he goung braves would walk ap to them, hold up their tomahawks over their heads, while every
minute they expected to have them cut open, but the old Jndians shook their heads and made them
step back. 7hey kept them until almost sundown, then told ANrs. Palmetier that she and her
chitdeen could go home, but must not be seen out of doors for two weeks, then in that time they
would send her husband home.

As she turned to go she said: “ake good care of father’, and never expeeting to see him
again, she walked homeward with her children.

7hey lived on the box of chestnuts a few days, and cautiously stepped out to drag in a rail
or anything they could get for a five.

At last making up hor mind that starvation was about as erusl as the Jodians, she
ventaved out, dug potatoes, picked com to eat and got better wood to burn. At last the time for
her husband’s return came. She did not expeet him, bat one day he eame to the door and fell into
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the house. Se was taken many miles into the woods, kept in balf starved condition, and then sent
home. Ais neighbor was burned at the stake. After a fow days he got stronger, and went to the
place wheve the man was burned, picked up what bones he could find and buried them.”

February 10, 1763: “The Peace of Paris ends the French and Indian
(Seven Years’ War).”

June 21, 1763: “After the French and Indian War, the British
abandoned Fort Edward Augustus in Green Bay, Wisconsin, never to
return.”

November 10, 1763: “Pontiac, Chief of the Ottawa tribe, tries to drive
English settlers out of the Ohio Valley.”

November 23, 1763: “Great Britain claims all lands west of the colonies
Crown Lands and reserves them for Indians.”

August 13, 1765: Joshua Reynolds ‘Esquire’, Lynn’s 5% Great
Grandfather, died in Greenwich, Connecticut. He will be remembered as

one of the first real lumber ‘barons’ of America. Aﬂd, Joshua
probably was the largest producer of pure
maple syrup in North America, up to the
time of his death. This distinction would
soon be surpassed by his sons Daniel and
Caleb, who would significantly expand the
production of maple syrup within the
Reynolds family.

“Take your peedle...and work at gour pattern;
it will come out a vose by and by.’
Life is like that:
one stitch at a time taken patiently,
and the pattern will come out all right
like the embroidery.”
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Figure: 55 A: Reprinted from the cover of “Collier’s” magazine, March 15, 1950 (Source: “Collier’s’
Publishers - Reynolds Family Archives).
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CHAPTER 16

THEY SPREAD OUT AND MOVE

NORTH

(Maple Syrup Reigns)

Daniel Reynolds, Lynn’s 4% Great Grandfather

Ann Mead, Lynn’s 4th Great Grandmother

1.

L

6.

Isaac Reynolds - Prudence Zarr
(1) Aden Reynolds - Polly Reynolds
(2) Benjamin Reynolds
(3) Penelope (Reynolds) Woodward - Elisha Woodward
(4) Stephen Reynolds
(5) Mathew Reynolds
(6) Joseph Reynolds

. Samuel Reynolds
. Captain Shubel Reynolds - Hannah

. Hannah Reynolds

Ann Reynolds - Sutliff

Daniel Reynolds - Sarah Husted

7. Margaret (Reynolds) Stillwell - Amos Stillwell
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Author’s Notes:' Daniel Reynolds and his lifelong business partner, his

brother Caleb Reynolds, set out to make maple syrup production a real
business. Daniel was outgoing. He was a doer. He seemed able to accomplish

anything he set out to do. Caleb, on the other hand, was the typical
businessman. He was conservative, he was meticulous in planning, and he was

one who looked after all the details. They were a great pair to venture into the

wilderness of New York and establish a lumber co and a le
company of significance. They were the ultimate pioneers in this type of
venture.

A note in a file reads as follows (transcribed and typewritten about 1905),

allegedly from ‘unnamed family Bible records’: “Daniel and Caleb Reynolds are

building a sawmill and a maple syrup camp in the vicinity of Peelcsicill, New
York.......a large and dangerous situation.......1,200 acres......over 3,000

coopered buckets...... sealed wooden barrels for syrup......hauling syrup and

lumber all the way to Greenwich....they are guaranteed failure...... but Joshua
and John are behind them..... bui FLSeesess an enormous venture... ...God

be with them....... ” Note: Joshua was Daniel’s and Caleb’s{1+t) father, John was
John{34),’The Cooper’, their uncle.

Their plan was to build a 3,200 tree maple syrup production operation. In

connection with the maple production, they were building a sawmill on Hunters
Brook, near Courtland Manor (now Peelkskill), Westchester County, New York.
Daniel was to operate the land holdings (maple and lumber operation). Caleb
would be in charge of marketing and transporting the lumber and syrup into
Greenwich. Daniel moved physically to Peekskill and Caleb remained in
Greenwich. Caleb had an important civic position in that he held the position

of ‘Greenwich Minister of Hi S r’. It is not clear i urchased
the 1,200 acres, or whether it was a land grant. There is a deed on record for
Daniel’s home in Peekskill, but a deed does not show up for the land on Hunters

Brook. The lands for the lumber and maple operation may have been part of
another Crown grant, and was purchased by the Reynolds brothers from that
grant.

_A unigue marketing system was to be utilized for the maple syrup. They would
pacicage the syrup in about 18 gallon sealed wooden barrels, which would be
returnable for refilling the following year. This would make it feasible to
transport the syrup back to Greenwich for delivery to their customers. With all
the business contacts that Joshua had and the comununity contacts that
Caleb(1+t) had, marketing in this manner was a huge success. Syrup was selling
for about 20 cents per gallon. The price they charged was about $3.50 per 18
gallon barrel delivered into Greenwich.

Sormetime after the maple syrup ‘camp’ was operating (believed to have been
1766), Daniel made a trip to a site just west of West Rutland, Vermont, where he
viewed plans (blue prints if you will) of what I believe to be the first maple syrup
‘evaporator’ of record. The date is established by the fact the story claims that
Joshua(2") was 23 years old on the date of Daniel’s visit, and since he was
born in 1743, the year would be set at 1766. The ‘evaporator’ plans were
owned and had been developed by a man named Sterling Strathmore
(Steadmier?), who was tapping about 350 maple trees. The notes concerning
this man have his first name clearly as ‘Sterling’, but the last name is not
totally clear; however, it is believed to be similar to ‘Strathmore’. The story
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goes that Mr. Sta'uthmorewasan‘g;.qMtka:thadmnvedt:oM'en-lamFullsI

Vermont from Boston. Mr. Strathmore was a neighbor to Joshua({2"), nephew of
Daniel and son of John{4*) Reynolds. Daniel’s nephews Joshua(274), Caleb(2"4),
and R lds were petitioners in the 1766 dispute between New
Hampshire and New York. Joshua({2") along with Caleb(2"4) and Benjamin

migrated from Greenwich to Pine Plains (Upper Dutchess County, New York), and
finally to “Otter Creek”, which eventually became Rutland, Vermont. These

three R Ids made le near Rutland and Joshua{3) Reynolds (son
of Joshua(29), eventually moved to Wells, Vermont where he made maple syrup.
Joshua(2) died in 1818, at Rutland, aged 75, and is buried in Old North
Cemetery, Ruti Vermont. His farm was near West Rutland north of Merriam
Mills. He was a neighbor to Mr. Strathmore and was aware of his plans to build

a ‘maple syrup evaporator’. Daniel became aware of his work on plans for a

‘maple syrup evaporator’ through these Vermont Reynolds’ nephews.

Note: The above information is taken from the ‘Documented History of New

York’, ‘Families of Central Vermont’ by W. R. Cutter, and ‘History of Wells,

Vermont (unknown author)’. And, information as was contained on a

typewritten sheet, described as a transcription from ‘unnamed family Bible’

records’. Also, the genealogy was taken from ‘John and Sara Reynolds’,
compiled by Marion H. Reynolds, 1924. Family sketches from Stamford CT,
Greenwich CT, Peekskill NY, Amenia NY, Albany NY, Smithfield NY, Rutland VT,
Wells VT, and Merriam Mills, VT, and ‘A History Of The Town Of Greenwic,
Connecticut, by Daniel M. Mead, and other miscellaneous bits and pieces.

Mr. ‘Strathmore’s plans for a le orator’ consisted of three

two about 3 feet by 3 feet and about a foot deep, and one about 2 feet by 2 feet
and about a foot deep). These pans were described as to be constructed of ‘cast
iror’, ‘like kettles’, but with a flat bottom. The pans were to be set on brick

arches dug into a hillside, with gravity flow from one to another with a ‘wooden

trough’ between with a ‘paddle gate’ to control the sap flow during evaporation.
The smaller pan was obviously a ‘finishing pan’. The concept was not new, as

the Indians also used three kettles with one being smaller and used as a

finishing kettle’ for over a hundred years. The Reynolds of Greenwich had
been using that system (three kettles) for over fifty years. However, the transfer

of sap/syrup had to be dipped from one kettle to another. The new system
called for a gravity flow between the various pans. Thus, this pan system was

new and far more efficient. There were discussions between Daniel Reynolds
and Mr. Strathmore about man this three pan m. This location
in Vermont was essentially wilderness at this time. And Mr. Strathmore did not
have any facilities in that area that would attempt to construct these pans. So,

as the story goes, Daniel Reynolds and Sterling Strathmore made a business
deal. For the right to use Mr. ‘Strathmore’s plans’, Daniel agreed to furnish him
a free set of pans according to his specifications. In the meantime, Daniel
would have his evaporator built, and Mr. Strathmore would travel to Peeksville
and view their operation the following spring. If all worked out, after any
modifications, Daniel would then have Mr. Strathmore’s built for the following

————— e =

maple syrup season. There were obviously further discussions for
manufacturing and selling of this evaporator, but I could not find any

documentation about anything coming from these discussions. Howeuver.
Daniel took the idea back to Peelkskill, New York, and built a system to handle

sap from about 3,200 taps. This is the largest pure maple syrup operation in

North America to this date. I cannot find records of anything that even came

close to the sophistication of this maple syrup operation. And the following
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year, Daniel did deliver a set of sap pans to Mr. Strathmore, in Merriam Mills,
near Rut Vermo in 1768.

‘Daniel’s orator’ and ultimately ‘Mr. Strathmore’s orator’ was

fabricated in Greenwich. Daniel’s consisted of six pans, 5 pans were about 4
feet by 4 feet and about 1 foot deep, and one of about 3 feet by 3 feet and about

1 foot deep. It was fabricated by a blacksmith, named Isaac Howe, whose
ather, Is Sr. was a personal of Jos Ist) R lds. The Howes’

had been dated with the Reynolds, clear back to Stamford and there were
several intermarriages between the Howes’ and the Reynolds’. Their blacksmith
shop, carriage factory, and bolt factory was located on the Byram River, just
north of Greenwich. The Howe factory may have been the forerunner of the
‘Screw and Bolt Factory of Russel, Birdsall and Ward, on the Byram River, a
half-mile below Glenville’ or the ‘Tinners’ Tools Factory of Josia Wilcox, on the
Byram River, two miles north of Glennville’. Both of these factories were
involved in building maple syrup pans in the middle 1800’s. I is unclear
exactly how the first pans were constructed since rolled sheet metal probably
was not available at this time. To pour such pans with ‘cast iron’ would have
taken enormous molds. But somehow sides were attached to a bottom
vessel to constitute a ‘pan’. These pans were transported to Peelcsville where
were placed on brick arches into a side hill. The and operation
were the same for Mr. Strathmore’s pans, ex his rator only consisted
of three pans and were somewhat smaller, and with some modi ns. K was
described as an ‘e miracle’ at the time. Daniel’s Maple
Evaporator, I believe, was the first ever to be built in the world. I cannot prove,
but ect that this robably was continued as a forerunner to later

evaporator companies.

——
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Figure 55: A Sketch Of Daniel Reynolds’ First Maple Syrup Evaporator in 1767, used at Peekskill,
New York, and later in Essex County, New York by Isaac Reynolds. The system was designed by
Sterling Strathmore, Merriam Falls, Vermont (Source: A Reynolds Sketch).
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The other major obstacle for the maple and lumber operation in Peekskill, was
the terrain which had to be transversed for marketing the products. The
distance was only about 75 miles, but were 75 of most miles.
Even though there were some roads by this time, they were crude and
inaccessible due to mountains, low lands, swamps, rivers, rocks, and mud -

mud - mud!!l. The Reynolds approached this problem in a problematic manner.

John(4t), Daniel’s brother married Joanna Winans, from a Dutch family who
moved to Greenwich from the Province of Brabant (Netherlands). Her

ather William Winans’, who had been a n maker in Brab had a
of a wagon which had been used in the lowland country of Holland. It was
known to be especially effective in muddy and swampy terrain. The four
wheels were approximately 24 inches wide and about 24 inches in diameter at
the center. They were beveled from the center outwards to roximately 12
inches at the hubs. These wheels allowed travel through wet and mudd
terrain. They were a wooden product which fit right into the talents of the
Reynolds family, especially John(34), ‘The Cooper’. They needed to be towed
slowly, thus oxen proved to be the best way in which to pull the wagons. During

the season, sometimes 6 teams and even 8 teams of oxens were
necessary to drag these wagons through the mud. But at least, they did not cut

in to sink to the axles, which was the case with conventional narrow wheeled
wagons.

Figure 56: Sketch of ‘Reynolds’ Syrup and Lumber Wagon (Source: A Reynolds Sketch).

Daniel Reynolds, Lynn’s 4 great grandfather was a veteran of the French and Indian
War and the Revolutionary War. He was a volunteer in the Fairfield County, Connecticut
Militia during the French Indian War, 1758 and was a member of Captain George Peck’s
Company, Greenwich, Old Town, Connecticut Militia, 1776-1777. Joshua{2n4) served in
Colonel Mead’s Vermont militia regiment during the Revolutionary War “scouting Tories at
sundry times......". His father John, Daniel’s brother, served in the French Indian War
under Jonathon(3) Reynolds of Greenwich, Connecticut. I have been able to find records
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of 42 Reynolds that served in the French and Indian War, and 67 Reynolds that served in
the Revolutionary War. Some may be duplicates because they are listed in more than one
military unit, but I doubt that duplication is of any significant numbers. I have to believe

that most of these Reynolds are direct relatives of mine, and that most of the others are at

least relatives and descendants of George Reynolds, and of John(1s) and Sara Reynolds.

October 7, 1765: “Stamp Act Congress created.”

October 19, 1765: “The Stamp Act Congress in New York City issues the
Declaration of Rights and Grievances (14 resolutions) asserting that ‘no
taxes ever have been or can be constitutionally imposed on (the colonies)
except by their respective legislatures’.”

December 8, 1765: “Eli Whitney born in Westborough, Massachusetts.”

March 18, 1766: “First Methodist or Wesleyan church in America is
established in New York City.”

March 20, 1766: “Rutgers University is founded.”

March 15, 1767: “Andrew Jackson is born in Cureton’s Pond, North
Carolina.”

July 11, 1767: “John Quincy Adams born in Braintree, Massachusetts.”

August 17, 1767: Isaac Reynolds, Lynn’s 3 great grandfather is born to
Daniel and Ann Reynolds, in Peekskill, New York.

January 28, 1768: ‘The French were still calling the area ‘LaBaye’, but
the British name of ‘Green Bay’ was being favored.”

January 1, 1769: “Boston ceases to import goods from Great Britain.”

May 1, 1769: “Daniel Boone leaves North Carolina for Kentucky.”

November 1, 1769: “Dartmouth College is founded.”

May 1, 1770: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 1.8 cents per pound or about
20 cents per gallon of syrup. Barter price:
About 11 pounds of tobacco per gallon of

syrup.
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June 1, 1770: “Estimated colonial population is
2,205,000.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 362,300.”

December 16, 1773: “The Boston Tea Party. Colonists throw tea from
British ships into Boston harbor.”

December 18, 1773: “Daniel Boone moves his family to Kentucky.”

September 5, 1774: “Continental Congress convenes in Carpenters’ Hall
in Philadelphia.”

September 6, 1774: “Continental Congress agrees that each colony gets
one vote and adopts the Fairfax Resolves.”

March 23, 1775: “Patrick Henry gives Liberty or Death’ speech at
Richmond, Virginia.”

April 19, 1775: The Revolutionary War begins
with the battles of Lexington and Concord.

May 10, 1775: “American forces capture Fort Ticonderoga and Crown
Point on Lake Champlain.”

May 20, 1775: “Congress agrees on Articles of the Union and
Confederation.”

June 1, 1775: “Continental Congress appoints George Washington
Commander-In-Chief.”

July 3, 1775: “General Washington formally takes command of the
American forces.”

June 17, 1775: “British win Battle of Bunker Hill.”

July 8, 1775: “Charles de Langlade, Wisconsin’s first white settler led
his men against the British at Fort Duquesne, killing 1,500 British
troops. Langlade, who settled in Green Bay in 1745, was chosen by
French Governor Vaudreuil to mobilize the Indians against the British.”
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July 26, 1775: “Congress establishes the postal system.”

January 1, 1776: “Colonial flag of thirteen red and white stripes flown in
Boston.”

January 15, 1776: Daniel Reynolds, Lynn’s 4t great grandfather
subscribed to military service in Captain George Peck’s Company,
Greenwich, Old Town, Connecticut Militia. He served about 18 months. At
the time of joining the Greenwich Militia, he was 52 years old. He was
remembered as saying when questioned about his age, “Is a man ever too
old to protect his family’s freedom?”. He was accepted and was a good
soldier in the Revolutionary War. He served honorably.

March 17, 1776: “The British leave Boston.”

April 6, 1776: “Continental Congress outlaws importation of slaves into
the thirteen colonies.”

June 1, 1776: “Thomas Jefferson drafts the Declaration of
Independence.”

July 4, 1776: “The Declaration of Independence
is signed by John Hancock, President of the
Continental Congress.”

August 2, 1776: “The other signers of the Declaration of Independence
affix their signatures to the document.”

September 9, 1776: “Congress decides to replace ‘United Colonies’ with
‘United States’.”

September 22, 1776: “British execute Nathan Hale.”

December 26, 1776: “Washington crosses the Delaware to surprise the
Hessians at Trenton.”

January 15, 1777: “Vermont declares state independence from New
York.”

About July 15, 1777: Daniel Reynolds was released from his Greenwich
military subscription.

October 9, 1777: “Americans defeat General Burgoyne at Saratoga.”
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December 1, 1777: “Washington’s troops make winter quarters at Valley
Forge, Pennsylvania.”

May 13, 1778: “Charles Gautier arrived in Prairie du Chien, Wisconsin
to recruit Indians to fight with England in the Revolutionary War.”

May 1, 1780: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 2 cents per pound or about 22
cents per gallon of syrup. Barter Price:
About 2 gallons per pair of men’s fabric
britches.

May 26, 1780: “Indians from Wisconsin and 750 fur traders began their
trip down the Mississippi River to attack St. Louis.”

June 1, 1780: “Colonial population is
2,781,000.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 408,750.”

March 1, 1781: “The Articles of Confederation are ratified.”

October 19, 1781: “Corwallis surrenders at Yorktown.”

Figure 57: Depiction of General
Washington solemnly watching Lord
Charles Cornwallis’s British troops
stacking their muskets in surrender
(Source: Painting by Mort Eunstler,
1977, post card published by
“Lawson Mardon Post Card Company-
Reynolds Family Archives).

December 5, 1782: “Martin Van Buren born in Kinderhook, New York.”

September 3, 1783: “Great Britain, United States sign treaty in France,
ending Revolutionary War.”
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“Wisconsin became the northwest corner of the United States by result of
the Treaty of France’.

December 24, 1783: “General Washington resigns as Commander-In-
Chief of American Army.”

Figure 58: Photograph of John James Audubon in
about 1810. He was a French-American ornithologist
noted for his bird drawings and paintings. He was
considered one of the great naturalists of the

19t century (Source: Unknown photographer -

taken from the Internet).

Historic Note: He was the father of the
Audubon Socleties.

September 22, 1785: “Julien Dubuque was granted permission by the
Sauk and Fox Indians to work the lead mines in southwest Wisconsin.”

August 17, 1786: “David Crockett born in Limestone, Tennessee.”

July 13, 1787: “Congress passes statute forbidding slavery in territory
west of the Ohio River.”

December 7, 1787: “Delaware is the 1st state to ratify the Constitution.”

December 12, 1787: “Pennsylvania ratifies the Constitution, is the 274
state to join the union.”

December 18, 1787: “New Jersey ratifies the Constitution, becomes 3
state to join the union.”

January 2, 1788: “Georgia ratifies the Constitution, becomes 4% state to
join union.”

January 9, 1788: “Connecticut ratifies Constitution, become 5t state.”

February 6, 1788: “Massachusetts becomes 6t state.”

April 28, 1788: “Maryland becomes 7% state.”
May 23, 1788: “South Carolina becomes 8% state.”

June 21, 1788: “New Hampshire becomes 9t state.”
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June 25, 1788: “Virginia ratifies the Constitution and becomes the 10t
state to do so.”

July 26, 1788: “New York becomes the 11t state to ratlfy the
Constitution.”

January 3, 1789: “Isaac Reynolds marries Prudence Zarr, Lynn’s 3 Great
Grandmother, at the 15t Congregational Church of Greenwich, Connecticut.”

March 4, 1789: “The first Congress under the new Constitution
convenes in New York City”

April 6, 1789: “George Washington is declared President and John
Adams Vice President.”

April 30, 1789: “George Washington is inaugurated as the first President
of the United States, he delivers his first inaugural address at Federal
Hall in New York City. He was married to Martha Dandridge.”

June 13, 1789: Aden(1s!) Reynolds, Lynn’s 27 Great Grandfather is born
to Isaac and Prudence Reynolds in Armenia (Smithfield), Dutchess County,
New York.

July 27, 1789: “Congress creates State Department.”

August 7, 1789: “Congress creates War Department.”

September 2, 1789: “Congress creates Treasury Department and
appoints Alexander Hamilton Treasurer.”

September 26, 1789: “Congress confirms John Jay as Chief Justice of
the Supreme Court.”

November 21, 1789: “North Carolina becomes 12t state.”

April 17, 1790: “Benjamin Franklin dies in Philadelphia at age 84.”

May 1, 1790: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 2.2 cents per pound or about
25 cents per gallon of syrup. Barter Price:
About 50 gallons of syrup for 1 average sized
farm wagon.
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May 29, 1790: “Rhode Island becomes 13t state.”

June 1, 1790: “United States population is
3,929,214. The first census of the United States
is conducted.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 562,000.”

December 1, 1790: “Congress meets for the first time in Philadelphia.”

About 1790: Daniel Reynolds’ Sugarbush and land holdings were
condemned for the flooding of the Croton Reservoir (Croton on the
Hudson). His lands and sawmill were in this flood plain. The
necessity for water resources to New York City took precedent over
all other priorities. Isaac, Daniel’s son, started looking for
alternative areas to produce maple syrup and to establish a
sawmill. To be repetitive, ‘He followed the trees’ to Essex County,
New York, where he re-established the family maple syrup
operation and a most admired engineering feat of building a
sawmill on the Boquet River.

March 4, 1791: “Vermont becomes the 14t state.”

March 4, 1791: Thomas Jefferson, visiting Vermont to celebrate
Vermont’s statehood, ordered 60 sugar maple saplings to be shipped
to Monticello, with which he was to start his own sugarbush.

Author’s Notes: It was shortly after the planting of these 60 maple
trees that Thomas Jefferson stated in a letter to George Washington:
“The economy of the United States may well be predicated upon the

production and sales of pure maple syrup and sugar.”

Mr. Jefferson obviously missed this prediction, but it shows how
important this industry was considered, even in 1791.

George Washington also planted sugar maples, but he too, never was
able to establish a viable maple syrup operation in Virginia.

June 1, 1792: “Kentucky becomes 15% state.”

About 1792: During the construction of Isaac Reynolds’ sawmill on the
Boquet River, Isaac met and became a friend of Peter Smith, a shrewd land
baron, and a former partner of John Jacob Astor. Isaac purchased
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approximately 600 acres of land in Madison County, New York, from Peter
Smith for a meager fee. The condition was that Isaac would eventually
come to Madison County, New York to assist Peter in developing the water
and timber lands. This would include establishing a sawmill and other
considerations. The location was also the probable site for the

Reynolds Maple syrup Operation in Smithfield, Madison County,
New York.

Author’s Notes: Harriet L. Wheeler in her “The Town of Smithfield”, describes Peter

Smith and his purchase of Madison County lands: “The word ‘Smithfield’ in all its

connotations provides a story of romance, color, hazards, adventures, and pioneer life
on an immense wilderness estate, that contains all the elements of thrilling fiction.

Peterboro was selected as the home site for the shrewd trader and ex-partner of John
Jacob Astor. Peter Smith developed a masterly genius for speculation in buyi
leasi and selling the lands, forests, ponds, and streams acquired by him in
Madison, Oneida and Chenango Counties. He bought 50,000 acres from the state for
50,000. He handled a total of between 500,000 and 1,000,000 acres of land in this
section during his life. Smith sent Jasper Aylesworth from Rhode Island to the
resent site of Peterboro to b clearing the land of forests in 1795, and on this spot
of cleari he built the old Smith Mansion in 1803. The Mansion with its priceless
contents burned March 2, 1936. At the time of the fire a grandson of the founder,
Gerrit Smith Miller, ninety-one years old, was the occupant and owner of the estate.”
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Figure 59: The Township of Smithfield, Madison County, New “York a.nd t.ho approximate location of the

Reynolds properties purchased in 1792 from Peter Smith, by Isaac Reynolds. This is the location where

Isaac and Aden Reynolds built a dam and a mill pond for their sawmill, and made maple syrup at this
location in about 1810-1845. (Source: Reynolds Family Archives).
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It is understandable the bond between Peter Smith and Isaac Reynolds. The challenge

was there for Isaac, and the need for Isaac’s expertise was required by Peter. This bond

would result in the Reynolds family move to Madison County, New York in about 1813.

1793: “Napoleon Bonaparte distinguishes himself at the siege of Toulon,
and continued his military victories for the next eleven years.”

August 9, 1793: Solomon Juneau, founder of Milwaukee, Wisconsin in
1819 by opening a fur trading post, was born in Canada.

October 8, 1793: “John Hancock dies in Quincy, Massachusetts.”

October 9, 1793: “The Alamo is converted into a fort.”

October 11, 1793: “Eli Whitney invents the cotton gin.”

About May 1793: George Washington planted 350 sugar maple
saplings at his estate in Mount Vernon, Virginia with the intent of
establishing a maple syrup operation. It was never successful.

April 22, 1794: “Pennsylvania eliminates capital punishment.”

August 3, 1795: General Wayne signs the Treaty at Greenville with the
Wyandottes, Delawares, Shawnees, Ottawas, Chippewas, Pottawatomies,
Miamis, Eel River Indians, Weas, Piakshaws, Kickapoos, and Kaskaskias
ceasing all hostilities, returning all prisoners and setting the boundary
between Indian Lands and the U.S..”

May 19, 1796: “Congress enacts game protection law.”

June 1, 1796: “Tennessee becomes 16t state.”

March 4, 1797: “John Adams becomes 2™ President of the United
States. He was married to Abigail Smith.”

June 1, 1798: Thomas Jefferson planted an additional 200 sugar
maple saplings with the intent of maple syrup production. They
never reached the potential for a viable maple syrup operation, but
the trees did survive, and the last one died July 18, 1992.

June 6, 1799: “Patrick Henry dies.”

December 14, 1799: “George Washington dies at age 67 in Mount
Vernon.”
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May 1, 1800: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 3.2 cents per pound or about
35 cents per gallon. Barter Price: About 2
wooden shovels per gallon of syrup.

Author’s Notes: By 1800, nearly every rural (farmer) of North America, with
maple trees available to them, made some maple syrup. Most all citizens of the
United States and Canada were rural, and most considered themselves farmers to
some degree. Thus almost all residents of the Northeastern and Midwest United
States; and Southeastern and Midwestern Canada produced some pure maple
syrup. Most of the syrup was produced for their own use and maybe a small
portion for barter. It was only a very few that produced syrup commercially

because most did not have a viable market.

The Reynolds family was an exception. They had the family and market
connection to the Greenwich area. Their production was based upon the

maori of the . Even the returnable barrel conc developed by Daniel

Reynolds in about 1750, made marketing sense for their operation. In other
words, selling syrup first was a priority, before producing the product. That

concept is still alive in the Reynolds operations of today.

May 1, 1800: Estimated Maple Syrup
Production:

United States: 500,000 gallons.

(The Menominee Indian Tribe of Wisconsin
claims production of over 10,000 gallons of
maple syrup, converting most of it into
90,000 pounds of maple sugar)

Canada: 300,000 gallons.
(The Huron Indian Tribe of Ontario claims
production of over 15,000 gallons of maple

syrup)

May 7, 1800: “Congress created the Territory of Indiana, which included
Wisconsin.”

May 9, 1800: “Abolitionist John Brown born in Torrington, Connecticut.”
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June 1, 1800: “Washington D.C. becomes U.S. Capitol.”

June 1, 1800: United States population is
5,308,483.
“Estimated population of Canada is 1,216,000.”

November 4, 1800: “Thomas Jefferson is elected 3™ President of the
United States. He was married to Martha W. Skelton.”

About March 1, 1801: President Thomas Jefferson, using pure
maple syrup in the White House, and still continuing to believe in
the industry as an economy boost to the United States, urged United
State citizens to plant sugar maple trees and to produce maple
sugar as an investment in the future.

July 26, 1801: “Charles de Langlade, ‘Father of Wisconsin’, died. He
served under the French, the English, and the American governments.
He led Indian reinforcements to the aid of the British during the
Revolutionary War.”

August 11, 1802: “Spain closes the Mississippi and cedes Louisiana to
France.”

February 19, 1803: “Ohio becomes 17t state.”

April 30, 1803: “Treaty with France ceding Louisiana to the United
States (Louisiana Purchase).”

May 3, 1803: “Great Britain declares war on France.”

July 16, 1803: Daniel Reynolds, Lynn’s 4% Great Grandfather died
in Peeksville, New York. He was returned to Greenwich,
Connecticut for burial at the Ist Congregational Church of
Greenwich.

Daniel will probably be remembered as an
innovative maple syrup producer, a lumber
baron, and as being instrumental in the
development of the first ‘maple syrup
evaporator’. He probably was the world’s
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largest producer of pure maple syrup during
his lifetime and was the first on record of
marketing maple syrup in returnable
barrels. He was a veteran of two wars, the
French and Indian, and the Revolutionary.
He was honorable. He was fair. And he was
a ‘doer’.

3;

Fent, ' SN ST e
A depiction of the a colonial hearth area in the 1700’s (Source: Rural America,
“A Pictorial Folk Memory” - Reynolds Family Archives).
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BATTLED FARMERS"RESISTING TRAINED
ISH' TROOPS, LAUNCHED THE GREATEST.

REVOLUTION IN HISTORY — THE
AMERICAN REVOLUTION.

dRaLen waLoo emerson
1803 - 1882

ﬂT WAS ON APRIL 19, 1775 THAT 200
BRAVE MINUTE MEN STOOD AT THE
BRIDGE AT CONCORD AND FORCED
BACK 800 TRAINED BRITISH TROOPS.

AHE HEROIC STAND OF THE
MASSACHUSETTS IRREGULARS HAS
BEEN IMMORTALIZED IN THE ;
CONCORD HYMN WHICH WAS SUNG
AT THE DEDICATION OF THE BATTLE
MONUMENT ON APRIL 19, 1835,

By the rude bridde that arched
'Y@he PTSOC'; N g. 4
Their gla edto April's breeze
unfur
Here once the embattied farmers
stood:

And fired the shot heard
‘round the world,

Figure Said
60: Statements by Ralph Waldo Emerson (1803-1882). Depiction is taken from “Who
That”? Mr. Emerson isbfmd{tzd with the statement, “Here once the embattled farmers stood, And

Jfired the shot heard ‘round the world” (Source: “Wheo Said That?”, published by J. C. Penney
Company, 1954 - Reynolds Family Archives).
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CHAPTER 17

(THE REYNOLDS MOVE UP NORTH

and SPREAD TO THE WEST)

Isaac Reynolds, Lynn’s 37 Great Grandfather
Prudence Zarr, Lynn’s 34 Great Grandmother
1. Aden{1*) Reynolds - Polly Reynolds
2. Benjamin Reynolds
3. Penelope (Reynolds) Woodward - Elisha Woodward
4. Mathew Reynolds

5. Stephen Reynolds
6. Joseph Reynolds

Aden(1t) Reynolds, Lynn’s 24 Great Grandfather
Polly Reynolds, Lynn’s 24 Great Grandmother

1. Adin{24) Reynolds - Electa M. Porter

(1) Leon P. Reynolds
(2) Clarence Reynolds
(3) Edmond Reynolds
(4) Frank Reynolds
(5) Kitt (Reynolds) Sipes
(6) Clyde Reynolds

2. William F. Reynolds - Susan Dodge

3. Holcy Reynolds

4. Asa R. Reynolds
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Author’s Notes: Isaac Reynolds, Lynn’s 3¢ Great Grandfather was a maple
syrup producer, a logger and lumber baron, but probably his largest
achievement were his successes as a ‘Waterway Engineer’. He was born in
Peeksicill, New York, and, was educated as an ‘Engineer’ in New York, New York.
There was some form of Dutch Academy ‘engineering school’ which may have
been affiliated with a New Yori City College. It is not clear exactly what the
name of this school was, nor can I pin it down to exact dates that Isaac
attended this school of higher learning. However, since he was born in 1767,
married in 1789, it must have been around 1785-89. This school was primarily
a ‘civil engineering’ school with heavy emphasis on dam building, river control,
and water power. If I can speculate to the subject material, it must have been a
form of a ‘technical college’. At the time of Isaac’s life there were no ‘engineers’
per se, but the subjects taught were for ‘engineering sicills’. There was a heavy
emphasis on mathematics. He was noted as a brilliant man. He was considered

a genius in building log structures in and around waterways and rivers. His
achievements became well known and he was in high demand for water

powered projects. His talents and experiences probably became most known for
his sawmill and ‘sluice water power’ he built on the Bogquet River in Essex
County, New York. From the publicity he received for this achievement, he was
in demand and participated in the building of the ‘Erie Canal’ and the
‘Chenango Canal’. He was contacted for the building of a canal between the
Milwaukee River and Rock River in Wisconsin, but did not become involved in
this project as it never materialized. However, he made a trip to Wisconsin to
discuss the project, which never became a reality. He was of renown in building
sawrmills. He was well known for water control projects, and he was a leader in
the young and developing maple syrup industry. During his lifetime, he was
undoubtedly the largest producer of pure maple syrup in North America.

Soon after his marriage, which was conducted in Greenwich, Connecticut.
Isaac moved with his wife Prudence, to property purchased from the ‘Nine
Partners Grant’, Armenia (Smithfield), Dutchess Co New York. He had
considerable relatives in this vicinity of New York, but he stayed only

approximately one year and moved to Wells, Vermont. Again he remained only
about one this time to Broolkfield, Essex Co New York. Wells

Vermont and Broolfield, New Yorlc, were separated by Lake Champlain. Isaac
had cousins in Wells, Vermont, and also in Rutland, Vermont. All of these
Vermont relatives were involved in malding maple syrup. However, Isaac had
met an engineer, named George Whalen, while studying in New York, who would
become involved in the iron mines at Port Henry, located on Lake Champlain,
George convinced Isaac that he could malke a fortune by providing ‘timbers’ to
the iron mining industry at Port Henry. The mines were desperate for

specifically sawed timbers. Isaac purchased a huge tract of land in Essex
Co near Broolcfield (west of Ess New York), where he operated his lo

operation and made maple syrup. He also purchased 200 acres of land on the
Boquet River, near Wadhams, New York, upon which he constructed a large
sawmill operated on water power from the river. He sawed primarily white
pine, which were plentiful in the Essex County area, into ‘timbers’ which were
specifically sawed for the iron mines in Port Henry. He transported the
‘timbers’ from Wadhams to Westport where they were tiered into a ‘floating
raft’ (the reason for white pine was that it would float). Then with pole guiding
along the shoreline, floated these timbers to Port Henry where they were sold. It
is noted that history in the Reynolds family would repeat itself about 80 years
in the future, when they again floated white pine timbers to mariket, this time
Jfrom Aniwa, Wisconsin, down the Wisconsin River, and then down the
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Mississippi to New Orleans. We will get to that later, but the experience on the
uet was in establis the know for this future venture.
The eriences were those of Isaac R lds, “The E
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Figure 61: Map “of Isaac’s land holdings in Brookfield, Bssex County, New York {Sol;rce 1800 Essex
County Tax Map - Reynolds Family Archives).
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Figures 62 and 62A: Photos of Boquet River, Essex
County, New York. Present day photos of location of
Isaac Reynolds’ Sawmill, approximately 1792-1809
(Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

Figure 63: Current photograph of Lake Champlain.
The view is the lake from the landing at Westport,
where Isaac Reynolds decked his timbers and built
rafts from them, to be floated to Fort Henry, to be
used in the iron mines in about 1792-1808 (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).
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Figure 64: From Tax Plot map of property where the sawmill owned by Isaac Reynolds was located in
_ approximately 1792, near Wadhams (Westport Township), Essex County, New York. Plot contained
200 acres, originally carved from the ‘Rogers Plot’ (Source: Essex County Tax Maps - Reynolds Family
Archives).

There are dozens of Reynolds families still living today in the Essex County area of New
York. Some of these families still make maple syrup in the Brookfield area. Most, if not

all of the Reynolds are relatives of John(1s!). The most well known of the Reynolds was
probably James Fowler Reynolds who married Phebe (Purdy) Adsit, widow of Samuel
Adsit. Both James and Phebe were born in Greenwich, Connecticut. They were married
November 9, 1792 at Willsboro (Essex County), New York. Both are buried at the
Brookfield Cemetery, Town of Essex, Essex County, New York. Their restored cabin was
dedicated as a memorial at Willsboro, July 4, 1997. The cabin was builtin 1778. Ethlyn
Sayre, who resides in Essex County today, is a direct descendant of James Fowler
Reynolds. She has been extremely instrumental in providing me information concerning
the Reynolds family of Essex Courity, New York. James was a cousin of Isaac Reynolds.
The descendants of James and Isaac dominate the Reynolds families of Essex County,

New York today.
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Figure 65: The Adsit Cabin restored at Willsboro, New
York. The home of James Fowler Reynolds and Phebe
(Purdy) (Adsit) Reynolds from their marriage to their
deaths. They are buried in the Brookfield (Essex
County) cemetery (Source: Reproduction by Willsboro
Beautification Committee - Reynolds Family Archives).

Figure 65A: Current photograph of Anne and
Lynn Reynolds in front of the ‘Reynolds-Adsit’
cabin near Willsboro, New York (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).

Figure 66: Current photo of a ‘Reynolds’ (owed and
operated by members of the French family - a Reynolds
descendant) sugarhouse near Brookfield, Essex County,
New York (Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

67: Current photograph of the
‘Brookfield Cemetery’ (Essex Country),
Brookfield, New York. This cemetery

is the site for burial of many
Reynolds family members which are
direct descendants of John{1#)
Reynolds (Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).
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It is estimated that Isaac Reynolds tapped about 3,500 trees while he resided in
Essex County, New York. He utilized the buckets, ‘spigots’, and pans from his
father’s (Daniel) maple operation in Peelcsville, New Yorik. His market was still
the Greenwich, Connecticut area as he had a huge relative population in that
area. His engineering abilities allowed him to improve the wide wheeled
wagons that his father had developed. He used these wagons to transport logs
from the Brookfield area to the sawmill on the Boguet, and the resulting
‘timbers’ from the sawmill to Westport where they were floated to market.

Isaac also utilized the same wagons to transport his maple syrup to Greenwich.
He continued the practice of returnable barrels that his father had initiated.

Several Reynolds family members in the Greenwich area were still involved in

woodworlking and were ‘Coopers’ by trade. Thus, coopered barrels and wagons

were built in Greenwich.

Isaac was assisted in his endeavors by sons Aden(1+!), Benjamin, and son-in-law

Elisha Woodward. When Isaac sold the 200 acres with the sawmill on the
Boguet, he sold it for $3,500.00 on a land contract to John Stilwell. This was a
considerable sum for 200 acres in 1809. The beneficiaries of the monies from

the land contract, including interest were assigned to Aden(1+t), Benjamin, and
Elisha Woodward. Isaac obviously was independently wealthy and not in need
of these funds. These documents are on file at the Elizabethtown (Essex
County), New York Court House, but the documents are too old and too fragile to

be copied. The transaction was dated April 1, 1809. They would have been
part of this book if this could have been copied. The description went like this:

“Beginning at the River Boquet from chains North of the Southwest corner o
James Inelds Patent and running thence along the said Patent and a tract of
land granted to Platt Rogers South twentytwo cl:ains then west fortyfour
chains seventytwo links then North fortyfour chains and seventytwo links
then West forth four chains and seventytwo links and then South twenty-two
chains and seventytwo links to the place of beginning containing two hundred
acres of land to the same more or less. Signed: Isaac Reynolds and John
Stilwell. The payments to Aden(1+t) and Benjamin Reynolds, and Elisha
Woodward, were to be $500.00 in 1809, 1810, and 1811, and $416.67 in 1812
through 1817 with interest at 6% per annum.”

An interesting note: During the prolonged conflicts between the French and English
in the Lake Champlain area, the Boquet (Bouquet) River was considered a prime river
for water power. The French were not as accomplished in water power as the English,

but the potential was still envisioned. Isaac Reynolds was the first to exploit this
potential. During the French occupation of the area, they named the river, the Boquet

ouquet onounced ‘Boo Kay’]. After the English regained full control over the
Essex Country area, it was declared that the pronunciation of the Boquet, would be
Bow Ket’, which is the way it is pronounced today.

May 14, 1804: “Lewis and Clark expedition leaves St. Louis for
Louisiana Territory.”

July 4, 1804: “Aaron Burr kills Alexander Hamilton in a duel.”

December 2, 1804: “Napoleon crowns himself Emperor of the French.”
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December 7, 1805: “Lewis and Clark expedition reaches the Pacific
Ocean.”

December 20, 1805: “United States takes possession of Louisiana
territory.”

1806: “Napoleon dissolves the Holy Roman Empire.”

September 23, 1806: “Lewis and Clark return to St. Louis.”

January 19, 1807: “Robert E. Lee born in Stratford, Virginia.”

February 2, 1807: “Congress passes a resolution allowing the
construction of lead smelters, even if they had to be built on Indian
lands.”

Author’s Notes: Lead mines in the New England area and the Eastern states had
been depleted. Lead was desperately needed for a variety of uses, but number one was

lead for ammunition. Lead was discovered in southwestern Wisconsin in about 1800
but without smelter construction, it could not be exploited. The resolution by

Congress allowing this construction of smelters opened up an enormous resource and
was instrumental towards the settlements in Wisconsin. Lead was crucial to the

United States and was a valuable tool in communication for the Reynolds family as we
shall see a few years hence.

February 27, 1807: “Henry Wadsworth Longfellow born in Portland,
Maine.”

January 1, 1808: “Congress passes abolition of slave-trade.”

June 3, 1808: “Jefferson Davis born in Christian County, Kentucky.”

August 24, 1808: Mrs. Polly (Cain) Green, Lynn’s 2" great grandmother,
was born in New York.

October 13, 1808: Aden(1s) Reynolds married Polly Reynolds, Lynn’s 2rd
great grandmother, at the Smithfield Church, Armerua, Dutchess Couniy
New York. g K

Figure 68: Photograph of the Presbyterian
(Smithfield) Church, Smithfield (Dutchess
County), New York, as it appears today.
Many of the Reynolds, Lynn’s ancestors,
passed through Smithfield (Amenia),

New York. Many of the Reynolds are
buried in the Smithfield Cemetery,
directly across the street from this

church (Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).

183



Figure 69: Current photograph

of a sign on Highway 22, just
north of Amenia, New York.

It is believed that this William
Reynolds was a direct descendant
of the Willilam Reynolds, John{1%)’s
brother that moved to Providence,
Rhode Island in 1630 (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).

Figure 70: Current photograph of the
cemetery in Smithfield (Dutchess
County), New York. There are
numerous Reynolds buried in this
cemetery, most of them relatives

or descendants of John{1+)

Reynolds (Source: Reynolds

Family Archives).

Author’s Notes: Polly Reynolds was actually a distant cousin of Aden{Ist) Reynolds.
Aden(1%!) was a descendant of John(1st) of Watertown, Massachusetts, and Polly was a
descendant of Robert of Boston, (John(1s)’s brother. This would have made them 6"
cousins. Aden(1s!) died and is buried at Peterboro, Madison County, New York, and Polly

died and is buried at the Munro School Cemetery, Hebron, Wisconsin.
December 29, 1808: “Andrew Johnson born in Raleigh, North Carolina.”

December 31, 1808: “Middlesex Canal in Massachusetts completed.”

January 19, 1809: “Poet Edgar Allen Poe born in Boston,
Massachusetts.”

February 12, 1809: “Abraham Lincoln is born in Hardin County,
Kentucky.”

March 4, 1809: “James Madison becomes the 4th President of the
United States. He married Dolly P. Todd.”

“Thomas Jefferson retires to Monticello.”

April 1, 1809: Isaac Reynolds sold his sawmill and 200 acres on
the Boquet River, Essex County, New York to John Stilwell for
$3,500.00. Aden(1+) Reynolds assumed the maple syrup operation
in Brookfield, Essex County, New York. Isaac moved to Smithfield,
Madison County, New York. He felt the ‘trees were gone’. It was
time to move on.
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December 20, 1809: William Reynolds was born to Aden(1s!) and Polly
Reynolds at Brookfield, Essex County, New York.

William was to become the first direct descendant of John(1) to
permanently settle in Wisconsin.

August 29, 1809: “Oliver Wendell Holmes born in Cambridge,
Massachusetts.”

May 1, 1810: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 4.6 cents per pound or about
S0 cents per gallon of syrup. Barter Price:
About 10 dozen eggs per gallon of syrup.

Estimated Production of Maple Syrup:
United States: 600,000 Gallons

Canada: 400,000 Gallons

June 1, 1810: “United States population is
7,239,881,

“Estimated population of Canada is 1,817,200.”

April 18, 1812: “Louisiana becomes 18t state.”

June 18, 1812: “Congress declares war against Britain (War of 1812).”

August 16, 1812: “General William Hull surrenders Detroit to the
British.”

November 28, 1812: “The Americans attempt to invade Canada, but
failed.”

January 12, 1813: “The British attempt to blockade the Atlantic Coast.”
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May 27, 1813: “American troops capture Fort George.”

September 13, 1813: “William Barstow, Wisconsin’s 3™ governor was
born in Plainfield, Connecticut.”

September 28, 1813: “United States recaptures Detroit, Michigan.”

December 19, 1813: “British capture Fort Niagara.”

June 2, 1814: “A contingent of 200 American soldiers arrived in Prairie
du Chien from St. Louis. They took over the trading post and rebuilt Fort
Shelby, the first building in what is now Wisconsin to fly an American

flag.”

August 24, 1814: “British troops capture and burn Washington, D.C..”

“British Burn The White House.”

September 13, 1814: “British bombard Fort McHenry.”

September 14, 1814: “Francis Scott Key witnesses the bombardment of
Fort McHenry and writes the ‘Star Spangled Banner’ about the battle.”

Figure 71: Depiction of Francis Scott Eey
witnessing the British bombardment of Fort
Henry in Baltimore Harbor (Source: Painting
by Mort Kunstler in 1977 - Taken from a
post card published by “Lawson Mardon Post
Cards - Reynolds Family Archives).

December 24, 1814: “Treaty with Great Britain concluded at Ghent.”

January 8, 1815: “The Battle of New Orleans.”

February 17, 1815: “United States signs the Treaty of Ghent with Great
Britain. The War of 1812 ends.”

January 24, 1816: “Coles Bashford, Wisconsin’s fifth governor, was born
in New York state.”

December 11, 1816: “Indiana becomes 19t state.”
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About January 1, 1817: Isaac Reynolds met with Nathan Roberts,
considered to be the developer of Canastota. Mr. Roberts was familiar with
Isaac Reynolds’ reputation for his waterway ‘engineering’ feats. Mr.
Roberts was a mathematician. He was the principal of an academy in
Whitesboro, New York. Since there were no official ‘Engineers’ in America
at that time, he was chosen for his academic ability to head the Erie Canal
project. His choice of Isaac Reynolds provided him with the finest
‘engineering knowledge’ available at that time. The meeting took place in
Peterboro and was arranged by a mutual friend, Peter Smith.

Author’s Notes: Peter Smith could see the potential for transporting pioneer settlers

into the Madison County area where he had hundreds of thousands of acres for sale.
He in a way, called ‘his debt’ by asking Isaac Reynolds, who was living near Peterboro,
to meet with Nathan Roberts and to assist him in building of the Erie Canal. This was
for the favor of selling Isaac hundreds of acres of land for very little mone . _Peter
Smith knew that Isaac could provide tremendous skill and knowledge to Nathan
Roberts in this so important project to the Madison County, New York area. Nathan
would prosper by selling lands he owned in Canastota, Peter would gain tran ortation
and a water highway for prospective buyers and products to market: and Isaac would

prosper for his knowledge, and would be allowed to supply timbers to the project from

his lands and sawmill. It was a project that was good for all three. A bond was
formed. And they went to work.

March 4, 1817: “James Monroe becomes the 5t President of the United
States. He was married to Elizabeth Kortnight.”

July 4, 1817: Digging and construction of the Erie Canal began. It was
known as “Clinton’s Ditch”, because New York Governor, DeWitt Clinton
was the strongest supporter of the project.

Author’s Notes: The federal government would not give any money for the
construction of the Erie Canal. Thus New York had to pay for the whole project. Small
sections of the canal were initiated in various locations. The first section, was between

Rome and Utica. This portion of the canal was completed within two years and was
commissioned with a huge celebration. Each section that was completed, a

celebration resulted.

It was on the section between Rome and Utica that Isaac Reynolds first became involved
asan ineer. Isaac worked on this project until its completion in 1825. The canal was
finished two years before it was expected to open. The canal was 365 miles long from
the Hudson River at Albany to Lake Erie. The cost was approximately $5 million dollars.
The canal was 40 feet wide at the top, 28 feet wide at the bottom and only 4 feet deep.
Eighty-three locks were constructed to lift or lower the boats at the various sections of the
canal. After only one year 13,000 boats and 40,000 ) settlers had traveled on the canal.

Isaac was primarily involved in construction of bridges and aqueducts, with the use of
heavy timbers which was his expertise. He soon started a sawmill in Madison County

near the canal and was also furnishing timbers to the project.
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The Erie Canal was as much ‘America’ as any project ever undertaken. The next few
passages are from the “A Short History of Canastota For Young People” by Dorris
Lawson, Historian of Town of Lenox, Madison County, New York.

“......Three years after the Perkins’ purchase, Nathan Roberts bought land from James
Street on the north, Stroud Street on the west, Peterboro Street on the east and 600
acres south of the turnpike. He also bought the land north of the canal route and east
of Peterboro Street.

In 1816, when the Erie Canal was started in Rome, Roberts was asked to help.
At the time, he was principal of an academy in Whitesboro. Since there were no
engineers in America at the time, good mathematicians were chosen for the job.
Robert was one of these and so was chosen. His job was to lay the route of the canal,
and he chose to run it through the area which became the Village of Canastota. He
also chose this place in which to locate a canal basin. This was an area beside the
main route of the canal, the purpose of this basin was to provide a place for canal
boats to turn around, load and unload and a place where the boat captains could
obtain fresh horses. These basins were placed at intervals all along the canal, and
whenever there was a basin, a village came into being............

........The Erie Canal was started in Rome, N.Y. on July 4t 1817. Rome was
approximately halfway between New York City and Buffalo, and the digging was to go
both ways. On both sides of Rome, there was a level stretch with no locks needed, so
progress would be faster: however, it was not fast, and it certainly was not easy. Just
imagine digging for over 350 miles thro a wilderness of dense forests of huge virgin
timber. Even more difficult were the marshes, neither water nor land, more mud, in
which the diggers stood up to their armpits in sludge. Then there were the rivers to
cross necessitating the building of aqueducts to carry the canal. A problem which
tested the minds of all working on the canal was the stone formations met with along
the route. The worst was at Lockport which we will talk about later.

The workers started with picks, shovels, saws and wheelbarrows. Obviously
trees had to be removed, roots and all, not just cut down with saws. American
ingenuity came to the rescue. A huge stump puller was invented. It was a large drum
around which ropes were wound, then attached to the tree. Four mules and 4 men
could remove thirty trees with their roots, in a day. Another invention was a new type
wheelbarrow with a slanting side out of which the rubble would slide easily.

Nathan Roberts and his men were assigned to work from Rome to Buffalo.
When they began the construction of the basin in our area, the village of Canastota
began. Workers needed housing while they worked, so houses were built. Food must
be provided for them, so grocery stores were set up. Horses must be housed and fed
so huge horse barns were built. Farmers bringing their produce in from surroundi
areas needed warehouses for storage until the boat arrived. Boat captains and their

families needed refreshments when they tied up in the basin, so restaurants and bars

were set up. Canal Street quickly became lined with boarding houses, saddle shops,
blacksmith shops, bakeries, etc. Most of the people who ran these shops lived over

their shops. Each had a balcony on which owners and their families would watch the

........Irouble began when Roberts and his crew reached the Montezuma Swamp
through which the canal must be dug. The men were mired in ooze. Around their
heads swarmed the deadly mosquitoes carrying malaria from which many died. The
dead were buried in nearby fields with simple ceremony and no stone. One vear so
many died that others refused to work. Work had to be stopped until October when
the ground was partially frozen and the mosquitoes had gone. Had it not been for the
tough Irish workers who never lost their sense of humor, the Erie Canal might never
have been built.
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The next great project requiring a great deal of engineering skill was the

construction of the great aqueduct at Rochester across the raging Genesee River. At
this time, Rochester was a small settlement with one flour mill and a few houses.

Next came the greatest problem of all — how to surmount the stone escarpment
at the present location of Lockport. There was not even a settlement at this place -
only deep woods and a large number of poisonous rattlesnakes. Ahead stood a solid
stone wall, 60 feet high and extending for seven miles. The canal must, in some way,
go through the stone. All the engineers working on the canal were asked to submit
plans. Nathan Roberts’ was the one chosen. His plan was to build five locks up and
five down to overcome the eight miles after the stone was blasted out. What a project!
It took three years with a crew of 3,000 men to complete. The process of blasting
presented a problem. First, a hole must be drilled, but the stone was so hard that the
available drills buckled. All types of drills known at the time were tried with no good
results. Finally a worker in Lockport made one which would do the job. After a hole
was drilled in the stone, dynamite, then called black powder, was placed in the hole

and a piece of brown paper inserted. The paper was lit, and men ran as fast as they
could. Some did not run fast enough and were killed or maimed...

.......... On October 26, 1825, there was an even grander celebratlon when the whole
canal was opened all the way from Buffalo to New York City. A flotilla of boats headed
by the ‘Seneca Chief’, carrvlr;g' the Governor, the Lieutenant Governor, the canal
Commission and other itaries left Buffalo. On deck, there were two barrels of Lake
Erie water to be m_nggd with salt water from the Atlantic Ocean, for this was to be ‘the

wedding of the waters’..

Aboard that ship (the ‘Seneca Chief’), as invited guests, were Nathan Roberts, Isaac

Reynolds (along with his wife Prudence), and Peter Smith. A bond and friendship
between these three men would endure for their entire lives.

Figure 72: Photograph of Henry David Thoreauw.
He was best known as an author, accomplishing
the writing of “Walden”, while living on the

banks of Walden Pond 1845-47. Even though
considered by many as a ‘recluse’, he was

a conservationist, a most accomplished

writer, and practiced as a noted ‘civil disobedient’
(Source: Unknown photographer - taken from

the Internet).

Note: John{1+) Reynolds originally settled
near Walden Pond.

December 10, 1817: “Mississippi becomes 20t state.”

April 22, 1818: “Cadwallader C. Washburn, Wisconsin’s 11% governor
was born in Livermore, Maine. He was a lawyer and moved to Mineral
Point, Wisconsin in 1842. He was a veteran of the Civil War.”

About July 16, 1818: “Gerrit Smith, Peter’s son purchased 18,000 acres
of land in Oneida County, New York. The following year Peter turned
over the responsibility for the management of all his property to Gerrit
and Gerrit’s uncle, Daniel Cady. Gerrit moved into the ‘mansion house’
at Peterboro, thus at age twenty-one assuming responsibility, not only for
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the extensive lands in central New York but also, as ‘patron’, for the
village of Peterboro. By 1823 the value of his purchase in Oneida County
had increased and he took his first step in philanthropy, never ceasing
from then until his death to provide funds generously for public causes,
particularly those he considered ‘moral’. Peter remained in the Peterboro
area as a fatherly guide, and used his influence to assist in the
development of the Madison County area until the day he died.”

July 30, 1818: Harrison Ludington, Wisconsin’s 13t governor was born
in Ludingyville, New York. He was known as a ‘world leader in lumber
manufacturing’.

December 3, 1818: “Illinois becomes 21st state.”

“The restoration of the White House is completed after British burning in
1814.

“The United States and Great Britain agree to joint occupation of the
Oregon Territory.”

January 5, 1819: “Leonard Farwell, Wisconsin’s second governor, was
born in Watertown, New York.”

May 31, 1819: “Walt Whitman born in West Hills, Long Island, New
York.”

October 23, 1819: “Portion of the Erie Canal opens.”

October 30, 1819: “James T. Lewis, Wisconsin’s 9t governor was born in
New York State.”

October 31, 1819: “Alexander Randall, Wisconsin’s 6% governor was
born in New York State.”

December 14, 1819: “Alabama becomes 22 state.”

March 6, 1820: “Missouri Compromise is enacted, which outlaws slavery
north of the 36t parallel.”

March 15, 1820: “Maine becomes 23 state.”

March 26, 1820: “The census recorded 651 civilians and 804 soldiers
and dependents living west of Lake Michigan in the Wisconsin territory.”
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May 1, 1820: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 4.6 cents per pound or about
S0 cents per gallon of syrup. Barter Price:
About 1 days labor per gallon of syrup, which
would include 3 meals in addition.

Estimated Production of Maple Syrup:
United States: 950,000 Gallons

Canada: 350,000 Gallons

June 1, 1820: United States population is
9,638,453.

“Estimated population of Canada is 2,047,500.”

July 10, 1820: William Robert Taylor, Wisconsin’s 12t governor was
born in Connecticut.

About May 1 1821: Aden(I+!)joined Isaac, his father in Madison County to
operate the logging and sawmill operation which Isaac had started.

Author’s Notes: Originally, Aden(Is) intended to keep his land and home in Essex
County, but after moving and working in Madison County, he decided to move his family
there too. The exact location of the first (temporary) sawmill operated by Aden(1st) was
probably located in northern Madison near the canal for logistical reasons. Some of the
logs probably were those that were cut in the path of the canal itself. Once timbers were
afloat on the canal they could be transported to any location for sawing and then the
timbers to where they were needed for construction of bridges, locks, and aqueducts on
the project. But the home location of the Reynolds (Isaac and Aden{1)), was now
Smithfield, near Peterboro. Isaac was occupied with providing ‘engineering services’ to
Nathan Roberts, supervising construction of the various structures under his

responsibility, while Aden(1st) was responsible for the operation of the logging and

sawmill operation, as well as the maple syrup business.

Isaac convinced Aden{1) that with the opening of the Erie Canal, maple syrup
oou!dbebunspoﬁedtothefrexisﬂngnmrkstin%enwichandeYorkcuy.
Therefore, it was decided that they move their maple syrup production to
Madison County. Maple trees were very available in the Smithfield area. Since
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Erie Canal. He also participated, with his son Aden{1%), in running the family saw mill
and the maple syrup operation.

Almost immediately after the Chenango Canal was authorized, Peter Smith met with Isaac
Reynolds, to ask Isaac’s assistance to lobby for funding of the canal. Peter could see the
extension of the Erie Canal through Madison County southward, as an important link in

bringing in settlers to buy his and his son’s lands, and more importantly it would provide

a highway for goods, materials, products, and lumber from the Madison County area to
eastern New York and ultimately New York City. Isaac could see the potential for
transporting maple syrup to Greenwich and lumber sawed by Aden(1s!)’s sawmill to New
York City. The distance from Smithfield to the Chenango Canal would be a considerable
shorter distance than as it was now to the Erie Canal. Also as timber resources were
depleted to the north of Smithfield, forest reserves were still abundant further south

towards the proposed Chenango Canal. A committee was set up in 1826, including Dr.
Henry Mitchell and Smith M. Purdy of Norwich, Ira Wilcox of Oxford, Peter Smith of

Peterboro, Isaac Reynolds of Smithfield, Mr. Hoard of Hamilton, and other influential
members of the Chenango Valley community. As described in the “Chenango Canal”, by
Barry K. Beyer:

“In November of 1828 they decided to organize public opinion in support of the

project. Thus was formed the General Committee of the Chenango Canal, comprising

representatives from all the communities in Chenango County through which the canal
would pass.

Yet it was not until January of 1833, when the people living in the counties of
Broome, Oneida and Madison were organized in support of the project that enough
pressure could be brought to bear on the legislature to get the desired bill passed.

After numerous conventions were held in Sherburne, Norwich and Binghampton,
hundreds of promotional pamphlets had been published, and much bargaining had been
done, the opposition gave up and a bill authorizing construction of the Chenango Canal
was passed February 23, 1833..........

-eeenn . Although it took eight years of hard promotional work to overcome the
opposition and to secure approval of the canal, success was finally realized and

...Even though the Chenango Canal was authorized early in 1833 construction

was not commenced for more than a year. Most of the delay was due to a controversy
over the Iocatzon of northern terminus of the project which had not been specifically noted

in the law.........

In about 1825, Aden(1s!) Reynolds along with his son William, attended an educational
seminar sponsored by Hamilton College, which was held in Morrisville, New York. The
main presenter was Mr. Hoard, a Methodist minister and a very large successful dairy
farmer; who spoke of the merits of dairy farming, and the potential that was available in

what was known as Wisconsin. Mr. Hoard’s son, William moved to Wisconsin in 1857
and published the famed ‘Hoard’s Dairyman’ and later became the 16t governor of

Wisconsin. Mr. Hoard spoke of an area near Fort Atkinson which was an Army Fort, but
was also becoming a progressive farming village on the Rock River in Wisconsin. From

that day forward, William envisioned a life of dairy farming in Wisconsin. He was
consumed. But he bided his time, along with planning a trip to Wisconsin.

April 24, 1826: “Burdette Johnson, soap manufacturer, was born in New
York City. His company in Milwaukee, Wisconsin in 1864 became the
‘Palmolive Company’.”

July 4, 1826: “Thomas Jefferson and John Adams die.”
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September 12, 1826: Adin(27) Reynolds, Lynn’s 1st Great Grandfather
was born to Aden(1%) and Polly Reynolds, in Smithfield, Madison County,
New York.

March 4, 1829: “Andrew Jackson becomes the 7t President of the
United States. He was married to Rachel Donelson.”

April 6, 1830: The Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints
(Mormons) is organized in New York.

Authors Notes: This author utilized the “Family History Library”, of the Church of
Jesus Christ of Latter-Day Saints in Salt Lake City, to accumulate much of the

genealogical data contained in this book. In my opinion it is the finest, most complete
library for genealogical research in the world. I thank this church for allowing me to use

their library.

May 1, 1830: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 5 cents per pound or about 55
cents per gallon of syrup. Barter Price:
About 20 miles of passage on the Erie Canal
per gallon of syrup.

Estimated Production of Maple Syrup:
United States: 725,000 Gallons.
Canada: 450,000 Gallons.

June 1, 1830: Population of the United States is
12,866,020.

“Estimated population of Canada is 2,152,600.”

Author’s Notes: In about 1830 cutting timber on a large scale for lumber began in
Wisconsin. Wisconsin was known as the world’s largest supplier of lumber during the
19th century. The resource was estimated at 30 million acres of timber. There was
probably the largest stand of ‘white pine’ in the world. White pine was especially
valued because of its ease in working properties, its strength, and most importantly it
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floated’ which was invaluable in transporting the logs and lumber to sawmill and
market. All of these factors were influential for gaining the involvement of the R

family some time later in the 19 century.

June 17, 1830: “Jeremiah McLain Rusk, Wisconsin’s 15t governor, was
born in Ohio. He was a Civil War veteran.”

August 11, 1830: “Edward Salomon, Wisconsin’s 8t governor, was born
in Prussia.”

May 15, 1831: “Joseph Schlitz was born in Mainz, Germany. He
established the Joseph Schlitz Brewing Company in Milwaukee,
Wisconsin, in 1874.”

About June, 1831: “Father Samuel Mazzuchelli, opened the first
Catholic Church in Wisconsin, in Green Bay. It was named the St. John
Evangelist Church.”

July 4, 1831: “James Monroe dies at age 73 in New York City.”
April 6, 1832: “Black Hawk War begins in Wisconsin.”
June 16, 1832: “Henry Dodge, Wisconsin’s 1st governor, led his men in

the Black Hawk War battle, on the Horseshoe Bend of the Pecatonica
River in Lafayette County, Wisconsin.”

July 13, 1832: “Henry R. Schoolcraft and party discover the source of
the Mississippi River in Minnesota.”

July 14, 1832: “The Wisconsin Military Road connecting Forts Crawford,
Winnebago, and Howard, was started. The 234 mile road cost $12,000.

August 2, 1832: “The massacre at Bad Axe essentially ended the Black
Hawk War. The U. S. Army attacked by armed ship on the Mississippi
River. About 150 Indians were killed, and nearly as many drowned while
trying to escape.”

August 27, 1832: “Black Hawk surrenders.”

September 21, 1832: “The Black Hawk Indian War ends.”

June 6, 1833: Prudence Reynolds, Isaac’s wife and Lynn’s 3 great
grandmother, died in Smithfield, New York. She is buried in the Peterboro,
New York village cemetery.
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December 11, 1833: “The ‘Green Bay Intelligencer’, Wisconsin’s 1st
newspaper was founded.

December 26, 1833: “Great Britain abolished slavery.”

June 11, 1834: “A report that the fur trade in Wisconsin declined and
the cause was determined to be the removal of the Indians who were the
trappers and hunters.”

“John Jacob Astor, leading fur businessman, sold his interest in the
American Fur Company.”

About June, 1834: Isaac Reynolds and his grandson, William F. Reynolds
made a trip to Milwaukee, Wisconsin to discuss Isaac’s possible
involvement in building a canal from the Milwaukee River in eastern
Wisconsin to the Rock River in central Wisconsin. Isaac was interested in a
new challenge. William was interested in farming. Both were interested in
the ‘spirit of pioneering’.

Author’s Notes: Wisconsin is the land of water. The trees and vegetation are so

green. Streams cascade with breath taking freshness. Lakes are so clear you can see
the bottom. Spring fed pools boil like diamond bubbles. Lakes are so vast you cannot
see the other side. Autumns exhibit splendor of scarlet maple leaves. Hillsides are
covered with magnificent panoramic colors. The sky is filled with vast billows of white
clouds. Winters are silent. Deep pillows of white snow are piled by mother nature’s
winds. Ice covered lakes sparkle with designs of crystal laced cracks, and so clear that
emeralds appear as one looks through the lattice. There are icy banks on rivers
rushing between holes in snow banks piled over the ice. The overhead shows an
ominous velvet blackness demonstrating the power of such beauty. Spring’s melting
snows fill the rushing rivers with such force the earth shakes like the vibrations from
thunder. Foam spills over the cascading waters as the rivers rush to Lake Superior,
Lake Michigan, or the Mississippi River. Cool crisp nights, warm sunny days, freezing
and thawing, sap dripping, the smell of boiling, and the beginning of the annual
owth is welcomed. Spring is the best of all. Blue een grass, fresh water, vast
forests, abundant wildlife —“Oui — Wisconsin” (the early French and Indian spelling and
pronunciation of Wisconsin), “And when vou have said Wisconsin, you have said it all”.

These attributes, this attitude, and the prospect for adventure by being a pioneer is why
Isaac and William Reynolds came to Wisconsin. It was the reason thousands came.
Wisconsin was for the taking. The Reynolds took their share. They gave back as much
as they took. The vision is still alive and well today. The fulfiliment that Wisconsin
provides, is almost beyond explanation. It was pure. It was clean. It was lush. The

State of Wisconsin was tucked up in a corner, nestled between the Great Lakes
(Michigan and Superior), and was bordered on the west by the Mississippi River.

These waters create an environment unlike any other in the world. It was
colder, it was warmer, it was greener than anv other they had ever seen. They felt that
entering Wisconsin, was like crossing into an isolated paradise which was unmatched.

Wisconsin'’s rich and exciting history is a complement to its’ beauty.

Water was the life blood of Wisconsin. Everything whether it be travel, freight,
or exploration, was by water. Wisconsin had a bountiful supply of water. It was

essentially surrounded by the navigable lakes and rivers. On the north, Lake Superior
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was the lake, on the East, Lake Michigan provided water, on the west, lay the
Mississippi River and the St. Croix River, and on the south was a connection to the
Illinois River. In addition, a waterway connection between Green Bay via the Fox River
and a “portage” connection to the Wisconsin River gave access to the Mississippi River
and the Gulf of Mexico. The Fox River was most unique. It is one of the few rivers in
the world that flows totally north from its’ source to its’ mouth. The early explorers

were given the route from the Fox to the Wisconsin River, by the Native Americans. In
the very early 1800’s, a canal ditch of just over a mile was dug to establish this “water
highway”. This was probably the most significant happening in Wisconsin history.
Wisconsin joined the world as it was then known. Remnants of this canal are still
visible today on the outskirts of the city of Portage, and is marked by a “Point of
Interest” sign. Keep in mind, this allowed travel by water from the Atlantic Ocean via
the St. Lawrence River through the Great Lakes, up the Fox River, across the

“portage”, onto the Wisconsin River. This bond of water travel was so important to the
history of the Reynolds in Wisconsin. The significance of these waterways shall

become apparent as the story continues.
In 1834, a proposed project which probably caused the most controversy of any

in Wisconsin'’s history was to create a canal via the Milwaukee River to the Rock River
which would give access to the Illinois River in Dixon, [llinois. Downward traffic by flat
boat (barges) was already in significant practice even prior to the Blackhawk War. “On
the 24th of June, 1830, John Dixon, the founder of the town of Dixon, Illinois, wrote to
the editor of the Miner’s Journal at Galena — ‘The first flat boat built on the Pickatolica
passed here this day, bound to St. Louis, with one thousand pigs of lead (70,000 Ibs.) for
Col. William S. Hamilton’—*. The Rock River demonstrated its upward navigability by
introduction of steamboats a few years later — The Galena Gazette of May 17, 1838
says: “The steamboat Gypsy Gray Master, lately ascended the Rock River as far as the
mouth of the Pekatoneca—*. Thus in 1836, public attention was directed towards
linking Lake Michigan with the Rock River. It is not the intent of this writing to even
try to explain the miscalculations, the ineptitude, the grants, the graft, the scandals,
the folly experienced, but for lack of a better word, it was a thirteen vear “fiasco”. This
“boondoggle” cost territory residents hundreds of thousands of dollars, caused
enormous legislation to be enacted, thousands of acres of land were subscribed to be
purchased, caused much bitterness, and at the approval of Statehood for Wisconsin
on May 29, 1848, no resolution to any of these obstacles was ever reached. The

project died, and no boat ever sailed the Lake Michigan, Rock River connection. The
Milwaukee — Rock River Canal project was dead.

Zime (Yas: Aecadion Spring
“Jnstead of canes, whose pores secrets
YWhite Sugar, brought from afar
Vature, for the Acadian, with kind
forethought, has put some in the maple tree.
WWhen springtime comes, this tree gives forth
A sweetish liquor from its bark,
And this, in each vieinity,
7he Settlers all collect with cave.
7his secemed a pleasant brew to me.
«/n copious droughts J drank it down;
And lemons only did we need
7 make it into  Semonade” JBy M. Dieveville 1708
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Figure 73: Rivers of Wisconsin showing the Portage Canal and the Proposed Milwaukee River - Rock
River Canal (connecting to the Mississippi River). Taken from the Wisconsin Education
Communications Board Web Site - Internet).

Isaac Reynolds left Wisconsin with the intent to return to work on the Rock River Canal.
But he soon became involved in the Chenango Canal project and never returned to
Wisconsin.

William F. Reynolds, however, returned to Smithfield, New York and made preparations
to return to Wisconsin during the summer of 1835, which he did. He became the first

of the direct line of L ’s ancestors to come to live and stay in Wisconsin, and
the R Ids to malice le in Wisconsin.

About October, 1834: Isaac Reynolds began work on the Chenango Canal as a private
contractor. He was involved in the providing of timbers, planks and lumber sawed by

Aden(1%)’s sawmill, and construction of bridges, aqueducts, and canal walls in the section
of Utica to Bouckuville, New York.
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Author’s Notes: From the “Chenango Canal”, by Barry K. Beyer: “Actual construction
of the canal was done by private companies under contracts let by the state and
according to the specifications and supervision of state appointed engineers. John B.

Jervis was appointed chief engineer in April of 1833 and it was under his direction
that the best built canal ever constructed in New York State was readied for operation.

Work on the section between Greene and Sherburne began in July of 1834 with
construction on the remaining two sections commencing soon afterwards. At one time
there were eleven contractors engaged in building the canal between Utica and
Sherburne........

......... The Chenango Canal was a masterpiece of engineering construction,
especially when the period in which it was built is considered. Contemporary

engineers, after viewing the structure, even commented that of all the New York canals
it was the best constructed.

It’s 97 mile length was interspersed with 116 locks with 76 of them lying
between Utica and Bouckville, a distance of 23 miles. This was necessary to lift the
boats 706 feet that separated Utica from the summit level of the canal; from there the

The walls and floor of each lock were covered with 2 ¥ “ thick planks placed
over 8” square pine timbers in order to retain the water. The gates, too, were made of

wood with huge timbers placed on top and overhanging the paths to act as levers and

to prevent sagging.......

Figure 74: Type of sluice and water power
wheel operating from that sluice, which
was very popular in these times and
had been for hundreds of years, back to
Europe. The real advantage was the
small quantity of water required,

and the small size stream that could
power sawmills. It is believed that
Isaac and Aden{1¢) utilized this type

of water power (Source: Reynolds
Family Archives).

ime (Yut: “ A Yaple Quote”

‘Grandma stood by the brass kettle and with the big wooden spoon she
poured hot syrup on each plate of snow. Jt cooled into soft candy, and as fast as
it cooled they ate it. 7hey could eat all they wanted, for maple sugar never hurt
angbody. Y/hen they had eaten the soft maple candy until they could eat no more,
then they helped themselves from the long table loaded with pumpkin pies and dried
berry pies and cookies and cakes. There was salt-rising bread, too, and cold boiled
pork and pickles. (9h, how sour the pickles were.’

Y Laura Jngalls Yy/ilder, “ Little Souse Jn The J3ig YWoods”
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Figure 75: Sketches of types of boats used on the Erie and Chenango Canals, Most were ‘animal
powered’, but the center sketch is a ‘steam powered’ boat used later in history (Source:
“The Chenango Canal”, by Barry K. Beyer - Reynolds Family Archives).
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October 18, 1834: “Pabst, Milwaukee’s oldest brewery company opened
for business.”

April 17, 1835: Electa M. Porter, Lynn’s 1st Great Grandmother is born in
Hebron, Wisconsin.

About June 1, 1835: William F. Reynolds, son of Aden(1s), and brother of
Adin(2n4), Lynn’s Ist Great Grandfather, moved permanently to Milwaukee,
Wisconsin.

Author’s Notes: Jefferson County, Wisconsin provided water for an attraction.

Farming was considered to be a good possibility. The land was covered with unlimited
forests for lumbering. Maple was one of the abundant species. The Bark River was

considered one of the best in Wisconsin to support a sawmill. Milling operation was a

potential enterprise. The land was fertile. The virgin woods had its’ appeal. The forests
provided an abundance of wildlife and wild game. The land was relatively flat, although
the Kettle Moraine (glacial remnants) provided rugged terrain in close proximity. Water

springs were plentiful. Somehow the springs were of utmost importance to the Reynolds

family. Crystal waters flowed.

The excitement of adventure was there. The Blackhawk War had just ended in
August of 1832. The potential for the building of a canal from the Milwaukee River to the
Rock River was a ‘lure’. The thought was to share in the settling of a wilderness.
Pioneers would be taming a wild paradise. Anfticipation was the order of the times.

In 1836, Wisconsin as it was known, contained four Counties, Brown, Crawford,
Towa, and Milwalky. It was Milwalky County from which Jefferson County was carved.
The area known as Wisconsin was part of the Wisconsin Territory, consisting of areas
known as lllinois, Indiana, Michigan, Ohio, and Wisconsin. All of these areas eventually
became independent states, with Wisconsin being reduced considerably in size in the
final result. This territory existed from 1836 to 1848.

Originally Hebron (a Jefferson County Township and small village) was called

Bark River Mills. Waterpower was the attraction to this area. A small group of explorers
left Milwaukee in 1835 to determine if these sites would be productive for sawmills and

milling. This group included David Sargent, Henry Miller, Thomas Holmes, Elisha
Edgerton, Daniel Wells, Jr., Solmon Juneau, and William Reynolds. Cities in Wisconsin

were later named for Edgerton, and Juneau, and Sargent’s descendants were later
married into the Reynolds family. William Reynolds, a man of 25 years old had moved to
Milwaukee during the summer of 1835 and was anxious for an opportunity to move to the
Jefferson County area. His expertise in logging, lumbering, waterpower, and sawmills

made him invaluable to the exploratory expedition of the Bark River. It also provided
William with his first experience with “the Bark River Country” of Wisconsin. William was

recognized in 1837 as “the first permanent settler of Hebron, Wisconsin”. He also served
as the “first school teacher in Hebron”, conducting classes in his home until the first
school was built. The trip from Milwaukee in 1835 consumed seventeen days. [t was
obvious the wilderness that was encountered on an approximately 40 mile trip. It was the
later part of November, 1835 when they arrived at what is now Hebron. They built a
claim shack which would establish their claim to this territory. Their claim was made in
behalf of the Rock River Land and Claim Company. Sargent stayed alone over the winter
to justify their claim. Sargent suffered a very cold and uncomfortable winter in which to
establish the claim. The claim became legal in 1836. The rest of the expedition party
returned to Milwaukee for the winter, with William Reynolds returning as soon as the

winter of 1835-36 was over. A new area of settlement in Wisconsin was born. The
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following account of this settlement’s beginning is contained in the book, “Koshkonong

Country (A History Of Jefferson County), Wisconsin”:

“That spring (1836), a work party arrived from Milwaukee to build a dam on the

river and erect a sawmill. This mill, the first building on the Rock River or any of its
tributaries north of Dixon, Illinois, was started September 9, 1836, with the first lumber
sawed in February, 1837. Alvin Foster, brother of Dwight, the first settler in Fort
Atkinson was foreman of the crew that constructed the mill while Rufus C. Dodge was the
‘smithy.’

Dodge, who arrived in Milwaukee August 1, 1836 from Oneida County, New York,
wrote the following story:

‘After a few days’ stay, Alvin Foster, David Sargent and I started for the Bark
River. It was but an Indian trail; not a shanty on the route or at the last named place.
Lodgings under some large oak trees were the best we could find. I made but a short
stay before returning to Milwaukee after my effects, with the intention of working for a
company which was about to build a sawmill at the Bark River.

On the trip from Milwaukee to the Bark River with any ox team, we cut our road

through in four days, a distance of 45 miles. The most of the way, however, needed but
little cutting, consisting of openings and prairie. After reaching the Bark River we left our

team on the east side, crossed over to camp ourselves again under an old oak, and, while
as comfortable as could be, the wolves laid claim to our baggage on the other side of the
river, distance of some 6 or 8 rods from camp and, for want of something better, nearly

devoured my blacksmith’s bellows.’

The mill, first operated by Enoch Darling, changed hands several times and was
finally bought in 1845 by Joseph Powers, who added a factory for manufacturing
bedsteads. In this shop, which at times employed nearly 100 men, he produced low-
priced furniture which was hauled by teams to the growing towns that had sprung up in
southern Wisconsin and northern Illlinois.

A flourmill erected by Powers in 1852 burned down in 1855. It was rebuilt the
same year by C. R. Barnes, who had had an option to buy the pro . Howeuver, the

10,000 involved in rebuilding so financially crippled Barnes that the property reverted
back to Powers.

The bedstead factory was enlarged until the building was over 100 feet long and

two stories high, but the structure burned in 1866. The loss affected the whole town,

since Powers did not rebuild. Instead, he moved the business to Fort Atkinson where it
became the Northwestern Furniture Company.

Although a small turning shop remained at Hebron, as a branch of the furniture
factory, 30 to 50 families left Hebron. This may well be one of the reasons that the
community remained a small rural settlement.”

William F. Reynolds, who arrived permanently, and for the second time, in the spring
1836, became the first permanent settler in the Hebron, Wisconsin settlement and
conducted school classes in his home until the Munro School was constructed in 1843.

Adin(2nd) Reynolds would arrive in Hebron, Wisconsin, with his widowed mother Polly,
and sister Holcy in the fall of 1845. The move from Smithfield, New York to Hebron,
Wisconsin would be complete.

July 8, 1835: “Liberty Bell cracks while tolling the death of Chief Justice
John Marshall.”
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Figure 77: Photograph of the Bark River,
Hebron, Wisconsin as it looks today,

without the dam. The dam is out for repairs.
It probably appears here, quite similar as

it did in 1835 when Willlam F. Reynolds
first saw it (Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).

September 17, 1835: “Joe Oliver became the first black to vote in
Wisconsin. Oliver, a cook for Solomon Juneau, was one of 39 people who
voted in the first election in the town of Milwaukee.”

November 25, 1835: “The Texas Rangers organized.”

December 23, 1835: “Samuel Colt patents revolving pistol.”

March 2, 1836: “Texas Declaration of Independence from Mexico.”

March 6, 1836: “Santa Anna captures The Alamo.”

June 15, 1836: “Arkansas becomes the 25t state.”

June 28, 1836: “James Madison dies at age 85.”

October 10, 1836: “William D. Hoard, Wisconsin’s 16t governor was
born in Stockbridge, New York. He founded the ‘Hoard’s Dairyman’
publication in Fort Atkinson, Wisconsin.” His father’s enthusiastic
presentation in Morrisville, New York in 1825, encouraged William F.
Reynolds to move to Hebron, Wisconsin, just 8 miles from Fort Atkinson, in
Jefferson County. William’s interest was indeed dairy farming.

Figure 78: Current photograph of the
Hoard’s Dairy Museum, Fort Atkinson,
Wisconsin. It was founded by
William D. Hoard, whose father
provided the inspiration for

William F. Reynolds to move to
Hebron, Wisconsin in 1834

(Source: Reynolds Family

Archives).

205



Author’s Notes: During my recent visit to New York in May, 1998, I actually found and

photographed the location of the Reynolds Sawmill near Peterboro (Smithfield). Evidence
is still visible of the mill pond location, the dam, and actual laid walls where the spillway
was located. nA i y - :

Figure 78A: Photograph of the Oneida Creek
at the location of the mill pond built by
Isaac and Aden(l<) Reynolds in about

1820 to operate their sawmill near
Peterboro (Smithfield), New York

(Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

Figure 78B: Stones forming the
‘spillway’, from the dam are
visible in center of the photograph.
These stones were laid up by Isaac
and Aden{1+t) Reynolds in about
1820, on the Oneida Creek near
Peterboro, New York (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).

Figure 78C: The actual dam, built by
the Reynolds, in about 1820 (Reynolds
Family Archives).

Figure 78D: Cemetery in Peterboro,
New York. Believed to be burial sites
JSor Isaac, Prudence, and Aden{1+)
Reynolds; and burial sites for Peter
and Gerrit Smith. Notice all of the

huge maple trees (Reynolds Family
Archives).
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October 22, 1836: “Sam Houston becomes first president of the Republic
of Texas.”

About May 1, 1837: William F. Reynolds, Adin(24)’s brother, married
Susan Dodge, in Hebron, Wisconsin.

May 6, 1837: “The Chenango Canal officially opened.”

About May 15, 1837: Isaac Reynolds at the urging of his good friend and
‘pioneer compatriot’, Peter Smith, he signed on as a private contractor and
‘engineer’ to help build the Genesee Valley Canal. This canal was a link
Jrom Rochester on the Erie Canal to Olean, New York. Isaac’s interests
included furnishing lumber, timbers, and logs to the project. The lumber
was sawed by Aden(1%)’s sawmill.

Author’s Notes: This was the last project that Peter Smith would have influence on
Isaac Reynolds’ life. Peter was in very poor health when these conferences on the
Genesee Valley Canal took place. Both, having tasted considerable success, were Just
extending that last push for the building of America’s ‘pioneer spirit’.

About June 18, 1837: “Peter Smith died in Peterboro, New York. When
he died he held some 555,000 acres of land in 43 counties of New York.”

Author’s Notes: The death of Peter Smith ended a long friendship that existed between
Peter and Isaac Reynolds. They had entered many challenges together with progress and

settlement being the mutual goal. Where this friendship ended, the cementing of the

[friendship of Peter’s son Gerrit, and Isaac’s son Aden{1) really began. They were
approximately the same age, Aden(1%) born in 1790 and Gerrit in 1797. Everything that
their fathers worked for, in reality were not important to Aden(1st) and Gerrit. B this
mean, Isaac and Peter lived on the edge, in respect to business ventures and €ess
challenges; while Aden(1%!) and Gerrit were interested in social issues, both were
philanthropists and worked toward social reform. Both of the younger generation took
care of business, but worked towards the benefit of their fellow man.

Gerrit Smith entered Hamilton College in 1814 and graduated as valedictorian
in 1818. In January of the following yvear he married Wealtha Ann Backus, daughter of
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Hamilton’s College President. Wealtha Ann died seven months after the weddi and

in 1822, Gerrit married Ann Carroll Fitzhugh of Rochester, New York. He was
something of a hypochondriac and imagined himself ill for most of his life. However, in
the course of his life he had printed approximately two hundred circular letters,
speeches, and pamphlets, dealing with the various questions, political, social, and
theological, in which he happened to be interested. The record indicates, that Gerrit
Smith’s most significant contributions to his era were his efforts in causes of social
and moral reform. He used his powers of oratory and his ability to write on
controversial issues on behalf of anti-slavery. anti-tobacco, and anti-masonic
movements, temperance, women's rights, religion, education, and international peace.
His gifts to these causes were divided roughly into three categories: speaking, writing
both for publication and privately, and providing funds. He was elected president of
the New York State Anti-Slavery Society in 1836, and began publication of
approximatel essays on slavery. By the decade of the 1830’s, he was helpi
slaves to escape and sheltering them at Peterboro before sending them, usually to
Canada. In many cases, he bought slaves and set them free.

In 1853 Gerrit Smith was elected to Congress, representing the 22nd New York
District of Oswego and Madison Counties. He was supported by anti-slavery Whigs,
Democrats, Free Democrats, and other abolitionists. While an incumbent, he strongly

advocated temperance, abolition, and peace. He resigned his seat in August 1854,
giving as a reason “the pressure of my too extensive private business”. However, it

was believed he was sadly disillusioned by the slow and prejudiced political system in
Washington.

John Brown had been a leader for free soil in Kansas, but by 1857 the Kansas
troubles had lessened, and Brown turned his thoughts to an attack on Virginia and

the colonization of free soilers there. He traveled about from place to place seeking
funds, and arrived in Peterboro in February 1858, where he discussed his plans with

Gerrit Smith and others. Documents indicate that Smith understood perfectly what
John Brown had in mind and that it would involve violence. The attack on Harper’s
Ferry began on October 16, 1859. Brown was captured: charged with conspiracy,
murder and treason; found guilty; sentenced; and hanged in early December.

During this period, the ‘New York Herald’ printed documents disclosing Smith’s
connection with John Brown and his plot, and accused Smith of being an accessory.
Smith’s fear and anxiety over the possible effects of his involvement resulted in a
nervous breakdown. Five days after John Brown was sentenced, Gerrit Smith was
taken to the New York State Lunatic Asylum in Utica, where he remained for about two
months before he was returned to Peterboro.

For two years after his breakdown, Gerrit withdrew from public life and lived in
retirement; he then resumed his activities in defense of the slaves. He ran for
President of the United States on an abolitionist ticket in 1860, but, while voting for

himself, he supported Lincoln and gave the administration his full approval on the

Civil War once it had begun.
In his late yvears, Gerrit continued to contribute funds liberally to any cause he

thought worthwhile. He spent freely for his own village of Peterboro, providing for
flagstone walks, swamp drainage, and the building of roads. He reopened the
Peterboro Academy, providing a site for it in the village as well as a salary budget and
free tuition for needy students. He gave generously to many institutions of higher
learning. He died on December 28, 1874 and was buried in the Peterboro village

cemetery.

Aden(1st) Reynolds was educated with high school equivalent, at a private
academy in Albany, New York. His education was primarily oriented toward
‘engineering’, business, and technical achievement similar to the interests of his father

Isaac. He was extraordinarily successful in operating the family sawmills, operating the

208



amil; le erations, and providing for his family in a relatively affluent
manner. However, his interests were far removed from these business interests.

Aden(1st), first and foremost was a writer. He loved to write articles about things
in which he believed. His social status was no way in the category of his friend Gerrit
Smith, but in a more discreet manner he expressed many of the same views as his friend.
Aden(1%t) was a quiet man. He loved the forests, the water, the wildlife, and nature. He
was an environmentalist. It saddened him that the forests were being slaughtered, even
he personally was involved directly in this slaughter. He loved wildlife, but was also a
passionate hunter. “He never killed anything that was not used (trees) or (wild game)”.

He hated slavery. He hated the dominance of any man over another. He
deplored unfair labor practices he observed on the canal projects that involved him. He

elt women were oppressed and deprived. He was an advocate for women’s rights
abolition, and peace. His views complimented those of Gerrit Smith. It was little wonder
that they were friends. It is expected that Aden(1t) knew of the pending military action
by John Brown at Harpers Ferry, but there is no record of such involvement and no
charges were ever filed against him. As close as Aden(1%) was to Gerrit Smith, it is
probable that he too was advised of the attack which was to take place. But I do not
believe he participated in the planning or that he was directly involved.

Aden(1st) loved to write poetry. His makeup was of non-violence, and peaceful
coexistence. The kindness of poetry seem to soothe his concerns towards the violence
between those conflicts he could observe. He felt the Indians were unfairly stripped of
their lands. He watched the blacks oppressed into captive slavery. His views were for

eedom. He wanted ality, and advocated solace. He wanted peace.

Although Aden{1st) never achieved the notoriety of his father Isaac, and even
though he never attained the financial capacity of his friend Gerrit Smith, he was
probably the most peaceful man in my entire family ancestry. Aden{1s!) did pass on to his

children, his pacifist attitudes. And, I believe he was instrumental in passing on the
peaceful views to his descendants even today. His impact was in a personal quiet

manner.

Unfortunately, the Aden(1s!)-Gerrit friendship would not be long lived. Aden(1st
Reynolds died July 2, 1844 at the youn e of 54. He is peacefully buried under the
large maple trees, next to his Mother Prudence, his father Isaac, and near his friend
Gerrit, in the Peterboro village cemetery, truly a peaceful place. It is a fitting place for
both Aden(1st) Reynolds and Gerrit Smith to be resting in peace towards eternity. True
peace is his.

January 26, 1837: “Michigan becomes 26t state.”

March 4, 1837: “Martin Van Buren becomes the 8t President of the
United States. He was married to Hannah Hoes.”

January 5, 1838: “The Milwaukee and Rock River Canal Company, was
chartered for the purpose of constructing a canal linking the Milwaukee
River with the Rock River, and ultimately connecting with the Mississippi
River.”

January 12, 1838: “A legislative act abolishing imprisonment for debt
was signed into law by Henry Dodge, Territorial Governor of Wisconsin.”

January 17, 1838: “The Wisconsin Territorial Militia, the forerunner of
the Wisconsin National Guard was formed.”
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January 19, 1838: “President Van Buren authorized the Wisconsin
Territorial Legislature to establish the land grant University of
Wisconsin.”

April 21, 1838: “John Muir, “The father of conservation”, is born in
Dunbar, Scotland.”

Figure 79: Photograph of John Muir with President
Theodore Roosevelt at Glacier Point, Yosemite in 1903.
Muir was a resident of Wisconsin from 1849 until

1866. He was a conservationist, a teacher, a ‘wanderer’.
His theme of life was “learning from the laws of Nature”,
but his philosophy was “The greatest good for the greatest
number for the longest period of time”. He was the primary
driving force in the creation of Yosemite, Sequoia, Mount
Ranier, Petrified Forest, and Grand Canyon National Parks
(Source: Photographer unknown - Taken from the Sierra
Club photographs on thelr Website (“John Muir Exhibit),
the Internet).

June 13, 1838: “Congress reduced the size of the Wisconsin Territory to
approximately the present boundaries.”

October 3, 1838: “Chief Black died.”

December 5, 1839: “George Armstrong Custer was born in New
Rumley, Ohio.”

January 13, 1840: “A Wisconsin law was passed providing that each
town should elect three school commissioners to organize school districts
and to examine and certify teachers.”

About May 1, 1840: Isaac Reynolds, while working on the final
preparations for the opening of the Genesee Valley Canal, took ill had to
return to his home in Smithfield, New York.

Figure 80: A depiction of the terrain,
typical of Madison County, New York,
and illustrates the use of oxen for
collection of maple sap in the 1840’s.
This probably is not an actual ‘Reynolds
photograph’, since the sugarhouse
appears too medern for this period,
and the Reynolds were known Coopers,
and were quite certain to use wooden
buckets during this time period
(Source: Reynolds Family Archives).
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May 1, 1840: The Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 3.75 cents per pound or about
40 cents per gallon of syrup (The drop in
price between 1830 and 1840 is attributed
that labor costs dropped during this period).
Barter Price: About 1 man’s labor for a day
per gallon of pure maple syrup (labor rate was
about $12.00 per month or 40 cents per day.
Estimated Production of Maple Syrup:

United States: 2,500,000 U. S. gallons
(includes maple sugar production converted
to maple syrup).

Canada: About 820,000 U. S. gallons
(includes maple sugar production converted
to maple syrup).

Authors Notes: Figures in this text shall be
displayed in gallons of syrup and maple sugar
will be converted to gallons of syrup, unless
‘a sale’ is specifically for maple sugar.
Gallons of syrup shall be displayed in U. S.
Gallons, with Imperial Gallons converted to
U. S. Gallons.

May 16, 1840: “The census recorded Wisconsin’s population as 30,945
residents in the territory.”

June 1, 1840: Population of the United States is
17,069,453.
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“Estimated population of Canada is 2,265,090.”

June 5, 1840: Isaac Reynolds, Lynn’s 34 Great Grandfather, died in
Smithfield, and is buried in the Peterboro (Smithfield), New York village
cemetery.

Author’s Notes: Isaac will be remembered for his ‘engineering’ feats,
especially for his harnessing of the Boquet River, in Essex County. He floated
timbers down Lake Champlain and the Hudson. He was instrumental in the
construction of the Erie, The Genesee Valley, and the Chenango Canals. He was
robably the roducer of pure le in the United States
his lifetime. He was a logger, a land baron, and a sawmill man. He was a
creator of engineering masterpieces. He was a pioneer. He loved the
challenges. Isaac Reynolds was always looking towards the horizon for the
next opportunity. He could not wait for the next project to begin. He set out in
life to ‘settle the wilderness, tame rivers and move mountains’ — “He did all
three”. He was a gilant of a man.

September 28, 1840: “George Peck, Wisconsin’s 17t governor was born
in New York state. He was a pioneer in journalism in Wisconsin and was
a veteran of the Civil War.”

March 4, 1841: “William Henry Harrison becomes the 9t President of
the United States. He was married to Anna T. Symmes.”

April 4, 1841: “United States President William Henry Harrison dies.”

April 4, 1841: “Vice President John Tyler becomes 10t President of the
United States. He was married to Letitia Christian and Julia Gardner.”

May 3, 1841: “William H. Upham, Wisconsin’s 18% governor was born in
Westminster, Massachusetts. He was wounded at the battle of Bull Run
during the Civil War.”

March 28, 1842: “Edward Schofield, Wisconsin’s 19% governor, was born
in Clearfield, Pennsylvania.”

J. |. CASE COMPANY'S PORTABLE A

S g it oo 1ss. & STEAM ENGINES -~
The sawmill was the same kind that o

Aden{1+) and Isaac Reynolds were using
during the early 1800’s in New York.
These sawmills worked by a saw blade
operating up and down by eccentric
gears similar to a hand saw (Source:
Encyclopedia of Steam Traction
Engines by Norbeck 1976 - Taken from
the “Wisconsin State Farmer”

(‘WI Lore and Legends’) - date

unknown - Reynolds Family Archives).
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Summer, 1843: The Munro School, the first school of Hebron,
Wisconsin, was built. The school replaced the teaching that William F.
Reynolds had conducted in his home from 1835 until the school was
finished in 1843. There is a cemetery established at the rear of the
school, which is the burial location of Polly and Holcy Reynolds, the wife
and daughter of Aden(1st) Reynolds.

PRI
Figure 82: Photograph of the Munro i
School, Hebron, Wisconsin, today. It
serves as a residence today. The
burial cemetery of Polly and Holcy
Reynolds is at the rear of the old
school (Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).

R S

July 6, 1843: “Construction of Villa Louis was started at Prairie du
Chien, Wisconsin, by wealthy fur trader Hercules Dousman.”

August 12, 1843: “The first paper mill in Wisconsin, ‘Ludington and
Garland’, began operating in Milwaukee on the north side of the
Menominee River.”

May 1, 1844: “Morse’s telegraph line between Washington and Baltimore
completed, and declared successful.”

July 16, 1844: Aden(1%) Reynolds, Lynn’s 2 Great Grandfather died in
Smithfield, and is buried in the Peterboro (Smithfield), New York village
cemetery. He lies in peace with his mother Prudence, his father Isaac, and
his good friend Gerrit Smith, on the serene hilltop, under the giant maple
trees that are still there today.

Author’s Notes: Aden(1st) Reynolds will be remembered as a quiet man. He

was honest. He was a writer and a poet. He was a le roducer.
It is estimated that he tapped approximately 3800 trees during his lifetime, in
Essex County, and finally in Madison Country, New York. He was a logger. He

was a sawmill man. He was an environmentalist. He practiced what he

preached. He hated slavery. He loved freedom. He was a pacifist. He loved
peace. He lies in peace. He will be remembered quietly and with respect.
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Figure 83: Aden{1%) Reynol:[s. Taken from a caricature etched on a metal plate and

is hand painted. This is a true family treasure, probably dating from around 1840
(Source: Reynolds Family Archives).
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CHAPTER 18 -

(THEY MOVED TO WISCONSIN)

Adin(24) Reynolds - Lynn’s 1t Great Grandfather
Electa Porter - Lynn’s 1t Great Grandmother

1. Leon P. Reynolds - Edna Mae Blakely
(1) Clarence Adin{3) Reynolds - Geraldine Wheeler
1) Lynn Herbert Reynolds - Anne Margaret Sharkey
2) Juan Lee Reynolds - Loretta Silver
3) Eathleen Geraldine Reynolds - Leroy Sipes
4) Donald Arthur Klitzka - Marlene M. Moesch
(2) Merle Reynolds - Edith Leipold
1) Lawrence ‘Chum’ Reynolds - Marion Sery
2) Alice Reynolds
3) Vernita Reynolds - (Floyd Rabe}- Joseph Kosakowski
2. Clarence Reynolds - Philena
(1) William G. Reynolds - Ann
1) Farrell Reynolds
2) Blanche Reynolds
3. Edmond Reynolds - Jennie Barnes
(1) Lulu Electa Reynolds - John H. Freeman
1) John “Jack” Freeman - Sylvia
(2) Donovan Reynolds - Dorthy
1) Edmond Reynolds - Alice
4. Frank Reynolds - Jennie
(1) Nellie Reynolds - Frank Lambert
1) Lorna Lambert
2) Don Lambert
3) Georgia Lambert
(2) Harry Reynolds - Jennie Porter
1) Frank Reynolds - Fern
2) Leta Reynolds
3) Helen Reynolds
4) Arthur Reynolds
5) Harvey Reynolds
6) Evelyn Reynolds
(3) Bertie Reynolds
(4) Vinnie Reynolds - Harry Bell
1) Alan Bell
2) Lynn Bell
(5) Lynn Reynolds
5. Kitt Reynolds - Charles Sipes
6. Clyde Reynolds - Nettie Lewis
(1) Laverne Reynolds - Floyd Peterson
1) Jo Ann Peterson
2) Phyllis Peterson
3) Karen Peterson
(2) Eenneth Reynolds - Ella Timm
1) Donovan “Bud” Reynolds
2) William “Bill” Reynolds
3) Betty Reynolds - Gordon Bemis
4) Jerry Reynolds - Joyce Wincentsen
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Author’s Notes: Adin/ 2) Reynolds was just 13 years old when his grandfather Isaac
died and 17 when his /[ather Aden(1+) died. His brothers; William who was in Wisconsin,
and Asa had morved on to lllinois and then to Oregon. He was thrust into the role as head
of the far riy. His mother Polly and his sister, Holcy were both widowed. He had the

world or.1 his shoulders. He had a farm, a sawmill, a large maple syrup operation,

‘naa not completed his education as yet, and was forced to accept responsibilities well
beyond his age level.

After his brother William had moved permanently to Wisconsin in 1834,
Adin(2n9) talkced of little else with anticipation of joining William, although

farming was not his first choice. Adin(2"4) loved making and selling maple
syrup. Since the completion of the Che and Erie Canals, all of the le

roduction had been s ed as ht through the canals, down the

Hudson River, and overland to Greenwich. This was a beautiful arrangement
for marketing syrup, but in all honesty, the profitability due to the costs

involved in transportation, was highly leveraged. It had become more of an
obligation to family and friends in Greenwich, than a business

and malking a business profit. In the past, his father Aden(1+t) and his
grandfather Isaac had been involved in such diverse business and money
making ventures, that profitability was set aside as a minor consideration. But
now that they were gone, Adin{2n4), even at such a young age, had to consider

how he was going to support himself, his mother and sister. Gone was the
income from ‘engineering’ by his grandfather. Gone was the lucrative market

for lumber which had been sawed for the canals and other projects by his
father. Even though lumber was still in high demand in New York City, again it
had to be orted from S eld through the canal or market in
New Yorik City. The profitability for such lumber shipments was meager to say
the least. Farming, in its simple way of life, provided ‘meat and potatoes’, but
was not the money malker needed by Adin{24) to support a family. I had
always been the philosophy of the Reynolds family to have the market and then
produce the product, namely maple syrup and lumber. Now things had

c a word ‘profit’ had to be considered in these decisions. Adin{2.
needed to be congratulated for his business wisdom at such a young age. The
maple syrup and the lumber market lacked ‘profit’, but a far more serious and
probably the most important factor facing Adin{2"4), was that the timber stands
in the Smithfield area were essentially gone. With the construction of the
eleven canals in the Madison County area, the building of thousands of homes,
and the export of logs and lumber to the east which was starving for lumber,
had decimated the forest reserves that had been so lucrative just 20 years in
the past. Adin/2"¢) was a logger and a ‘lumberman’ by example from his family.
He wanted to continue in these pursuits, but he could see that the forest
resources just were no longer there. The number one consideration was the
lack of trees. So you guessed it; “he followed the trees”. In addition, Adin(2n4)
had to accelerate his education at an academy in Utica, New York, where he
was about to complete his studies in business. His mother insisted he finish
and he did. So, here he was, at 17 years old, head of the family, profits non-
existent, father’s and grandfather’s incomes gone, and huge operations way
above the capability for one man so young; he had to make very serious

decisions. His longing to be near his older brother William helped him make
the decisions easier. In concurrence with his mother’s opinion, he decided d to

dispose of all the lands and other assets, and move to Wisconsin. He knew this

was not going to be an immediate accomplishment, but he set out in a
methodical manner to sell all the New York properties, the sawmill, the le

syrup operation, and all other assets that had been accumulated by his
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ather and father. He took the courtesy to the and families
inGreemv!cho[h!sdecisiontodisconﬂnuethadeIMofmlemmd
lumber to the east. The asset sales were completed by the middle of 1845. The
family was relatively affluent from the proceeds of these sales. Thus, with the
purchase of a new ‘Canastota Wagon’, a d team of horses, and all the
personal property they could carry, and at the age of 19, Adin{2"4), mother, and
sister moved to Heb Wisconsin to his brother William.

Figure 84: A wall mural at the Olympic
Center, Lake Placid, New York, depicting
maple syrup production about 1850
(Source: Photograph - Reynolds Family
Archives).

December 9, 1844: “The Milwaukee Sentinel became the first daily
newspaper in Milwaukee.”

January 30, 1845: “The spelling of ‘Wisconsin’ was officially accepted by
the legislature. It rejected the spelling of ‘Wiskonsan’ and ‘Quisconsin’.”

March 3, 1845: “Florida becomes 27t State.”

March 4, 1845: “James Knox Polk becomes the 11t President of the
United States. He was married to Sarah Childres.”

June 8, 1845: “Andrew Jackson dies at age 78 near Nashville,
Tennessee.”

October 10, 1845: “U. S. Naval Academy opens in Annapolis, Maryland.”

About October 15, 1845: Aden(2) Reynolds, along with his widowed
mother and widowed sister, moved permanently to Hebron, Wisconsin.

December 29, 1845: “Texas becomes 28t state.”

January 31, 1846: “Milwaukee was incorporated as a city.”

“Carroll College was organized in Waukesha, Wisconsin.”

February 2, 1846: “A plank road was authorized between Milwaukee and
Lisbon and was extended to Watertown, Wisconsin. The road was
completed in 1847.”

February 3, 1846: “Madison, Wisconsin was incorporated as a village.”
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About March 1, 1846: Adin(2"?) Reynolds started tapping trees in
Wisconsin. He took over the existing maple syrup operation that
had been operated and established by his brother William.

William had been tapping trees in Wisconsin since 1836. Itis
believed that when Adin{2"9) took over the operation, William had
been tapping approximately 1,000 trees. The exact location of this
sugarbush has not been determined. But Adin(2"9) originally lived
near Hebron next to the farm owned by his brother William.
Adin(2™), after his marriage moved to Hartford, Wisconsin (about
20 miles away), but continued to operate the Reynolds sugarbush.
After a few years, Adin (2%) moved back to Hebron, onto a farm
owned by him (clearly defined on a plat map). He built a new house
there and farmed successfully, continuing to make syrup all of his
life. It is doubtful that the sugarbush was on that particular
property, but was probably a short distance away in or toward the
Kettle Moraine area, east of Palmyra, Wisconsin, where maple trees
were more plentiful. Some trees were located on the Hebron
property, because there was also an underground sap cistern on
the Hebron property.

May 13, 1846: “The United States declares war on Mexico.”

December 28, 1846: “lowa becomes the 29t state.”

About January 13, 1847: Lawrence University, Appleton, Wisconsin was
founded. It’s founder and 15t president was Reverend William Harkness
Sampson. In 1859, Lawrence University’s 2 president, Russell M.
Manson, issued his list of ‘Things Prohibited” “1) Unpermitted
association of Gentlemen and Ladies; 2) Games of chance, or the use of
intoxicating drinks; 3) Profane or obscene language, smoking or chewing
tobacco on college premises; 4) Visiting on the Sabbath or in study
rooms; and 5) Frequenting bar rooms or groceries.”

Lynn Reynolds received his Master’s Degree from Lawrence University
(The Institute of Paper Chemistry) in 1970.

March 3, 1847: “Alexander Graham Bell born in Edinburgh, Scotland.”

March 26, 1847: “General Scott captures Vera Cruz.”

July 22, 1847: “First Mormon (Church of the Latter Day Saints)
emigrants arrive in Utah.”

August 21, 1847: “General Scott grants armistice to the Mexicans.”
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“Frederick Douglass founds abolitionist newspaper North Star in
Rochester, New York.”

“Rotary printing press invented”

August 23, 1847: “Milwaukee bricklayers stopped work to demand a
wage increase from $1.50 to $1.75 per day”

January 15, 1848: “The first telegram reached Milwaukee via the new
Erie and Michigan Telegraph Company, which linked Milwaukee with
Buffalo, Cleveland, Detroit and Chicago.”

January 24, 1848: “Gold is discovered in California.”

February 2, 1848: “Treaty with Mexico concluded at Guadalupe Hidalgo.
Peace is restored.”

February 23, 1848: “John Quincy Adams dies.”

May 29, 1848: “Wisconsin becomes 30th state.”

October 18, 1848: “The Menominee Indians ceded the last remaining
lands of any Wisconsin tribe to the United States Government.”

March 3, 1849: “Minnesota becomes a territory.”

March 5, 1849: “Zachary Taylor becomes the 12t President of the United
States. He was married to Margaret M. Smith.”

Summer, 1849: “Alonzo Horton acquired 1,500 acres, at 70 cents per
acre, in Outagamie County, Wisconsin, of which he founded Hortonville,
Wisconsin. He made a small fortune selling lots.

Figure 85: Alonzo Horton, in about the 1840’s.
He founded Hortonville, Wisconsin and San
Diego, California, as well as other well
documented lifelong accomplishments
(Source: “New San Diego, and its founder,
Alonzo E. Horton”, by Elizabeth C. MacPhail,
1979 - Reynolds Family Archives).

June 15, 1849: “James K. Polk dies in Nashville, Tennessee.”

219



August 25, 1849: “Wisconsin produced 4 million bushels of wheat in
1849, converting a frontier state to an agricultural giant.”

October 7, 1849: “Edgar Allen Poe dies in Baltimore.”

May 1, 1850: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 4 cents per pound or about 45
cents per gallon of syrup. Barter Price:
About 1 ¥ bushels of wheat (price of wheat
had dropped to about 30 cents per bushel)

Maple Syrup Production (includes production
of maple sugar):

United States: 4,281,680 U. S. Gallons of
Syrup

1850 Production of Individual States
(In U. S. Gallons - U. S. Census)

New York 1,294,686 Kentucky 54,676
Vermont 793,670 Illinois 31,113
Ohio 748,701 Missouri 22,364
Indiana 365,149 Tennessee 19,820
Michigan 304,974 Maine 11,693
Pennsylvania 290,816 lIowa 9,801
New Hampshire 281,877 Connecticut 6,350
Virginia 153,458 Maryland 5,968
Massachusetts 99,441 North Carolina 3,492
Wisconsin 76,372 Minnesota 369

**Total U. S. Production: 1850 (From U. S. Census): *4,281,680 U. S. Gallons.
*(Totals include small amounts not reported under individual states)

»*Statistics modified from data by Clarence Coons, in Ontarlo’s “Maple Thrives in ‘95".)

Total data taken from “USDA Farmers Bulletin 516", “The Production of Maple Syrup and Sugar”.
Washington 1912.

And other sources.

Canada: About 1,027,225 U. S. Gallons of
Syrup.
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June 1, 1850: The population of the United
States was 23,191,876.

“Estimated population of Canada is 2,482,600.”

July 7, 1850: “Wisconsin population was 305,391.”
July 9, 1850: “President Zachary Taylor dies in office.”

July 10, 1850: “Millard Fillmore becomes 13% President of the United
States. He was married to Abigail Powers.”

September 9, 1850: “California becomes the 31st state.”

October 2, 1850: Polly Reynolds, Adin(2")’s mother and Lynn’s 2 Great
Grandmother died in Hebron, Wisconsin and is buried in a small cemetery
behind the Munro School.

Authors Notes: The following is from transcribed notes (1922), from an unnamed
family Bible, believed to have been written by Polly Reynolds, Lynn’s 2n4 great

mother, in a letter to her daughter Holcy or her son Asa: She wrote, “I sure miss
him. Dad (believed to be Adin(1st)) is buried on the hilltop, under his beloved maple trees.
He is buried next to his Pa (Isaac) and his Ma (Prudence). He is at peace next to his good
Smithfield friends (Peter and Garret Smith) in Peterboro. He will always be with me.”

January 29, 1851: “Ripon College was founded as ‘Brockway College’.
The name was changed to Ripon in 1864”. Anne Reynolds, Lynn’s wife
attended Ripon College in 1954.

October 2, 1851: “The first Wisconsin State Fair ended after being held
for two days in Janesville at Rock County Fairgrounds.” Adin(24)
Reynolds and his wife to be, Electa Porter attended Wisconsin’s first State
Fair.

October 16, 1850: “The Walworth County fair opened. It is Wisconsin’s
oldest existing county fair.”

October 29, 1851: Adin(27) Reynolds marries Electa Porter in Hebron,
Wisconsin.

March 4, 1853: “Franklin Pierce becomes the 14t President of the
United States. He was married to Jane M. Appleton.”
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June 16, 1853: “The Gipfel Union Brewery, the oldest surviving brewery
building in Wisconsin, was built on West Juneau Street, Milwaukee,
Wisconsin.”

July 12, 1853: “Capital punishment in Wisconsin is banned. The first
state to adopt this humanitarian action.”

January 7, 1854: “Robert La Follette, Wisconsin’s 20% governor, was
born at Primrose, the first Wisconsin-born governor.”

February 9, 1854: “The Northwestern Iron Company established the first
iron smelter in Dodge County, Wisconsin.”

February 10, 1854: “James O. Davidson, Wisconsin’s 21st governor, was
born in Sogn, Norway.”

March 31, 1854: “Milton Academy was chartered by the 7t Day
Adventists. It became Milton College in 1867.”

June 1, 1855: “The price of wheat in Wisconsin rose to about $1.70 per
bushel”

About July, 1855: Adin(29) built a cement cistern on his property
in Hebron, Wisconsin (and probably on another property where the
main Reynolds maple grove was located), to store maple sap. He
designed a pipe system whereby dumping stations were utilized to
dump the gathered maple sap and then by gravity, the sap would
drain to the cement cistern near the sugarhouse. The underground
cisterns provided sap storage and created a cool environment for
the sap. Sap was able to be stored longer without reducing the
quality of syrup. And, underground storage did not freeze as hard,
making it more accessible to pumping (or dipping) in very cold
weather. His experiences with dumping stations and underground
sap storage would be repeated by his son, Leon and his grandson,
Adin(37), at Aniwa, Wisconsin. These technigues are still utilized
today at the Aniwa maple operation.

Author’s Notes: The use of pipes to transport maple sap rather than hauling

was significant in a couple of aspects. First, this was the beginning of a long

and steady improvement of these sap transportation technigues, culminating

with the ultimate stations (prior to the tub

which were later per:fecbed bg Bob Lamb) by Adin{3) Reynolds in the 1940’s,
50’s and 60’s. The second significant aspect, was the correspondence that

began in the late 1800’s between Adin{2"¢) Reynolds and Abbot Augustus Low, of

Brooklyn, New Yorlc. At the time of communication between the two, Adin{274)
had been using ‘pipe ortation’ o, le s or about 40 . Mr. Low
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asked A 274) to share his eriences, in pl his le operation
which was to be started in Horseshoe, New Yorlk. Adin{2"¢) readily volunteered
to share his knowledge. Mr. Low perfected the technigues that Adin{2"4) had
initiated. There is very little record of how much communication took place
between these two men, but it is probable that there were a considerable
number of contacts. Mr. Low had contacts and probably family in Greenwich,
Connecticut, and of course Adin{2¢) had remaining relatives in Greenwich also.
It is believed that this was the link that put the two in touch. “Sweet Maple”
by James M. Lawrence & Rux Martin contains very thorough des tions of Mr.
Low’s endeavors into the maple syrup industry. I will cover a few of his
accomplishments at a later place in this text. But, it is interesting that these
two men at least corresponded and probably knew each other personally.

March 4, 1857: “James Buchanan becomes 15t% President of the United
States. He was married to Harriet Lane.”

May 11, 1858: “Minnesota becomes the 32 state.”

February 14, 1859: “Oregon becomes the 33 state.”

October 16, 1859: John Brown, an uncompromising opponent to
slavery, raided the federal arsenal at Harpers Ferry, Virginia (present day
West Virginia), in an attempt to promote general slave uprising. Gerrit
Smith, Aden(1sY)’s very good friend, of Peterboro (Smithfield), New York,
was implicated, but never charged with assisting in the planning of this
raid. John Brown was convicted and executed. Gerrit Smith was
exonerated or at least excused. Adin(1sf) Reynolds was never implicated.

May 1, 1860: The Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 4 cents per pound. Barter
Price: About 2 gallons of syrup per bushel of
wheat.

Production of Maple Syrup (includes
production of maple sugar): |
United States: 6,612,615 U. S. Gallons of
Syrup.

Zime (Jut: Jn about 1979, ~Anne stacted teaching fivst grade at 7win Y4/illows school in
Appleton, Ylisconsin. A student named VYichael, that had graduated from kindergarten to the
fivst gvado, attendod the fivst day at 7win Jy/illows. SHe immediately confronted Anne, with
hands defiantly on hips, he asked, “}4/here is your ‘quiet chait? Anne answered, “Y4/hy. we do
not have a ‘quiet chaiv.” ONichael veplied, “}4/ell, you've got to have a ‘quiet chair’, \J spent most
of my time in the ‘quiet chaiv’ in kindevgavten. J will need one hove t00.”  Subscript: ¥DNichael did
OWY.. e is now working and very successful. Anne still chuckles when telling the story.
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1860 Production of Individual States

(In U. 8. Gallons - U. 8. Census)

New York 131,843(1+) Maine 32,679
1,352,052(2=4) 38,343
1,483,895(3) 71,022
Vermont 16,253 Minnesota 23,038
1,237,223 46,334
1,253,476 69,372
Ohio 370,512 Iowa 11,405
418,189 39,430
788,701 50,835
Michigan 78,998 Illinois 20,048
506,478 16,775
585,476 36,823
Indiana 292,908 Missouri 18,289
192,720 17,754
485,628 36,043
Pennsylvania 114,310 North Carolina 17,759
345,917 3,856
460,227 21,615
Wisconsin 83,118 Tennessee -0-
198,056 14,453
281,174 14,453
New Hampshire 43,833 Maryland 2,404
225,088 7,910
268,921 10,314
Virginia 99,605 New Jersey 8,022
117,263 432
216,868 8,520
Kentucky 140,076 Connecticut 2,277
47,618 5,532
187,694 7,809
Massachusetts 15,307 Kansas B 0-
138,260 468
153,567 468
**Production of Individual States (In U. S. Gallons): 1,597,589+
5,015,026*
6,612,615+

(1) Line - Production of maple syrup for each individual state and U.S. in U. S. Gallons
(27) Line - Production of Maple sugar for each individual state and U.S. in U, 8. Gallons
(37) Line - Total Production of syrup and sugar for each individual state and U.S. in U.S.
Gallons

*Totals include small amounts not reported under individual states

**Statistica modified from data by Clarence Coons in Ontario’s “Maple thrives in ‘95"
Total data taken from “USDA Farmers Bulletin 516”. “The Production of Maple Syrup and

Sugar”. Washington 1912.
And other sources.
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Canada: About 1,136,825 U. S. Gallons of
Syrup.

June 1, 1860: Population of the United States is
31,443,321.

Zime CYut: “Jn 1860, 90% of the Zj. S. population was farmers, in 1998, 2% ave farmers.”

“Estimated population of Canada is 2,865,020.”

August 25, 1860: “Wisconsin
produced 27 million bushels of
wheat in 1860. But the price had
again fallen to under $1.00 per
bushel.”

September 19, 1860: “Population of Wisconsin was 729,240.”

January 29, 1861: “Kansas becomes the 34t state”

1861 - 1865: “From a population of approximately 9,000, Wisconsin
Indians sent nearly 600 soldiers to Wisconsin regiments during the Civil
War.”

March 4, 1861: “Abraham Lincoln becomes 16t President of the United
States. He was married to Mary Todd.”

“When Lincoln was inaugurated, seven states had already seceded from
the Union. Those states were South Carolina, Mississippi, Florida,

Alabama, Georgia, Louisiana, and Texas. They formed the Confederate
States of America, and elected Jefferson Davis, as their first President.”

“In his Inaugural Address, Lincoln, declared that the action by these
states was ‘illegal’.”
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March 25, 1861: “Emanuel L. Philipp, Wisconsin’s 23 governor was
born near Honey Creek, Wisconsin.”

April 12, 1861: “During a restocking of supplies by Union troops at Fort
Sumter, South Carolina, the South’s artillery opened fire. This
essentially was the beginning of Civil War. Virginia, Arkansas, North
Carolina, and Tennessee, joined the Confederacy.”

Author’s Notes: It is not my intent to write an extensive narration on the Civil War.

It would take a book by itself and thousands of such books have already been written.
However, we must cover some highlights as this event in history touched every

American and every American family. And even though there was not any direct line,
Reynolds ancestors of Lynn, that were involved in the War, there were many of their
brothers, cousins, uncles, and other relatives, who fought and died in this horrible
period of American History. So here are a few facts about this awful tragedy.

The population of the North was approximately 22 million people, while the South was

approximately 9 million, which included 4 million enslaved blacks. Both the North
and South almost immediately had to create a ‘draft’ to raise the number of troops

nece to t a war. The North enlisted about 2 million troops (including 186,000
blacks), while the South enlisted 900,000 white males. The North had superiority in

money, credit, arms, factories, food production, mineral resources, and transportation.
The South was constantly hampered by chronic shortages of food, clothin:; g, medicine,

and ammunition, and, by the unpredictability of their ‘slave’ black labor force.

However, the South had the stronger military tradition, better military leaders, and an
‘unbreakable spirit’.

When the war ended, 620,000 men (in a nation of 35 million) had been killed. At least

another 700,000 was wounded. The North lost 364,000 and the South 258,000 (1 of
every four soldiers). And more troops and civilians died of disease than on the

battlefield. ‘A true horror story.’

When the shooting stopped, the smoke cleared, the blood soaked into the American

soil, the crving ended, and the hate was boiling over, ‘4 million blacks’ were declared
dree’. However, as we all know, attitudes that had sustained slavery in the South for

300 vears did not end, in fact persisted well into the 20th century, and, sadly lingering
prejudices exist even today.

July 21, 1861: The first battle of the Civil War was the Battle of Bull
Run. The event was a showcase of ignorance that northern Americans
had towards war. They actually viewed the battle as spectators. In their
worst horrors, the South won convincingly.

October 1, 1861: “Wisconsin’s famed Tron Brigade’ under Brigadier
General Rufus King suffered the most battlefield casualties of the Civil
War.”
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April 19, 1862: “Wisconsin Governor Louis Powell Harvey slipped and
drowned between two river boats while visiting Wisconsin regiments in
Tennessee.”

June 25 - July 1, 1862: The Seven Days’ Battle, was an attack on
Richmond, Virginia. Neither side won. General McClellan ordered an ill-
advised retreat.

August 30, 1862: The second Battle of Bull Run. The South won again.

September 17, 1862: The Battle of Antietam. It was a most bloody
battle. The North lost 12,000 men and the South lost 12,700 killed or
wounded. General Lee retreated, but McClellan mistakenly did not cut
off Lee’s retreat.

General McClellan was relieved of command by President Lincoln.

September 22, 1862: President Lincoln delivered the ‘Proclamation of
Emancipation’.

Author’s Notes: It is the opinion of this author that the President delivered this
proclamation for dual purposes. First, he clearly wanted to declare that the war was
being fought to end slavery, but I believe he was more interested in proclaiming that
the Union’ would be preserved, by whatever means or for whatever excuse that was
necessary to reach this goal. This proclamation did not end slavery in the United
States, but it did set a vision for this to happen, and it did provide an opportunity for
the President to clearly define his ambition to preserve the United States of America.

December 13, 1862: Fredericksville, Virginia was a disaster for the
North. Approximately 10,000 Northern soldiers were killed or wounded.
The North retreated to Washington, D.C..

May 2-4, 1863: The South won the Battle of Chancellorsville, Virginia.
General Hooker retreated, but Lee lost 12,000 men out of 60,000, and
his most brilliant General, Stonewall Jackson was killed.

About June 1, 1863: In response to a call from the Union Army,
approximately 11 tons of pure maple sugar was loaded near present
day Juneau (Dodge County), Wisconsin, and was hauled by wagon,
for use by the Union troops. The price paid by the Federal
Government was 3 ¥z cents per pound in requisition forms, which
would be paid at the end of the war. The suppliers of this sugar
were paid sometime during 1865. Adin(2~) Reynolds, of Hebron
(Jefferson County), Wisconsin sold approximately 1,000 pounds of
maple sugar during this purchase.
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Author’s Notes: The facts of this event are sketchy, but it is relayed exactly
as my father, Adin{3™), told me about his grandfather’s [Adin{2) involvement.
The Military Road, ran from Green Bay, Wisconsin, to Prairie du Chien, on the
Mississippi River. The purchase was made somewhere on the Military Road,
near Juneau, Wisconsin. By the account, told by my father, the sale of maple
sugar was hauled by military wagons to Prairie du Chien, loaded on boats,
shipped down the Mississippi, up the Ohio River to the Union troops somewhere
in western Pennsylvania. It could well have been destined towards Gettysburg.

The need for sugar was desperate as the South had choked off the total supply
of Southern cane sugar. The call went out from the U. S. Government for pure

maple sugar to supplement the need for sweeteners, for use by the Northern

s. Wisconsin onded in a cant way, with a 1y of about
22,000 pounds. At least three Indian tribes participated by selling maple sugar
during this Government purchase. Members of the Menominees, the Chippewas,
and the Ofjibwas sold sugar for sure. There may have been more tribes involved

in supplying this huge shipment.

The Government specifications called for the product to be ‘maple sugar’, in one
pound blocks, and to be wrapped in ‘waxed food cloth’ (‘cheese cloth that was

waxed’) individually.

As far as I can find, this was the first significant shipment o le to be
made for war oses, altho I am certain that other le

rod. areas also, probably s ed le this same
Government call for assistance.

During delivery of the maple sugar to the Army warehouse near Juneau,
Wisconsin, Adin{1st) askced and received a list of the contributors of these maple
sugar shipments. His purpose was to start an Association of Maple Producers
in Wisconsin. Even though he pursued such an organization, nothing ever came

of it at that time. He was active in attempting to establish such an
[7) ation d; his entire life, but was unsuccessful in his pursuits.

June 20, 1863: “West Virginia becomes the 35t state.”

July 1, 1863: The Battle of Gettysburg, Pennsylvania matched 75,000
Southern soldiers against 85,000 from the North. There was not a clear
winner, however Lee retreated, and it is considered in historical
retrospect, to be the turning point in the war.

November 19, 1863: President Lincoln delivered probably his most
famous speech, “The Gettysburg Address”.

Author’s Notes: In my opinion, The Gettysburg Address’ is the finest oratory

achievement ever delivered. Somehow to me, it defines what this country is all about
and really clarifies why my family’s American Spirit exists. This book just would not
be complete without these few, but most treasured words:

“Four score and seven years ago, our fathers brought forth upon this continent a new

nation: conceived in liberty, and dedicated to the proposition that all men are created
equal.
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Now we are engaged in a great civil war...testing whether that nation, or any nation so
conceived and so dedicated...can long endure. We are met on a great battlefield of that
war.

We have come to dedicate a portion of that field as a final resting place for those who
here gave their lives that this nation might live. It is altogether fitting and proper that
we should do this.

But, in a larger sense, we cannot dedicate...we cannot consecrate...we cannot hallow
this ground. The brave men, living and dead, who struggled here have consecrated it,
far above our poor power to add or detract. The world will little note, nor long
remember, what we say here, but it can never forget what they did here.

It is for us the living, rather, to be dedicated here to the unfinished work which they
who fought here have thus far so nobly advanced. It is rather for us to be here

dedicated to the great task remaining before us...that from these honored dead we take
increased devotion to that cause for which they gave the last full measure of
devotion...that we here highly resolve that these dead shall not have died in vain...that

this nation, under God, shall have a new birth of freedom...and that government of the
people...by the people...for the people...shall not perish from this earth.”

December 25, 1863: By this Christmas Day, the war had definitely
turned in the Union’s favor.

January 11, 1864: General Ulysses Grant was appointed Commander in
Chief of the Union forces, by President Lincoln.

March 7, 1864: George C. Cary (a maple leader) was born at Fort
Fairfield, Maine.

March 22, 1864: “Marquette University was chartered by the Wisconsin
State Legislature”

May 5-6, 1864: The North won the second Battle of Chancellorsville, and
they kept advancing.

July 1, 1864: Grant ordered General Sherman to commence on his
famous, ‘Sherman’s March’.

October 31, 1864: “Nevada becomes the 36t state.”

November 15, 1864: Sherman burned Atlanta and began his march to
the sea. The devastation was catastrophic. The Northern troops
destroyed, plundered, ravaged, and marched. They lived off the land,
and destroyed the rest. And, in the net result, ‘destroyed the will of the
South’.

229



March 4, 1865: Abraham Lincoln, in his second inauguration, ended
with the following words, which I consider to have said it all, in ending
this horrible American experience:

“With malice towards none; with charity for all, with firmness in
the right, as God gives us to see the right, let us strive on to finish the
work we are in; to bindup the nation’s wounds; to care for him who shall
have borne the battle, and for his widow and his orphan....to do all which
may achieve and cherish a just and lasting peace among ourselves and
with all nations.”

‘Amen.’

April 9, 1865: Lee surrendered to Grant at the Appomattox, Virginia
Courthouse. The Southern armies collapsed. The War was over.

f
have been taken by Alexander Gardner, taken on Honday April 10, 18685, (Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).

April 14, 1865: President Abraham Lincoln is assassinated by John
Wilkes Booth. He was shot at 10:15 p.m. while attending the theater.

April 15, 1865: Andrew Johnson becomes the 17t President of the
United States. He was married to Eliza McCardle.
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May 10, 1865: “A detachment of the First Wisconsin Cavalry, led by
Lieutenant Colonel Harnden, captured the fleeing Jefferson Davis in
Irvinville, Georgia. Davis was disguised as an old woman.”

August 11, 1865: “Gifford Pinchot, considered to be ‘the father of
forestry’, was born in Simsbury, Connecticut.”

Figure 87: Photograph of Gifford Pinchot. He was
known, as a forester, a conservationist, and a
politician. He was named as Chief Forester for
the U. S. Forest Service by President Theodore
Roosevelt (1898-1910). He was Governor of
Pennsylvania (1923-27). He pioneered forestry
and conservation. His most famous words were
written, “Conservation is the application of
common sense to the common problems for the
common good”. (Source: Photographer unknown -
Taken from Gifford Pinchot Website, U. S.
Forest Service - Internet).

October 9, 1865: Leon P. Reynolds, Lynn’s Grandfather was born in
Hartford, Wisconsin, to Adin(2") and Electa Reynolds.

December 3, 1865: “The 13" Amendment was ratified, abolishing slavery
throughout the U. S.”

February 7, 1867: Laura Ingalls Wilder was born, in a log cabin 7 miles
north of Pepin, Wisconsin. She wrote the famous ‘Little House’ books,
which remain popular today. The book of interest here, was her Little
House in the Big Woods’ which was published in 1932. This book
described her family making maple syrup and maple sugar while she was
a little girl growing up in Pepin, Wisconsin.

Figure 88: Photograph of Laura

{Ingalls) and Almanzo Wilder,

shortly after they were married
in about 1887. Laura Ingalls
Wilder was the famous author
of the “Little House” books
(Source: Reprinted from the
Country Today, July 16, 1997).

March 1, 1867: “Nebraska becomes the 37t state.”

May 11, 1867: “Alonzo Horton purchased 960 acres for $265.00 or 27 %
cents per acre, upon which he founded San Diego, California.”
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June 8, 1867: “Frank Lloyd Wright was born in Richland Center,
March 4, 1869: Ulysses S. Grant becomes the 18% President of the
United States. He was married to Julia Dent.

June 10, 1869: Edna Mae Blakely, Lynn’s Grandmother, was born in
Hebron, Wisconsin to W. L. Blakely and Lucinda (Green) Blakely.

Wisconsin.”

Figure 89 and 89A: Land deed. Adin
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Figure 89A: The Warranty Deed.

& .
_/ru:‘t.- 1/;/"6“

WARRANTY DEED.

FROM &

; . “
f'&g'muﬂf'/:/;um%: «E.é:;'c.r".j
‘10

» /7J -
Al 2N Vs vz leton
5

7 A
r//f’z i ;’;ff

f/uum P «j -‘&i

Beveineil for Rreand, add. g i
duy o, f‘jg{ﬂ-( f‘ﬂw 2

a'rlock, .;,.s r/‘ﬂ'.f...._..‘__ nil fRovasdecd
I B ..foale of eedls |
Wol. .- lm;' e ‘{J'o;‘ .

May 1, 1870: Price of Maple Syrup:

Approximately 5 cents per pound or about 55

cents per gallon of syrup. Barter Price:

About 6 gallons of honey per 1 gallon of maple
syrup (honey was priced at about 1 cent per

pound).

Production of Maple Syrup (includes
production of maple sugar):

United States: 4,476,513 U. S. Gallons of

syrup



1870 Production of Individual States
{In U. S. Gallons - U. S. Census)

Vermont 12,023(1%) Virginia 11,400
1,111,788(2=4) 30,637
1,123,811(39) 42,037
New York 46,048 Minnesota 12,722
836,505 26,308
882,553 30.030
Ohio 352,612 Missouri 16,317
433,641 14,623
786,253 30,940
Indiana 227,880 Iowa 9,315
166,542 18,311
394,422 27,626
New Hampshire 16,884 Illinois 10,378
341,493 17,109
358,377 27,487
Michigan 23,637 Tennessee -0-
222,732 16,871
246,369 16,871
Pennsylvania 39,385 Maryland 374
193,240 8,808
232,625 9,182
Wisconsin 31,218 North Carolina 418
63,399 2,697
94,617 3,115
Kentucky 49,073 Connecticut 168
33,677 1,783
82,750 1,951
West Virginia 20,209 Kansas -0-
61,326 117
81,535 117
Maine 28,470 New Jersey 5
20,101 13
48,571 18
Massachusetts 2,326
42,475
44,801
**Production of Individual States (In U. S. Gallons): 921,057*
3,555,456+
4,476,513*

(1%t) Line - U. S. Production of maple syrup for each individual state and U. S. in

U. S. Gallons

(274) Line - U. 8. Production of maple sugar for each individual state and U. S. in

U. S. Gallons

*Totals include small amounts not reported under individual states

**Statistics modified from data by Clarence Coons in Ontario’s “Maple thrives in ‘95"

Total data taken from “USDA Farmers Bulletin 516”. “The Production of Maple Syrup and Sugar”.
Washington 1912.

And other sources.
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Canada: About 1,590,110 U. S. Gallons of
syrup

June 1, 1870: Population of the United States is
39,818,449.

“Estimated population of Canada is 3,402,600.”

September 19, 1870: “Population of Wisconsin is 1,054,670.”

February 12, 1871: “Washington D.C. becomes an official United States
territory (a state’s status).”

March 11, 1871: City of Shawano, Wisconsin was designated as a
village. Shawano would become the county seat of Shawano County.

Figure 90: Main street, Shawano,
Wisconsin, 1871 (Source: Unknown-
Reynolds Family Archives).

3,689,257.

October 8, 1871: “The Peshtigo, Wisconsin fire catastrophe began.
Nearly 1,200 people lost their lives.”

October 13, 1871: “Wheat farming in Wisconsin began to decline due to
bad weather, soil depletion, and chinch bug. By 1900 most farming had
moved to other crops. The advent of reapers by Cyrus McCormick and a
‘knotting machine’ for tying knots around wheat bundles had come too
late to save the Wisconsin wheat farmer. The wheat farming boom had
ended in Wisconsin.”

March 1, 1872: The U. S. Government established Yellowstone National
Park.
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March 26, 1872: Kimberly-Clark Corporation was founded in Neenah,
Wisconsin, and Globe Mill was built to make newsprint from recycled
linen and cotton rags. The building of this mill opened the market for
pulp in the northern regions of Wisconsin. Leon Reynolds would ship
hundreds of carloads of pulp to various pulp and paper mills in Wisconsin
over the next approximately 50 years, including some to Kimberly-Clark.

October 23, 1872: “The Wisconsin State Grange was founded in
Portage.”

March 25, 1873:Margaret Mary (Donnelan) Sharkey, Anne’s grandmother
was born.

July 1, 1875: “45 sawmills in the Chippewa Valley, were producing 300
million board feet of lumber annually.”

Author’s Notes: It is necessary to give an overview of the enormity of the lumbering

industry in Wisconsin by 1875. Serious logging and lumber production began about
1830 in Wisconsin, but the magnitude of volume started to reach its peak from the

1870’s. The Chippewa Valley was one of the major logging and lumber production
areas of Wisconsin, but only one of several. However, the following account from “The
Lumberjack Frontier, by Walker D. Wyman in 1976, gives a perspective of the industry
as it existed, and tells it as it was:

“Stretching across the northern parts of Michigan, Wisconsin, and Minnesota
stood one of the most magnificent forests in North America. In it lived the Chippewa,
and Ojibwa. Indian nations were scattered throughout the great woods in villages
always connected by water. Over the years the French, English, and American fur
traders had come to this forest seeking beaver, fisher, wolf, and other skins in
exchange for guns, knives, and pots needed by a Stone Age people. In the 1840’s,
miners edged into this vast land seeking copper and, later iron ore. The great forest
was a mixture of pine and hardwoods such as maple, hemlock, and basswood, and it
covered so much of the land that a deer found it hard to browse in many places. Some
of the pines had been growing for three hundred years and were so large that three or
four of them contained enough lumber to build a house. Early settlers in lower
Michigan and Wisconsin found this forest at an early date, and built small mills on the
rivers and began to saw logs for the growing communities rising on the prairies of
Illinois, Iowa, and southern Wisconsin. But it was not until after the Civil War, when
the Indians had ceded all their lands except the reserved areas, that the lumberjack
invaded the pineries in numbers and they provided the lumber for the settlements on
the great plains as well as in the Midwest.

It is no wonder that the Wisconsin pineries invited so many enterprising
pioneers with modest amounts of capital at an early date. The need for lumber was
great and the rewards attractive. For example, when the Territory of Wisconsin built
its first capitol in the southeastern part of the present state in 1836, the lumber was
rafted down the Ohio from the Appalachian forest, up the Mississippi to Galena,
Illinois, then by ox team to Belmont. It cost a hundred dollars per thousand feet to get
lumber from the East to the prairie areas of northern Illinois and southern Wisconsin
even if it was hauled overland from the Wabash River. No wonder a missionary
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dismantled his two-story house in Meadpville, Pennsylvania, and shipped it down the
Ohio and up the Mississippi to his new assignment at Prairie du Chien. No wonder
that i mcreasmg numbers sought fame and fortune in the pineries. g

The pioneer lumberman might easily have believed that Providence had created
the Wisconsin pineries for his exploitation. They lay near the great and increasing
market area of the prairies, and were drained by six river systems, all connecting them
with the market. The Menomonie and the Wolf River connected the northeastern
forest with Green Bay and Lake Michigan. The Wisconsin River drained central
Wisconsin from its northern border and flowed into the Mississippi at Prairie du Chien.
The Black, the Chippewa, and the St. Croix flowed out of northwestern Wisconsin and
into the Mississippi. In the day before railroads, this river system, when dammed up
at places and flush with melting snow in the spring, provided a wonderful way to move
logs out of the pineries to the waiting market.

The Chippewa River, with its numerous tributaries, drained northwestern
Wisconsin, which the glaciers had properly prepared for the growing of pine trees. On
the light, sandy soil of the Chippewa Valley grew one-sixth of all the white pine west of
the Appalachians. White pine was prized above all other wood for building material.
Carpenters liked to work with it, for it was light enough to be carried easily, yielded to
the saw, and took a nail or a screw with minimum effort. The loggers liked white pine
because it floated easily down the rivers to market. The hardwoods, unlike the white
pine, would not lie flat and could not be harvested until railroads built spurs into the
woods to haul them to the mills.

The Chippewa Valley boomed after the Civil War. It had produced forty million
feet of lumber in 1858, but by 1884 the annual harvest was more than four hundred
million feet. Though many of the logs were rafted on down the Chippewa to the
Mississippi, the Northwestern Lumber Company of Eau Claire, which was served by
both railroad and river, sent 5,200 carloads of lumber from its mills to twenty-three
states and territories to the West in 1891-1892. The census of 1880 listed 3,810
people in Wisconsin who worked in the woods, and many of them worked in the
Chippewa Valley. Of these 1,805 were Native Americans, 915 British Americans, 473
Scandinavians, 275 Germans, 147 Irish, 89 British, and 106 from other countries. Of
the leading lumbermen on the Chippewa in 1898, according to Robert Fries in his
Empire in Pine, four were natives of New York, three of Maine, two from Massachusetts,
and one each from Canada, New Jersey, and Pennsylvania.

The most common logging contract was let by the lumberman, or his company,
to some individual or group to cut and deliver at the mill a certain number of board
feet at a specified price per thousand feet. Prior to letting the contract, the company
had sent cruisers into the woods to spy out the land and estimate the number of board
feet each forty acres would produce. The contractor might be granted credit for
supplies to last the logging crew all winter, though he might not receive payment when
he delivered the logs in the spring at the mill, and the lumberjacks, paid with ‘due
bills’, might suffer a loss of 10 per cent if they had to have their pay right away. Since
so many of the men who spent their winter working for wages in the camps needed
their money to support a family, buy a house or a farm, or pay for horses, cows, or
farm implements, this was a great hardship. However, many a settler of northern
Wisconsin got his start by working in the woods in the winter and developing a farm in
the cutover in the summer.

There is no precise date marking the end of the lumberjack frontier. When the
great white pine cut was nearing an end about 1910, many lumbermen turned to the
West Coast and to the South for further operations. But the north woods still provided
isolated stands of pine, and thousands of acres of hardwoods that were tapped by
small-gauge railroads. The last known stand of white pine was cut in 1933. The last
drive on the Chippewa River was made in 1917, and the last sawmill on the Bad River
Indian Reservation, near Ashland, Wisconsin, on Lake Superior, closed in 1929. There
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are hundreds of residents of northern Wisconsin still living who worked in the woods,
but few who worked in the great days of the river drives............ »

June 4, 1876: “7% U.S. Cavalry under General George A. Custer are
killed to a man (212 dead) by Sioux Indians at the Battle of the Little
Bighorn, Montana.”

July 4, 1876: America is 100 years old.

July 12, 1876: William R. McGregor, Anne’s grandfather was born in
Hortonville, Wisconsin.

August 1, 1876: “Colorado becomes the 38t state.”

August 31, 1876: William F. Reynolds, Aden(2"4)’s brother, and the first
permanent settler in the Town of Hebron, Wisconsin, died and is buried in’
the Evergreen Cemetery, Hebron, Wisconsin.

Author’s Notes: Our story of William F. Reynolds ends in this text with his passing.
But before leaving the William portion of this story, I would like add a few personal
observations about him and his ancestors. William was a kind man. He was a

successful farmer in Wisconsin. And he was truly a pioneer in introducing the Reynolds

family into Wisconsin. After the passing of his father, William became the
patriarch of the Reynolds family in Wisconsin. He guided his brother Adin{24),
and was instrumental in re-establis A in the le

hing Adin{2) in the maple syrup industry.
William was heavily involved in farming. He really did not have time to pursue
the production of maple syrup. Thus, when Adin{2"¢) came to Wisconsin in
1845, William turned over his existing maple syrup operation in Hebron to
Adin(2~4). I is estimated that William was tapping approximately 1,000 trees
during the period 1836-1845. Adin{2"4) would soon increase this to
approximately 1,500 taps.

William’s descendants, even though distant cousins, stayed close with Lynn’s
family. The descendants went from William, to Adelbert, to Ray, to Glenn, and to Glenn,

Jr., Richard, and Susan Reynolds. Glenn Reynolds, and Adin(3), Lynn’s father, even
though 4% _cousins, were closer than any two brothers I ever knew. We still keep in touch
today, and the Reynolds families of this ancestral line remain close to Lynn, and his

immediate family members.

Figure 91: Adin (39 and Glenn Reynolds
(About 1960). Some of Glenn’s original
Jarm buildings at Hebron, Wisconsin are
in the background. Glenn is the great
grandson of William F. Reynolds. Adin(3)
and Glenn Reynolds were closer than any
two brothers, but were in fact, distant
cousins, (Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).
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Figure 92: Glenn Reynolds’ home farm

as it looks today. This is also the same
farm which William F. Reynolds, Adin{2)’s
brother, established in 1835, at Hebron,
Wisconsin (Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).

It is also the house where Glenn and Emma
Reynolds raised their family; Glenn, Jr.;
Richard; and Susan.

March 5, 1877: Rutherford B. Hayes becomes the 19t President of the
United States. He was married to Lucy W. Webb.

November 20, 1877: Thomas Edison shouted “Mary had a little lamb”
into a machine he had built in Menlo, New Jersey, then played the sound
back. The first cylinder record was invented.

October 11, 1878: Herbert (Bert) Wheeler (Geraldine’s father), Lynn’s
grandfather, was born to Leander and Phoebe (Blakeslee) Wheeler, in
Ironton (near Reedsburg), Wisconsin.

Summer 1878: Francis A. Deleglise built his cabin and moved his family
to Antigo, Wisconsin. He was the first settler. He founded the city of
Antigo, just one year later in 1879.

December 11, 1879: Susan (Dodge) Reynolds, died and is buried beside
her husband, William F. Reynolds, in the Evergreen Cemetery, Hebron,
Wisconsin.

May 1, 1880: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 5 cents per pound, or about
55 cents per gallon of syrup. Barter Price:
About 6 dressed chickens (chickens were
selling for about 10 cents each).

Production of Maple Syrup (includes
production of maple sugar):

United States: 6,368,048 U. S. Gallons
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1880 Production of Individual States
(In U. S. Gallons - U. S. Census)

New York 266,390(1+) Ilinois 40,077
1,336,702(2n4) 10,024
1,603,092(3-4) 50,101
Vermont 128,091 Kentucky 27,830
1,407,635 8,317
1,535,726 35,847
Ohio 495,839 Towa, 17,766
361,973 6,339
857,812 24,105
Michigan 131,990 Maryland 2,043
3 427,894 22,010
559,884 24,0583
Pennsylvania 140,667 Missouri 16,244
358,251 7,371
498,918 23,615
New Hampshire 79,712 Minnesota 11,407
265,564 9,622
345,276 21,029
Indiana 242,084 Virginia 7,518
29,390 10,712
271,474 18,230
Wisconsin 58,012 Connecticut 2,173
61,105 5,512
119,117 7,685
Massachusetts 13,017 Tennessee -0-
109,849 3,912
122,866 3,912
Maine 82,006 North Carolina 582
6 513
101,173 1,095
West Virginia 28,696 New Jersey 334
38,858 312
67,554 646
**Production of the United States (In U. 8. Gallons) 1,796,048*
4,572,008*
6,368,048+

(1=!) Line - Production of maple syrup in individual states and U.S. in U. S. Gallons

(274) Line - Production of maple sugar in individual states and U.S. in U. S. Gallons

(374) Line - Total production of syrup and sugar in individual states and U. S. in U. S. Gallons
*Totals include small amounts not reported under individual states

**Statistics modified from data by Clarence Coons in Ontario’s “Maple thrives in ‘95"

Total data taken from “USDA Farmers Bulletin 516”. “The Production of Maple syrup and Sugar”.
Washington 1912.

And other sources.
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Canada: About 1,727,273 U. S. Gallons.

June 1, 1880: Population of the United States is
50,155,783.

About July, 1880: The Chicago & Northwestern Railroad finished its tracks into
Aniwa, Wisconsin.

Elmhurst, Wisconsin is founded in anticipation of the railroad.

Population of Wisconsin is 1,315,497.

March 4, 1881: James A. Garfield becomes the 20t President of the
United States. He was married to Lucretia Rudolph.

About May 15, 1881: The Old Depot Camp of the Holt Balcom Logging Company was
built. It is considered the oldest logging camp in the United States still on its original
site. It is near Lakewood, Wisconsin.

June 1, 1881: Population of Canada is
4,324,810. |

54y i i Tl oyl W M o e s
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Figure 93: Reproduced from the Antigo Daily Journal, June 27, 1979. Francis Deleglise and wife Mary
built the Ist residence of Antigo, Wisconsin. It was constructed in 1878. They were the founders of
Antigo. Extensive efforts are currently underway to restore and preserve this cabin in Antigo (Source:
The Antigo Daily Journal - Reynolds Family Archives).
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Author’s Notes: The text of these writings will next address the coming of the
railroads. We have already thoroughly discussed river travel and will delve into
harnessing the rivers even further. But, what I wish to make the readers aware of, is the
use and importance of horses to the Reynolds, and the early settlers of the United States.
We have seen where the Reynolds had utilized oxen to drag their heavy wagons
with logs, lumber, and maple syrup through the mud of New York and Connecticut. This
continued well into the 1840’s in Madison County, New York. Their days leaving New
York and arriving in Wisconsin ended their use of oxen. They switched to horses.
Starting with William and Adin(2"), The Reuynolds became horsemen and teamsters.
They and most settlers depended on horses for everything, including logging, skidding,
building roads, building railroads, transportation, ho_:_s_epowered machines, pulling
sleighs, pulling farm implements, removing stumps, recreation, and travel. It was
probably the most important element to the development of the wilderness areas such as
Aniwa, Wisconsin. Logging was the game. The forest was the playing field. The goal
was to get rid of the trees so that the lands could be farmed. The referees were the
loggers. The players that made the scores, were the horses. The Reynolds became not
just teamsters, but proficient keepers of horses. They not only knew how to use and care
for the horses, but they were able to teach the use of horses. As the Reynolds became
more administrative, they had to allocate tasks, such as ‘teamsters’. Thus teamsters
became valuable in the logging operations and the maple sap collection. Teamsters

earned more mo were more ected, and held the as to how
roductive the and s crews would be. woriked lo
hours as needed to earlier to have the teams of horses . T
needed to take care of the horses after the other members of the crews were
already finished for the day. And, they had to care for the ‘wear and tear’ on

their horses sometimes working all night to care for sores or wounds that their
horses had to endure. They loved the animals and it showed. If they were not

cormmpassionate to their horse’s needs, they were not teamsters. If they did not
take care of the health of their animals, they did not have the animals. The
animals were very subject to sickness and death. The better care they received,
the longer and more productive they were. In a harsh world of logging and
maple syrup use in the woods, the horse was absolutely essential. The Reynolds
took these responsibilities seriously and absolutely demanded that any
teamsters working for them respected their animal obligations. Thus, horses
were a major part of the Reynolds’ lives from the 1840’°s until 1970’s. Even
though trains, trucks, and tractors became a way of life, the horse still had
their in the woods. Horses were used in the R Ids le s
operation even into the 1970’s. Any other mode of collecting sap, even though
often tried, was considered inferior to the horse teams.

Horses were so much a part of the Reynolds heritage that in the 1940’s,
50’s, and until the early 60’s Adin(3) raised ‘Shelby’ ponies. They were never

necessarily pro le to raise, but he liked them. At one po the po
population reached over 50. Lynn received the first pony as a gift for his 6t
b in 1942. L and Don, Lynn’s brother and the

ponies, but never showed an interest in raising and breeding the animals.
Juan, Lynn’s older brother did not develop an interest in the ponies. The pony
population grew from that first one to its population peak in the 1950’s. It
turned out that Kathleen, Lynn’s sister became the ‘horse person’ of the family
in that she loved the animals, cared for, raced, and showed the ponies at every
opportunity.

o
Words would never describe the impact horses had on the pioneer
accomplishments of the R Ids family. I will leave the subject b I

saying, horses left their permanent pioneering mark on America.
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Figure 94: Horses were used to collect maple sap. Horses were used to skid logs. Horses were used on
the farm. Horses were used for transportation. Horses provided a way of life for the Reynolds family
(Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

Author’s Notes: During the winter months in the next approximate 25 years (1880-1906),

the Reynolds Family members would live in “a lumber camp”. The lumber camps were
plentiful. Many of these camps were established in the Aniwa and Elmhurst areas. Some
of these camps existed on Reynolds owned lands. To properly describe one of these
camps, I wish to include the following chapter (*"Men Who Changed the Forests”), taken
from “It Happened Here (Stories of Wisconsin), by Margaret G. Henderson, Ethel D.
Speerschneider and Helen L. Ferslev:

“Only seventy-five years ago (1900) great stretches of beautiful pine trees still covered
a large part of northern Wisconsin. Now they are almost gone. Millions of trees have
been cut down to be sawed into lumber.

A LUMBER CAMP: Lumbering was a big, noisy job. Lumbermen did things in a
big, noisy way. Huge trees were cut with the biggest saws that could be handled. Big
axes chopped off the branches. Loud voices shouted Timber!’ as the trees crashed to
the ground. Cooks made large meals on big cook stoves. They served strong coffee in
big tin cups, and good food on pie-tin plates. The lumberjacks worked long hours and
slept hard. There was very little time for fun, and no place to go until the spring
break-up. After that they did other work until fall came again.

Early in the fall, workers would go into the forest to build a lumber camp. They
felled some trees and built crude log cabins in which to sleep, cook, and eat their
meals. They built roads, which usually led to the nearest river. During the winter,
they covered these roads with water to make an icy surface over which the oxen would
pull the logs. The roads were busy places as thousands of logs traveled over them
during the winter.
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By the time the snow was on the ground, work was in full swing. Early in the
morning the men tumbled out of their bunks into warm woolen clothing. After a
hearty breakfast they tramped out to work. Among the workers were cutters,
swampers, scalers, and sawyers. As soon as a tree was down, the swampers cut off
the branches and the top of the trunk. They would save no part of the tree that was
smaller than twelve inches in diameter. The next worker was the scaler, who decided
where to cut the tree into shorter logs. The sawyers did the actual cutting.

Now the logs were piled high on sleighs, to be brought to the edge of ariver. A
huge load of them could be drawn by one team of oxen. Sometimes the load weighed
as much as a hundred tons! At the river the logs would stand until spring, when they
would be rolled into the water and floated down to a sawmill. As winter went on, and
the men worked hard day after day, the piles of logs by the river grew bigger and
bigger.

Each night the lumberjacks returned to the camp, where they ate a big supper
and then tumbled into the bunks for the night. The cooks were kept busy preparing
great quantities of food for the husky, hungry men.

Spring was a busy time in the lumber camp. Everything was made ready to
move. Even the cooks must go on the ‘spring drive’, when the logs were transported
downstream. Only the strongest men were used on the drive. Every lumberjack
hoped to be one of them.

As soon as the ice melted in the stream, the drive began. To keep the logs of
different companies from getting mixed, each log had to be marked. This was much
like the branding of cattle, for each company had its own mark, which was stamped on
the end of all its logs.

First the lumberjacks rolled the great piles of heavy logs into the river. Picked
up by the current, the logs started drifting down the stream. Some of the men were
constantly on the watch for a log jam’. These jams occurred when a group of logs got
caught in some way and held back the logs behind them. When it looked as though a
jam was about to form, the men used long poles with iron hooks, or peaveys, on the
end to straighten out the trouble. To loosen one of the logs and break up the jam, it
was usually necessary to walk out on the floating logs. If a man made a misstep while
he was doing this, he might have a terrible fall. It might even mean his death. So it
was exciting, dangerous work.

Once in a while the logs would jam so tightly, in spite of the care that had been
taken, it seemed an almost hopeless task to get them loose again. One famous jam on
the Chippewa River reached fourteen miles up the stream. Sometimes dynamite had
to be used to get the logs moving again.

Sometimes the logs had to be shipped over a lake or a bay. Here there was no -
current to push the logs in the right direction. So when a body of water like Lake
Winnebago or Green Bay was reached, a different plan was used. A string of logs were
chained together to form a half circle. Then the two end logs of the string were
brought around and fastened so that the floating logs were completely encircled. This
made a kind of huge raft. Small boats chugged along, towing these rafts.

Finally the logs arrived at the sawmill towns. There they were separated by the
markings on the logs and sent into the proper boom to stay until they were sawed into
lumber. The boom was usually a shallow space in the river where the logs were kept
from floating away. This was done by connecting a group of logs with chains around
the opening of the storage space. The up-stream end of the boom could be opened to
float more logs into it.

From 1870 to 1900 there were many of these scenes along the rivers of
northern Wisconsin. Many millions of pine trees were cut from the great forests. In
only about thirty years the best timber in the state had been cut. This is a much
shorter time than it takes to grow great trees three or four feet thick. Often the loggers
had been careless, leaving long treetops untouched because they were less than
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twelve inches in diameter. When the snow was deep, they cut far above the snow line,
leaving huge stumps with much wasted timber. Suddenly it became clear that
Wisconsin’s great lumbering days were over.”

When the pine was gone, it opened up the forests for hardwood h. Fortunately for
the Reynolds family, the cutting o le trees were generally ignored because did
not float. The Reynolds could see a future of tapping the maple trees and made a policy
of treating this one species as sacred. But this does not excuse my ancestors, or the

hundreds of thousand other ‘timber barons’ from decimating the entire vast pine forests

of Wisconsin.

“7he WWorld is a looking glass, and gives back
to every man the refection of his own face.
~Frown at it, and it in tarn will look sourly upon you;
laugh at it and with it, and it is a jolly, kind companion.”

By Wiltiam YNakepeace Thackeray.

Figure 95;: “Depot Camp
of the Hold and Balcom
Logging Company, built
in 1881 (Source: Taken
Jfrom the “Prime Times”,
“The Antigo Daily
Journal, dated August
4, 1997).

About July, 1881: The Chicago & Northwestern Railroad had passed by where
Reynolds Sugar Bush, Inc. is today, and was finished from Aniwa into Elmhurst,
Wisconsin.

September 20, 1881: Chester Alan Arthur becomes the 215t President of the United
States. He was married to Ellen L. Herndon.

November 9, 1881: The first train arrives in Antigo, Wisconsin, with a shipment of
rails. Charles Abrams claimed the honor of delivering this first ‘train’ load into Antigo.
Mr. Abrams retired from the Chicago and Northwestern Railroad, April 9, 1923, with 54
years service.

February 8, 1882: “Edison designs the first hydroelectric plant in Appleton,
Wisconsin.”
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April 13, 1882: A surveyed plot for the proposed Village of Aniwa was recorded by
H.G.H. Reed and C. L. Perkins. Aniwa is located in the Northwest corner of Shawano
County at the junction of the Ashland Division of the Chicago and Northwestern
Railroad, and the Mattoon Railway. The Indian meaning of ‘Aniwa’ was, “The Tall Tree
Place”.

April 20, 1882: The Aniwa Depot (Chicago & Northwestern Railroad) was built in the
village of Aniwa. The depot was moved to the property of Reynolds Sugar Bush in the
summer of 1962 where it stood, completely restored, and served as a landmark of
history’. It served as a warehouse until it burned in 1970.

“The telegraph office opened in the Aniwa Depot. The first agent was Charles Adams,
serving in 1882. Other agents to follow were, Earl T., Frank Merill, H. W. Croshy, O. A.
Reinke, John Hings and A. F. Gartner, who was the agent when the telegraph office
closed in 1944.”

April 23, 1882: John S. Wunderlich brought his sawmill and shingle mill from
Stephensville (near Hortonville), and established it in the new community of Elmhurst.
George Wunderlich hastened to remove the timber in the immediate vicinity of
Elmhurst, as he wished to establish a farming community. The trees were in the
way. The Wunderlichs were undoubtedly the largest farmers of the area after the
trees were removed. George Wunderlich later became the Sheriff of Langlade County.
Leon Reynolds, purchased logs, cut logs, and sold logs to the Wunderlichs over the

- next approximately 35 years.

September 26, 1882: Frost Veneer Seating Company, of New York City, established a
mill at Elmhurst, Wisconsin. In 1885, Frost Veneer moved their operation to Elcho,
Wisconsin. And, in 1890, they relocated again to Antigo, Wisconsin. Leon Reynolds
sold logs to Frost Veneer at all three locations over the next approximately 35 years.

May 3, 1883: The Town of Aniwa’ was registered as a township name in the County of
Shawano, State of Wisconsin.

May 15, 1883: Adin{2"3) Reynolds purchased 40 acres of land in the Township of Aniwa,
Wisconsin. This parcel was located at the site of the current Reynolds maple syrup
operation and was located on the new railroad. The parcel, along with several more
purchases in the next three years, accumulated to several hundred acres of land in the
Aniwa area, which contained considerable maple and white pine trees. Purchases of
lands were by Adin(2™) and his sons, Clarence, Edmond, Leon, Clyde, and Frank
Reynolds. Eventually, the lands would be consolidated under the ownership of Leon
Reynolds, Lynn’s grandfather. All of the lands accumulated were along or near the new
Chicago & Northwestern railroad.

Author’s Notes: The establishment of the railroad through Aniwa and Elmhurst and

on into Antigo, linked the vast timber resources of the area to the markets of

Milwaukee, Green Bay, Appleton, Chicago, and further East. It further allowed
transportation of hardwood timber that did not float as did the white pine. But the

white pine, because it did float, remained a waterway product for several more years.

The Leon Reynolds property. along with his relatives, was about 2 miles north

of Aniwa, and about 3 miles south of Elmhurst, along the Chicago & Northwestern
railroad. Elmhurst (originally called Bear Lake) became the center of logging and

lumber production, and Aniwa was more of a shopping center. In Elmhurst, there
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lumber production, and Aniwa was more of a shopping center. In Elmhurst, there

were at least four sawmills, a barrelhead mill, a cheesebox mill, a stave mill. and a
woodenware company. There were several logging camps located in or near Elmhurst,

including a logging camp operated by the Reynolds family, and a camp run by Modern
Woodmen of America. The Reynolds camp was primarily a log and lumber Jlanding’,
where timber was loaded, stacked, logs decked, provided for wagon and sleigh storage,
and livery for their horses. Housing was furnished for the teamsters near the livery, to
give proper care to the horses, which was near the blacksmith for shoeing and other

repairs. And of course, this Reynolds logging camp’ was located on the railroad. At its
peak, Flmhurst population grew to about 450 inhabitants, with a number of
businesses. This community boomed until August 28, 1911, when the entire village

burned. Even though it was a railroad community for years afterward, it never really
regained its potential after the fire of 1911. Leon and Adin(3~ Reynolds continued to
use their loading facilities at Elmhurst until about the late 1920’s. During this period,
Leon and Adin(3m) logged, sawed, loaded, and purchased logs for Charles Fish
Company of Elcho, Wisconsin, until the Fish Company collapsed financially. They also

purchased logs for the White Star Lumber Company with mills in Mattoon, Wisconsin
and offices in Chicago.

September 16, 1883: Lynn B. Reynolds, was born to Mr. And Mrs. Frank Reynolds, at
Hebron, Wisconsin.

Author’s Notes: We have talked about maple syrup, logs, railroads, rivers, and
settlement, but one fact of life we have thus far ignored was the use of “ICE” for cooling

foods. In the winter time, naturally, refrigeration was easy, simply put it outside. But
in the summer time, keeping of foods was necessary for economic and health reasons.

Each winter, it was necessary to cut blocks of ice from the lakes, haul these blocks to
an ‘ice house’, then in layers separated by sawdust, the ice would stay frozen through

the summer and fall months. Ice became a big business in the Elmhurst and Aniwa
area. Thomas Monahan, along with being a large store owner, lumber yard, and

operau_ng a large logging operation, also was a major supplier of ice for the Aniwa area.
His main supply of ice was from “Aniwa Lake”. This was a major winter operation and

employed many men. The ice was sawed with Sice saws’ by hand (a very hard-job),
then hooked by a peavey, and pulled upon the solid ice. Then the blocks were loaded

on sleighs, and hauled to the various ‘ice houses’ to be stored. Almost every settler,
eventually built an Sice house’ to store their ice. Some of course cut their own ice, but

most depended on companies that were equipped to cut, haul and store the ice.

THE CHAMFION EVAPORATOR,

Figure 96: Advertisement for the
Champion Evaporator in 1888.
Hamd"u.ctursd by the G. H. Grimm
Company (Source:
Raynolds Family Archives).
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ey

‘Logging * and ‘ing’ at st,
Wisconsin, about 1890 (Source Reynolds Family Archives).

i 8 AN : ﬁi‘* : ,. < i
T Figure 98: Modern Weedmen of America Logging Camp, Rlmbiarst, Wisconsin, ebout
1890 (Source Reynolds Family Archives).
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Figure 99: An advertisement in the Aniwa Register for The Thomas Monahan company in 1904. The
Monahan Company was a major source of ‘Ice’ (Source: Reynolds Family Archives - Taken from the
Aniwa Register)

March 4, 1885: Grover Cleveland becomes 22nd President of the United States. He
was married to Francis Folsom.

April 22, 1885: Arbor Day was made a legal holiday in Nebraska. The date was
selected as the date of observance because it was the birthday of Sterling Morton, U. S.
Secretary of Agriculture under President Grover Cleveland. Mr. Morton made it his
mission to promote the planting of orchards and forests on the nation’s vast treeless
prairies.

June 16, 1885: George Eastman marketed his first box camera. It sold for $25.00, a
huge sum for those days.

July 13, 1885: Karl Benz produced the first gasoline-powered automobile. The vehicle
was a three-wheeled German invention. His company merged with another in 1926 to
become Mercedes-Benz.

Summer 1885: Leon Reynolds moves to Aniwa and builds a log home on the site which is
currently the location upon which Reynolds Sugar Bush, Inc. operates the Reynolds family
maple syrup operation. The site of his home was approximately the site of the a later
home which Leon built in 1905, where Jay Reynolds, Leon’s great grandson, with his
wife Patti and daughter Dana live today.

About April, 1886: George C. Cary, settled in St. Johnsbury, Vermont.

Author’s Notes: George Cary was a grocery salesman and took payment for
groceries in maple sugar. Mr. Cary sold the maple sugar to a tobacco buyer,
convincing him that maple sugar would be a superior flavor to reqular cane
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sugar. This began a multi-million dollar business, mainly selling maple sugar
to tobacco companies. The company grew to the Cary Maple Sugar Company in
1904, of which, Mr. Cary became president in 1908. He built an empire on
maple sugar and was considered the leading processor and marketer of maple
sugar and maple syrup in the world. He gained the fame for St. Johnsbury,
Vermont, as the Maple Sugar Capital of the World. In 1910, Towle Maple
Company (originally was called “Towles Old Log Cabin” and was pure maple

made in Minne of Minne lis purchased rom Cary, for the
Log Cabin Brand (by this time had become a syrup blend with cane sugar).

Interestingly enough, the progressive use of cane sugar with Towle went from
pure maple syrup, to 75% pure, to 50% pure and was at 25% pure maple syrup
when the Company was sold to General Foods. The Log Cabin Syrup Brand was
eventually purchased by General Foods Corporation, which we will hear
considerably more about later in the 1950’s and 1960’s. The Reynolds
connection came through their association with General Foods, however,
Adin{2"4) Reynolds obviously met Mr. Cary at some point, but I cannot find
record of when or how. Iwas able to find a reference to Adin{2"4) meeting Mr.
Cary, but no specifics on what their discussion were about--’maple I assume’.....

About May, 1886: Augustus A. Low, of Brooklyn, New York, started construction
of the largest pure maple syrup production operation in the world to this date.

Author’s Notes: Augustus Low developed a huge maple syrup operation, known as
the ‘Horse Shoe Forestry Company’. He utilized a series of pipelines and troughs,
mostly by gravity from ‘dumping stations’, into which the sap was gathered.
These pipelines ran to giant galvanized tanks on flatbed railroad cars. The

railroads, the railroad station, the sugarhouse, and the pipelines took several
ears to construct. He started out cu timber for his sawmill. The lumber

was primarily used for building his own railroads (ties), and the numerous

buildings that were constructed, including bunk houses, cabins, and a boarding

house, a general store, livery stables, and other necessary manufacturing
buil . The li facilities which he constructed were primarily used for his

employees’ living quarters. Construction consumed several years, and it is
estimated that the first maple syrup was actually produced in 1899. His primary
heat source for evaporation was steam, which utilized the slab wood from his mill.
And, he also utilized conventional evaporators which burned wood. His sawmills
were operated by waterpower, utilizing the power from at least three dams that he

constructed. The maple syrup operations grew to include some 20,000 acres in
the Adirondack Forest Preserve. His maple syrup operations were named ‘Maple

Valley, Wake Robin, and Grasse River Maple Syrup Preserves’. At it’s peak, it is
estimated that he was processing sap from approximately 60,000 taps.

As the sap was processed into syrup, he stored the syrup in wooden
barrels, which were constructed in his own ‘stave shop’, produced from his own
lumber. His buckets also were produced in his own shop with his own lumber.
His intent on marketing was to bring alive the practice of ‘returnable barrels’ to
his customers as was developed by Daniel R Ids, about 150 earlier.
This practice was not successful by Mr. Low, as consumer preferences had
changed; and the buyer wanted smaller containers and would not purchase

larger containers of syrup. His ‘barrel marketing’ scheme was discarded the
and was laced with a ‘bottl operation’, fill smaller ‘bottles’

with and sell them as individual units retail, and to stores in
New Yoric City. The bottles were etched, with the name ‘Horse Shoe Forestry
Company’. Mr. Low further diversified into making maple sugar for use in his
own jams and jellies, flavoring his stoneground flours, cereals, and even used
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some in production &f Wwines. Some of it was sold to other commercial
manufacturers of candies, confections, and for flavoring tobacco. Mr. Low sold

most of his bulk maple sugar for about 4 cents per pound. His food operations
also included raising potatoes, and various grains which were ground in his ‘stone
ground flour’ grist mill. All of the various products were delivered to New York for
sale, by transportation on his private railroad and connecting to commercial
railroads.

In 1908, the entire village burned, destroying his various business
ventures, and of course the maple syrup operation. The holdings were ‘self
insured’, thus the shattered dreams were accompanied financial disaster as
well. Augustus Low, moved back to Brooklyn, New York, a defeated man. His
visions, his work, his dreams, and accomplishments had been destroyed in a 12
hour ‘fire disaster’. He died a few years later in a state of shock, having never
recovered from the fire, devastation, and destruction, that night of September 28,

1908.

On a personal note: My father, Adin{34), told me how devastated his
ather. 2nd) was when he about Mr. Low’s demise. A 27d) had
developed a firm friendship, and he had a heartfelt sympathy for the Low
amily when Mr. Low died. Mr. Low’s accomplishments, as rel to Adin(3r4,
by stories from his father Leon, built up the mystic of the legend. And, Adin{3)
said that the desire to construct and to improve on the ‘pipeline systems’ as

developed by Mr. Low, was his inspiration to establish the extensive pipelines
and sap transfer that he did in the 1940’s, 50’s and 60’s.

Summer 1886: The Town Hall, Town of Hortonia, Wisconsin, is built at the
intersection of present day U. S. Highway 45 (Highway 26 at that time) and Givens
Road. Records of the Township date back to 1853.

January 11, 1887: “Aldo Leopold, considered the ‘Father of the modern conservation

movement’ was born in Burlington, Iowa.”

Figure 100: A photograph of Aldo Leopold. He was known as a
highly intelligent man who laid down the ethics for land,

and wildlife management. He wrote “A Sand County Almanac”,
about his ‘wild retreat’ in Wisconsin, focusing on the

balance that must be achieved between ethics and science.

He wrote “Only the mountain has lived long enough to

listen obfectively to the howl of the wolf....”. His

book, “Game Management” is the undisputed Bible for care
and management of wildlife in our nation’s parks, forests,
and preserves (Source: Photographer unknown - Taken from
the Leopold Page on the Internet).

June 27, 1887: Hazel I. (Baker) Wheeler (Geraldine’s Mother), Lynn’s grandmother, was
born in Northport, Wisconsin, to George and Jennie (James) Baker.

January 1, 1888: G. H. Grimm Company was founded in Hudson, Ohio. It built
Champion evaporators. It later became the G. H. Grimm Company, Rutland
Vermont, and then was purchased by Leader Evaporator Company in summer,
July 15, 1989,

March 3, 1888: Leon Reynolds purchased (received) his first evaporator. It was
a 5’ X 14’ Champion Evaporator. It was one of the first evaporators ever built
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by G. H. Grimm Company, Hudson, Ohio. My grandfather always claimed it was
the very first one. The price paid was $97.63, plus $8.32 freight from Hudson,
Ohio.

Summer 1888: Leader Evaporator was founded at Enosburg, Vermont by
William Burt. Leader would later purchase G. H. Grimm Company, George H.
Soule Company, Vermont Evaporator Company, and Lamb Tubing Systems.

June 16, 1888: Leon P. Reynolds, Lynn’s grandfather married Edna Mae Blakely, Lynn’s
grandmother, at Hebron, Wisconsin. They immediately settled in their home at Aniwa,
Wisconsin.

Figure 101 : Adin{27d) Reynolds boiling
sap in about 1885 near Palmyra,
Wisconsin. Adin(2)s dag pictured is
believed to have been named ‘General’
(Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

Authors Notes: Leon’s first sugarhouse at Aniwa was an abandoned railroad
camp building of the railroad construction crews, which was vacated in about
1881. This location had a dug well, buildings, toilets, and was cleared
properly for convenience. These premises remained his maple operation, until
he built a new sugarhouse in 1889 in preparation of his new 5’ X 14’ Champion

Evaporator to be delivered in 1888,

1 T s 3 . = A L -
AT gt

Figure 101: This is an unknown photograph. But it is a very close depiction of the sugar house that
Leon built in the woods, Town of Aniwa, in 1889, approximately one mile from the main traffic roads
(Source Reynolds Family Archives).
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Authors Notes: During the next approximately 25 years, the Reynolds family would live
on the Mississippi River for about two months (March and April) out of each year. Their
livelihood was dependent on floating timbers from Wausau, Wisconsin to New Orleans via
the Wisconsin and Mississippi Rivers. I wish to include a few words about “Old Man
River”, the mighty Mississippi. In the words of Stanley W. Trimble:

“The Mississippi River, 2,348 miles long, is the second longest river, after the Missouri,
in the United States. It’s triangular drainage area, covering about 40% of the country
and including all or part of 31 states, is approximately 1,250,000 square miles, the
third largest in the world. The Mississippi rises in Minnesota and then flows south,
following the boundaries between the states of Minnesota, lowa, Missouri, Arkansas,
and Louisiana on the west, and Wisconsin, Illinois, Kentucky, Tennessee, and
Mississippi on the east. The river, whose name means Father of waters’ in the
Algonquian language, has long been an important transportation artery of North
America....

Between Minneapolis and Saint Louis, Missouri, the most important tributaries
are the Illinois, Chippewa, Black, Wisconsin, Saint Croix, lowa, Des Moines, and Rock
Rivers. The Missouri River, draining the Great Plains to the west, joins the Mississippi
at Saint Louis...............

The lower river, which has a relatively narrow but deep channel, is navigable
for oceangoing ships upstream to Baton Rouge, Louisiana. From there to Cairo, a 12
foot channel is maintained. From Cairo to Minneapolis and on the other navigable
streams (the Cumberland, Ohio, Tennessee, Illinois, Arkansas, and Missouri River, a 9
foot channel is maintained in most places. About 15,000 miles of the systems are
presently navigable, and river traffic has experienced significant growth in recent
years. The cargoes transported on more than 8,000 towhoats consist mainly of
petrochemicals from the Gulf of Mexico and grain from the Midwest..........

The first Europeans to see the river inland were Hernando De Soto and his
partner in 1541. In the late 17t century, the Frenchmen Jacques Marquette and
Louis Jolliet (1637) and Sieur de La Salle explored the river from the north; La Salle,
who reached the mouth of the Mississippi in 1682, claimed the whole valley for
France. The western part of the basin was purchased from France by the United
States in 1803 and was explored by the Lewis and Clark Expedition. Among the
original Indian tribes living along the Mississippi were the Ojibwa, Winnebago, Fox,
Sauk, Choctaw, Chickasaw, Natchez, and Alabama.

The river system formed the pathways for much of the settlement of the central
United States. The advent of the steamboat in 1812 brought dependable
transportation, and river traffic increased rapidly. During the Civil War control of the
river was a major strategic objective; the Vicksburg Campaign (1863) achieved that
goal for the Union armies. Traffic resumed after the war, and primacy of the steamboat
followed. Eventually the steam paddle-wheelers were replaced by diesel, screw-driven
towboats pushing barges. The rivalry between rail and river transport, which started
in the late 19t century, persists to this day.”

The Mississippi River from 1880 until 1906 provided the Reynolds Family a lumber river

highway from the vast pine forests of Aniwa, Wisconsin to the market for these prime

timbers in New Orleans, Louisiana. Their financial welfare, their lives and even their
deaths were dictated by this giant waterway. This period in the ways and lives of the

Reynolds Family constitutes an American history epic.

Author’s Notes: In 1888 Leon and Edna Reynolds moved to Aniwa, Wisconsin on lands
that were purchased by them and their relatives. This is still the home site of Juan
Reynolds, and his children and grandchildren today. Leon had been residing at this

location (Aniwa) since 1883, except for a short period when he resided in Charles City,
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Towa, working for Northern National Lumber Corporation, at which time he was
negotiating a contract on behalf of the Reynolds family, for timbers to be delivered to their
export company in New Orleans.

Leon’s familiarity with the Shawano and Langlade Counties’ logging potential
was obvious, as he had spent several winters logging for other camps in the Aniwa area.
His father and brothers also had spent time in lumber camps, thus they were well
acclimated to the timber and lumber atmosphere of the area. Since 1880, and for the
next approximately 25 years, the family would leave their home in Jefferson County
(Hebron area), with horses and wagons each fall and spend the winter felling large white
pines. In 1886, the Reynolds under the guidance of Adin(2d) their father, and with the
obvious leadership of Leon, the Reynolds family started their own logging and lumber
operations, utilizing the white pine from their own lands, and adjacent lands. They had
the special sized timbers ‘rough sawed’ at an Aniwa area sawmill which could saw 24
foot to 30 foot long timbers. The timbers were described to me as about 28 feet long,
about 9 inches thick, and about 14 inches wide. It is believed that these were sawed at a
sawmill located at the south end of Aniwa Lake, which had the capability to saw such
long logs. After the timbers were sawed, they were hauled by horse and sleigh to
Wausau, Wisconsin, on the Wisconsin River. There the timbers were decked and built
into rafts on the ice of the river. When the ice went out, these rafts were floated down the
Wisconsin to the Mississippi River, to New Orleans, sold to ship builders, where the
Reynolds had a standing contract for these timbers, year after year. After selling these
timbers, the Reynolds family walked home to Jefferson County. A remaining member or
two of the family returned to Jefferson County from Aniwa with the horses and wagons in
the spring. After 1883, Leon stayed at Aniwa, in his new house, started making
maple syrup at Aniwa in 1884 and continued until his death in 1939.

The annual migration from Hebron to Aniwa continued from about 1880 until the
spring (April), 1906, when one of Leon’s brothers, Clarence, was killed on one of those
lumber drives near Arkansas City, Arkansas. Leon, traveled to Jefferson, took a team
and wagon to Chicago, left the team at a livery, took a train to St. Louis, Missouri, rented
another team and wagon, retrieved the body from Arkansas City, and returned the body
to Jefferson Country, where Clarence (his brother) is buried. “This ended an era for the
Reynolds family. Adin({2"d) died a few months later with a broken heart over the death of

his son, and the family never again moved timber down the rivers of America.” Aniwa
became home for the logging operations. Leon started his own sawmill. The Reynolds

stayed in logging and lumber, but they never harnessed any more rivers. Aniwa
became the source of the fami le roduction. And, it remains the

center (home) for the Reynolds family yet today. HamQSSIHQ rivers and
‘following the trees’ was over. The migration was
over. But the story is far from over.

Figure 102: This picture of Clarence Reynolds,
{Adin{24)’s oldest son, was taken in about 1905,
approximately one year before he was killed on
the Mississippi River, during the ‘last Reynolds
timber drive’ down the Mississippi River in 1906.
(Source: Reynolds Family Archives).
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Figure 103: Adin{24) Reynolds,
Electa (his wife), Clarence (Their
oldest son), Kitt (Their daughter),
and Uncle Manning (Civil War Vet).
Adin{2rd) is holding his
granddaughter, Ferol (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).

Figure 104: Adin{2") and Electa Reynolds’ children in about 1890:
Clarence, Kitt, Frank, Leon, Clyde, and Edmond
(Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

March 4, 1889: Benjamin Harrison becomes the 23 President of the United States.
He was married to Caroline Lavina Scott.

April 20, 1889: Adolph Hitler is born in Braunan, Austria.

July 1889: Merle Adin Reynolds, Adin(3™)’s brother, is born to Leon and Edna Reynolds
at Aniwa, Wisconsin. Merle was Lynn’s only uncle (or Aunt), as Merle was the only other
child of Leon and Edna. Geraldine Wheeler, Lynn’s mother was also an only child.
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Figure 105: Merle Reynolds, Leon’s oldest son and (Adin{39)’s brother,
photograph at about 2 years of age (Source Reynolds Family Archives].

November 2, 1889: “North Dakota becomes the 39th state.” -
“South Dakota becomes the 40t state.”

November 8, 1889: “Montana becomes the 41st state.”

November 11, 1889: “Washington becomes the 42nd state.”

May 1, 1890: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 4 ¥z cents per pound. Barter
Price: About 5 pounds of smoked bacon,
selling at about 10 cents per pound.
Production of Maple Syrup (includes
production of maple sugar):

United States: 6,377,492 U. S. Gallons
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A Reynolds Migration Map.

The final migration of the Reynolds family is
complete. Daniel moved from Greenwich, CT to
Peekskill, NY; Isaac to Amenia and then on to
Essex (Brookfield), NY; Isaac and Aden(1st) moved
to Smithfield (Madison County), NY; Adin{2"9)
migrated to Hebron, WI; Leon moved north to
Aniwa, WI; and Lynn lives at Hortonville, WI
today.
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Zime (Jut: ANy grandmother, Sdna often told me the story about when my Zfnelo YNerle was
a baby, in about 1890. Y4/hen (Leon and dna settled in their new home about twe miles north of
Aniwa, their lands wore basically wildewness except for the presence of the railvoad. Y4/hen they
built at this location, there was an Jndian trail which was located just nocth of their house, and
was used by the Jndians to travel from the Y4/olf river near _Yeshena, to the £au Claive Piver
near Sogarty. he teail was used primarily as a hunting and fishing teail for the Jndians, but
was used by the settlers as well. 7he Jndian troubles were basically over, but as in any socioty,
gou alwags have a few trouble makers.

e day, while the men were working a short distance from the house in a field, clearing
white pine stumps, a group of six young Jndian braves stopped at the house. Grandma and YNerle
were alone. The goung men demanded something to eat, and were acting in an obnoxicus manner.
Grandma said she could smell liquor on them. Grandma was very goung and vulnerable, and of
course was worried that they would harm her or her baby. 7hey huddled avound her at the stove
while she was trging to propare them something to eat. 7hey kept poking at hev with their fingers.
She was tervified. Jn her nervousness, she backed into the water bucket, tipping it over, and of
course spilling the water. eying to keep her head as best as possible, she picked up Zfncle
ANerte, and told the braves she had to go to the well to pump another bucket of water. 7he young
men finally agreed, but one went with her to wateh her. Y4/hile at the well, she showed the young
brave how to pump the water. Se was so infatuated with the pump and the stream of water it
prodaced, he was distracted from watching her. Grandma took the opportunity, ran to the dinner
bell, yanked the rope, and just kept ringing the bell. 77he young man that was handling the pump
was so startled, he konocked the bucket off the pump with a bang. 7he bell ringing, the pail
banging, and the yelling of the young brave startled the remaining five inside. AW of them took off
vanning, knowing the men were on their way, alarmed by the ringing of the bell. /Jeon and two
other men arvived in a matter of minutes. 7hey took horses and gave pursuit to the running braves.
“7hey never caught any of them, but it was alwags ramored that grandma had half scared them to
death with the vinging of that bell and the dropping of the bucket. She liked to say with a demure
tittle smile, she was move angry about them knocking the enamel off her new water pail than she
was about the frightening incident.

She said that was the last trouble they ever had with the Jndians at their home in
Aniwa. She often told about similar incidents about ‘bums’ that traveled along the railvoad, but
nothing ever happened other than some feeling of uneasiness. Zfsually food took care of the
situations. cAnd, in most cases, the men were willing to do some work in exchange for the food.

Figure 105A: Dspicc;hof a l ‘polé’ !l! operation of the 1880’s. {oume.' Taken from
J. I Case literature of 1882 - Reprinted from “Steam Traction Engines, by Floyd Clymer - Reynolds
Family Archives).
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Figure 107: Deed for 40 acres at Hebron
by Adin({2") in 1891 upon which he built

a new house in 1892. That house is still
standing and in use by his great grandson,
Jack Freeman (Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).

Figure 109: House built by Adin(2¢) on
his farm at Hebron, Wisconsin in 1892.
The house is still in good repair and
Adin{2nd)’s great grandson, Jack Freeman
lives there today (Source: Reynolds
Family Archives).

Figure 108: Deed for 153 acres purchased by Adin{2r4)

in 1897, which was attached to property purchased

in 1891, at Hebron, Wisconsin. Adin(2"9) farmed here

until moving to Fort Atkinson in about 1904 (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).

July 3, 1890: “Idaho becomes the 43rd state.”
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Figure 110: A prize

load of logs in 1892.

A depiction of the

type of white pine

which was logged and
purchased by the Reynolds
Samily 1885-1906.
Wisconsin white pine was
being decimated (Source:
Reprinted from the
“Wisconsin Trails”,

1995 Autumn Traveler).

Summer, 1890: Small Brothers Maple Evaporator Company is founded.

July 5, 1890: Edith M. Leipold, future wife of Merle Reynolds, was born to Mr. and Mrs.
Lawrence Leipold in Aniwa, Wisconsin.

July 10, 1890: “Wyoming becomes the 44th state.”

About August 10, 1890: “Scott Paper Corporation is the first company to put
bathroom (toilet) tissue on a roll.”

December 20, 1890: “American soldiers massacre 200 Sioux men, women and
children at Wounded Knee, South Dakota. This was considered the last American
Indian battle.”

June 1, 1891: Population of Canada is
4,833,239.

March 7, 1892: Diesel patents his internal combustion engine.

and crew loading logs in
1892 at the Reynolds
landing in Elmhurst,
Wisconsin. Leon is the
one standing next to
the team on the ground 43
with the ‘round derby 4
hat’ (Source: Reynolds 4
Family Archives).

Figure 111: Leon Reynolds \
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January 12, 1893: The Vermont Sugar Makers Association is organized in
Morrisville, Vermont.

NOTE: The following is the purpose of this association: “The object of the
Vermont Sugar Makers Association is to improve the quality and increase the
quantity of the maple product of the state, and to protect the manufacturer and
consumer from the many fraudulent preparations that are placed upon the
markets of this country as pure maple sugar and syrup, and to inform the general
public where the genuine article can be procured.”

Figure 112: Officers of the Vermont MAPLE SUGAR MAKERS’ mﬂm
Maple Sugar Makers’ Association in

1893 (Source: Reprinted from the *-OPFICBRS::"
“100* Anniversary Booklet 1893-1993”, y

“How to Procure Pure Vermont Maple s
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association and printed by Wallace i e e . v
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March 4, 1893: Grover Cleveland becomes President of the United States (Second
Term). He was married to Francis Folsom.

July 1, 1893: Leon and Edna Reynolds, travel from Aniwa to Chicago by train. They
attend the ‘Worlds Fair’ while visiting in Chicago. The highlight of their visit was a ride on
the original ‘Ferris Wheel’.

“The ‘Original Ferris Wheel’ was introduced by George Washington Ferris. The colossal
wheel stood 264 feet high and held 2,160 riders comfortably at a time in 36 gondolas.
The hub of the wheel weighed more than 70 tons. In nineteen weeks during the fair,
over 1 ' million people paid to ride the wheel.”

About January 1, 1894: Adolph Jackobson comes to work and live with Edna and Leon
Reynolds. He was a farmer. He handled most of the farming duties on the Reynolds
lands. He would stay with the Reynolds, in their home until his death in 1914.

April 6, 1894: Leon Reynolds became Town of Aniwa Supervisor as a Town Supervisor
on the Shawano County Board, State of Wisconsin.

Summer, 1894: The University of Wisconsin - Stevens Point, Wisconsin, is founded
and will open for classes in the fall term. Anne and Lynn Reynolds, will both receive
Bachelor’s Degrees from this University in the 1960’s.

January 4, 1896: “Utah becomes the 45th state.”
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January 13, 1897: Leon Reynolds purchased his second 5 X 14 Champion maple syrup
evaporator. The two § X 14 Champion evaporators served the Reynolds family unti
1942, when Adin(3m) purchased his first 5 X16 Vermont evaporator. During the period of
1897-1942, Leon and Adin(3) tapped about 4,000 maple trees.

March 4, 1897: William McKinley becomes the 25t President of the United States. He
was married to Ida Saxton.

March 28, 1898: The Spanish-American War begins.

Author’s Notes: This was a short war, but one of extreme consequences. The following

is taken from the “Internet Page\lconsulado.i\ 1898”:

“One hundred years ago Spain and the United States went to war over issues involving
the Spanish colonies in the Caribbean Sea and the Pacific Ocean. The war was short,
but the passions it aroused were intense. Today, when those passions have cooled, we
can see the war’s enormous influence on the societies that fought it. We can also see
how much more profound the changes taking place within these societies were more

than anyone at the time could have realized. The conflict led to the independence of
Cuba and the realignment of other Caribbean and Pacific former Spanish colonies
under United States control. The war dissolved Spain’s broad empire, helped establish
the United States as an international power, and stirred intense patriotic and
interventionist emotions for citizens of the countries involved. The exhibitions and

public programs will provide a new perspective on the extraordinary importance of the

events of 1898 for Cuba, the Philippines, Puerto Rico, and the United States, and the
prominence of New York City as a hub for U. S.-Spanish-Latin-American relations both

then and now.”

September 14, 1898: John Sharkey married Margaret Mary Donnelan, Anne’s
grandfather and grandmother.

December 31, 1898: “Scott Joplin’s ‘Maple Leaf Rag’ sold over 1 million copies in the
United States this year.”

June 29, 1899: Andrew Peter Paul Sharkey, Anne’s father was born.

November 1, 1899: Aniwa, Wisconsin was incorporated as a village.

Author’s Notes: Aniwa had become a bustling city. The junction of two significant
railroads, was the source of energy. Aniwa could boast of at least four sawmills, a
shingle mill, a furniture and cabinet shop, plus four lumber companies, i.e., the
Edwards Lumber Company, the Goldrick Lumber Company, Vogl Lumber Company,
and the Wincentsen Lumber Company. The Marion Telephone Company established
an office in Aniwa and provided phone service. The Appleton Pickle and Canning
Company built a factory here. By 1905, the population had grown to over 600 people
and “The Enterprise” started publishing a newspaper. A modern creamery, “The Aniwa
Star Cheese Factory” opened in 1905. There was a machine shop, two blacksmith and
wagon shops, four general stores, a hardware store, a candy store, two livery stables, a
barbershop, and two first class hotels. The Hoffman House (one of the hotels) even
had an opera house on the second floor. In 1908, tuberculosis was so bad that the
Village Board purchased an ultra violet lamp and disinfectants to control the disease.
This followed by an outbreak of scarlet fever and small pox in 1909. Quarantines were
prominent. Deaths were extensive. In spite of these setbacks, the village population

grew to almost 1,000 by 1910, when fire destroved four city blocks. This seemed to
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limit the growth although Aniwa remained a large vibrant community for the next 25
years due to logging, lumber and agriculture. By the 1930’s the economic depression

caused many to leave to find employment anywhere they could. Today the population
remains at about 300 residents.

Leon Reynolds built and opened his sawmill at the intersection of today’s Wisconsin
Highway 52 and U. S. Highway 45 (Route 26 then), in 1907. This was the following year
after his brother was killed on the last ‘River Drive’ of logs down the Mississippi. His
sawmill was operated by Adin{3m) until 1942, when the mill was sold.

In 1910, Leon Reynolds built his combination gas station (called filling stations)
and maple sugar shop, next to his sawmill operation. The location was at the
intersection of today’s highways, Wisconsin State Highway 52 and U. S.
Highway 45. The buildings were exactly where the Melody Mill (A tavern, dance

hall, and restaurant) is located today. This operation continued until 1937
when the establishment was sold.

May 1, 1900: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 5 cents per pound or about 55
cents per gallon. Barter Price: About 5 - 10
quart tin maple sap buckets, which were
priced about 10 cents each plus freight.
Maple Syrup Production:

United States: 3,547,707 U. S. Gallons

=

Figure 113: Shawano County Supervisory Board 1904. Leon Reynolds, Supervisor, Town of Aniwa is
2nd from left (seated) and 2+ row from top (with round derby hat). Photograph is of Shawano County
Court House steps (Source Reynolds Family Archives).
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Figure 114: Shawano County Board of Supervisors in 1907. Leon Reynolds, r,nmm.qf
Aniwa is standing in the back row (with round derby hat), 7t from the left. Photograph was taken on
the lawn adjacent to the County Court House in Shawano (Source Reynolds Family Archives),

Figure 114A: Wisconsin logging
operation about 1880. (Source:
“American Forests”, Summer
1998 - Reynolds Family
Archives),

Historic Note: “By 1899,
Wisconsin led the world in
lumber production”.
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1900 Production of Individual states
In U. S. Gallons

Ohio 923,519(1*) Maine 16,024
76,749(224) 688
1,000,268(3) 16,712
New York 413,159 Illinois 9,868
452,943 511
866,102 9,868
Vermont 160,918 Missouri 5,474
597.484 1,507
758,402 6,981
Pennsylvania 160,297 Minnesota 1,079
178,693 3,698
338,920 4,777
Indiana 179,576 Virginia 1,677
6,488 2,413
186,064 4,090
Michigan 82,997 Iowa 2,662
37,839 290
120,836 2,952
New Hampshire 41,588 Kentucky 2,367
69,851 293
111,439 2,660
Wisconsin 86,625 Connecticut 948
523 616
87,148 1,564
Massachusetts 27,174 Tennessee 171
24,124 145
51,298 316
Maryland 5,825 North Carolina 129
33,020 148
38,845 277
West Virginia 14,874
17,694
32,568
**Production of the United States (In U. S. Gallons) 2,136,611*
1,491,096*
3,627,707*

(1*t) Line - Production of maple syrup for each individual state and U.S. in U. S. Gallons

{204) Line - Production of maple sugar for each individual state and U.S. in U. S. Gallons

(3*9) Line - Total Production of syrup and sugar for each individual state and U.S. in

U. 8. Gallons

*Totals include small amounts not reported under individual states

+*Statistics modified from data by Clarence Coons in Ontario’s “Maple Thrives in ‘95"

Total data taken from “USDA Farmers Bulletin 516”. “The production of Maple Syrup and Sugar”.
Washington 1912. And other sources.
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Canada: Estimated to be 2,045,455 U. S.
Gallons.

June 1, 1900: Population of the United States is
75,994,575.

Population of Wisconsin is 2,069,042,

Authors Notes: At the turn of the century the pressure was on to ‘get to

farming’. To describe the mentality of the settlers of the Aniwa area inc!ud;ing
‘ather, Leon R lds, was to ‘get rid of the trees’.
everything and the ‘trees are in the way’. This was especially true of the gine
trees. They were accessible, the price was attractive, they would float, and
they were in the way. Leon Reynolds was far more conservative when it came to
maple trees. He was tapping them and wanted to extend their longevity. This
too leaned towards eliminating the pine and other hardwoods. So, with an
‘eliminate attitude’, an ‘urgency towards agriculture mentality’, the push was
to cut the timber and get it out of the way. In the case of the Reynolds family of
1900, only the maple was ‘sacred’, everyth else Io
sawing, and clearing stumps was the agenda of every day for the Reynolds
family. Only those areas where the maple trees grew were off limits. Leon

Reynolds succeeded in establishing a farm in the wilderness, as did almost all
of his neighbors. The idea of farming as one of many diversified livelihoods

continued until 1942, when Adin(3) sold the cows, sold the sawmill, and

essentially discontinued farming. In 1947, Adin{3%) built a new maple sugar
house on the hard surfaced ro and decided to pursue a full time
business in maple sm From that point in time, all Reynolds’ life was
focused on the maple industry. In retrospect, much of the lands cut and
cleared, probably would have been more productive in forestry rather than

agriculture. But......”Life would be easy if we could survive on ifs’, ‘could ofs’,
or ‘should ofs’”. This time though, the Reynolds were at the end of their 5,000

year trek. “There were no trees to follow”. Fortunately, the maple were saved,

which would provide the Reynolds maple syrup revenues for the next
approximately 100 years on these lands, and still going %

Town Ticket
Figure 115: 1902 Ballot for The Town —
of Aniwa. Leon Reynolds was reelected For Caivman -
as Town Chairman. He was unopposed L. P. Reynolds
(Source: Reynolds Family Archives). - FosSismevien= :
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March 10, 1901: Leon Reynolds wrote the following poem as an invitation to a party on
‘April Fools Day’, April 1, 1901:

ime ug:
‘OIo the eolobratod April _rools Day
There will be a regular blowout here,
Aod as it also being Lastor we wish that you may
JBe with as this day of all days of the year.

Or would gou rather have me say
That there will be a social gathering here,
Aod gour prosence is desired to ploy
Yarious games ineludiog smear.

(Jar program is o kiod that may vot toke

s we are pot famous for our quality to eptertaio,
JBat J hope that we will be able to make

Zou fesl that you had not come in vaip.

Now if the folks all come that are iovited
There will bo all ages and sizes,

70 compete for now don’t get excited
The things we have fixed op as prizes.

ow as for grab J have taken a pesk

Aod pow J uoderstaod the reasoo,
2/by J bad to pick out put meats for a weok

s they bave evowned the best eake of the seasop.

JBat wheo the afternoon has dimivished
Aod the men muse go home to their chores,

They will be roquested that swheo they have fivished
70 again retury to our doors.

Aow J am oot much good at making thivgs hgme

and copsequently am oot a very good poet,
JBut please don't eviticize my work this time

JEecause its not very good avd J koow it.”

1901: Oil is discovered in Texas.

June 1, 1901: Population of Canada is
5,371,315,
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Figure 116: Lynn B. Reynolds (Son of Frank
Reynolds, Leon’s Brother), in 1902, loading
logs at L. P. Reynolds’ Landing, Elmhurst,
Wisconsin. Lynn is operating the Loading
Winch (Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

Figure 117: Lynn B. Reynolds’ obituary.

NOTE: Lynn B. Reynolds was killed about five

years later (1907), when he was entangled in

the flywheel of a 28 horsepower, gasoline

(Eerosene) Fairbanks Morse Engine, while he was
operating a sawmill south of Aniwa at approximately
¥ mile west of the intersection of todays highways,
County ZZ and U. S. 45 (Taken from the Wausau Record
Herald of February 1, 1907 - A file contained in the
Reynolds Family Archives).

Figure 118: Geraldine
(Lynn’s Mother) at age
about 3 years holding

her cat (fluff) (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).
About 1912,

1907:

Lynn Reynolds Whirled to Death.

The Wausau Record Herald of Feb. 21 contains an
account of the death of Lynn Reynolds’ formerly of
this city and Hebron. It appears that he was
whirled to death in a fly-wheel of a large gasoline
engine at Washburn siding a few miles from Antwa,
Wis., Thursday. He was 24 years old and a son of
Mr. and Mrs. F. J. Reynolds of Wausaw.

Mrs. Reynolds was notified by telephone and
immediately went to Ringle to inform her husband
and together they went to the scene of the accident.
From meager particulars it appears that Lynn was
running the engine and in some manner got caught
in the fly-wheel. The engine was soon stopped but
he had received injuries from which he died a few
minutes later. He leaves besides his parents one
brother Harry, of Anfwa and two sisters, the
Misses Vinnie and Nellie, both of Wausau. The
deceased was born in Hebron, in September, 1883
and had been a resident of Aniwa the past eight
years. Funeral services were held in Aniwa
Presbyterian Church and the remains laid to rest in
Aniwa cemetery. The Modern Woodmen attended
in a body. In his funeral sermon the pastor said
that Lynn possessed qualities of mind and heart
that he would be greatly missed in that community.

The many friends of the deceased here and at
Hebron where he passed his boyhood are deeply
pained over his untimely death.

He was a capable and industrious young man
and a dutiful and affectionate son. The Union joins
in sincere sympathy to the bereaved family.

February 17, 1903: Polly (Cain) Green, Lynn’s 2 great grandmother dies at Rome,

Wisconsin (Jefferson County).

June 30, 1903: The Aniwa Village Hall was built. The Village Hall was the site of the
first several annual meetings of the “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”, starting in

1910.

December 17, 1903: Wilbur and Orville Wright, invented and tested the first airplane.
The Kitty Hawk’s initial flight was successful for 12 seconds.

December 19, 1903: Leon Reynolds purchased a Buffalo Pitts Traction Engine for $74.39

from Laughlin & Kelly.
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March 1904: Cary Maple Sugar Company was formed in St. Johnsbury, Vermont.

September 6, 1904: William R. McGregor married Anna M. (Zoellner) McGregor, Anne’s
grandfather and grandmother.
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Figure 119: Note signed by Leon Reynolds for a Buflow Pratt Traction Engine on December 19,
1903 (Source: Reynolds Farmnily Archives).

NOTE: Although no photographs can be found and no record is available, I am told that there was a
“Buffalo Pitts ‘Traction’ Engine”, built by O. S. Kelly Western Manufacturing Company, a Division of
the O. S. Kelly Manufacturing Company, Springfield, Ohio. There was a merger of Eelly Company and
the Homer Laughlin Engine Corporation, Los Angeles, California in 1902, I am further told that the
“Buflow Pitts ‘Traction’ Engine” was the 1903 model of the 6 horsepower portable engine, which was
manufactured by the Kelly Company. The Kelly 6 horsepower engine of 1903 is pictured below.

Figure 120: Photograph of a Eelly 6 horsepower
portable (‘traction’]) engine weighing 2,300 pounds.
The 1903 6 horsepower portable Eelly Engine could
be furnished with a variety of auxiliary machines
including a cordwood saw and a well drilling

outfit (Source: “American Gasoline E ", by
C. H. Wendel).

Note: It is believed that the word ‘traction’
may be mistakenly used for the word ‘portable’.

Zime Jut: YDaple Suote:

“Wise men were they who set hard maples along boundary lines of theiv farms in eaclior
dags. 7hey now have avenaes to be proud of. And they have also a source of revenue, for these
low-branched , isolated trees give abundant flow of sap in the early spring/”.

JBy SJulin Pogers 1935

February 24, 1905: The Wunderlich Lumber and Manufacturer Company was
organized by Christopher and George Wunderlich. Logs were sold to this

mill by Leon Reynolds from his log landing at Elmhurst which was near George
Wunderlich’s farm and log landing.

March 4., 1905: Theodore Roosevelt becomes 26t President of the United States. He
was married to Edith Kermit Carow.

Summer, 1905: Leon built the current house of the Reynolds in which Adin(37), Juan,
Lynn, and Kathleen were all born.
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September 18, 1905: Clarence “Adin(37)” Reynolds, Lynn’s father was born to Leon P.
and Edna Mae Reynolds in Aniwa, Wisconsin.

Figure 121: Photograph of the Reynolds

house which Leon built in 1905. The picture
was taken in 1909. Those pictured are
Eenneth Reynolds (Leon’s nephew), Clyde
(Leon’s brother), Clarence (Leon’s

brother, Frank Wilcox (a neighbor from
Hogarty), Merle Reynolds, Leon Reynolds, and
Matt Loos (Aunt Rosie’s husband, a good friend
and neighbor). (Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).

Figure 122: The Carley Hotel,
Aniwa, WI, July 24, 1906,

This was a hotel, store, central
dining room, opera house, telephone
office, and livery barn. A
magnificent structure (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).

1906: Kellogg introduces corn flakes.

October 18, 1906: Adin(2d) Reynolds, Lynn’s 1%t Great Grandfather died at Fort
Atkinson, and is buried in the Evergreen Cemetery, Hebron, Wisconsin.

Author’s Notes: Adin(2¢) Reynolds was thrust into an adult role at the early
of 16or 17 ) . He the nsibi or his mother,

Polly, and his sister, Holcy; and wisely moved the family to Hebron, Wisconsin,

where he could gather strength, receive assistance, and maturity from his

brother William. Adin{2~4) probably will be remembered in the maple industry,

as one of the ‘earl ’of s ortation to reduce the
ense and time of ‘haul . He was a substantial le producer, a farmer.

and a civic leader in the Jefferson County area. He contributed to the first

mi shipment le rom Wisconsin for the Union troops
the Civil War. He was active in moving Wisconsin towards a maple association,
even tho it never ened his lifetime.

However, Adin{2m)’s most significant family contribution was the initiation of the

family into major Togging’ operations. He was the first to purchase land in the town of

Aniwa. He spent at least two winters working in logging camps learning the way of large
scale white pine logging. He helped his sons establish themselves in the ‘brutal
magnitude’ of the Wisconsin white pine logging and lumber industry. He helped his sons

create a market for a pine product which consumed the family for a period of some 25
years. He taught them to become lumber barons, and ‘river rats’, as they were
affectionately called in those early days. He accumulated all of the centuries of
experience on the rivers of the world; more recently he learned from the experiences of
his father and grandfather by their harnessing of Lake Champlain, the Hudson, the

Boguet River, the Erie Canal, the Chenango Canal, the Genesee Canal, and the Rock
River; and more recently his brother’s experiences on the Bark River; then he taught his

sons. And he taught them well.
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He helped them establish the fami le operation in the

Wisconsin area. He was a shrewd ambitious businessman, but he will be
remmembered favorably as an ho air, le family man. A 2nd) was

instrumental in the development of sap dumping stations, with the installation
o to transfer le sap to sto tanks. His dream was to

establish a Wisconsin maple syrup association, and his dream was the
Jorerunner to such an association being formed. He had foresight. He had
experience. He was a teacher. He will be remembered.

Figure 123: Adin[24)
Reynolds photograph
taken about 1904
(Source: Reynolds
Family Archives).

Figure 124: Laying
Corner Stone for
Aniwa Village Hall,
June 30,1903.
Leon Reynolds is
pictured in
the back left
with the black, i
‘round derby hat’ el
L ~ 4 ' _ - .~
L < e S,
Family Archives) T F"‘U“H\Gt\'\-g, N A
e o mw}“h’?s, 7 "‘i\u 2
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CHAPTER 19

(THE FINAL MOVE - ANIWA)

Leon P. Reynolds - Lynn’s Grandfather
Edna Mae (Blakely) Reynolds - Lynn’s Grandmother
1. Clarence (Adin(34) Reynolds - Geraldine (Wheeler) Reynolds
1) Lynn H. Reynolds - Anne (Sharkey) Reynolds
2) Juan L. Reynolds - Loretta (Silver) Reynolds
3) Kathleen J.(Reynolds) Sipes - Leroy Sipes
4) Donald A. Klitzka - Marlene (Moesch) Klitzka
2. Merle Reynolds - Edith (Leipold) Reynolds
1) Lawrence (Chum) Reynolds - Marion (Reynolds) Sery
2) Alice Reynolds

3) Vernita Reynolds
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Figure 127: Adin(34) Reynolds
photograph at about 2 years
of age (1907). (Source: Reynolds
Family Archives).

Figure 126: Leon, Edna Reynolds and Adin{3"!) Reynolds. Taken
in Aniwa, Wisconsin in 1905 (Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

BECAUSE

e I LOVE YOU

a play by the Aniwa Dramatic
Club in 1906. Notice that Edna, .
Lynn’s Grandmother, Merle, her - Aniwa Dramatic Club
son, and Harry, her nephew are LI :

all players. The Reynolds family . _

was very involved in community At e

affairs, especially theater (Source:

Reynolds Family Archives).

PRESENTED BY THE

¥ - "
“Because I Love You" Is probably the strongest
drama of the modern romantic style ever written. A
love story as pure asa drop of dew In the heart of
a mountain roae, with strong comedy element.
* Synopsis of Scenes.
ACT 1. The “Geerge Washingion™ & Country Tavern in Ol Vir-
fnls. An Impromptu wedding,
ACT 2 Lever'sLeap, A Blue Mountsln Preciplee. A Daring

rescue '’ ,

ACT1 The Courtleigh Place Plantstion Mansien. A Weman's
Fally, . " '’

ACT & The Meuntain Siudio, & Falnter's hn"‘du An Affalr of
Haner. = “

Pml. of the Play

Mance Tyson. Buek's wile..

No troubls will be mumuemu production
an ertistle suceess and will be fullp equal fo anp produc-
tion e have stoged in the past.  New acenes, good
musfe, songs and dances. . - Two &nd one-half hours of
pleasure.

. y COME
“Because I Love You"

Reserved Soats on salaat

274 Reserved Seats IS¢, general admission 25¢, children 15¢
Doty epan at 7:30 ~Curtaln rises at 8:18 sharp



December 16, 1906: Electa Reynolds, Adin(2)’s widow, Lynn’s great
grandmother, moved to Pomona, California to live with her widowed sister.

December 29, 1906: Herbert Wheeler, Lynn’s grandfather, married Hazel
I Baker, Lynn’s grandmother (Geraldine’s Mother and Father), at New
London, Wisconsin.

January 31, 1907: Lynn B. Reynolds, son of Frank Reynolds and nephew
of Leon Reynolds, was killed in an accident while operating an engine on a
sawmill at Aniwa, Wisconsin. He is buried in Leon Reynolds’ plot in the
Aniwa Cemetery.

November 16, 1907: Oklahoma becomes the 46t State.
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Figure 129: Leon Reynolds’ freight bill from the Chicagoe and Northwestern Railroad at Aniwa,
Wisconsin, for the purchase and receipt of ‘one boiler’; and ‘one saw mill complete’. Dated April 8,
1908. Freight Cost was $27.60 for freight from Pelican Lake, Wisconsin to Aniwa, Wisconsin. The

weight of the sawmill was 24,000 pounds. (Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

May 13, 1908: Leon and Edna Reynolds purchased a new Sears Ice Chest
(Called an ‘Ice Box’), for $16.37 with freight.

BEFORE THE ELECTRIC REFRIGERATOR! | The

Figure 130: A caricature of an “Ice Chest”
which was manufactured by Sears in 1908,
and is an exact type purchased by the
Reynolds (Source: 1908 “Sears And
Roebuck Catalog” - Taken from the
“Wisconsin State Farmer” - date unknown).

Note: The original Reynolds Sears “Ice
Chest” remains in the Reynolds Family
Archives. It was used until 1940 when it
was replaced with a L. P. (bottled) gas
Sears Refrigerator.

i

UNTIL ELECTRICITY WAS UNIVERTALLY ACCEPTED IN MOST HONES A HOUSEHOLD

THE ICE “BOY" TO KEEP coup ICE DELWERT
TRUCKS ROAMED CITY STREETS AT LEAST TWICE A WEEK TO MEET THE DEMAND.
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About February 1, 1909: The Thomas Monahan Company advertises ice
for 10 cents per block, delivered, put into your ‘ice house’- buyer had to
furnish the sawdust.

Figure 131: The original Reynolds
‘fee House’, built about 1890 as a
barn. It was used as an ice house
until about 1940, when a gas
operated refrigerator was
purchased. After 1940, this log
house was used for a ‘chicken
coop’ as pictured here. (Source:

Reynolds Family Archives).
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August 16,1908: Henry Ford Company produces the first Model “T”
Ford.”
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October 2, 1908: Lois Irene McGregor, Anne’s mother was born to William
and Anna McGregor, in Antigo, Wisconsin.

March 4, 1909: William Howard Taft becomes the 27t President of the
United States. He was married to Helen Hevron.

Figure 133: Logs decked at
the Leon Reynolds’
‘Landing’ in Elmhurst.
Pictured is Leon and
Adin(3), along with deckers
and teamsters. Picture was
taken about 1909 (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).

’%_‘” G. H. GOLDRICK -

- mu-n@cneral
[ Medsl Aberchandise.

L Dy Gouds, Grocevies, Huts, Caps, Bovls, Shoes, Eic. Also Purcharer and Shipper of Loas.
& Zerres sstrisisareiietil Codar Ties, Posts, Poles 2nd Piling.

10, 000

Aceen of
Farmiug aed
Timber Lands

For Sale
#t Buyer's

Terma A i

Figure 134: G. H. Goldrick. He was “Mr. Everything” in early Aniwa. He was a store owner, a real
estate tycoon, a land and timber baron, a financier, and a businessman (Source: Advertisement taken
Jrom the ‘“Aniwa Register’ and from the Reynolds Family Archives).

Authors Notes: It would be difficult to mention the words: Reynolds, Aniwa, land,

logging, and money, without mentioning G. H. Goldrick. He was a giant of a man in the
Aniwa community. He owned a store. He bought and sold land. He purchased logs,
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sold lumber, and was into everything to do with logging and lumber. But to the Reynolds,
he was a very good friend. He was also Leon’s financier (and one to many others in the

community). I have records of at least 37 different loans (Notes), which Mr. Goldrick
made to Leon and other members of the Reynolds family, and there were probably a lot

more. These loans were all made on a ‘signature’ basis with no security or collateral. The

loans were made on a signature and a handshake. They ranged in amounts from

$37,860.00 down to $125.00, over a period of about 16 years. All the loans were repaid.
I have no record for what they were used, but it is logical they were used to buy land,

logs, and to establish their farm. And of course there were many other loans and
business dealings which were with mortgages, involving land and real estate, transacted

with a variety of other parties. But Mr. Goldrick was the main lender.

April 3, 1909: Geraldine Hazel Wheeler, Lynn’s mother is born to Herbert
(Bert) and Hazel (Baker) Wheeler, at Green Bay, Wisconsin.

Zime Oue: L LOUR SACK UNDERWEAR
Thanks: Jsy faffle.

“When J was a maiden fair, YHomma made our underwear.

W ith five tots and pa’s poor pay, how could she buy lingerie?
YNonograms and fancy stitehes, were not on our flour sack britches.
Panty waists that stood the test, with Gold Yedal on the chest.

oLittle pants the best of all, with scenes that \J ean still recall,
Harvesters were gleaning wheat, right actoss the little seat.

T ougher than a grizzly bear, was our flour sack underwear.

Pain or fancy, 3 foot wide, stronger than a hippo’s hide.

Theough the gears each Jack and _Jill wore this garh against their will.
W aste not, want not, we soon learned, and a penny saved is a penny earned.
JBedspreads, curtains, ton towsls, too, tablecloths to name a fow.

JRut the best beyond compare, was alwags the floar sack anderwenr.”

(Source: Zfnknown)

Figure 134A: The Wheeler brothers.
Bert Wheeler (2 row on right) is
Geraldine Reynolds’ father. Taken
about 1900. Bert and his 8 brothers
pictured had their own family
baseball team. “They were very
good” (Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).
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h‘guu 135: The West DePere Crw;mary, DePere, Wisconsin Photograph o the rio"r \- -
Jactory, where Bert Wheeler was a butter maker in De Pere (near Green Bay), Wisconsin in 1910
(Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

NOTE: After moving to Aniwa, 1916, Bert wheeler became a rural mail carrier on an Aniwa mail
route, which he continued until his retirement in 1943 with 25 years of service.

Figure 135A: A ‘lumber accident’ on
the siding in Anlwa, Wisconsin,

in June 1896. (Source: Reynolds
Family Archives).

Figure 135B: Merle Reynolds, Leon’s
son [Adin{3"4)'s brother], with his wife
Edith and grandson, Kent (Chum’s
son), in the earlyl1960’s. Lynn’s uncle
Merle died shortly after this picture
was taken. (Source: Reynolds

Family Archives).
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Figure 136: Reynolds

Maple Sweet Shop opened

in 1910 at the inter-

section of today’s

Highway 52 and U. S. 45
(Highway 26 then). Edna
(Leon’s wife), is pictured

in the center with customers
(Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).

NOTE:

Fuel pumps were
added later. First
there was kerosene for
heat and running
internal combustion
engines and white gas
JSor lanterns and irons.
In about 1920, gasoline
for automobiles was
added.

Figure 137: Reynolds
Maple Sweet Shop and
Filling Station in 1921.

Notice: Promotion, “If
you buy maple syrup

or maple sugar, you
can earn credit for free

gasoline”(Source:
Reynolds Family
Archives).

Author’s Notes: During the summer, fall, and winter of 1909, including January and

February of 1910, Leon Reynolds shipped at least 56 railroad cars of logs. This
amounted to almost 3 million board feet of lumber and resulted in receipts of

approximately $56,000.00. This was a large sophisticated and well operated logging,

buying, decking, and shippi

Real estate taxes of $81.80 were paid to Langlade County for ownership of
slightly over 400 acres of land. Real estate taxes of $63.46 on ownership of about 350

operation for 19009.

acres of land were paid_to Shawano County. Leon’s total ownership was about 750
acres of land at Aniwa in 1910.
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s.06, 2L County Treasurer’s Office, s 5281

LANGLADE COUXTY, WIS,

e e
TReceived of .‘:{” W %‘7/ iy
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thur sum ol

DOLLARS,

i full for Taye jl t wmal Charges s s the followin LT dv!r ibeil Traets of Land s the Tosn of . _
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Figure 138: Leon Reynolds’ tax bill NE-NE 33 3,

($75.71) for Langlade County, May 15, . NW-NE 23 32 ,, ;;?

1911. This represented all Langlade SW-NE 33 30 4y £ce

County taxes due except for another ' SE-NEB 33 3oy ;L £L

parcel of $6.09 (Source: Reynolds : NE-SE 33 38 4/ L ik

Family Archives). : NW-SE 33 3¢ 4 £ cé

3 e

Note: By 1911 Leon had accumulated -sggé ;j gc :; f«f, :‘(’

approximately 1,500 acres in ! SW-8W 32 3o 4 =52

Langlade County and approximately +

1,000 acres in Shawano County, plus -

other miscellaneous land holdings,  pwatres L2 L0

JSor use in his logging and maple s Fem ; 355

syrup operations. Tnterve, ' Fey
Advirthaing, —_—2 25
Touh i . X¥r

May 1, 1910: Price of Maple Syrup:
Approximately 7 cents per pound or about 75
cents per gallon of syrup. Barter price:
About 3 pounds of coffee, which was selling
for about 25 cents per pound.

Production of maple syrup:

United States: 5,863,944 U. S. Gallons

May 3, 1910: The following prices were advertised at the Reynolds
Maple Sweet Shop and Filling Station: Fresh Maple Syrup at 75
cents per gallon; Maple Sugar at 25 cents per pound; Cinnamon
Rolls (Homemade and Fresh Baked) at 10 cents per dozen (13);
Butter at 19 cents per pound; Eggs at 13 cents per dozen (13);
Sugar at 4 cents per pound; Lard at 8 cents per pound; and bulk
Crackers at 3 cents per pound.

Figure 138A: Bert, Hazel, and
Geraldine Wheeler (Lynn’s
grandfather, grandmother,
and mother), in 1915 (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).
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1910 Production of Individual States
(In U. S. Gallons)

New York 993,242(1) Iowa 18,596
395,038(2n4) — 772
1,388,280(3+9) 19,368
Vermont 409,953 Minnesota 17,808
965,852 1,425
1,375,805 19,233
Ohio 1,323,431 Illinois 18,492
32,1949 671
1,355,630 19,163
Pennsylvania 391,242 Virginia 6,046
148,506 5,622
539,748 11,668
Michigan 269,093 Missouri 9,389
36,662 1.455
305,755 10,844
Indiana 273,728 Connecticut 4,236
4,177 1,276
277,905 5,512
New Hampshire 111,500 Kansas -0-
162,358 __ 5,002
273,858 5,002
Wisconsin 124,117 Kentucky 3,547
3,399 1,337
127,516 4,884
Massachusetts 53,091 Tennessee 373
19,619 341
72,710 914
Maryland 12,172 North Carolina 404
43,989 413
56,161 817
West Virginia 31,176 New Jersey 504
17,508 150
48,684 654
Maine 43,971
1,924
45,895
**Production of the United States (In U. S. Gallons) 4,106,418*
1,757,526+
5,863,944

(1t) Line - Production of maple syrup for each individual state in U. S. Gallons

(274) Line - Production of maple sugar for each individual state in U. S. Gallons

(3€) Line - Total production of syrup and suger in the United States in U. S. Gallons

*Totals include small amounts not reported under individual states

Statistics modified from data by Clarence Coons in Ontario’s “Maple Thrives in ‘95",

Total data taken from “USDA Farmers Bulletin 516”. “The Production of Maple Syrup and Sugar”.
Washington 1912,

And other sources.

Canada Production: Estimated At About
2,454,678 U. S. Gallons.
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DIRECTIONS FOR ATTACHING BUNCHER TO MOWING
MACHINE

poyea 2 Remove swade board from outer end of cutrer bar, Open the receiver
STEEL HAY AND GRAIN BUNCHER with oblong holes to the rear of the cutter bar, Remove guard bolt
and fasten receiver wich clamps where guard bolt has been removed.
Then place § inch finger bar in oblong hole and the 2, 12 inch in the
nexe 2 oblong holes; then the next in the 24 inch; thc nextin the 36
inch; then the 40inch. Alwernate uncil all ﬁngcr bars have been
Ehccd in the cross bar. Bolr the left side of che hopper to the cross

ar and the left side where swade board had been removed:  Bole the
rear to rhe side of the hopper; bolt triangle bracker to rear of hopper
as shown in cut. Fasten scac spring bracket co the lower end of the
seat. Place trip rod through bracker as also shown in cur. Then
adjust teip rod so thac the righe side of che hopper runs in direce line
with cutter bar,
Follow these instructions on all machines with the exceprion of the
fustening of che trip rod on the Tractor drawn machine. ~ Fascen teip
TRACTOR HAY AND GRAIN BUNCHER rod as shown in cut.  This machine is to be tripped in up-right posi-

tian from the sear.

Figure 139: Advertisement for a ‘Empire’ mowing machine with buncher in 1910. Leon ordered one of
these mowers (Source: ngrwld’s Family Aﬂ:h!m}
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S 5 « hereby order of THE SEIBERLING & MILLER CO., Doylestown, Olvlo, Arough their agent,. 5. Co.
=Cait Incorporated Under the Laws af Oh 1 s
B o By TS e one of their EMPIRE. .. /172 L. .‘6@;:: A ‘?z) : ?/13"/ n/-é’w/
e, . .lo be akipped Lo ﬂ«s,w.ﬂ}- ............. on or before LA '!J/ w-“v(eé ......
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s QUE, e e 190... . with. . ...... per cent. wmn,rme,..' ............... T ———. 190

ond agree fo make seltlement ox abore stoled upan delivery of the machine, reacrring, howerer the full benefit of the Warrandy-and  Agreement hereon indorscd
which are herehy mode a part of this order

Figure 140: Receipt of the agreement signed by the Aniwa dealer “Otto Colen” on behaif of Leon
Reynolds, dated June 28, 1910, for the amount of $45.00. This receipt is from The Seiberling &
Miller Company, Doylestown, Ohio, for one Empire Mowing Machine (Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).

May 6, 1910: A meeting of the Langlade, Lincoln, and Shawano
County maple syrup producers took place at the Modern
Woodmen’s Hall in Aniwa. The discussion was for the formation of
an association for marketing Wisconsin maple syrup. The name of
“Northwoods Maple Syrup Marketing Cooperative” was adopted.
This was the initiation of a Wisconsin Maple Syrup Association.
The “Northwoods” brand (label) of maple syrup is still used by
maple syrup producers today in the Antigo area. This was the
beginning of an Association which Adin(2"4) dreamed of as early as
the 1860’s. Unfortunately, nothing took place until about four
years dfter his death in 1906. The meeting was promoted by Leon

283



Reynolds, but was held under the ‘auspices’ of the Modern
Woodmen. Not much can be found about who attended, but some
names found were L. P. Reynolds, Chandler, Sage, Peters,
Schroeder, Kolpack, Minch, Leycom, Kleinschmidt, Felts, and Rine.
It is believed that over 30 persons attended this meeting. And, it
was the beginning of a maple association in Wisconsin. The
meeting is believed to have been a result of Wisconsin’s production
increasing to about 130,000 gallons of syrup produced in 1910 as
compared to about 85,000 gallons in 1900. It was agreed that this
group and any others interested would be meeting on May 15* of
each year and maybe more often if so agreed (unless the 15" falls
on a Sunday, then they would meet on the Saturday before).

Author’s Notes: As far as I can determine, this was the first maple syrup
cooperative in the United States. There is evidence that there may have been

some cooperative activity in Canada by this time in maple, but not in the United
States. The b of this Wisconsin le in 1910, led

to the development and establishment of the Wisconsin Maple Syrup Producers
Association of today. Records are ‘sketchy’ at best, but I believe that this
cooperative and the resulting maple council, and eventually association, met
every year, at least once from 1910 through 1998 (88 years). Many names (or
descendants of those names) involved from the very beginning are syrup makers
that are still active in the association today. There has been a ‘Reynolds’
active in the Wisconsin association from that day though current times.

June 1, 1910: Population of the United States is
91,972,266.

Population of Wisconsin is 2,333,860.

June 16, 1910: Merle Reynolds, Adin(34)’s brother married Edith M.
Leipold, at Aniwa, Wisconsin.

June 26, 1910: Electra (Porter) Reynolds, Lynn’s lst great grandmother,
died in Pomona, California. She was returned and buried next to her
husband, Adin(2"4), in the Evergreen Cemetery, Hebron, Wisconsin.

Fall, 1910: Towles Maple Company, Minneapolis, Minnesota, started
purchasing maple sugar from the Cary Maple Company (George

Cary).

June 1, 1911: Population of Canada is
7,206,643.
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Figure 141: Leon Reynolds on
a load of logs in about 1895,
at Aniwa, Wisconsin (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).

Figure 142: Geraldine
Wheeler, Lynn’s mother, at
about 2 years of age.
(Source: Reynolds Family
Archives)

February 21, 1911: Leon Reynolds purchases a new grain drill, 3 sets of
logging sleighs, and 1 set of light sleigh bobs, from Jones, Armstrong and

Company, Antigo, Wisconsin, for $40.00.

Secured by Mortgage od...5.....cocoevrriecirececcininiennn, : Date..
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M

I, the I-ln&ernzs{'led, of the Town of.... Sttt B ...

promise to pay to the order of Jones, Armstrong & Co., of Antigo, Wisconsin,...... i
Y P T e T T e DOLLARS

payabie st the Fifst National Bunk, Antigo, Wisconsin, with interest at T per cent, until dae and 10 perent. after due.
his Note, I promise to pay Attorneys' Fees, In addition to taxable costs. The express

And If not pald when due. and sult is commence

condltion of the sale and purchase of........ 52" & which this Note

is given |s such that title, ownership or does netp hesdld Jones, Armstrong & Co., until this Note and lnr.erest 1s paid in tull @
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Figure 143: Receipt from Jones, Armstrong 8 Company to Leon Reynolds on February 21, 1911,for a
grain drill, 3 sets of logging sleighs and a set of bobs for $40.00 (Source: Reynolds Family Archives).
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May 15, 1911: A meeting of the “Northwoods Maple Syrup
Marketing Cooperative” occurred at the Village Hall, Aniwa,
Wisconsin. L. P. Reynolds was elected to be permanent chairman.
It was agreed that the word “Marketing” should be dropped from -
the name and that the name would be “Northwoods Maple Syrup
Cooperative” and they would function as an association. No other
information can be found.

August 28, 1911: The Village of Elmhurst is destroyed by fire.
January 6, 1912: “New Mexico becomes the 47t State.”

February 14, 1912: “Arizona becomes the 48% State.”

May 15, 1912: A meeting of the “Northwoods Maple Syrup
Cooperative” (Association) happened at the Village Hall, Aniwa,
Wisconsin. Meeting was chaired by L. P. Reynolds. Discussion of

selling syrup.

1913: American manufacturing output exceeds that of France, Britain
and Germany combined.

March 4, 1913: Woodrow Wilson becomes the 28t President of the
United States. He was married to Ellen Louise Axson and Edith Bolling
Galt.

May 15, 1913: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at the Village Hall, Aniwa, Wisconsin. Meeting
Chaired by L. P. Reynolds. ‘Small attendance’.

Figure 144: Aunt Rosie and sl
Uncle Matt (Matt and Rose 2
Loos). Neighbors to Leon
and Edna Reynolds. They
were the Reynolds’ best
Jriends and this text
would not be complete
without them. They were
not relatives, but after
Matt died quite young,

she was Aunt Rosie to the
younger generations as
long as she lived (Source
Reynolds Family Archives).
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G\ N - l . ~ o rn AN T s
145: A photograph of a Phoenix Steam Log Hauler. This photo is of the Kellog Lumber
Company’s log train in 1914 near Antigo, Wisconsin. It is known that many logs purchased by Leon
Reynolds at Elmhurst were hauled by these steam log haulers. It is not known if they were hauled by
the hauler in this photo (Source: Photo submitted by Frank Bohn, West Bend, WI - Reprinted from the
Wisconsin State Farmer, April 4, 1997).
NOTE: These machines required four men to operate them: an engineer, fireman, pilot (steermanj, and
one to couple sleds, assist in taking on fuel and looking after the train on sleds when on the road. It
took 62 horses to haul comparable loads as the steam hauler could.

0

May 16, 1914: Adolph Jackobson (Andy), a long time employee of Leon
Reynolds died.

May 15, 1914: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at Village Hall, Aniwa, Wisconsin. L. P. Reynolds
chaired the meeting. Over 30 attended.

Figure 146: The DIED AT ANIWA: Man Who Was “Town Friend” passes Away at Seventy Three.
obituary of Adolph Adolph Jackobson, better known here as “Andy” died at the home of Mr. and
Jackobson, better Mrs. L. P. Reynolds Saturday night May 16, 1914 at the age of 73 years and 24
g‘"‘m‘ ‘:’ “Andy”. days. With the exception of about 1 % years he has been with them for the last
a,p;f:::mata! eighteen years, coming there first as a hired man. About three months ago he
20 years fnrmying for slipped and fell and owing to his advanced age has been gradually failing until
Leon Reynolds, and the end. Mr. and Mrs. Reynolds did all in their power to relieve him and make
lived in Edna and his last day as pleasant as possible. Being of foreign birth he lost all trace of his
Leon’s home (Source: |relatives. He was very fond of his home and was ever ready to do little chores
Reynolds Family about the place. Living as one of the family for so many years, he will be greatly
Archives). missed by the Reynolds family who so kindly sheltered and clothed him during
his declining years. Services were held at 2 P. M. conducted by Elder Preston
and the form laid to rest in the Union Cemetery.

Figure 146A: Depiction of a
horsepower unit similar to

the one that Leon Reynolds
operated on his farm in

the 1890’s at Aniwa,
Wisconsin (Source:

Reynolds Family Archives).
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June 28, 1914: “Gacrilo Princip, a nineteen-year-old Serbian
revolutionary, fired two pistol shots. One killed Archduke Franz
Ferdinand, the nephew of Emperor Franz Joseph of Austria-Hungary and
heir to the Austrian throne. The other killed Sophie, his wife. Austria-
Hungary held Serbia responsible......... ”. World War I resulted.

Author’s Notes: World War I was a result of political and social climates. There was
an ‘arms race’ existing in 1914. Britain had a large Navy and France had a large Army.
Germany wanted both. Competition for superiority went out of control. In addition
Britain and France had colonial empires, i.e., they ruled smaller countries as colonies.
Germany and Italy wanted these same expansive privileges. The conflict between
Austria and Serbia served as an initiator for conflict between these ‘haves’ and ‘have
nots’. Patriotism was also a factor in that there was terrific competition for superior
industrial and commercial development. It bordered on superior ‘nationalism’.

This was a terrible war. Submarine, zeppelin, airplane, and chemical warfare
was introduced. Death by the most horrible weapons on earth was introduced. War
was really ‘hell’. The loss of life and ¢ e was awful. Allied and axis to; e (ships
sunk), totaled a loss of over 15 million ton of goods. Financial loss for both sides was
estimated at $186,333,637,000. And horrible casualty figures were 8,538,315 dead
and another 21,219,452 wounded. These are devastating statistics. In the opinion of
this author, World War I was not the ‘great war’, but rather the ultimate ‘expose’ for
‘catastrophe of war’.

July 28, 1914: “Austria declares war on Serbia.”

August 1, 1914: World War I began. “Germany declared war on Russia.”

August 4, 1914: President Wilson proclaims United States neutrality.

September 22, 1914: “U Boat (submarine) warfare was introduced with
the sinking of the British light cruisers, the Abourkir, Hogue, and
Cressy.”

December 21, 1914: “First German air raid on Britain. Airplane warfare
is introduced by Germany.”

December 24, 1914: “John Muir died of pneumonia at a Los Angeles,
California hospital.”

January 23, 1915: Leon Reynolds purchased a Bullock Creeping Grip
Tractor (“The Baby Creeper”), manufactured by The Bullock Tractor
company, Chicago, Illinois, for $1,986.00.
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Figure 147: Leon Reynolds
loading logs at his landing
in Elmhurst, Wisconsin, in
about 1915. Leon is pictured
next to the ‘Bullock Creeper’
tractor, in the ‘round derby
hat’ (Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).

Figure 148: Depiction af a Bullock 30-20 “Baby
Creeper” Tractor as purchased by Leon Reynolds
in 1915 for $1,986.00. The tractor weighed
6,900 pounds. Rating was 30 H.P. on the
pulley and 20 H.P. on the drawbar. There

was not a driver’s platform, thus the driver
must remain seated at all times (This depiction
shows a slightly different model than the one
purchased by Leon Reynolds). (Source:
“Encyclopedia of American Farm

Tractors”, by C. H. Wendel).

February 4, 1915: “British begin naval action against the Dardenelles.”

March 11, 1915: “Britain announces blockage of all German ports.”

April 26, 1915: “France, Russia, Italy and Britain conclude secret Treaty
of London.”

May 15, 1915: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at Aniwa Village Hall. L. P. Reynolds chaired

meeting.

June 13, 1915: “Zeppelin warfare is introduced by the Germans.”

March 1, 1916: From the Antigo Daily Journal: “An increased
production of maple syrup is anticipated in Langlade County if favorable
weather conditions prevail. E. Sage and T. A. Gillett of the Town of
Norwood have purchased evaporators of the same kind and size as were
installed in the Hartford and Leykom sugarbush a year ago.”

March 11, 1916: Leonard Kautza was born to Henry and Josephine
Kautza. Leonard married Maude Fellner, August 17, 1939. Leonard and
Maude were truly pioneers in the Aniwa history. They operated Kautza’s
Store in Aniwa for 43 years, retiring in 1978.
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Figure 149: Photograph taken at the 100
year celebration for the village of Aniwa,
Wisconsin in 1982. Pictured in the
center are Leonard and Maude Kautza,
lifelong pioneers for Aniwa (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).

April 16, 1916: Construction of the new Antigo High School began, to
replace the old high which had burned. Anne, Lynn, Juan, and
Kathleen Reynolds, as well as Don Klitzka attended this new High School
in the 1940’s, 50’s and 60’s. The school was demolished in 1997.

May 15, 1916: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at Aniwa Village Hall. L. P. Reynolds chaired
meeting. It was decided to register as an official cooperative. The
‘Trade Mark’ was accepted as “Pride of the North”.

January 9, 1917: “German leaders decide to launch unrestricted U-boat
warfare.”

February 3, 1917: “The United States severs relations with Germany.”

February 23, 1917: Leander Benson Wheeler, Lynn’s great grandfather,
died in Lime Ridge, Wisconsin.

March 12, 1917: “President Wilson declares arming of merchant ships
by executive order.”

April 6, 1917: “The United States declares war on Germany.”

May 15, 1917: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at Aniwa Village Hall. L. P. Reynolds chaired the
meeting. It was agreed that the annual meeting should move
around to other locations for convenience to those traveling, but
the meeting was set for Aniwa yet next year.

July 2, 1917: “General Pershing requests an United States Army of
1,000,000 men.”
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Leon Reynolds was elected as Chairman of the Aniwa School Board. He
served two four year terms as Chairman, and five four year terms as a
Director.

July 11, 1917: The Charles W. Fish Lumber Company, main office at
Elcho, cut their first log at the Antigo Mill. No. 3. The company employs
100 men and averages 12 million board feet annually. Leon Reynolds
was one of Charles Fish’s largest log buyers. Charles W. Fish Lumber
Company had five mills, two of which were in Langlade County.

October 28, 1917: Leon Reynolds purchased a “Strait’s” Universal
Tractor, manufactured by Killen-Strait Manufacturing Company,
Appleton, Wisconsin for $786.73. This tractor was only produced in
1916. This was purchased as a closeout.

Figure 150: Bert Wheeler, Lynn’s grandfather carrying
mail in 1917 on Route #1, Aniwa, Wisconsin (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).

Zime (Yut: YDaple Glaote:

“All good citizens, who are desirous of doing good deeds, and of being remembered by
posterity hereafter, we would recommend to transplant a goodly number of sugar maples round their
dwellings.”

JBy tosiah YDarshall, 1854.
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STRAITS TRACTOR

Figure 151: Picture of the 1916 “Strait’s”
Tractor as purchased by Leon Reynolds in 1917.
Even though advertised as a farm tractor, it

was purported to have logging application W THE UNTED Stores. This amol e e y oo
because of the ‘tracks’ on one side. The THIS UNUSUAL m«;m.w. N THAT YEAR. -
Killen-Strait Manufacturing Company only THEY ADVERTISED THAT THE TRALTOR éoued,, "PULL
TWO OR THREE. /4~ PLOWS, THE LONG £WAIN TREAD PULLS
produced this tractor for one year (1916). ON SOFT EROUND DR MUD WHERE WHEEL mcﬂm:?mu..
(Source: Taken from the “Wisconsin State "IT VEVER SLIFS - NEVER SKIDS- WORKS IN ANY PLACE

EVERY DAY, RAIN OR SHINE, WE ARE (FFERINC A FEW

TRACTORS OWLY ON QUICK ORDERS AT ¥ 795% To Aovee-
TISE, LATER THE PRICE WILL BE 4995 Weire f20 FULL
INFORMATION. DO |T Now!*

T ; st
v e L WAS O THE NARKET 7ok 7 VERY Shoer Tim. "

SPNEL: FARM FORTR N D MANINE 87 ANTECH, TIAVBY, W ¥ Sk XY NN, 7

Farmer” - date unknown).

May 1S5, 1918: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at Aniwa Village Hall. L. P. Reynolds chaired the

meeting. Reynolds, Schroeder, Sage, Kolpack, Leycom, Minch, and
Felts were names that attended.

May 29, 1918: The following letter was received by Leon Reynolds from
the son of a neighbor and a young man who had worked for Leon, prior to
1918:

“May 29, 1918
Somewhere in France

Dear friend Leon and family,

As it has been some time since I have seen you or any body else. I will drop you a few lines to let you
know that I am still alive and feeling good. Iwrote you a letter some time ago, but may be you didn’t get it.
I often think of you people and hope I will have the chance to enjoy life with you all again. Well Leon I am
now under the big guns that you hear so much about. Those big shells sure make some noise when they
go flying over your head and when one strikes near you it makes more noise yet. ha. ha. I have seen
several air fights, and then I think I am a lucky fellow that I am on the ground. I like the trenches very
well, and also my work is very interesting. I suppose you have read all about the gas that they use on the
battle front. A fellow don’t mind those things because you can tell a gas shell when it is coming in the air.
And if you can'’t tell it you will soon know it. Well I will have to close I guess wishing you all good luck and
write soon.

Signed: Puvt. Edward L. Cronk Approved: Ray C. Dukop
Co. L. 127" Inf., MG Ist Lieut., 127 Inf.
Amex Forces
Via N.Y.

p.s. This is rather a short letter, will do better next time.”

August 10, 1918: “Ist United States Army was organized under
Pershing.”
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November 11, 1918: “Armistice went into effect.”

January 18, 1919: “Peace negotiations start at Paris.”

February 19, 1919: The Maple Honey Company was incorporated by
James Cherf, C. S. Leykom and L. D. Hartford. The purpose of the
company was to sell maple and honey supplies; and to buy and sell
maple syrup and honey products. These gentlemen operate largest
apiaries and maple sugar operations in the region.

March 5, 1919: Phoebe (Blakeslee) Wheeler, Lynn’s great grandmother,
died in Reedsburg, Wisconsin.

Spring, 1919: Waterloo, Inc. (Evaporator and Maple Supplies) is
founded.

May 15, 1919: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at Aniwa Village Hall. L. P. Reynolds chaired
meeting. It was agreed to meet next year at ‘Antigo Agricultural
Hall’.

June 12, 1919: The Antigo Tractor company, was organized with a
capital stock of $100,000.00. The corporation engaged in the
manufacture and distribution of the Quad-Pull Tractor, principal of
which was designed by D. S. Stewart, Antigo, Wisconsin. The following
Officers of the Antigo Tractor Corporation were: President-John Manser;
Vice President- Ernest Hirt; Vice President-J. R. McQuillan; Secretary-Dr.
E. R. Murphy; Treasurer-Ernest Hirt. Directors were: W. H. Wolpert,
George Foster, John Hanousek, Morris Robinson, R. C. Dempsey, and
Charles W. Fish (Leon Reynolds was a major log buyer for Charles Fish
Lumber Company of Elcho). Charles Fish attempted to preserve the tractor
company for the Antigo area.

Figure 152: A caricature of the
Antigo four wheel-drive tractor, as
designed and built by D. Stewart, for
the Antigo Tractor Corporation. It
was designed in 19185, but

initial production was after
corporation formation in 1919
(Source: Taken from the

“Wisconsin State Farmer” as was
originally described in the
“Encyclopedia of American e iy
Farm Tractors”, by C. H. Wendel). ANTIGO, 15-25

Antigo Tractor Corporation, Anligo, W=
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June 28, 1919: “Treaty of Versailles signed in Hall of Mirrors at
Versailles.”

July 27, 1919: Chicago beach riot involving white and black youths.
This confrontation was one of the bloodiest in United States history: 15
white and 23 blacks dead, 537 injured.

Figure 153: Depiction of the world’s

largest airplane built in 1920 by -
mlmt?léc, Wimoﬁ:in {Sourl:c‘ The WORLD'S LARGEST ‘“RPU‘NE
- BN I910 A W LAWEON, WEAD OF THE
Lawson Humanity Publishing Company- TEIU) &4 et mmm&mm -;mm TS | m
- . - r” "::l:ml EQUPPED o BUNEE AND A SROWIR STALL BivETELN PADDED i
dat:unlmoum). LEATMER SEATE FUIKCED EACH BDE OF THE CEONTER AL (N THE PLISE 1T WAS THE

FIEST PASSEMGER CABIN TAAT KAD & DESK CETLNG TO ALLOW PASSENGERS TO STANO
EREST W Tk AfLE

O SPETENBER 11, 1970 TnE
SOV PROPOLLL TO CARRY AMD Rf YU MAL F20K MTTERIRS 10 7. LOVE MEW roRe
TO ATUIKTA dnD FROW MEW YORY 10 CRCAGD T waS THE FRIT A WAL CONTRACT
PUDE 1M AMEREA

DNFORTURATELS, 1N 4901 THE (4's WINGTP EREAED AN ELX TREE ON TREEDHF Avd
CRATRED. LAWTON CONPANY WINT BROKE. WOWEYER snThn FOUR TEARS ME wAZ RAZY ~

BULES a0 d'i::’g‘l‘

[

Figure 154: Adin{3) Reynolds as a student
in the 8% grade at the Aniwa Grade School
in 1919 (Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

August 11, 1919: The Green Bay Packerserc formed as a profcs.sional
football team. Their first season of 1919 they won 10 and lost one game.

Author’s Notes: The Green Bay Packers are as much a part of the Reynolds story
and Wisconsin history as anything in these pages. My sons and I are stockholders of
the Green Bay Packers. | am one of millions of one share stockholder fans. The
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Packers are unique in that they are the only publicly owned professional football team.
The people own the Packers. Next to my family and maple, the Packers probably
dictate my life more than any other element. It is always who are their players, who do
they play, when do they play, where do they play, what was the score, and going to the
games. They are a legend. They are history. They are Wisconsin. My Green Bay
Packer stock was expensive, it can only be sold back to the Packers at what I paid, it
can never earn dividends, it does not get me tickets, it has no collateral value, it can

receive no profit, it is useless and valueless, it can only be displayed on one’s wall,
and it is the most valuable asset I own — Pridellll....Thank God for the Green Bay

Packers.

The Green Bay Packers play in a city of less than 100,000 people, yet if you
applied for season tickets today, it would 2052 before you could even hope to buy
preseason tickets. They started with capitalization of $500.00. Their name comes from
the fact that the $500.00 was put up by Curly Lambeau’s emplover, “The Indian Packing
Company”, thus the ‘Packers’. They have won 13 National Football League
Championships, more than any other NFL team. I am a proud fan, so bear with me as I

point out a few facts about them. Thanks.

This Certifies that
LYNN H REYNDLDS SESUTHPAT | GOOES
W10010 GIVENS RO S0000es00Y] E0OE
HORTONVILLE Wl 53417 400089000 8] 008
BOOOSESEIRa] BS
Se0sesatsesan] s

isthe owner of SeQNESe
SHARES OF THE NO PAR VALUE COMMON STOCK OF

GREEN BAY PACKERS, 'Il\C
u..-bwm,r-r-«f poorulion in p by daly auh v up fer af thix certificate properiy endorred, but @\
ding to, the fthe C

e,

X LA BRIV AT LAY

!‘hlnudr Mm-‘mi.rnwkwh‘ e soid stock:

That if the Corpuration is distolved all the asrers shall go to charitable cowses:
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=N s s . Sy e i - * T
Flgum 155: Lynn s stock esrﬂﬂcate of tmm.ersh{j: ln thc Bay Pdeken (Souru Raymlds Fumﬂy
Archives).

December 29, 1919: Mr. and Mrs. Frank Reynolds, Leon’s brother, take
charge of the Marion Telephone Company office at Aniwa, Wisconsin.

January, 1920: The Maple Grove Candies, Inc. (although not called
this until 1929), is started by purchase of the candy making
division of the Cary Maple Sugar Company.
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January 17, 1920: Prohibition begins. The 18% Amendment to the
United States Constitution goes into effect, prohibiting the making,
selling, possession and consumption of alcoholic beverages. The most
violated law in history was repealed in 1933.

May 1, 1920: Price of Maple syrup:
Approximately 10 cents per pound or about
$1.10 per gallon of syrup. Barter price:
About 10 cans of Calumet Baking Powder,
which were selling for about 11 cents per
can.

Production maple syrup:
United States: 4,388,823 U. S. Gallons.

Canada: Estimated At About 2,245,455 U. S.
Gallons.

May 15, 1920: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at ‘Court House’, Antigo, Wisconsin. L. P.
Reynolds chaired the meeting. ‘Very large attendance’. Deep
concerns expressed about low price of syrup ($1.00 per gallon).
Next year’s meeting was set for Merrill, Wisconsin at the Court
House.

June 1, 1920: United States population is
105,710,620.

June 6, 1920: Wisconsin population is 2,632,067.

August 26, 1920: Women’s suffrage victorious. The 19% Amendment to
the United States Constitution adopted, allowing women the right to vote.
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Flgure 156: Advertisement
for Calumet Baking
Powder, March 14, 1919.
The price of a can

of the baking powder

was 11 cents (Source:

“The Reedsburg Times”,
Reedsburg, Wisconsin -
From the Reynolds Family
Archives).
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Figure 157: Homemade maple syrup cans
which were made by Leon Reynolds, from kits
which were available from catalog stores in
about 1918. The cans were flat sheets of metal
stamped and marked to bend. Caps,
instructions and solder were included in the
kit. Cans pictured are in the Reynolds

Family Archives.

Zime (Jut: A Sumorous Jihotograph:

“his photograph was taken

near  JSogal, W) , “7ongue-

Jn-Cheek” about BGCH: ((Source:
anknown - Peynolds _Lamily Arehives).
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1920 Production of Individual States
(In U. S. Gallons)

Vermont 706,467(1%) Minnesota 12,870
631,924(2n4) 631
1,338,391(39) 12,670
New York 1,080,505 Virginia 8,137
251,171 4,670
1,331,676 12,807
Ohio 694,175 Missouri 12,039
7.750 631
701,925 12,670
Pennsylvania 273,762 Illinois 12,114
: — 71,919 __ 179
345,671 12,293
Michigan 206,795 Iowa 4,915
9,647 371
216,442 5,286
Indiana 167,360 Connecticut 2,866
1,811 647
169,171 3,513
New Hampshire 112,824 Kentucky 999
41,2185 299
153,039 1,298
Wisconsin 138,627 North Carclina 333
2,804 195
141,431 528
Massachusetts 57,950 Tennessee 273
9,024 234
66,974 507
Maine 42,144 New Jersey 148
3,104 R
485,248 152
Maryland 23,155 Kansas 0
18,618 3
41,773 3
West Virginia 23,448
9,220
32,668
**Production of the United States (In U. S. Gallons) 3,507,745*
1,086,482+
4,693,227

(1*%) Line - Production of maple syrup for each individual state in U. S. Gallons

(274) Line - Production of maple sugar for each individual state in U. S. Gallons

(3+9) Line - Total production of syrup and sugar in the United States in U, S. Gallons

*Totals include small amounts not reported under individual states

w+Statistics modified from data by Clarence Coons in Ontario’s “Maple Thrives in ‘95",

Total data taken from “USDA Farmers Bulletin 1366”. “The Production of Maple Sirup and Sugar”.
Washington, D. C. 1930,

And other sources,
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September 13, 1920: The world’s largest airplane is built by the Lawson
Airplane company in South Milwaukee, Wisconsin.

Figure 158: The Aniwa Grade
School Teamn 1919. Pictured
Hal Hornsby (Coach), Adin{3r)
Reynolds (upper left), Charles
Kreger, Gilbert Moss, Oscar
Steckbauer, Frank Steckbauer,
Lud Meidl, and Raymond Miller
(Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).

Figure 159: Adin{3d) Reynolds is the
driver of the car, Merle, his brother
is the rider. Picture taken in 1921.
The establishment is the G. H.
Goldrick General Merchandise Store
(Source: Reynolds Family Archives).

R R AR - S

September 17, 1920: The National Football League is formed under the
name of the American Professional Football Association (name changed
to the NFL in 1922). Jim Thorpe was the first president.

January 13, 1921: The Antigo Tractor Corporation was reorganized by
increasing their capital stock to $1,000,000.00.

March 4, 1921: Warren G. Harding becomes the 29t President of the
United States. He was married to Florence King.

April 22, 1921: During April 1921, Leon Reynolds shipped 289,270 board

feet of logs, and ‘decked’ 169,000 board feet of logs for the White Star
Lumber Company of Mattoon, Wisconsin.
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May 12, 1921: The Green Bay Packers received a franchise from the
National Professional Football League (NFL).

May 15, 1921: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at the Court House in Merrill, Wisconsin. L. P.
Reynolds chaired the meeting. ‘Very small attendance’. It was

agreed that they would move the meetings permanently to Antigo,
Wisconsin.

June 1, 1921: Population of Canada is
8,787,949,

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT
White Star Lumber Co.
Manufucturers snd Wholcssle Dealer in
LUMBER, LATH AND
SHINGLES
Figure 160: Statement for April, 1921 Fold fo L. F. Roynolds,
to Leon (L. P.) Reynolds, from White Aniwa, Wiz
Star Lumber Company, Mattoon, WI - . ’
(Source: Reynolds Family Archives). s Bk 4f22/21 =
?143 Logs 289270 ft. @ m.o'o- F4628.32-
Decking 3476 " 1690007 " ! 1,00 ~""169. 00~
: oL ] fererize
! i I
i cash advanced ~| ~14350.¢u™ "1
i . PR S j" !
E o , _...#.4‘7"2._..{
i S P i i {
. I T - Y |
| ook :
o 4 ; S B T N— —
Penna 43592 11.10 eda Hem_ Pulp _ P i
Eris B86vd 12.25 * . B X
Lu: 23985 _11.50 " 12 ol i
- 34.85 cda @ §7.20 __'_F_a_sg'._g_g; ) '
Figure 161: Photograph of Leon Lo g e ! e fe
Reynolds on a hunting trip in g ;g e n =
1921. Leon loved to hunt. | } !
(Source: Reynolds Family Archives). i * it

Zime (Yut: The Columbia Graphophone Company offered the following titles for sale in 1922:
“DYississippi Choo-choo”, Y4/lay Down Vonder in New rleans”, Jf gou Don't Think So,
Vou're Crazg”, and ‘AUl _Lor The Love (OF YDike".

Christmas trees ave selling for 75 cents ench in 1922.  Ralsam ave the most popular.

Zime (Jut:  Jn 1920, maple syrup was selling for about 7 cents por pound, while honey was selling for 14
cents per pound. Jn 1998, maple syrup is selling for about $1.80 per pound (bulk), and honey is selling for
about 90 cents per pound (bulk).
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Figurel62: Photograph of Adin{3)
with his trophy buck in 1923, Note
that the mount of this deer, the
1992 Octagon long barrel 30-30
Winchester rifle, and this
photograph are all contained in
current Reynolds Family Archives.

Flgure 163: Photograph of
Geraldine Reynolds, Lynn’s
Mother in 1923. It is her
8% grade graduation picture
(Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).

January 3, 1922: University of Wisconsin radio station 9XM, operating

since 1917, became WHA. It is known to be the oldest continuous
operating radio station in the United States.

January 24, 1922: The coldest temperature in history of Wisconsin
occurred this date, 54 degrees below zero in Danbury, Wisconsin.

1922: Adolph Hitler’s Beer Hall Putsch easily put down.

May 1922: The Aniwa High School was built by J. Hellesen, Contractor.
The school was converted to the Aniwa Grade School in about 1935, All
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the Reynolds, descending from Leon and Edna to date, have attended this
school building, including today.

Figure 164: Picture of
building the Aniwa High
School in 1922 (Source:
Reynolds Family
Archives).

May 15, 1922: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at the Langlade County Courthouse, Antigo,
Wisconsin. L. P. Reynolds chaired meeting. Rine (not sure if
Adolph or Louis) was elected as Secretary. Profitability of malking
maple syrup was the concern. Adin(37) attended his first Maple
Association meeting with his father Leon Reynolds.

Author’s Notes: Adin{34) Reynolds would remain active in this association
thro his entire wor! life, until his in 1987. Leon R lds would
stay with the Association until through its most contributory years of 1933-34,
which his health fail he passed the onsibi on to 3rd) and
others.

June 6, 1922: Leon Reynolds purchased a Moline “Universal” Tractor,
manufactured by the Moline Plow Company, Moline, Illinois, for
$1,402.00. The tractor was purchased from the dealer (believed to have
been Wunderlich Implement), Elmhurst, Wisconsin.

Figure 165: Leon Reynolds, a rugged
individualist and avid hunter in
about 1922 (Source: Reynolds Family
Archives).
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August 8, 1922: Alexander Graham Bell, telephone inventor dies.

October 28, 1922: “Ford advertises prices of a Roadster at $364.00, a
Sedan at $595.00, and a Ford Tractor at $395.00.

November 5, 1922: Gasoline at the Reynolds Maple Sweet Shop and Filling

Station is selling for 22 cents for Red Crown and 25 cents for Interstate per
gallon.

November 10, 1922: Apples are advertised in Antigo, Wisconsin for 50
cents per bushel.

December 20, 1922: Reynolds Maple Sweet Shop advertises nuts
Jor Christmas at 20 cents per pound for all kinds, except peanuts
which are 15 cents per pound. Maple Syrup at $1.00 per gallon.
Maple Sugar at 25 cents per pound.

L. P. REYNOLDS & SON

FRODUCERS OF

Figure 166: First known letterhead
of L. P. REYNOLDS & SON, Itis
dated January 1, 1923. The
letterhead shows “ROUTE 26%,
which pncedee the building AOUTE 26

of Highway U. S. 45 (Source: ANIWA, WIS.
Reynolds Family Archives).

PURE MAPLE SUGAR AND SYRUP [
ICE CREAM, SOFT DRINKS AND CIGARETTES &
GAS AND DILS - TOURIST CAMP . MAPLE SUGAR

Figure 167: A Moline “Universal” tractor in
1922. The tractor had electric start, lighting,
an electric governor. It was rated as 28 H.P on
the pulley and 17.5 H.P. on the drawbar. The
tractor weighed 3,380 pounds. It was equipped
with a four cylinder engine and came with
concrete ballast inside the drive wheels for
stability and traction (Source: “Encyclopedia of
American Farm Tractors”, by C. H. Wendel). A
tractor of this type was purchased by Leon
Reynolds in 1922.

January 1, 1923: L. P. Reynolds & Son (partnership) was formed
between Leon Reynolds and his son Adin(3"d). The partnership was
Jor the entire logging, buying timber, log landing operations, land
acquisitions, sawmill, maple syrup production, sweet shop, filling
station, and farming.

January 2, 1923: Leon Reynolds purchased a Queen Wind-Charger for
$32.96.
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Free Power

from the Air!
Play your radio night and day . ...

Figure 168: Advertisement for the the QUEEN WIND-CHARGER will
Queen Wind Charger like the one keep your battery charged.
puwrchased by Leon Reynolds in
1923 (Source: Reynolds Family &
Archives).
2

;-3 4

ﬁ l

.:!'l :

No more need to take radio, car,
truck or tractor storage batteries
to town to be charged.

Author’s Notes: A 3rd) was a and note er. Maube b

today’s computer standards, he would not be considered as state of the art, but
in his own way he was proficient and a meticulous record keeper. This text
could contain hundreds, if not thousands of such notes as are transcribed
below. However, most of the notes) were of a personal nature or
involve friends of the family, which really do not have much to do with our
story, therefore I have transcribed the writings to include only those which are
pertinent to this book. But, I am including the following few passages as
documentation of one syrup season (1923), and to present the reader with the
understanding of the volume of loads of logs that were processed by Leon and
A 3rd). You can read it as A 3rd) spoke it in 1923. The pass are not
exactly quotes as I have left out personal things, but it is a realistic
representation of the total document for this period.

February 7, 1923 (From Adin{34)’s Diary): “Wednesday. Uncle Clyde
asked me to help_him in the woods. Broke my leg at 2:00 p.m.. Doctor
came at 4:30 and put on a splint.”

February 10, 1923 (From Adin(3)’s Diary): “Saturday. Doctor came and
looked at my leg. He removed and replaced splint.”

February 15, 1923 (From Adin)34)’s Diary): “Thursday. Doctor removed
splint and put my leg in a cast.”

March 10, 1923: The Chicago and Northwestern Railroad reported that
during January 1,257 car loads of logs moved on its Ashland Division
through Aniwa, Wisconsin.

March 13, 1923 (From Adin(3)’s Diary: “Tuesday. Doctor removed cast.”
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March 24, 1923 (From Adin(3)’s Diary: “Saturday. Took the train to
Mattoon at noon. Heard the ‘wireless’ for the first time (Market Reports) -
great.”

March 26, 1923 (From Adin{3™)’s Diary: “Monday. A crew of 3 men
and I finished washing pails today. Dad does not want me in the
woods with my leg yet. He wants to make sure I am able to run the
evaporators. Uncle Clyde will run the tapping crew this year. The
crew started tapping today. Dad and crew loaded 2 cars (logs)
today.”

March 27, 1923 (From Adin{3™)’s Diary: “Tuesday. Hired man and
I washed the evaporators today. Weather is still bitter cold. Dad
loaded 3 cars (logs) today.”

March 30, 1923 (From Adin(37)’s Diary: “Friday. Tapping is done.
3,832 pails out. Weather warming some. Dad and crew loaded

2 /2 cars (logs) today. The crew will finish the other %z tomorrow.
Bought another 20 pails today from Mr. Bergeron ($4.65).”

April 2, 1923 (From Adin(3)’s Diary: “Monday. Took the old
gathering tank into Klopstein’s for repair. We will need all three
gathering tanks this year. Warmer. Sap is running. Crew will
start gathering on Wednesday. Dad and crew loaded 2 cars (logs)
today. Have to catch up on the chores today. Hired man is falling
behind.”

April 4, 1923 (From Adin{3™)’s Diary: “Wednesday. Uncle Clyde
and crew gathered 7 tanks of sap. Another 7 is out there. Will
start cooking on Friday. Dad and crew loaded 4 cars (logs) today -
big day.”

April 5, 1923 (From Adin(3™)’s Diary: “Thursday. Sap crew
gathered 8 tanks today. Dad and crew loaded 2 cars (logs) today.
Will boil tomorrow.”

April 6, 1923 (From Adin(39)’s Diary: “Friday. Took off 8 gallons
today. Finished it on new finishing pan. Looks like it will work.
Syrup is the best ever. Dad and crew got 1 car (logs) loaded today.”

April 16, 1923 (From Adin(379)’s Diary: “Monday. Dad and Clyde
will boil tonight. I am bushed. Been running steady for a week.
Over 300 gallons off so far. Crew will load 1 car (logs) today. Dad
needs to get some rest.”
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April 18, 1923: Joe Minch, operating the “Kingsbury Sugar Bush”,
formerly known as the “Chandler Sugar Bush”, reported he has
2,200 trees tapped.

May 2, 1923 (From Adin(3)’s Diary: “Wednesday. Will finish up
today. Good thing. Everything needs washing. -- Got off final 12
gallons today. Glad it is done. Hired man will clean evaporators
and wash up. I need to get on the fields tomorrow. Uncle Clyde
and Dad got a load of hay for the ‘loading horses’ today. They
loaded 3 */z cars (logs) today. Dad will help with plowing, but they
have about 16 more cars (logs) to load first.”

May 8, 1923 (From Adin(3™9)’s Diary: “Tuesday. Finished up with
686 gallons. Snow blizzard. Snowed about 4 inches last night.
Blowing. Clyde and I cleaned oats. No disking today. Jammer
broke, but we still got 3 cars (logs) loaded. Took drag in to be
fixed. Put in 5 gallons of gas in tractor.”

May 15, 1923: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at the Courthouse, Antigo, Wisconsin. L. P.
Reynolds chaired the meeting. Secretary Rine asked for dues of
$1.00 per year to defray postage and paper costs. It was approved
(no dues had been collected up to this time). Consideration was
given to the Cooperative buying and packaging syrup for sale.

August 2, 1922: Adin(3) left with about 65 other young men from Antigo,
Wisconsin for Camp Custer, Michigan for military training. This training
was to be six weeks in length and was required of all men between 16 and
20 years of age. s o

B R R e —

Figure 167A: Picture of Adin{3rd), 6*» from
right (front row), with the rest of the
men from Antigo, at Camp Custer during
their training in 1922 (Source: Reynolds
Family Archives).

CITIZENS MILITARY TRAINIRG CAMP.
Camp Custor, Michigan, "
__%-'?_i‘;m. ,
Dear, 3 . .

arrived at Camp cu‘,,:,?—fﬂiﬁ' p 9183 here) Figure 167B: Post card received concerning

M. th
; bewn thlcnu; o::mlnu; and assigned w". n:n‘:uh:;. Adin{3r4)’s arrival at Camp Custer, dated
©omat) ter mimto o O ,;::;',,:;’f "ﬁ‘f,‘f:_";:n;‘“ August 3, 1923 (Source: Reynolds Family
Cadp Cudler, Michigan,- Archives).

S!m:lrll; yourae,
Comzarfding “cA.  Compafiy. Z
2t H LA )l oo FAOIR
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October 16, 1923: Adin(3™)is accepted as an employee of the U. S. Postal
Service. He will work as a substitute rural mail carrier and deliver mail in
bulk until such time as a full time rural mail route opens up. He will be
paid a starting wage of 50 cents per day for substitute mail carrier and up
to 75 cents per day for bulk mail deliveries depending how far they are
and how much time is required for delivery.

Author’s Notes: Adin(3™) Reynolds started with the United States Postal Service in
1923 and continued as a rural mail carrier until 1948 when he became the Postmaster in
Aniwa until 1951, when he retired with 28 years of service. His duties, when he was
seventeen and eighteen years of age, were mostly substitute carrying in Aniwa, Antigo,
Elmhurst, Birnamwood, and Mattoon. He was especially in demand in the winter, when
horse and sleighs were still used. Adin(3m) often told how he liked to run along next to
the sleigh to keep warm. He loved it.

1924: Lenin dies.

May 15, 1924: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met in Antigo, Wisconsin. L. P. Reynolds chaired the
meeting. Secretary Rine was given title of Secretary/Treasurer. He
reported that they had collected $13.00 in dues thus far. Dues for
1924 were due now. The suggestion was made that if producers
could not afford the $1.00 dues that they could pay with one
gallon of maple syrup. The syrup could then be packaged in
smaller containers and sold in lieu of their dues. This could be a
way to start the cooperative marketing maple syrup. It was
agreed. Chairman Reynolds was authorized to purchase
containers and have labels made for marketing under the
cooperative label, “Pride of the North”. Chairman Reynolds
appointed his son, Adin(3™) as ‘committee’ to develop these details.

Author’s Notes: This was a historic meeting, because it established the
ac and mar of Wisconsin pure Ie s under the label of “Pride

of the North” and it really created stability and stature for the organization.
From this point forward, dues were mostly collected in the form of syrup and
membership soared. The marketing aspect of the cooperative syrup, formed a
‘pride’ in selling their syrup. It provided a feeling of accomplishment to sell the
‘Wisconsin’ syrup. Up to this time in history, the Reynolds really did not have
an identity for les roduction. T had moved from Massachusetts.
to Connecticut, three times in New York, and finally, they had an identity —
Wisconsin maple syrup. And, it carried over to the member’s own individual

ac. and theme, b the “Pride of the North” label. A

this label and trademark is still in use today. A ‘point’ of history is noted.
1925: Chrysler Corporation was founded by Walter Chrysler.

March 4, 1925: Calvin Coolidge becomes the 30t President of the United
States. He was married to Grace Anna Goodhue.
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About May, 1925: L. P. Reynolds (Leon) and Son (Adin(3)) purchased a
Fordson tractor for $1,897.00.

May 15, 1925: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at Antigo, Wisconsin. L. P. Reynolds chaired the
meeting. Secretary-Treasurer, Adolph Rine (Ist time the name of
Adolph was confirmed), reported that they had 57 members who
had paid the $1.00 dues). 52 of the members had paid in syrup.
Adin(3) reported that the 52 gallons of syrup was all packaged in
quart tins, and were labeled with the “Pride of the North” labels.
He proposed they charge 50 cents per quart ($2.00 per gallon)
which would net about $1.25 per gallon for the Association. It was
agreed. Names of Reynolds, Rine, Buboltz, Jahnke, Stender,
Omernik, Schroeder, Leycom, Minch, Sage, Peters, Kolpack,
Kleinschmidt, Hackbarth, Shields, McClean, Polak, Jennings, Maas,
Felts, and others attended. Discussion was about selling large
volumes of syrup. A ‘Marketing Committee’ of Lawrence Jahnke,
Adolph Stender, and Adin(3%) Reynolds, along with Otto Worth,
Secretary of the Antigo Milk Cooperative (which was the plant to do
the evaporation), was appointed to contact large companies about
buying and selling maple syrup. The whole marketing project was
under the guidance of Langlade County Agent, John Omernik. This
was to be a cooperative action, and private individuals or
producers were not to undercut or underbid Association attempts.
It was agreed.

July 10, 1925: John T. Scopes goes on trial for teaching evolution in the
Tennessee schools. The lawyers were Clarence Darrow for the defense
and he was prosecuted by William Bryan Jennings. The verdict was
guilty. He was fined $100.00 and the verdict was reversed upon appeal.

July, 1925: Adolph Hitler publishes “Mein Kampf”, which detailed how
he viewed the world. The world should have paid attention.

November 22, 1925: Red Grange, University of Illinois, turns
professional and signs with the Chicago Bears.

Figure 169: Picture of the Fordson
Tractor, manufactured by Ford Motor
Company. It weighed 2,700 pounds,
had a four cylinder engine, and
about 18 H. P. on the pulley. Even
though there were 739,977 sold, they
were not considered a very large
success. (Source: Encyclopedia of
American Farm Tractors, by C. H.
Wendel)
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1926: First television transmission.

Author’s Notes: The vears of prohibition had many problems of enforcement. It just
did not work. Moonshine production was enormous. Bootlegging gave rise to some of
the most notorious gangsters ever known to man. This was probably the number one
reason for their beginnings. Some of the names that were infamous in this era were
the Barker Gang, Bonnie and Clyde, John Dillinger, Pretty Boy Floyd, Baby Face
Nelson, Machine Gun Kelly, and Charles Tucky’ Luciano. This was a terrible period in
American history.

April 7, 1926: Value of liquor ‘bootlegging’ (‘moonshine production’), is
estimated to be 3.6 billion dollars.

May 15, 1926: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at Antigo, Wisconsin. L. P. Reynolds chaired the
meeting. Secretary-Treasurer, Adolph Rine reported that all 208
quarts of syrup from the previous year had been sold at 50 cents
per quart. He reported that 69 members were currently paid for
1926, all of them paying with syrup. This gave them 69 gallons to
sell for 1926. He proposed that they could probably sell another
69 gallons without any trouble. He proposed that all 69 members
sell another 1 gallon to the cooperative at $1.00 per gallon, which
would give the Association 552 quarts to sell during the next year.
It was agreed. So for the first time, syrup was being purchased
Jrom the members of the cooperative, for resale. Adin(3™) Reynolds,
Secretary, ‘Marketing Committee, reported that several contacts
had been made to large companies in the area, such as lumber,
milk, and equipment companies for selling syrup in volume. The
only company that showed any interest thus far was Land O’ Lakes
Creameries, Minneapolis, Minnesota (they had a local plant in
Antigo, The Antigo Milk Producers Cooperative), but they were not
at all ready to act. Kraft considered it, but thus far has said no.
Charles W. Fish Lumber Company of Elcho had been contacted, but
his financial condition did not allow it at this time. However,
Charles Fish did offer to sell the cooperative’s syrup in his retail
establishment and would buy several quarts (for cash) to give to his
clients and customers. The committee will continue to work on the
situation.

- 170: Letter to L. P. Reynolds, San Diego, Calif., May 15, 1926:

received from Dr. John H. Seiffert, Mr. L. P. Reynolds, Aniwa, Wisconsin
in which he paid $6.25 for 10 pounds of Dear Sir: We received the package containing ten pounds
maple sugar. A great price for 1926. of pure maple sugar in good order. I enclose cashier’s

“Maybe d D in tho . "
dager The orice cannot be exlamed, but - | check amount six and 25/100 dollars ($6.25) in payment of

here is the letter (Source: Reynolds same. Thanking you for your prompt attention, I beg to
Risuelly Svcirions): remain. Yours truly, John W. Seiffert, M. D., 242 West
Grape Street, San Diego, California
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July 20, 1926: Margaret Mary (Donnelan) Sharkey, Anne’s grandmother

died.

July 26, 1926: The Reynolds Maple Sweet Shop was robbed of 30

cents.

Figure 171: Newspaper account of a holdup and rebbery
of the Reynolds Maple Sweet Shop in 1926. The robbers
got away with 30 cents (Source: Unknown - Taken from
The Reynolds Family Archives).

OFFICE OF
CHAS. W. FISH,
Elcho, Wis.

Elcho, Wisconsia, July 18, 1927.

To the Unsecured Creditors of the Chas. W, Fish Lbr. Co, and of
Chas. W, Fith personally and the Creditors Committee:

Gentlemen:—

1 have been giving a good deal of thought to the situation of the Forest County Lbr, Ca., the
Chax, W, Fish Lbr. Co. and mysell. and particulatly so since the meeting of July 7th. at which time a report was
made by Me. Lemke of the progress made during the past year, This report and statement as submitted, appac-
ently was favorable 1o all concerned. [ am perfectly candid in gaying under some conditions the future resule
of this report and would be ially dis d.

Mr. Lemke, the only lomberman on the Creditors Committee, as you know, has resigned, effective
August 7. 1927, His successor has not yet been selected. [ believe you are aware such a drastic change at this
time, which will include not enly Mr. Lemke's resignation. but a lacge portion of the operating personne] of this
Company, will change the futore sitwation very materially and as 3 matter of fact, will be costly 1o you and
mysell as beneficial owner of the Chas. W. Fish Lbe. Co.

I am suce the very credible showing so far made. is due entirely to the ability and untiring eforts of
Mr. Lemke and his i in the i of these G ics during the past year. Mr Lemke
cannet be prevailed upon to change his decision and continue to act as an executive officer an behalf of the
creditors.

With the lumber industry 23 a whole in a depressed condition and with so immediate prospect of
improvement in sight, and facing 3 Presidential election next year, [ am sure you will sgree with me these circum-
stances very materially change the sitwation as presented by this report.

I have spent the greater portion of my life building up this business and afier a very thorough inveatiga-
tion of the present situation, upon a very fair estimate of the experience of lumbermen and bankers, | am sure
that to salvage anything for you or mysell, a compromise should be effected promptly between us. [ am
authorized to make you the following proposition for the amignment of your claim against the Chas, W, Fish
Lbr, Co. and Chas, W, Fish personally:

I will pay 35% of the face value of your claim on or before August 10, 1927, subject to your accepiance
of this offer, R

In making the above offer it iz und d sll ditors must 3ccept before it becomes efective.
The financing w0 plete the has been arranged. ’

“Time is very essential in this matter as Me. Lemke and the present operating personnel will sever their
connections as representatives of the Creditors Commitiee on August 7, 1927, and 1o farilitate and expedite
the acceptance of this offer prior to that time. I am enclosing a form of ami © d by you.

It is my understanding 3 large number of the wnsecured crediton have already assigned ‘theie claims 10

the Creditors Cs To such creditors it will 1o execute this assignment, but just

notify the Creditors C of your P sending me 3 copy. To those unsecored ereditors who
have not amigned their ¢laims, kindly execute the enclosed assignment in blank and forward it to the Langlade
Mational Bank of Antigo, Wis., and upon the by all credi i will be made direct by

the above bank.

This matter is very urgent and [ would like very much to have it completed before August 7th, 1927,
and your prompt co-operation will be greatly appreciated by me,
Yours very truly,

V7774

Assignment enclosed.
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BURGULARS ENTER ANIWA
STORE
THIEVES HOLD UP L. P.
REYNOLDS, ANIWA SHOP
KEEPER SATURDAY NIGHT

Thirty cents was the total of the loot
two robbers got Saturday night when they
entered the Maple Sweet Shop at Aniwa
and held up the proprietor, L. P. Reynolds.
Their attempt to rifle the cash drawer was
frustrated when they ran from the
building at the sound of a noise of origin
unknown to them.

Reynolds locked up his store about 10
o'clock and was eating ice cream before
retiring for the night when he heard a
knock at the door. Believing someone
wanted gasoline or a telephone, he
unlocked the door to be met with a
revolver thrust in his face.

One of the two burglars forced him to
put his hands up and turn around while
they frisked his pockets. Thirty cents was
all the Aniwa man carried. Disappointed
over the small loot they forced Reynolds at
the point of the gun to the cash drawer.

In the meantime, Mrs. Reynolds, who
had retired an hour before, heard the
burglars and in her night attire rushed
from the house to call a passing motorist.
The burglars heard the commotion and
made their escape without rifling the cash
drawer where the day’s receipts were kept.
Tracks in the garden at the rear of the
building showed the burglars were
wearing tennis shoes, and that they had
been there for some time watching the
shopkeeper.

Figure 172: The letter that
was sent to Leon Reynolds and
all other creditors of The
Charles W. Fish Company, the
Fish Company was going
through Chapter 11

bankruptcy (Source:
The Reynolds Farmily Archives).



May 15, 1927: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at Antigo, Wisconsin. L. P. Reynolds chaired the
meeting. Secretary-Treasurer Adolph Rine reported that all 552
quarts of syrup had been sold at 50 cents per quart. The treasury
currently had $216.33. There were 76 total members paid for
1927. It was suggested that they do the same for 1927, but
increase the amount to 2 gallons per member to be purchased.
This would give them 912 quarts to sell. Adin{3) Reynolds,
Secretary, ‘Marketing Committee, reported that there were no new
developments in getting a large company to buy and market large
quantities of syrup. But all lines of communication were kept
open. Charles W. Fish Company of Elcho has gone into Chapter 11
bankruptcy, thus that market was on hold and did not look very
promising. Nothing further had happened with Land O’ Lakes
Creameries.

September 27, 1927: Adin{34) Reynolds married Geraldine Hazel Wheeler
at Shawano, Wisconsin.

Figure 173: Adin(3"4)
and Geraldine’s wedding
picture. Pictured with
Adin{3-d) and Geraldine
is Alice Wilcox and

Al Bitney in 1927
(Source: Reynolds
Family Archives).

,,,,,
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Figure 174: Adin{3) and
Geraldine operating the

sawmill in 1929. The Tractor

is the Fordson. (Source: Reynolds
Family Archives).

WA
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Figure 175: Adin(3"9) driving
the Fordson in 1929 (Source:
Reynolds Family Archives).

Figure: 176
Bert’s Snow Car
for delivering
mail in 1928
Source: Reynolds
Family Archives).
Figure 177:
Adin(3) and
Geraldine in 1928
{Source:
Reynolds Family
Archives).

October 1, 1927: Leon Reynolds buys hail and cyclone insurance from an
insurance company in Hortonville, Wisconsin.

December 2, 1927: The Model A introduced by Ford Motor Company.

ASSESSMENT NOTICE
Central Mutual Hail and Cyclone Insurance Company

HORTONVILLE WISCONSIN, OCTORER 1. 1957,

Figure 178: Receipt for Central - ol
Mutual Cyclone Insurance Company,
Hortonville, Wisconsin in 1927
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December, 1927: The United States is building 85% of all the
automobiles built in the world, and has sold in the United States, 1 for
every 5 Americans, 1 for every 2 families or %2 of the families in U. S.
now own cars.
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1928: Penicillin discovered.
The “Charleston” is the worldwide dance craze.

May 15, 1928: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met in Antigo, Wisconsin. L. P. Reynolds chaired the
meeting. Secretary-Treasurer, Adolph Rine reported that only
about 800 quarts had been sold from last year. And, there were
only 42 members paid thus far this year. It was suggested that
since there were fewer members at present, that they buy three
gallons from those members that are paid up now, which should be
incentive for others to pay faster next year. It was agreed. This
should give the Cooperative about 700 quarts to sell, plus any that
came in for dues later. Adin(3) Reynolds, Secretary, ‘Marketing
Committee’, reported that there had been some contact again with
Land O’ Lakes, but nothing definite.

June 17, 1928: Amelia Earhart is the 1st woman to make a trans world
flight.

July 30, 1928: Dodge and Chrysler merge. The combined companies
introduce Plymouth and De Soto.

November 10, 1928: The Notre Dame football game, “Win one for the
Gipper”, was played. Knute Rockne rallied his team to a 12-6 win over
Army.

November 18,1928: Walt Disney released his first synchronized sound
cartoon, “Steamboat Willey”, starring Mickey Mouse.

February 14, 1929: Charles Lindberg starts first airmail service.

February 14, 1929: St. Valentine’s Day Massacre occurs in Chicago. Six
notorious Chicago gangsters are machine gunned to death by the Al
Capone gang.

March 4, 1929: Herbert Hoover, becomes the 31st President of the United
States. He was married to Lou Henry.

March 16, 1929: A new corporation is formed, called Maple Grove
Candies, Inc.. It was formed by George Cary and Earle Franklin.
Their facilities are located at the same location today.
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May 15, 1929: The “Northwoods Maple Syrup Cooperative”
(Association) met at Antigo, Wisconsin. L. P. Reynolds chaired the
meeting. Secretary-Treasurer Adolph Rine reported there had been
a total of 69 members for 1928 and 86 had paid for 1929. All the
syrup had been sold. It was decided to purchase 3 gallons from
each member for 1929, in addition to the syrup derived from dues.
Adin(3), Secretary of the ‘Marketing Committee’ reported that
Land O’ Lakes Creameries were serious about trying to sell maple
syrup. An arrangement for a trial market test was in the process
of being arranged. This was really great news for the times.

October 29, 1929: Stock Market crashes.

December 15, 1929: The Green Bay Packers win their first National
Football League (NFL) championship with record of 12 wins, O losses and
1 tie.

Figure 179: Depiction of the
mass hysteria produced by the
stock market of 1929. A
picture of Wall Street on
October 30, 1929, Total
chaos resulted (Source:
Unknown - Taken from the
Reynolds Family Archives).

Author’s Notes: The stock market crash of October 29, 1929 was probably the most
significant occurrence in history to upset the financial climate of the Reynolds family,
all Americans, and people around the world. Books are written on the subject, so I will
just give a short overview.

Probably headlines tell what happened as well as any words, and numbers tell
how bad. Here are a few examples: “PRICES OF STOCKS CRASH IN HEAVY
LIQUIDATION, TOTAL DROP OF BILLIONS”; “PAPER LOSS $4,000,000,000.00”;
“2,600,000 SHARES SOLD IN THE FINAL HOUR IN RECORD DECLINE”; “MANY
ACCOUNTS WIPED OUT”; “ORGANIZED BANKING ABSENT”; STOCK PRICES SLUMP
$14,000,000,000.00 IN NATION-WIDE STAMPEDE TO UNLOAD; BANKERS TO
SUPPORT MARKET TODAY”; STOCKS COLLAPSE IN 16,410,030 - SHARE DAY, BUT
RALLY AT CLOSE CHEERS BROKERS; BANKERS OPTIMISTIC, TO CONTINUE AID”.

The crash of 29 was the worst financial disaster in history. We have all heard
how bad it was, but in layman terms, it affected every American, including those in
Ani Wisconsin. Over 1/3 of the banks closed. Savings accounts were either frozen
or wiped out. No money could be borrowed. Survival was by what money you had in
the sock or what you could eat from out of the ground. You could sell anything, but it
was on credit, and you probably would not be paid for it. If you were paid for it, it
would take a long time. Those banks that did not close started to go broke. More
savings disappeared. Retail businesses went broke. Suppliers went broke.
Automobile and tractor companies went broke. Bankruptcy was rampant. In fact,
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bankruptcy was usually not even an option. You simply ran out of money and closed
your establishment. There was no shame, and the creditors probably would not get
anything anyway. Adin(3) described it as the most horrible experience of his life.

L. P. Reynolds & Son were no exception. Leon and Adin(3™) could no longer depend on

shipping logs, and if they did, they probably would not be paid for them. Sawmills and
lumber companies were going broke at a record pace. They did ship logs, but knew they
it would be a long time waiting for their money, or not get it at all. Maple syrup was a
luxury product, and luxury products just were not necessary. The only market was to the
‘haves”, none to the “have nots”. Farming was a way to feed your animals. You could no
longer depend on being paid for products raised. They could not afford to buy feed, thus
had to raise it. They closed the Reynolds Maple Sweet Shop and Filling Station. 